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BILLE D'"ETAT

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE STATES OF

THE ISLAND OF GUERNSEY

| have the honour to inform you that a Meeting of the
States of Deliberation will be held at THE ROYAL COURT
HOUSE, on WEDNESDAY, the 24th SEPTEMBER, 2003,

immediately after the Meeting already convened for that day.
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PROJET DE LOI
entitled

THE REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS (BAILIWICK OF
GUERNSEY) LAW, 2003

The States are asked to decide:-

I.- Whether they are of opinion to approve the Projet de Loi entitled “The Regulation
of Investigatory Powers (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2003”, and to authorise the
Bailiff to present a most humble Petition to Her Majesty in Council praying for Her
Royal Sanction thereto.

PROJET DE LOI
entitled

THE PREVENTION OF CORRUPTION (BAILIWICK OF GUERNSEY)
LAW, 2003

The States are asked to decide:-

II.- Whether they are of opinion to approve the Projet de Loi entitled “The Prevention
of Corruption (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2003”, and to authorise the Bailiff to
present a most humble Petition to Her Majesty in Council praying for Her Royal
Sanction thereto.

PROJET DE LOI
entitled
LA SOCIETE GUERNESIAISE (INCORPORATION) LAW, 2003
The States are asked to decide:-
II1.- Whether they are of opinion to approve the Projet de Loi entitled “La Société
Guernesiaise (Incorporation) Law, 2003”, and to authorise the Bailiff to present a
most humble Petition to Her Majesty in Council praying for Her Royal Sanction

thereto.

THE HOUSING (CONTROL OF OCCUPATION) (AMENDMENT OF
HOUSING REGISTER) ORDINANCE, 2003

The States are asked to decide:-
IV.- Whether they are of opinion to approve the draft Ordinance entitled “The

Housing (Control of Occupation) (Amendment of Housing Register) Ordinance,
2003”, and to direct that the same shall have effect as an Ordinance of the States.
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THE GUERNSEY GAMBLING CONTROL COMMISSION (CASINO
GAMING) (FEES) ORDINANCE, 2003

The States are asked to decide:-
V.- Whether they are of opinion to approve the draft Ordinance entitled “The
Guernsey Gambling Control Commission (Casino Gaming) (Fees) Ordinance, 2003,
and to direct that the same shall have effect as an Ordinance of the States.
THE HARBOURS (AMENDMENT) ORDINANCE, 2003
The States are asked to decide:-
VI.- Whether they are of opinion to approve the draft Ordinance entitled “The

Harbours (Amendment) Ordinance, 2003”, and to direct that the same shall have
effect as an Ordinance of the States.
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STATES COMMITTEE FOR HORTICULTURE
NEW PRESIDENT
The States are asked:-
VIIL.- To elect a sitting member of the States as President of the States Committee for
Horticulture to complete the unexpired portion of the term of office of the late Deputy
P. A. C. Falla, namely, to the 31* May, 2005.
STATES BOARD OF INDUSTRY
NEW MEMBER
The States are asked:-
VIIIL.- To elect a sitting member of the States as a member of the States Board of
Industry to complete the unexpired portion of the term of office of the late Deputy P.
A. C. Falla, namely, to the 31 May, 2004.
STATES TRANSPORT BOARD
NEW MEMBER
The States are asked:-
IX.- To elect a sitting member of the States as a member of the States Transport
Board to complete the unexpired portion of the term of office of the late Deputy P. A.
C. Falla, namely, to the 31* May, 2004.
STATES GAMBLING CONTROL COMMITTEE
NEW MEMBER
The States are asked:-
X.- To elect a sitting member of the States as a member of the States Gambling
Control Committee to complete the unexpired portion of the term of office of the late
Deputy P. A. C. Falla, namely, to the 31% May, 2005.
STATES PROBATION SERVICE COMMITTEE
NEW MEMBER
The States are asked:-
XI.- To elect a sitting member of the States as a member of the States Probation

Service Committee to complete the unexpired portion of the term of office of the late
Deputy P. A. C. Falla, namely, to the 31% May, 2005.
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STATES ADVISORY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

AMENDMENT TO THE CUSTOMS AND EXCISE (GENERAL PROVISIONS)

(BAILIWICK OF GUERNSEY) LAW,1972

The President
States of Guernsey
Royal Court House
St Peter Port
Guernsey

13™ August 2003

Dear Sir

AMENDMENT TO THE CUSTOMS AND EXCISE (GENERAL

PROVISIONS) (BAILIWICK OF GUERNSEY) LAW. 1972.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

As set out in the 2003 Policy and Resource Plan, the purpose of this policy
letter is to propose amendments to the Customs and Excise (General
Provisions) (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1972, as amended, principally, to
include provision for the States to levy Excise duty on such categories of
goods and at such rates as it may, from time to time, specify and subsequently
vary by Ordinance.

The Advisory and Finance Committee, in consultation with the Board of
Administration, has examined the scope of existing Excise (or "impot")
legislation which dates back to 1900. A large proportion of this legislation is
written in archaic terms and in the French language. In addition, it is by no
means comprehensive enough to meet current requirements, is difficult to
administer and is in need of review.

The principal existing legislation for the enforcement of Customs matters is
the Customs and Excise (General Provisions) (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law,
1972, as amended. Whilst this legislation provides for controls on the import
and export of goods, including those liable to Excise Duty, it does not give the
power to raise or set Excise duty rates. This power is currently included in
various existing pieces of legislation which are scattered throughout the statute
book in a number of Laws and Ordinances (some of them archaic) and which
are in urgent need of consolidation.

Existing Excise legislation is also restrictive, in that it does not allow the
States power to vary the categories of goods liable to Excise duty in any way
by Ordinance.

The Law Officers of the Crown have confirmed that it would be appropriate to
allow the States by Ordinance to set the categories of goods liable to Excise
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duties and the rates of such duties, and also to provide for the collection of
such duties, within the Customs and Excise (General Provisions) (Bailiwick of
Guernsey) Law 1972, as amended.

Jersey has recently embarked on a similar exercise and has rewritten their
equivalent Law, repealing their old Excise legislation and including similar
new Excise provisions.

The proposed amendment to the Customs and Excise (General Provisions)
(Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law 1972 will repeal all the old excise legislation and
incorporate those dutiable commodities previously covered by that legislation
into a single enactment. The excise legislation, being old and in the French
language, has created difficulties, not only in the administration of the
legislation but also because the States cannot introduce new forms of excise
duty without each time making a new Law for each commodity. The object of
the proposed amendments to the 1972 Law will therefore be to provide the
States by Ordinance, as and when required, with the powers to introduce new
forms of excise duties as well as consolidating the powers to vary the existing
rates.

The proposed amendments will introduce into the 1972 Law the following:

(a) provision specifying the descriptions of goods liable to Excise duty,
and the rates of such duty;

(b) provision empowering the States by Ordinance (and the Advisory and
Finance Committee by order, in the lead-in period before the States
budget meeting) to vary the descriptions of goods liable to Excise duty,
and the rates of such duty;

() provision as to the calculation of Excise duty, and of the volume and
strength of liquor;

(d) provision as to the holding of Excise licences by persons seeking,
locally, to grow, produce or manufacture goods liable to Excise duty;

(e) provision as to relief from, and drawback of, Excise duty; and

(f) provision as to administration and enforcement, including the keeping
of records, the payment of duty and penalties for criminal offences
involving Excise duty.

The Alderney (Application of Legislation) Law, 1948 provides that the impdts
and duties that are leviable by the States of Guernsey from time to time in the
Island of Guernsey shall also be leviable by the States of Guernsey in the
Island of Alderney; and that the provisions of every Law from time to time in
force in the Island of Guernsey in relation to any such imp6t or duty shall
extend so as to have effect in the Islands of Guernsey and Alderney as though
those islands were one.
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These proposed amendments would therefore apply equally to the Island of
Alderney. However, since the Committee is recommending proceeding by way
of amending the 1972 Law, which is a Bailiwick-wide Law, the amendments
will need to be approved by the States of Alderney. The Alderney authorities
have accordingly been consulted, and have confirmed that they are content
with the Committee’s recommendations.

Although the Sark authorities have indicated that they would not want the new
Ordinance-making powers to apply to Sark, thus retaining their autonomy over
the categories of dutiable goods and the rates of impdt chargeable thereon, the
Chief Pleas will still have to approve the amending legislation, again, because
the 1972 Law is a Bailiwick-wide Law. They have indicated their willingness
to do so.

The Committee would like to take this opportunity to thank the staff of the
Customs and Excise Department and the Law Officers for their assistance in

the preparation of this policy letter.

Recommendation

The Committee therefore recommends the States to agree that the legislation
in force in Guernsey relating to impdts shall be repealed and replaced by
amendments to the Customs and Excise (General Provisions) (Bailiwick of
Guernsey) Law, 1972 in accordance with the proposals set out above.

I should be grateful if you would be good enough to lay this matter before the
States with the appropriate propositions, including one directing the
preparation of the necessary legislation.

Yours faithfully

L. C. MORGAN

President
Advisory and Finance Committee

The States are asked to decide:-

XII. - Whether, after consideration of the Report dated the 13™ August, 2003, of the
States Advisory and Finance Committee, they are of opinion:-

1.

2.

That the legislation in force in Guernsey relating to impdts shall be repealed and
replaced by amendments to the Customs and Excise (General Provisions)
(Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1972 in accordance with the proposals set out in
that Report.

To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give effect to
their above decision.
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STATES ADVISORY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

ALDERNEY — ISLAND HALL AND COURT BUILDING RENOVATIONS

The President
States of Guernsey
Royal Court House
St. Peter Port
Guernsey

15 August 2003
Dear Sir,

ALDERNEY — ISLAND HALL AND COURT BUILDING RENOVATIONS

Under the financial procedures when the States of Alderney wishes to undertake a
capital project for a sum in excess of £250,000, other than one for a straightforward
replacement of an existing item, the prior approval of the States of Guernsey is
necessary. In such cases the policy letter seeking approval shall be submitted by the

Advisory and Finance Committee on behalf of the Alderney authorities.

The Alderney Policy and Finance Committee has written to the Advisory and Finance
Committee in the following terms with regard to the proposed renovations to the

Island Hall and repairs to the Court Building.

“On 24™ July 2002 the States of Alderney agreed in principle to the relocation of
the States administration from the offices at St. Anne’s House and the adjoining
Courthouse to the Island Hall. An integral part of this project was to part fund
the cost of the necessary renovations at the Island Hall by the sale of St. Anne’s
House.

However, the Island’s Court Building is in need of significant repairs and this
will necessitate the temporary relocation of certain activities that take place in the
building, including the Court operation and the Police, to St. Anne’s House. The
sale of St. Anne’s House will only take place once these repairs have been
completed and the projects are, therefore, linked in both operational and funding
terms. It is anticipated that the cost of the repairs to the Court Buildings will be
similar to the proceeds from the sale of St. Anne’s House.

Island Hall Renovations
Since July 2002, work has taken place between the architects and surveyors to

produce a tender specification, which takes into account the fact that the Alderney
Library will be relocating to new premises and the proposed use of the building
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as offices. Following renovation the concert hall, kitchen and Anne French room
would remain available for public use as at present.

Expressions of interest were sought from parties interested in tendering for the
work. The tender documents were then sent to a short-list of tenderers, which in
the Committee’s view had the requisite skills, staff, experience and resources to
carry out the work to budget and on time.

Four tenders were received for this project from:-

ABC (1982) Ltd. £651,458.66
A. J. Bohan £725,267.50
E. J. Cosheril £725,832.00
J. F. W. Main. £738,492.67

The Committee is recommending acceptance of the lowest tender from ABC

(1982) Ltd.

Certain costs have already been incurred with this project in relation to the
design and survey work of approximately £15,000.

There will be a further provisional cost for supervision and oversight of the
project that will need to be carried out by a suitably qualified professional.
Initial indications are that for this work to be carried out privately would cost the
States £35,000. It is therefore proposed that the States Engineer provide such a
service only contracting external expertise as and when required. It is therefore
proposed to allocate a maximum of £17,500 for this element of the work. A
Sfurther sum of £76,000 is added for contingencies taking into account that this is
an old building and additional works may prove to be necessary once work
begins on the fabric of the premises, and the costs of relocation of office and
computer equipment following completion of the project. In the light of this the
total cost of the project will be:

1.  Tender £651,459
2. Architectural and surveying costs £15,000
3. Project supervision £17,500
4. Contingencies and relocation costs £76,041
Total £760.000

1t is anticipated that these proposals will be considered by the States of Alderney
at their September meeting.

Recommendations

The Policy and Finance Committee accordingly requests that the Advisory and
Finance Committee seek the approval of the States of Deliberation as follows: -
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1. (a.) To authorise the renovation and conversion of the Island Hall,
Alderney for use as office accommodation and public use.

(b.) To authorise the States of Alderney to accept the tender submitted by
ABC (1982) Ltd. in the sum of £651,459.

(c.) To vote the States of Alderney a credit of £760,000 to cover the
costs of above works, which sum shall be taken from the States of
Alderney’s capital allocation.

2. To authorise the Advisory and Finance Committee to approve the
acceptance of all tenders in respect of the repairs to the Court Building
and to approve a capital vote to be charged to the capital allocation of
the States of Alderney.

3. To note the States of Alderney’s Policy and Finance Committee’s
intention to sell St. Anne’s House to part fund these projects.”

The Committee recommends the States to agree, subject to the approval of the States
of Alderney:

(a.) To authorise the renovation and conversion of the Island Hall,
Alderney for use as office accommodation and public use.

(b.) To authorise the States of Alderney to accept the tender submitted
by ABC (1982) Ltd. in the sum of £651,459.

(c.) To vote the States of Alderney a credit of £760,000 to cover the
costs of above works, which sum shall be taken from the States of
Alderney’s capital allocation.

2. To authorise the Advisory and Finance Committee to approve the
acceptance of all tenders in respect of the repairs to the Court Building
and to approve a capital vote to be charged to the capital allocation of
the States of Alderney.

3. To note the States of Alderney’s Policy and Finance Committee’s
intention to sell St. Anne’s House to part fund these projects.

I should be grateful if you would lay this matter before the States with appropriate
propositions.

Yours faithfully,

L.C. MORGAN
President, States Advisory and Finance Committee
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The States are asked to decide:-

XIIIL.- Whether, after consideration of the Report dated the 15™ August, 2003, of the
States Advisory and Finance Committee, they are of opinion:-

Subject to the approval of the States of Alderney —

1. (a) To authorise the renovation and conversion of the Island Hall, Alderney for use
as office accommodation and public use.

(b) To authorise the States of Alderney to accept the tender submitted by ABC
(1982) Ltd. in the sum of £651,459.

(c) To vote the States of Alderney a credit of £760,000 to cover the costs of the
above works, which sum shall be taken from the States of Alderney’s capital

allocation.

2. To authorise the States Advisory and Finance Committee to approve the
acceptance of all tenders in respect of the repairs to the Court Building and to
approve a capital vote to be charged to the capital allocation of the States of

Alderney.

3. To note the States of Alderney’s Policy and Finance Committee’s intention to sell
St. Anne’s House to part fund these projects.
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STATES ADVISORY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

PROPOSALS FOR COMPREHENSIVE EQUAL STATUS AND FAIR

TREATMENT LEGISLATION

States of Guernsey
Royal Court House

St. Peter Port
Guernsey

20™ August 2003

Dear Sir

PROPOSALS FOR COMPREHENSIVE EQUAL STATUS AND FAIR

TREATMENT LEGISLATION

I.

The Advisory and Finance Committee believes that elimination of
discrimination should be a central tenet of government because it is a
fundamental basis for any democratic and civilised community. A legislative
framework is required to achieve this objective. The Committee is however
mindful that any legislative measures must be both appropriate and
proportionate to the Bailiwick’s circumstances.

In the 2003 Policy and Resource Plan the Advisory and Finance Committee
reported on the progress of work on proposals for the elimination of all forms
of discrimination and, in particular, against women and on the grounds of race.
The Committee reported in the following terms:

“In respect of these two Conventions [the Convention on the
Elimination of all forms of Discrimination against Women and the
Convention on the Elimination of Racial Discrimination] the Committee
is closely monitoring discussions in the United Kingdom about the
possibility of consolidating and harmonizing its discrimination laws
under a single equality act. The Committee believes that there is merit
in incorporating anti-discrimination measures into a single piece of
legislation and is keen to learn more about the experiences of other
jurisdictions of drafting and operating unified equality laws as this
could produce a clearer way for ensuring and promoting equality
across the board rather than in a piecemeal way and be a more
proportionate approach for the Bailiwick and one that is simpler and
more accessible.”
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The introduction of a legal framework to deal with discrimination would also
assist in giving effect to international obligations under a number of
conventions which have been extended to the Islands, namely:

a) The International Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Racial
Discrimination (CERD) (Registered in Bailiwick 18™ March 1969 - In
force 6™ April 1969);

b) The International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights
(ICESCR) (Ratified 20™ May 1976, in force 20™ August 1976);

¢) The United Nations Declaration of Human Rights 1948;

d) The International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights (Article 26)
(ICCPR) (Ratified 20™ May 1976, in force 20™ August 1976).

e) The European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) (Extended to the
Bailiwick 23" October 1953).

Set out below is a brief statement of the relevant article(s) in the
aforementioned conventions and our current status in that regard, where there
are outstanding issues.

a) The International Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of
Racial Discrimination (CERD)

The International Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Racial
Discrimination (CERD) was adopted by the General Assembly of the United
Nations in March 1969. The Bailiwick of Guernsey was included in H.M.
Government’s ratification of this Convention. CERD is the oldest and most
widely ratified United Nations Convention relating to Human Rights.

Under the Convention, State Parties are required to:

“engage in no act or practice of racial discrimination against persons,
groups of persons or institutions”

and

“review government, national and local policies and to amend or repeal
laws and regulations which create or perpetuate racial discrimination”.

Article 9.1 of the Convention requires State Parties to submit regular reports
on:

“...the legislative, judicial, administrative or other measures which they
have adopted and which give effect to the provisions of [the]
Convention....”

Her Majesty’s Government as a State Party is required to include in its reports
measures within the dependent territories, that is the Crown Dependencies and
Overseas Territories, for the elimination of racial discrimination. The Insular
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Authorities have been required to submit reports periodically since 1994 and
most recently in 2000. In 2000 the concluding observations of the Committee
on the Elimination of Racial Discrimination included the recommendation that:

“The authorities complete the current process of enacting legislation
outlawing all racial discrimination”.

In August 2000 the United Kingdom submitted its 15™ Report to the United

Nations in respect of CERD and the Committee reported in the following terms

in respect of the Bailiwick’s work to fulfil its obligations under the Convention:

“ - The Advisory and Finance Committee in Guernsey has decided, in
principle, that it will lay proposals before the States later this year
which will recommend the enactment of legislation rendering racial
discrimination unlawful.

- Evidence of the Advisory and Finance Committee’s intention to pursue
this matter is contained in paragraph 4 of a letter to the President of
the States of Guernsey dated 5 July 2000 and will be included as an
appendix to the next Billet d’Etat which is due for publication on 8
September 2000. Paragraph 4 of that letter reads:

“The various issues raised in the Report will be addressed, in
appropriate cases, in policy letters to the States. One such issue
is the introduction of legislation regarding racial discrimination
which the Advisory and Finance Commiittee intends to refer to the
States later this year.”

- Notwithstanding the fact that the States have not yet resolved on the
matter, the Advisory and Finance Committee has already requested
HM Procureur (Attorney General) to commence drafting appropriate
legislation.

- Guernsey is also liaising closely with the Jersey authorities regarding
the responses their Working Party is receiving in respect of their
discussion paper published in December 1999 on race discrimination
legislation.”

The United Nations High Commissioner for Human Rights made the following
comments in his concluding observations of the Committee on the Elimination
of Racial Discrimination in respect of the submission made by the United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland:

“The Committee encourages the State Party to introduce specific
legislation against racial discrimination by private persons and
organizations currently taking place in several of the [British] Territories.
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The Committee remains concerned that specific legislation against racial
discrimination has not yet been introduced in all [British] Territories and
recommends the State party to continue its efforts to encourage such
territories to proceed to the adoption of legislation, prohibiting and
penalizing racial discrimination, in accordance with the provisions of the
Convention.”

b) The International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights
(ICESCR)

The International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights (ICESCR)
seeks to guarantee that all human beings enjoy economic and cultural freedoms
irrespective of nationality, place of origin, race or ethnicity.

“Part I, Article 2

2. The States Parties to the present Covenant undertake to guarantee
that the rights enunciated in the present Covenant will be exercised
without discrimination of any kind as to race, colour, sex, language,
religion, political or other opinion, national or social origin, property, birth
or other status.”

¢) The United Nations Declaration of Human Rights

The United Nations Declaration of Human Rights provides in Article 1 that “all
human beings are born free and equal in dignity and rights” and, in
Article 2 says that “everyone is entitled to all the rights and freedoms set
forth in this declaration, without discrimination of any kind.”

d) The International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights (ICCPR)
The International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights provides in Article 2:
“1. Each State Party to the present Covenant undertakes to respect and to
ensure to all individuals within its territory and subject to its jurisdiction
the rights recognized in the present Covenant, without distinction of any
kind, such as race, colour, sex, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, property, birth or other status.”

e) The European Convention on Human Rights

The European Convention on Human Rights provides:

“Article 14 - Prohibition of discrimination

The enjoyment of the rights and freedoms set forth in this Convention
shall be secured without discrimination on any ground such as sex, race,
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colour, language, religion, political or other opinion, national or social
origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other
status.”

The Committee acknowledges that the Human Rights (Bailiwick of Guernsey)
Law 2000 will have some effect in this area by virtue of the concept of
discrimination adopted by the Convention organs. Violations of Article 14 are
not generally found, however, unless the discrimination at issue is direct and
overt. In addition, the Law will be binding in the fullest sense only on public
authorities.

The Council of Europe adopted Protocol 12 to the European Convention on
Human Rights in 2000. It contains a general prohibition on discrimination on
any ground such as sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property,
birth or other status, which affects the enjoyment of any right guaranteed by
law. It also prohibits discrimination by public authorities. It is to be regarded as
an additional article to the ECHR. To date the UK has not signed or ratified it
but it is indicative of a general tendency within (in particular) Europe.

Conventions not vet extended to the Bailiwick

There is a further anti-discrimination convention which has not yet been
extended to Guernsey, that is the International Convention on the Elimination
of all forms of Discrimination against Women.

That Convention was adopted by the General Assembly of the United Nations
in December 1979. The Bailiwick of Guernsey was not included in H.M.
Government’s ratification of this Convention.

It is the most comprehensive treaty on women’s human rights, establishing
obligations to end discrimination. Often described as an international bill of
rights for women, the Convention provides for equality between women and
men in the enjoyment of civil, political, economic, social and cultural rights.
Discrimination against women is to be eliminated through legal, policy and
programmatic measures and through temporary special measures to accelerate
women’s equality, which are defined as non-discriminatory.

State Parties are required to end all forms of discrimination against women and
to ensure their equality with men in political and public life with regard to
nationality, education, employment, health and economic and social benefits.
Obligations are also imposed to eliminate discrimination against women in
marriage and family life and to ensure that women and men are treated equally
before the law. States are required to take account of the particular problems of
women in rural areas, and their special roles in the economic survival of the
family.
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The rights and freedoms afforded by the aforementioned Conventions do not
have any meaning unless they are deliverable, that is, they must be capable of
being enforced. The rights and freedoms they embrace will exist in practice
only if there exists the means and capacity to take positive steps not only to
ameliorate an individual’s experience of discrimination and racism but also to
reduce the likelihood of its occurrence or recurrence.

Proposals for Equal Status and Fair Treatment legislation

21.

22.

23.

24.

The Committee is mindful that any measures to eliminate all forms of
discrimination must be both appropriate and proportionate. It therefore
believes that the introduction of one comprehensive law represents the best way
forward because it would:

(a) strengthen all areas of anti-discrimination measures;

(b) ensure that each area can draw on and learn from developments in relation
to other areas;

(c) prevent the development of a hierarchy of equality grounds;

(d) encourage the promotion of equality in all areas;

(e) reduce the likelihood of marginalization;

(f) lead to the development of a societal approach which opposes any form of
discrimination; and

(g) provide the most cost efficient and proportionate approach.

The approach recommended by the Committee would enable the States, by
Ordinance, to legislate to define those personal attributes which justify anti —
discrimination and fair treatment measures, and to prevent one person being
treated less favourably than another within defined parameters. Such grounds
could include: gender; race, nationality or ethnic or national status; colour;
disability; marital status; family status; sexual orientation; religion; and age.

In the United Kingdom anti-discrimination legislation has been developed in a
piecemeal fashion. In many instances legislation has been passed in response
to:

(a) immediate problems;

(b) determined lobbying by pressure groups seeking protection from
discrimination;

(c) legal developments in the European Union.

As a result of this piecemeal approach gaps and inconsistencies have inevitably
developed. In the United Kingdom legislation currently prohibits
discrimination on a significant but limited number of protective grounds,
namely, sex, colour, race, nationality or ethnic or national grounds, disability,
marriage and gender reassignment. There is also legislation prohibiting less
favourable treatment on grounds of trade union membership and for part-time
workers. In Northern Ireland additional legislation also prohibits
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discrimination on the grounds of religious belief, political opinion and
membership of the Irish traveller community.

In addition to these ‘domestic’ provisions, in 2000 the European Community
agreed a Directive for establishing a general framework for equal treatment in
employment and legislation to cover discrimination in employment on the
grounds of age, religion or belief, and sexual orientation. A separate Directive
the same year provided for equal treatment between persons irrespective of
racial or ethnic origin and covers employment as well as other areas.
Furthermore, in 2002 the existing Directive on the equal treatment of men and
women as regards access to employment, vocational training and promotion
and working conditions was updated to incorporate the case law of the
European Court of Justice and to bring it into line with the two non-
discrimination Directives which were adopted in 2000.

The Committee is determined to avoid the problems which the United Kingdom
has experienced and believes that a single equal status and fair treatment law
would provide cohesion and consistency. It would also be more efficient and
cost effective over time. The Committee acknowledges that in the Bailiwick
there are very few protections against discrimination, and is not proposing that
anti-discrimination measures should be introduced in all the aforementioned
grounds at this time. Indeed the process will evolve over many years. However,
it is mindful that society, and its regard to what is reasonable and acceptable
conduct, is changing. Therefore, the Bailiwick must ensure that it has
appropriate provisions in place to ensure that the rights and freedoms of
individuals are appropriately safeguarded. An Equal Status and Fair Treatment
‘enabling’ law should ensure that equality and fair treatment is a core principle
of our society.

The Committee stresses that legislation will only be proposed after the most
thorough analysis of the perceived ground of discrimination, and most
importantly the social and economic consequences of such legislation. In
particular the States must be able to take into account whether Guernsey’s
economy, or the well being of any sector of the economy, or public finances,
would be adversely affected by such legislation.

On 14™ January 2003 the Equality Bill was introduced as a private Member’s
bill in the House of Lords which seeks to provide a comprehensive and less
complex alternative to the current raft of United Kingdom anti-discrimination
measures. The Committee believes that the experience of other jurisdictions,
including Northern Ireland, Eire, Australia, New Zealand and Canada, suggests
that such a co-ordinated approach may ensure that there is less dilution of
power and resources within an equality agenda.

A second, but no less important strand to the elimination of all forms of
discrimination is the promotion of equality of opportunity. Any obligation not
to discriminate is, in most cases, a negative one. The active promotion of
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equality of opportunity and the value of diversity can serve to reduce the
incidence of discrimination and so create a more harmonious society. The
Committee firmly believes that promotion of equality of opportunity through
education and the dissemination of information is vital complement to the
enforcement of a legal framework for achieving such objectives.

The final factor for consideration has been the enforcement of anti-
discrimination legislation. In the UK, cases of alleged discrimination are
currently considered in various tribunals. The Equality Bill proposes that such
cases will be referred to an employment tribunal in all situations apart from
education or immigration cases which will be referred to an equality tribunal.
In Ireland, cases of alleged discrimination are normally referred to the Director
of Equality Investigations, the only exceptions being gender cases which are
referred to the Circuit Court and dismissal cases which are referred to the
Labour Court. The Director will investigate the matter and issue a binding
decision which can be appealed to the Circuit Court.

The monitoring of compliance with legislation and the promotion of anti-
discriminatory practices, including advice to the public, is carried out by
various bodies in the UK which have been established under the piecemeal
legislation in this area e.g. the Commission for Racial Equality. The Equality
Bill envisages the establishment of an Equality Commission to undertake this
role for all grounds of discrimination. This would be similar to the Equality
Authority in Ireland which also has the power to issue non-discrimination
notices. These notices either require the cessation of a discriminatory
action/policy or require that an equality clause be complied with.

The Committee therefore recommends the States to approve the principle of
progressing anti-discrimination and equality promotion measures through a
single equal status and fair treatment law which will afford the most effective
and responsive way of eliminating all forms of discrimination, whilst being
appropriate and proportionate to the Bailiwick’s needs and circumstances.

It is proposed that the legislation will cover the six areas as detailed in
Appendix 1, namely:

Part 1 — Definition of discrimination

Part 2 — Grounds for prohibition of discrimination

Part 3 — Areas for prohibition of discrimination

Part 4 — Enforcement

Part 5 — Equal Status and Fair Treatment Commissioner
Part 6 — Promotion of equal status and fair treatment

In its very broadest terms discrimination will be defined as the treatment of a
person or group of persons in a less favourable way than another person or
group of persons on grounds of one or more of the areas of discrimination, as



35.

36.

37.

38.

1931

defined under the law. Discrimination will be established either directly or
indirectly.

(a) Direct discrimination will be made through a direct comparison, for
example gender discrimination will compare the treatment of a man against
a woman in like circumstances;

(b) Indirect discrimination will occur when practices or policies which may not
appear to discriminate against one group more than another actually have a
discriminatory impact. Indirect discrimination may also occur where a
requirement, which may not appear discriminatory, adversely affects a
particular group or class of persons.

The legislation would include a power for the States to amend by Ordinance the
definition for a particular ground. This may only be necessary for some
grounds and would not detract from the general definition in the enabling
legislation. It is also proposed to address issues of harassment within the
enabling legislation.

The proposed single equality legislation will provide an enabling legislative
framework Order in Council under which subordinate legislation, principally by
Ordinance, will be developed to deal with the discrimination on various
grounds in the areas defined under the law. These areas may for example
include employment, the provision of services, the supply of goods, the
disposal of premises and the provision of accommodation, advertising,
educational/vocational provision, planning matters.

The Advisory and Finance Committee anticipates that the first discriminatory
ground which will be addressed will be racial discrimination in light of the
Islands’ international obligations under the International Convention for the
Elimination of all forms of Racial Discrimination (see paragraphs 4 to 9 above).
A non-exhaustive list of other discriminatory grounds which could be
introduced by Ordinance are sex, age, sexual orientation, marital status, family
status, gender reassignment, religion, political or other opinion, national or
social origin, language, birth, or property. It is anticipated that the legislation
will also include a common time limit for complaints.

The legislation will include sections detailing the circumstances where
discrimination is permissible. The most important will be where any proposed
measure will have an adverse effect on Guernsey’s economy, or any sector of
the economy, or bear unduly on public funds. Furthermore, regard may be had
to permitted exceptions established in other jurisdictions, which may include;

(a) Bona fide preferential treatment for people disadvantaged in a particular
opportunity in relation to other persons;

(b) The provision of facilities to cater for the special needs of some
individuals which would not be required by other persons;
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(c) Circumstances where there is a danger that criminal or disorderly
conduct or behaviour might be induced or there is a danger that criminal
damage might be occasioned;

(d) Restrictions in accordance with licensing laws;

(e) Preferential rates or charges for certain groups e.g. family membership
or free admission for the over 60s;

(f) Medical reasons e.g. different treatment due to ongoing medical
treatment or a clinical judgment.

The Committee envisages that the appointment of an Equal Status and Fair
Treatment Commissioner will be based on similar existing offices, for example
the Data Protection Commissioner and Legal Aid Administrator. This office
will need to be at ‘arms length’ from the States as the Commissioner will be
responsible for monitoring and, where necessary, taking action against the
public sector in regard to anti-discrimination measures. The role of the
Commissioner will also include the active promotion of equality and the
equality legislation, and the ability to issue non-discrimination notices similar
to those issued in Ireland. Further consideration will need to be given as to the
precise mechanism for the creation of the office of Commissioner and the initial
status of the Commissioner.

The legislation would also contain the power to impose a positive duty on
public bodies to promote equality and eliminate discrimination, similar to that
contained in the Equality Bill currently before the English Parliament. This
would include the active promotion of non-discrimination and equality through
education and training.

The Committee is mindful that the establishment of the post of Commissioner
represents the creation of a further such office. However, it firmly believes that
such offices are essential if the Island is to fulfil its international obligations
and it will seek, wherever possible, to ensure that administrative resources and
staff are combined and remain proportionate to the requirements of the
administration of the legislation.

The Advisory and Finance Committee envisages that in the future, persons
aggrieved by discriminatory practices will have access to a tribunal to
adjudicate on the matter. A centralised tribunal system is currently under
development and provision should be made in the enabling legislation to allow
for this form of redress in the future.

Consultation

Responsibility for discrimination and unfair treatment in the area of
employment rests with the Board of Industry through the Industrial Relations
Service. The Committee has therefore sought the views of the Board of
Industry which are:
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“The Board of Industry concurs that a legislative framework that would
support specific elements of anti-discrimination legislation would be a
pragmatic way of dealing with this issue.

The Board of Industry is mindful that legislation for the elimination of
all forms of discrimination cuts across the whole range of issues
including the treatment of individuals in employment.

The Board intends to lay before the States a draft law outlawing
discrimination in employment on the grounds of gender. Should the
States decide at some pint to extend the scope of the Sex Discrimination
Law to cover the provisions of goods, services and education, or to
address equal pay issues, this could be achieved through the enabling
legislation, by amending the Sex Discrimination Law. Further, should
the Authorities in Alderney and Sark wish to have such legislation
extended to their Island this could be achieved in the same way.

The Board is also considering bringing proposals to the States later this
year to strengthen the adjudication process that it currently runs under
the Employment Protection (Guernsey) Law, 1998. This strengthened
service may well be able to provide the mechanism to deal with
complaints of discrimination in areas other than in employment.”

The Committee is pleased that the Board of Industry supports the proposals for
comprehensive equal status and fair treatment legislation.

Alderney and Sark

The Committee has sought the views of the Authorities in Alderney and Sark
and is pleased that both Islands support the proposals and would wish it to be
drafted as Bailiwick legislation. This support for comprehensive equal status
and fair treatment legislation means that all the Bailiwick’s citizens will benefit
from the protection against discrimination which the proposed legislation will
provide.

Conclusions

The Committee restates that these proposals extend only to the enactment of
enabling legislation, and that no Ordinance enacting equal status and fair
treatment measures under any ground will be brought to the States without the
fullest consideration of the civic issues and consequences, particularly social
and economic.

The Advisory and Finance Committee recommends the States to agree that
enabling legislation to make discrimination unlawful and to promote equality of
opportunity and diversity be prepared.
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48. I should be grateful if you would lay this matter before the States with
appropriate propositions, including one directing the preparation of the
necessary legislation.

Yours faithfully
L. C. MORGAN

President
Advisory and Finance Committee
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APPENDIX 1

OUTLINE FOR COMPREHENSIVE EQUAL STATUS AND FAIR
TREATMENT LEGISLATION

Part One

DEFINITION OF DISCRIMINATION

The meaning of discrimination
Actions or failure to act which constitute discrimination

Part Two

GROUNDS FOR PROHIBITION OF DISCRIMINATION

Sex/Gender
Race/Colour/Ethnicity
Religion/Belief
Age
Disability
Sexual Orientation
Gender Reassignment

Part Three

AREAS FOR PROHIBITION OF DISCRIMINATION

Employment

Education
Access to Goods, Services, Facilities and Premises
Housing
Planning
Practices and Advertisements
Professional and Representative Bodies
Exemptions

Part Four

ENFORCEMENT

Redress in respect of prohibited conduct
Enforcement and Mediation
Non-Discrimination Notices

Compensation
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Part Five

EQUAL STATUS AND FAIR TREATMENT COMMISSIONER

Composition
Function, Powers and Role
Regulation

Part Six
PROMOTION OF EQUAL STATUS AND FAIR TREATMENT

Obligations on Public Authorities
Education and Training
Establishing and Monitoring Equal Status and Fair Treatment Measures
Reporting

The States are asked to decide:-

XIV.- Whether, after consideration of the Report dated the 20™ August, 2003, of the
States Advisory and Finance Committee, they are of opinion:-

1. That legislation shall be enacted along the lines set out in that Report to make
discrimination unlawful and to promote equality of opportunity and diversity.

2. To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give effect to
their above decision.
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STATES ADVISORY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

LEGISLATION FOR RACIALLY MOTIVATED CRIME

The President
States of Guernsey
Royal Court House
St. Peter Port
Guernsey

20™ August 2003

Dear Sir

LEGISLATION FOR RACIALLY MOTIVATED OFFENCES

Her Majesty’s Procureur has written to me in the following terms:

“As you are aware, the Bailiwick of Guernsey was included in H.M. Government’s
ratification of the International Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of
Racial Discrimination in 1969. The Convention imposes obligations on State
Parties to ensure that its citizens can live in a society free from racial
discrimination and abuse. The elimination of racial discrimination, and racism
itself, should be a central tenet of government and is fundamental for any
democratic and civilised community.

Specifically, States Parties to the Convention are placed under an obligation to:

“declare an offence punishable by law all dissemination of ideas
based on racial superiority or hatred, incitement to racial
discrimination, as well as all acts of violence or incitement to such
acts against any race or group of persons of another colour or
ethnic origin, and also the provision of any assistance to racist
activities, including the financing thereof.”

Offences Adopted in the United Kingdom

The legislation in the United Kingdom reflects the obligations imposed by the
Convention in the following way;
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1. Racial Hatred

Part 111 of the Public Order Act, 1986 is concerned with racial hatred, defined
as hatred against a group of persons defined by reference to colour, race,
nationality (including citizenship), or ethnic or national origins.

The Act creates 6 offences for acts which are intended or likely to stir up racial
hatred. These include, in summary form:

a) using words or behaviour, or displaying written material;

b) publishing or distributing written material;

¢) public performance of a play;,

d) distributing, showing or playing a recording;

e) broadcasting;

f) possessing racially inflammatory material;

in each case with intent to stir up racial hatred, or if racial hatred is likely to
be stirred up, thereby.

The Act also gives powers to authorise search and entry where there are
grounds for suspecting that a person has possession of racially inflammatory
written or recorded material. Section 25 gives the court power to order the
forfeiture of any material concerned in the offences listed above. A person
guilty of an offence under Part Il is liable on conviction on indictment to
imprisonment for a term not exceeding seven years, or a fine, or both.

2. Racially Ageravated Offences

Sections 29 to 32 of the Crime and Disorder Act, 1998 created four classes of
racially aggravated offences in England and Wales, namely assaults, criminal
damage, public order offences and harassment.

A crime is "racially aggravated" if it can be shown that it was motivated either
wholly or partly by racism. A crime also counts as "racially aggravated" if it
can be shown that, even though the motivation for the attack was not racist,
racial hostility was demonstrated during the course of the offence, or
immediately before or after it.

Racially aggravated offences carry a higher penalty than the offences in their
ordinary form.

1s.17 as amended by Anti-terrorism, Crime and Security Act 2001, ss 37, 125, Sch 8, Pt 4.
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Proposals for Legislation in the Bailiwick
Racial Hatred

At present, public order offences in the Bailiwick of Guernsey are contained within
the Summary Offences (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law 1982. It is necessary to
introduce new legislation to provide for offences which are intended or likely to
stir up racial hatred, i.e. those offences mentioned above under 1. I recommend
that such legislation should be enacted to ensure that the Bailiwick fully meets its
obligations under Article 4 of the Convention. The new legislation should include
6 offences corresponding to those under the Public Order Act, 1986.

I believe that the legislation would also need to include powers similar to those in
sections 24 and 25 of the Public Order Act 1986, to authorise the Bailiff by
warrant to order search and entry where there are reasonable grounds for
suspecting that a person has racially inflammatory material, and to authorise the
court to order forfeiture of any racially inflammatory written, recorded or
distributed material when a person is convicted of an offence.

Racially Aggravated Offences

In my opinion, there is no present need to provide specific legislation for assault or
criminal damage that is racially aggravated, because — unlike England and Wales
— the Royal Court has more extensive sentencing powers in relation to assault and
greater flexibility in relation to whether a case of criminal damage is dealt with in
the Magistrate’s Court or the Royal Court than provided under English Law.

There is no limitation on the sentencing powers of the Royal Court in a case of
assault. In any case where an assault is racially aggravated, the prosecution may
elect Royal Court trial to reflect such aggravating circumstances. In any criminal
damage case, under the Criminal Damage (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1983,
there is no statutory provision to restrict the hearing of the offence to the
Magistrate’s Court and where the damage is racially aggravated, the prosecution
may elect Royal Court trial, and a sentence of up to 10 years can be imposed. In
any case involving criminal damage with an intention to endanger life (or being
reckless as to whether the life of another would be endangered) or arson, the
legislation permits life imprisonment.

At present, there is no offence of harassment in the Bailiwick. It would be the
intention of the Law Officers to address the issue of harassment, and further issues
of public order, through forthcoming crime and disorder legislation, and to keep
under review the sentencing policy in respect of any of these offences involving a
racial element. If it appears that the sentences available or awarded for racially
aggravated harassment or public order offences are insufficient, the Law Officers
would refer the matter to the Committee with a view to further legislation.
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Summary
1 therefore recommend that:

1) legislation should be introduced to provide for offences for acts which are
intended or likely to stir up racial hatred by:
a) using words or behaviour or displaying written material;
b) publishing or distributing written material;
¢) public performance of a play,
d) distributing, showing or playing a recording;
e) broadcasting ;
f) possessing racially inflammatory material.
The legislation should provide for these offences to be committed where the

internet is used as a medium for publishing, broadcasting or receiving
material: and racially inflammatory material.

2) such new legislation should include powers to:

a) authorise search and entry where there are reasonable grounds for
suspecting that a person has racially inflammatory material; and

b) order forfeiture of any written, recorded or distributed material that is
racially inflammatory when a person is convicted of an offence of

incitement to racial hatred.”

The Advisory and Finance Committee concurs with the view expressed by H.M.
Procureur and recommends the States to direct the preparation of legislation
concerning racially motivated offences.

I would be grateful if you would lay this matter before the States with appropriate
propositions.

Yours faithfully
L.C. MORGAN

President
Advisory and Finance Committee



1941

The States are asked to decide:-

XV.- Whether, after consideration of the Report dated the 20" August, 2003, of the
States Advisory and Finance Committee, they are of opinion:-

1. That legislation shall be enacted as set out in that Report concerning racially
motivated offences.

2. To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give effect to
their above decision.
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GUERNSEY SOCIAL SECURITY AUTHORITY

BENEFIT AND CONTRIBUTION RATES FOR 2004

Royal Court House
St Peter Port
Guernsey

20 August 2003

Dear Sir

Benefit and contribution rates for 2004

1.

This report is in five parts:

Part I

Part II

Part III

Part IV

Social insurance

recommends increases in the rates of social insurance benefits
from 5 January 2004 including a further strengthening in the rate
of single pension, recommends increases in the contribution lower
and upper limits and sets out the effect of these changes on the
finances of the social insurance scheme;

Health Benefits

reports on the pharmaceutical service, recommends an increase in
the prescription charge and proposes an increase in the health
benefit medical consultation grant, conditional on independent
review of doctors’ fees;

Long-term care insurance

comments on the first six months of the scheme’s operation and
recommends increases in the standard co-payment and benefit
rates to take effect from 5 January 2004;

Non-contributory services

recommends increases in supplementary benefit requirement rates
from 9 January 2004, recommends an increase in the benefit
limitations, recommends a winter allowance for heating and
recommends minor amendments to the supplementary benefit
legislation;

recommends an increase in family allowance from 6 January 2004;

recommends an increase in the rates of attendance and invalid care
allowances from 5 January 2004;
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comments on the free TV licence scheme;

Part V Recommendations
sets out a summary of the Authority’s recommendations.

Introduction

The Authority has undertaken its annual review of the social security and
health benefits paid under the various schemes for which it is responsible and,
with the exception of medical benefit grants and some of the benefit add-ons
for dependant adults, will recommend increases in all benefit rates.

Guernsey continues to enjoy full employment at present, with only 81 people
registered as wholly unemployed at the beginning of July 2003. This
represents just 0.28 % of the working population.

Full employment continues to have major positive effects on the finances of
the Guernsey Insurance Fund on both the expenditure and income sides. In
addition to the low level of expenditure on unemployment benefit, contribution
income to the Fund is increased through more people being in paid
employment, paying earnings related contributions.

As reported last year, despite these most favourable economic conditions,
Guernsey has a recognised problem of relative poverty. This was identified by
the Survey of Guernsey Living Standards, undertaken by the Townsend Centre
for International Poverty Research and published in January 2002. The
Townsend Centre reported that 16% of Guernsey households are living in
relative poverty. High incidence of relative poverty was found among single
pensioners, single parents and in some families with more than the average
number of children.

An anti-poverty strategy is being developed by the Advisory and Finance
Committee, with the assistance of the officer level Social Policy Working
Group. A successful strategy will have more to it than simply raising benefit
levels or widening the net of benefit cover. Notwithstanding that point, in
September 2002 (Billet d’Etat XX of 2002) the States agreed that there were
some measures relating solely to benefits that could be taken in advance of an
agreed cross-committee anti-poverty strategy. The States approved a number
of such measures to take effect from 1 January 2003. The Authority, in this
report, will recommend pursuing further the benefit strategies that have been
put in place.
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PART 1
SOCIAL INSURANCE

Benefit Rates

Having regard to the income and expenditure for 2002 and the projections of
income and expenditure for 2003 and 2004, the Authority recommends
increases in the rates of social insurance benefits, to take effect from 5 January
2004.

For the sixth year in succession, the Authority will recommend increases in the
contributory, social insurance benefits which are above the current rate of
increase in the Guernsey Retail Prices Index. This year, the recommendation is
for general increases of around 5%, but with an increase of 7.4% in the case of
single pensioners for reasons explained in the paragraphs that follow.

It is the Authority’s policy that, over the medium and long term, the rates of
old age pension, and other contributory benefits should increase by some point
between the increase in RPI and the increase in average earnings. Having
stated that aim, it should be noted that benefit increases recommended by the
Authority each year depend both on current circumstances and the longer-term
liabilities of the Fund. The Authority is mindful of the need to balance its
desire for real increases in benefit rates against rates of contributions that are
affordable now and in the future for persons paying into the Fund.

The Townsend Centre’s Survey of Guernsey Living Standards reported that,
whereas only 5% of pensioner couples were poor, an alarming 43% of single
pensioners were poor. The Authority is resolved to improve this unacceptable
situation.

The reasons for the striking contrast between the fortunes of the pensioner
couples and the single pensioners were discussed in the Authority’s previous
benefit uprating policy letter (Billet d’Etat XX of 2002) and will not be
repeated here.

Further strengthening of single pension

As a measure to address single pensioner poverty, the Authority has embarked
on a strategy of rebalancing the level of the single pension relative to the
married woman’s pension paid on the insurance record of the husband. Last
year, the States approved the Authority’s proposal for a 7.5% increase in the
single pension rate and just 1.0% on the married woman’s pension. The new
rates took effect from the beginning of 2003. This gave a substantial increase
for single pensioners, where it is clearly needed. For a married pensioner
couple, living together, it gave an overall pension increase of around 5%.
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Importantly, the strengthening of the single pension results in an improved
pension for the majority of married women following the death of their
husband. This is because a married woman pensioner will transfer to her late
husband’s level of old-age pension if it is better than her own rate. This current
provision will become available to male pensioners early in 2004, following
States approval of the Authority’s gender equality proposals for the social
insurance scheme (Billet d’Etat V of 2003).

The Authority recommends a continuation of this strategy again this year. The
Authority recommends an increase of 7.4% in the single old age pension, but
less than 1.0% for the married woman’s pension. For a pensioner couple this
will give a combined increase of 5%. This will add £9.00 per week to the full
rate single pension, will add just £0.50 to the married woman’s pension and
will mean a £9.50 per week increase for a pensioner couple on full rate
pension.

If the Authority’s proposals are approved, this will mean that the single
pension becomes 65% of the combined amount for a married couple. This is a
further movement towards the figure of 70%, which the Authority considers to
be the ideal proportion, based on references quoted in the Townsend report.
But the Authority asked the States to note, in last year’s report, that there are
major cost implications in the strengthening of the single pension, as there are
many more single pensioners than married couple pensioners. This will
certainly prevent the figure of 70% being achieved in the short or medium
term and may prevent it being achieved indefinitely.

The Authority is aware that its strategy of giving relatively large increases on
the single pension rate and minimal increases in the married woman’s rate is
not of benefit to a female pensioner receiving the married woman’s pension but
not living with her husband. The Authority has received one or two complaints
on this issue. The Authority has sympathy with the small number of separated
married women pensioners in this position, but considers that the disadvantage
to these few pensioners must be weighed against the considerable advantage of
its strategy to the great majority of pensioners who are living with their spouse
or single, having never married or, more often, are the surviving spouse of a
pensioner couple.

Gender equality

On 28 April 2003 (Billet d’Etat V of 2003), the States approved the Authority’s
proposals for reform of the social insurance scheme for gender equality. The
proposals include a general individualisation of contribution liabilities and
benefit entitlements. That process involves a planned removal of increases of
contributory benefits for adult and child dependants, with, of necessity,
different strategies being applied to different benefits. The Authority, in this
report, recommends increases in the headline benefit rates to compensate, on
average, for the removal of the increases for dependants. The new,
consolidated rates will apply to new claims made on or after 1 January 2004.
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Sickness, unemployment and industrial injury benefit claims with increases for
dependants already in payment will continue to run their course, following the
amendments coming into force, which is time-limited to a maximum of 30
weeks. Invalidity benefit claims with increases for dependants already in
payment will continue for a maximum of 12 months, following the
amendments coming into force, after which time the benefit will be paid at the
appropriate consolidated rate.

The foregoing means that, in this report, there is a need for the Authority to
recommend transitional rates of benefit as well as the new, individualised,
consolidated rates.

Widow’s pension/bereavement allowance

Extensive changes were proposed and accepted to the benefits payable to
widows and widowers, which will come into being as a result of the
amendments to the Social Insurance Law which are expected to become
effective, at the latest, during the first quarter of 2004. Women receiving a
widow’s pension immediately before the amendment of the Law will continue
to receive that benefit, which will be renamed ’bereavement allowance’, until
their claim ends when they reach pension age or ends before that time through
remarriage or cohabitation with a man as husband and wife.

After the introduction of the new law, however, the bereavement allowance
will change its basis altogether and become an adjustment benefit designed to
ease the transition to single life, payable, for the period of 52 weeks only, to
both men and women aged 45 and over whose late spouses satisfied the
contribution conditions.

Widowed parent’s allowance

Widowed parent’s allowance is largely unchanged under the proposals for
gender equality, being payable to all widows and widowers with a child or
children in their family whose late spouses satisfied the contribution
conditions. In common with the general principle that individual increases for
dependants should no longer be payable, however, the consolidated rate for
widowed parent’s allowance has been enhanced in recognition that there is
always at least one dependant child associated with this particular benefit.
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contributory benefits, from 5 January 2004, as set out below:

Subject to the foregoing, the Authority recommends increases in the

Long-term benefits Consolidated | Transitional (2003 rates)
2004 rates 2004 rates
Old age Pension -
Insured person £130.00 (£121.00)
Dependant wife or wife over age 65 £70.00 (£69.50)
£200.00 (£190.50)
Widow’s/Survivor’s Benefits -
Widowed Parent’s Allowance £141.25 (£115.50)
Widow’s Pension/Bereavement Allowance | £121.25 £121.25 (£115.50)
Guardian’s Allowance £32.75 (£31.25)
Industrial Disablement Benefit -
100% disabled £108.00 (£103.00)
Short-term benefits
Unemployment, Sickness and Industrial Injury Benefit -
Insured person £99.00 £88.50 (£84.30)
Dependant Wife n/a £43.44 (£43.44)
£131.94 (£127.74)
Invalidity Benefit -
Insured Person £120.00 £101.30 (£96.90)
Dependant Wife n/a £48.90 (£48.90)
£150.20 (£145.80)
| Maternity Allowance | £99.00 | | (£84.30)

These rates of weekly benefit apply to persons who have fully satisfied the

contribution conditions.
proportionately.

Reduced rates of benefit will be increased
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Survivor’s grant/ bereavement payment

A survivor’s grant can currently be claimed by widows, and also by widowers
with dependant children, where the late spouse was under 65 at the time of
death. The amount of the grant is based on the insurance record of the
deceased. Included with the resolutions of the States on gender equality was a
resolution that survivor’s grant should be renamed ’bereavement payment’ and
that the coverage should be extended by removing all age and gender
restrictions. This means that bereavement payment will become payable to
every surviving spouse, including that of a pensioner couple. As the great
majority of deaths occur after the age of 65, this extension of coverage will
add significantly to expenditure under this contributory benefit, increasing it
from approximately £50,000 to £250,000 in year 2002 terms. The Authority
considers, however, that the extended cover and additional expenditure is fully
justified as a further response to the findings on pensioner poverty.

Full rate survivor’s grant is currently £1,160. The Authority recommends that
this be increased to £1,220 from 5 January 2004. Reduced rates of grant will
be paid in respect of incomplete contribution records. Subject to the legislative
processes, the name of the benefit will change to ’bereavement payment’, and
the coverage will be extended, during the first quarter of 2004

Maternity grant

Maternity grant is at present £236.00. The benefit does not carry contribution
conditions, other than the mother-to-be being an insured person and ordinarily
resident in Guernsey or Alderney. Maternity grant is an alternative, not an
addition, to the contribution-based maternity allowance. The Authority
recommends that maternity grant be increased to £248.00 from 5 January
2004.

Death grant

Death grant is at present £367.00, where the contribution conditions are fully
met. The Authority recommends that the benefit be increased to £385.00 from
5 January 2004. This amount of the grant will be reduced for incomplete
contribution records.

Social insurance contributions

The Authority is able to recommend the above increases in social insurance
benefits without increasing the percentage rates of contributions payable by
employed, self-employed and non-employed persons for those benefits. The
Authority will, however, recommend increases in the upper and lower earnings
or income limits, within which contributions are paid.

In approving the Authority’s proposals for gender equality (Billet d’Etat V of
2003), the States resolved that the option for married women and widows to
pay reduced percentage rate contributions should be discontinued with effect
from 1 January 2004. This means that all married women and widows in
employment or self-employment who have chosen to pay reduced rate
contributions, will become liable for the same percentage rate contributions as
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single women and all men. It also means that widows who are not in
employment or self-employment will be liable for non-employed contributions
based on their personal income in the same way as applies all other non-
employed persons.

30.  The gender neutral contribution rates for 2004, which are the same rates as
apply in 2003 to all men and all single women, are as shown below:

Contribution rates for
employed persons

Employer 5.5%
Employee 6.0%
Total 11.5%

Contribution rates for self-
employed persons 10.5%

Contribution rates for non-
employed persons under 65 9.9%

Contribution rates for non-
employed persons over 65 2.6%

Upper earnings limit for employed persons

31.  The Authority recommends that the upper earnings limit be increased from
1 January 2004 from £591 per week to £621 per week in the case of the
weekly paid (or £2,691 per month in the case of employed persons paid less
frequently than once a week).

32.  The effect of the proposed new upper earnings limit on persons who pay a
contribution at the upper earnings limit is as follows:

(2003 figures in brackets)

Weekly Earnings Contributions
Employer Employee Total
5.5% 6.0% 11.5%
Upper Earnings Limit
£621 or more £34.15 £37.26 £71.41
(£591) (£32.50) (£35.46) (£67.96)

Lower earnings limit for employed persons

33.  The Authority proposes to increase the lower earnings limit from £83 per week
to £87 per week. The corresponding monthly limit would be £377.
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The effect of the above changes on a contribution at the lower earnings limit is

as follows:
(2003 figures in brackets)

Weekly Earnings Contributions per week
Employer Employee Total
5.5% 6.0% 11.5%
Lower Earnings Limit
£87 £4.78 £5.22 £10.00
(£83) (£4.56) (£4.98) (£9.54)

Upper earnings limit for self-employed persons

The proposed increase in the upper weekly earnings limit from £591 to £621
would mean that the upper annual earnings limit for self-employed persons in
2004 would be increased from £30,732 to £32,292 (£621 x 52).

The effect of the proposed new upper earnings limit on self-employed persons
who pay a contribution at the upper earnings limit is as follows:-

(2003 figures in brackets)

Annual earnings from Contributions
self-employment per week
10.5%
£32,292 or more £65.20
(£30,732 or more) (£62.05)

Self-employed persons who have applied to pay earnings related contributions,
and whose earned income from self-employment was less than £32,292 per
year, will pay less than the maximum contribution.

The proposed increase in the lower earnings limit from £83 to £87 per week
would mean that the lower annual earnings limit for self-employed persons in
2004 would be increased from £4,316 to £4,524 (£87 x 52). The minimum
self-employed (Class 2) contribution in 2004 would be £9.13 per week (£8.71
in 2003).

Upper income limit for non-employed persons

As with the self-employed, non-employed contributors are liable to pay
non-employed, Class 3 contributions, at the maximum rate unless application
is made to the Authority and authorisation given for the release of the relevant
information by the Income Tax Authority. This allows an income-related
contribution to be calculated
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There are three main categories of non-employed contributions:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Full percentage rate contributions to cover social insurance, health
service and long-term care insurance liabilities. This is the rate of
contribution that all non-employed adults under the age of 60 will be
liable to pay, based on their income, from 1 January 2004;

Health service and long-term care insurance contributions. These
contributions go towards funding the pharmaceutical service, the
medical consultation grants, the specialist health insurance scheme and
the long-term care insurance scheme. This is the rate of contribution
that a non-employed person between the age of 60 and 65 can opt to
pay, based on their income. This option is usually taken by non-
employed persons approaching 65 who have already maximised their
contribution records for old age pension;

Specialist health insurance and long-term care insurance contributions.
These contributions, which are payable by persons aged 65 or over, go
towards funding the specialist health insurance scheme and the long-
term care insurance scheme.

The proposed increase in the upper earnings limit will mean that the upper
income limit for non-employed contributions will also increase to £32,292 per

year.

The Authority recommends that the lower income figure at which non-
employed contributions become payable be increased from £10,790 per year to
£11,310 per year from 1 January 2004.

The table shows the minimum and maximum weekly contributions payable in
2004 by non-employed persons. People with income at some point between
the upper and lower limits will pay pro-rata.

(2003 figures in brackets)

Contributions for non-employed persons
Annual Income Full rate | Health service Specialist
(under 65) | and long-term health and
care only(60 to | long-term care
65 optional) only (over 65)
9.9% 4.2% 2.6%
Weekly contribution
Less than £11,310 ZEero ZEero ZEero
(less than £10,790) (zero) (zero) (zero)
£11,310 £21.53 £9.13 £5.65
(£10,790) (£20.54) (£8.71) (£5.39)
£32,292 £61.48 £26.08 £16.15
(£30,732) (£58.51) (£24.82) (£15.37)
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Voluntary contributions

As shown above, where a non-employed person’s annual income is below
£11,310 that person will be exempted from the payment of contributions.
However, this could affect old age pension entitlement.

With the revision of the social insurance scheme for gender equality, and the
associated individualisation of contribution records, the need for an affordable
voluntary contribution has become more important. This issue was addressed
in the Authority’s report to the States on gender equality (Billet d’Etat V of
2003). Currently, the voluntary contribution that can be paid by non-employed
persons under 65, with low personal income, is £20.54 per week. The
Authority considers that this should be substantially reduced and, to give effect
to a reduction will base the voluntary contribution on the social insurance
element only (not health or long-term care) of the non-employed contribution
percentage applied to the lower income limit. The social insurance
contribution rate of 5.7%, applied to the lower income limit of £11,310 per
annum, produces a voluntary contribution of £12.40 per week in 2004, which
the Authority recommends.

Special (minimum) rate Class 3 contributions

A special rate non-employed contribution is payable by insured persons who
would normally rely upon employed contributor’s employment for their
livelihood, but have a small gap in their record where they were neither
employed nor receiving an unemployment credit. The special rate contribution
is currently £10.27 per week. To simplify matters and to avoid confusion the
Authority recommends that this should be aligned with the voluntary
contribution, explained above, and increased to £12.40 per week in 2004.

Income and expenditure on Guernsey Insurance Fund

In the following paragraphs, contribution income and States Grant from
general revenue refer only to the Guernsey Insurance Fund. Revenues for the
Guernsey Health Service Fund and the Long-term Care Insurance Fund are
reported later in this report.

The Guernsey Insurance Fund accounts for 2002 show income from
contributions of £43.75m and from the States’ Grant of £24.92m, giving a total
income of £68.67m, before taking investment income into account. Total
benefit expenditure and administration amounted to £59.13m, producing an
operating surplus of £9.54m for the year. The operating surplus was
transferred to the Guernsey Insurance Fund reserve for provision against future
long-term liabilities.

The estimated results for 2003 and 2004 will, as always, be influenced by the
benefit expenditure, the amounts by which contribution income increases and
the level of the States’ Grant to the Fund.
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Reduction in States Grant to Guernsey Insurance Fund

Since the financing of the social insurance scheme changed from flat-rate
stamps to earnings related contributions, in 1979, a grant equal to 57% of
contribution receipts has been paid into the Guernsey Insurance Fund from
general revenue. This is for the purpose of supplementing the contributions of
persons who pay contributions at less than the maximum (support) rate.

The UK Government Actuary’s Department has advised the Authority that,
owing to an increasing proportion of workers paying contributions at the upper
earnings limit, the amount of the States grant should be reduced to equal 50%
of contribution receipts, if its share in the financing is to be limited to its
original purpose and no more.

An argument could be advanced for leaving the States Grant at 57% of
contribution receipts and allowing the surpluses to accrue to the reserves of the
Fund. This would undoubtedly strengthen the long-term position of the Fund.
The Authority has, however, always strongly advocated the insurance principle
on which the social insurance scheme is founded and part of which is the
properly balanced States Grant. Accordingly, the Authority recommends a
reduction in the States Grant from 57% to 50% with effect from 1 January
2004.

It is estimated that contribution income in 2003 will be £46.63m, resulting in a
57% States grant amounting to £26.56m.

In 2004, contribution income is expected to increase by approximately £2.6m,
over and above any extra contributions from wage increases, by reason of the
gender equality reforms requiring all married women and widows being liable
for full rate contributions. The combined effects of a lower percentage States
Grant of 50%, and the extra number of full percentage rate contributors will
result in an estimated States Grant of £26.17m in 2004.

On the basis of assumptions of wage and salary increases, the increases in
benefits proposed in this report, the removal of the option to pay reduced rate
contributions and the proposed reduction in the States Grant it is estimated
that:

(1) there will be a surplus in 2003 in the order of £9.64m; and
(2) there will be a surplus in 2004 in the order of £9.32m.

Amendment to social insurance law to enable work rehabilitation

The Authority is committed to introducing further opportunities for work
rehabilitation. At present the social insurance law only allows the Fund to be
used to subsidise rehabilitation programmes for those people in receipt of
industrial disablement benefit following an accident at work. The Authority
recommends amending the law to introduce general enabling powers so that
the Fund can be used to assist those people in receipt of other social insurance
benefits who wish to embark upon work rehabilitation programmes.
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PART II
HEALTH SERVICE BENEFITS

The health service benefits, costing £21.55m in 2002, were financed by
£17.48m from contributions allocated to the Health Service Fund and £6.30m
from the States’ Grant from general revenue. There was an operating surplus of
£2.23m for the year.

Medical Benefit Grants > ant s

The total benefit expenditure on consultation grants in 2002 was £2.10m. This
was just 0.8% above the previous year.

The consultation grants have remained unchanged, at £8 per doctor
consultation and £4 per nurse consultation, since their introduction in 1991. At
that time the doctor consultation grant was approximately 50% of the cost of a
consultation. With the 2003 cost of a standard consultation being £33.00, the
grant has now reduced to less than 25%.

In recent years, the level of the medical benefit grants has attracted the interest
of a number of States members in the course of debate on the Authority’s
uprating proposals. There have been calls for the Authority to increase the
levels of the grants. While this has been a minority view to date, the Authority
is aware of there now being substantial support among States members for an
increase in the grants.

There are approximately 230,000 doctor consultation grants per year and
62,000 nurse consultation grants, so the cost to the Fund of adding each extra
£1 to the grants can be easily appreciated.

One of the reasons for the Authority resisting an increase in the consultation
grants has been the fear that an increase may be swallowed up, before any
financial benefit is felt by the patient, through the annual increase in doctors’
fees. These fees are set by the Guernsey and Alderney Division of the BMA,
with increases usually taking effect from 1 January each year, as would any
increase in the medical grants.

The local representatives of the BMA are conscious of this concern but
consider that the grants play an important part of financing affordable
healthcare and have a strong wish for their being increased in value. The
doctors have explained to the Authority, and to other States members, how
they will have to decrease their fee earning hours in order to comply with new
clinical governance criteria and how this will result in an increase in fee levels
to maintain their incomes.

The Authority has recently held constructive discussions with representatives
of the local division of the BMA and a positive way forward has been
identified. The Authority has offered to recommend to the States an increase in
the health benefit grant from £8 to £12 per consultation if the doctors agree to
the price of their 2004 consultation fees for all patients, not only those covered
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by the States, being fixed by independent review. The Authority is proposing
that, if it is willing, the UK Office of Manpower and Economics (OME)
should undertake the review. The OME, being responsible among other things
for the annual reports of the Doctors and Dentists Review Body, has expert
knowledge of issues applying to General Medical Practitioners in the UK,
including the implications of clinical governance and other matters relevant to
UK doctors, including the European directive on working time. If the OME is
unable to undertake the review, it is anticipated that members of the Doctors
and Dentists Review Body, having the appropriate expertise, may undertake
the review in a private capacity.

The Authority has suggested, furthermore, that the review team should also set
consultation fees, or set a formula for consultation fees for the years 2005 and
2006.

The Authority has received confirmation from the Primary Care Committee,
under signature of the Chairmen of the three main group practices, that the
profession is willing to co-operate with the Authority and proceed to
independent review of fees, on detailed terms of reference to be agreed. For its
side of the agreement, the States will be making two very substantial moves.
First, by increasing the health benefit grant from £8 to £12, the States will be
committing to just over £1.0m of extra annual expenditure from the Health
Service Fund. Furthermore, for such period as the consultation fees are fixed
by independent review, the Authority will pay at the same level for the patients
whose medical costs are covered by the social security schemes, including
supplementary benefit, MEAS and industrial medical benefit.

The Authority recommends that the health benefit grant of £8 per doctor
consultation and £4 per nurse consultation, be increased to £12 and £6
respectively from 1 January 2004, subject to independent review and fixing of
the consultation fees as described above.

Having set out the preferred approach with the health benefit grant, the
Authority is aware of some interest among States members for the grants to be
better targeted, which is an issue that the Townsend Centre for International
Poverty Research commented on.

The Townsend Centre suggested that the medical benefit grants could be
reconfigured, moving away from universal coverage to targeted coverage and
increased levels of grant. The Townsend Centre made a number of suggestions
on how the grants could be targeted, such as:

individuals with identified long-term illness or medical conditions
requiring recurrent care;

individuals making a repeat consultation to follow-up a previous
consultation,

individuals making a consultation solely for a repeat prescription
of their previous medication;

consultations for all pre-school children.’
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The Authority does not consider any of these suggestions to be particularly
strong as a policy option. There is a fundamental problem in targeting benefits
under the Health Service Law, because the benefits are mainly financed by
contributions. If consultation subsidies were to be targeted, the proper
approach would be to remove the benefit from the Health Benefit Law, with an
appropriate adjustment to contribution rates and general revenue grant, which
also part-finances the existing scheme. A targeted benefit would then have to
be administered under a scheme financed by general revenue.

Pharmaceutical Service

Prescription drugs cost a total of £12.43m in 2002, before netting off the
prescription charges paid by patients. This was an increase of 6.4% over the
previous year, compared with an increase of 4.4% in the Guernsey RPI. In
comparison with increases in drug costs in recent years, this year-end outcome
was favourable. For the first five months of 2003, drug costs are showing a
similar year on year increase of 6.6%.

The total cost of drugs to the Health Service Fund in 2002 was reduced by
approximately £1,027,000 collected in prescription charges.

White- list of approved drugs

The cost of the pharmaceutical service has become of increasing concern to
the Authority in recent years. The Authority is very pleased that, at the June
2003 meeting of the States, the Authority’s proposals to legislate a white-list of
drugs that may be prescribed at the expense of the Health Service Fund were
approved (Billet d’Etat XIII of 2003). The white-list will be given effect by an
Ordinance of the States, from 1 January 2004.

Initially, very little difference will be observed in the pharmaceutical service
as the white-list will include all drugs that appeared in the September 2001
British National Formulary, subject to a very small number of local
modifications that have occurred since its publication. The effects of the
white-list will be incremental as no newly marketed drug will be added to the
list without scrutiny of its merits by the Pharmaceutical Benefit Advisory
Committee. This is a committee of Guernsey professionals, including doctors
and pharmacists.

The Authority will keep the States informed of the effects of the white-list
through the annual benefit uprating report.

Prescription charge

The prescription charge for 2003 is £2.20 per item. For a number of years the
States have approved annual increases of 10p in the charge. The Authority
recommends the same increase this year, with a charge of £2.30 per item
effective from 1 January 2004.
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Specialist Health Insurance Scheme

The specialist health insurance scheme, comprising contracts for services with
the Medical Specialist Group, the Ophthalmic Group, the Guernsey
Physiotherapy Group and the Alderney General Practitioners cost £6.99m in
2002. After netting off a recovery of £91,000 from the Board of Health in
respect or reciprocal health agreement costs, the cost to the Health Service
Fund was £6.90m.

The States entered a new contract with the Medical Specialist Group,
including ophthalmic services and with the Guernsey Physiotherapy Group,
commencing on 1 January 2003. Both contract prices vary relative to the
number of practitioners engaged, under defined terms and controls. It is
expected that the 2003 cost of the contract with the Medical Specialist Group
will be £8.45m and the cost of the contact with the Guernsey Physiotherapy
Group will be £1.03m.

To date, the Authority and the Board of Health have not concluded a revised
contract with the Alderney doctors and this work is continuing. In the
meantime, the terms of the contact applying in 2002 are continuing into 2003,
with an adjustment in line with the increase in RPIL.

Waiting times

The new contract with the Medical Specialist Group has maximum waiting
times of 8 weeks between a referral from a general practitioner and 8 weeks
between being seen by a specialist and admission to hospital in Guernsey,
should that be required. These new, much shorter, waiting times have to be
met from 1 January 2004. The first year of the new contract, 2003, has been
allowed as a transition period for the specialists to rearrange their organisation
in order to meet the maximum waiting times.

PART III
LONG-TERM CARE INSURANCE

The long-term care insurance scheme started on 1 January 2003, with the
collection of contributions to a newly created fund called the Long-term Care
Insurance Fund. The first benefits were paid from 7 April 2003.

The Authority is pleased with the way in which the scheme is operating. It has
been a fundamental system change, which has been implemented very
successfully. Officers of the department have recently visited all of the care
homes outside States ownership and the feedback received has been very
positive. The scheme is currently paying long-term care benefits to 424 people
in residential or nursing homes in the private sector in Guernsey and Alderney.
Furthermore, some 320 residents and patients of the States-run long-term care
homes are having the benefit of a much simplified and reduced charging
system. The standard charge in the States-run homes is the same as the co-
payment in the private sector homes, £119 per week.
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Contribution income

It is estimated that contribution income to the Long-term Care Insurance Fund
will be £10.8m in 2003.

States Grant from general revenue

The States Grant to the Long-term Care Insurance Fund is equal to 12% of
contribution receipts. The Authority estimates that the States Grant will be
£1.30m in 2003.

Expenditure and operating surplus

The Authority estimates that benefit expenditure on long-term care insurance
will be £5.07m in 2003, with administrative expenditure of £95,000. The
Authority is estimating an operating surplus for 2003 of £6.97m. This high
level of operating surplus, which will be invested as it accrues, reflects the fact
that contributions have been collected for a full year, but benefits paid for only
9 months. Furthermore, when the scheme was put to the States, the Authority
recommended a 1.4% contribution rate that would hold good for at least 15
years, providing that the range of benefits was not changed substantially.

Co-payment by person in care

It is a condition of entitlement to benefit under the long-term care insurance
scheme that the person in care should make a co-payment. The 2003
co-payment is £119 per week. The Authority recommends a co-payment of
£126 in 2004.

As referred to above, it should be noted that the co-payment to the long-term
care insurance scheme also sets the level of fee to be charged for
accommodation in the States-run homes including the Castel and King Edward
VII hospitals, the Maison Maritaine and the Longue Rue House as well as the
long-stay beds in the Mignot Memorial Hospital, Alderney.

Nursing care benefit

Nursing care benefit is currently up to £518 per week. The Authority
recommends that it should be increased to up to £539 from 5 January 2004.

Residential care benefit

Residential care benefit is currently up to £280 per week. The Authority
recommends that it should be increased to up to £290.50 from 5 January 2004.

Respite care benefits

Persons needing respite care in private sector residential or nursing homes are
not required to pay a co-payment. The long-term care fund pays instead. This
is to acknowledge the value of occasional investment in respite care in order to
allow the person concerned to remain in their own home as long as practicable.
It also acknowledges that persons having respite care also continue to bear the
majority of their own household expenditure. The respite care benefits,
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therefore, are the sum of the co-payment and the residential care benefit or
nursing care benefit, as appropriate. The Authority, therefore, recommends a
nursing care respite benefit of up to £665 per week and a residential care
respite benefit of up to £416.50 per week.

PART IV
NON-CONTRIBUTORY SERVICES FUNDED FROM GENERAL REVENUE

91.  For the non-contributory benefits, which are funded entirely from general
revenue, the Authority recommends increases of approximately 5.0%. An
increase of around 9.0%, however, is recommended in the supplementary
benefit requirement rates for single householders. This will further increase the
single householder benefit rate to 67.5% of the married couple rate. This is a
continuation of the strategy responding to the findings of the Townsend Centre
on poverty in Guernsey. The survey found the highest levels of poverty among
single parents and single pensioners. There are approximately 480 single
householders over the age of 60, who are currently receiving supplementary
benefit and approximately 260 single parent householders. The 740 people in
these two groups, and the children of the single parents, should be helped by
the special measures recommended by the Authority.

Supplementary benefit rates

92. The Authority recommends increases in short-term and long-term
supplementary benefit rates, from 9 January 2004, as shown below.

(2003 figures in brackets)

Long-Term (after payment of
short-term) rate for 6 months)
Married couple £171.75 (£163.55)
Single householder £115.95 (£106.30)
Non-householder £92.00 (£87.60)
Member of a household -
16 or over £77.95 (£74.25)
12 - 15 £48.20 (£45.90)
5-11 £34.95 (£33.30)
Under 5 £25.80 (£24.55)
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Short-Term (claims not
exceeding 6 months)
Married couple £138.80 (£132.20)
Single householder £93.70 (£85.95)
Non-householder £73.60 (£70.10)
Member of a household -
16 or over £62.35 (£59.40)
12-15 £38.55 (£36.70)
5-11 £27.95 (£26.60)
Under 5 £20.65 (£19.65)

A rent allowance, on top of the above short-term or long-term rates, will apply
to people living in rented accommodation. The issue of rent allowances for
rents at apparently excessive charges is addressed in paragraphs 99 to 102
below.

Benefit limitation- community

The benefit limitation, currently £250 per week, is the maximum level allowed
for the combination of supplementary benefit and income from other sources,
excluding family allowances. The benefit limitation was increased
substantially last year, being raised 20% up on the 2002 figure. This year the
Authority recommends an increase in line with the general increase in benefits,
taking the benefit limitation to £263 per week from 9 January 2004.

Benefit limitation- residential homes

Notwithstanding the introduction of the long-term care insurance scheme,
there needs to remain a benefit limitation applicable to a person residing in a
residential home who does not satisfy the residence requirements for that
benefit. The benefit limitation is currently £346.00 per week. The Authority
recommends an increase to £363.00 per week.

Benefit limitation- nursing homes and Guernsey Cheshire Home

Being necessary for the reason explained above, the Authority recommends
that the benefit limitation applicable to a person residing in a nursing home or
the Guernsey Cheshire Home be increased from £497.00 per week to £522.00
per week.

Personal Allowance for residents of residential or nursing homes

The amount of the personal allowance for supplementary beneficiaries in
residential or nursing homes is currently £17.00 per week. It is intended to
allow modest purchases of, say, newspapers, confectionery, toiletries, small
family presents and so on. The Authority recommends that the personal
allowance be increased to £20.00 per week from 9 January 2004.
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Supplementary Fuel Allowance

A supplementary fuel allowance is paid from general revenue, for 31 weeks
between October and May, to supplementary beneficiaries who are
householders. The additional fuel allowance was increased from £8.00 per
week to £12.00 per week in 2000, after having been kept at £8.00 since 1992.
Between December 2000 and March 2003, coal prices have increased by 14%,
gas has increased by 24%, electricity has remained unchanged and oil has
fallen by 6%. Using the increase in the price of coal as a reasonable
benchmark, the Authority recommends an increase of £2 per week in the
supplementary fuel allowance. The Authority recommends that from
24 October 2003 to 21 May 2004, a fuel allowance of £14 per week be paid to
supplementary beneficiaries who are householders. It is estimated that the fuel
supplement will cost £440,000 over the 31 weeks.

Cost of Supplementary Benefit

Benefit expenditure on the Supplementary Benefit scheme was £9.53m in
2002. The budget for 2003 is £8.89m, the reduction being the transfer of some
care home costs to the long-term care insurance scheme. After taking account
of the proposed increases in the contributory benefit rates, which produce a
saving on supplementary benefit expenditure, and the proposed increases in
supplementary benefit rates, it is estimated that the Authority’s proposals
would increase the expenditure on supplementary benefit in 2004 by £150,000
to £9.04m.

Amendments to supplementary benefit legislation

Safeguards against excessive rents

The rent allowance, referred to in paragraph 92, is a key component of
supplementary benefit. The amount of the rent allowance awarded by the
Administrator is:

...the net rent payable, or such lesser amount as may be thought reasonable
by the Administrator having regard to the circumstances of that person...’

(Section 6, First Schedule to the Supplementary Benefit (Implementation)
Ordinance 1971, as amended).

For the great majority of supplementary benefit claims, the calculation of
benefit involves straightforward input in the benefit formula of the net rent
payable, without further deduction. Contrary to some perceptions, many
people receiving supplementary benefit are being charged reasonable rents by
their landlords. This is particularly so in the case of some long-term tenancies
involving older persons. Occasionally, however, the Administrator has to
determine a rent allowance with regard to a charged rent that appears
excessive. In such cases, the practice is to award a rent allowance of lesser
amount than charged and to advise the claimant of a tenant’s right to seek an
independent assessment of the rent by the Rent Officer of the Cadastre
Committee. The availability of such assessment is conditional on the rateable
value of the dwelling being £50 or less and the tenancy having been in effect
for at least 3 months.
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Applications to the Rent Officer from persons receiving supplementary benefit
are so few as to be effectively zero. The main barrier appears to be the fear of
causing bad relations with the landlord which may lead to eviction,
notwithstanding the protection for 12 months following review as provided by
the Rent Control Law.

In order to overcome the reluctance of tenants in receipt of supplementary
benefit to make application to the Rent Officer for their accommodation to be
subject to rent assessment, the Cadastre Committee is presently reviewing
whether the Administrator, in any case where supplementary benefit is being
paid, should have the right, in addition to the right of the tenant, to apply to the
Rent Officer for a determination of a fair rent during such period as the
recipient of supplementary benefit is the tenant. Pending that review, it would
greatly assist the process of providing rent allowances if the Administrator, in
determining the amount of rent payable, could not only take into account not
only the circumstances of the recipient — the position under Section 6 of the
First Schedule to the 1971 Ordinance, see above — but also the nature and
extent of the accommodation for which the rent allowance is being provided.
This amendment will make it clear that the Administrator can have regard to
the actual accommodation for which rent allowance is provided. This simple

amendment would put the power of the Administrator in this area beyond
doubt.

Resources deliberately abandoned

Section 18 of the First Schedule to the Supplementary Benefit
(Implementation) Ordinance 1971, as amended, deals with the treatment of
resources that have been deliberately divested. In practice this has typically
been property sold to family members for a nominal sum and capital given to
family members. The section reads:

"Resources deliberately abandoned

18. If a person has deprived himself of any resources for the purpose of
securing a supplementary benefit or increasing the amount thereof those
resources may be taken into account as if they were still his.’

While the above provision may already suffice, the Authority has consulted
H.M. Procureur, who recommends that the legislation be amended to make it
clear that, for the purposes of Section 18 to the First Schedule to the 1971
Ordinance, a person shall be treated as having deprived himself of a resource if
he neglects to claim, or waives or abandons any right or benefit to which he is
legally entitled. Accordingly, any failure to apply for assessment of a fair rent
by the Rent Officer may be treated as a resource deliberately foregone and that
will enable the Administrator to make an appropriate deduction in the amount
of supplementary benefit payable.
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Attribution of assets not immediately realisable

The supplementary benefit legislation specifies how, in the computation of
benefit entitlement, assets in sole or joint ownership are to be treated as
resources of the claimant. The legislation attributes the assets and, in the
absence of provisions to the contrary, treats them as resources immediately
available.

A practical difficulty arises from time to time where one partner of a couple
has left a jointly owned home but is temporarily unable to liquidate their share
in the asset. This can be a separated mother with a child or children, who needs
assistance from supplementary benefit but is prevented from receiving
financial assistance because of resources which are treated as available to her,
but which cannot, in practice, immediately be accessed. Experience has also
shown that banks are generally unwilling to loan money against the value of
the shared asset in these circumstances.

The Authority recommends an amendment in the legislation to accommodate
more flexibility in situations similar to that described. The Authority
recommends that this should be by way of provision to disregard, temporarily,
the value of assets which cannot be realised immediately.

Family Allowances

Family allowances expenditure amounted to £6.83m in 2002. The allowance is
paid at the rate of £11.25 per week per child. The budget for 2003 is £7.12m.
The Authority recommends that the allowance be increased to £11.75 per
week for 2004. It is estimated that this will increase the expenditure on family
allowances in 2004 by £386,000, to £7.51m.

Attendance and Invalid Care Allowances

The Authority recommends that attendance allowance and invalid care
allowance be increased with effect from 5 January 2004 as shown below:-

(2003 rates are shown in brackets)

Attendance Allowance - weekly rate £69.00 (£65.75)
Invalid Care Allowance - weekly rate £55.50 (£52.75)
Annual income limit for both allowances £63,000 (£60,000)

Benefit expenditure on attendance and invalid care allowances in 2002 was
£1.73m. The budget for 2003 is £1.83m. It is estimated that the Authority’s
proposals will increase expenditure in 2004 by £92,000. Increased demand is
expected to increase expenditure by a further £66,000, taking the total 2004
estimate to £1.99m.
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Free TV licences

In accordance with the resolutions of the States on the 2001 budget (Billet
d’Etat XXIV of 2000), the Authority administers a scheme to provide free TV
licences for Guernsey and Alderney residents aged 75 or over and residents
aged 65 or over and in receipt of supplementary benefit. Benefit expenditure
under this scheme was £397,000 in 2002. The scheme is expected to cost
£400,000 in 2003. The costs in 2004 will depend on the standard charge per
TV licence made by the UK Department of Culture, Media and Sport.

PART V
RECOMMENDATIONS

The Authority recommends:

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

that the standard rates of social insurance benefits shall be increased to
the rates set out in paragraph 23 of this report;

that the standard rate of survivor’s grant/ bereavement payment shall
be £1,220;
(paragraph 25)

that maternity grant shall be increased to £248.00 in respect of
confinements which take place on or after 5 January 2004;
(paragraph 26)

that the full rate amount of death grant payable in respect of the death
of a person on or after 5 January 2004 shall be £385.00.
(paragraph 27)

that for employed and self-employed persons the upper weekly

earnings limit, the upper monthly earnings limit and the annual upper

earnings limit shall be £621, £2,691 and £32,292 respectively;
(paragraphs 31 to 35)

that for non-employed persons the upper and lower annual income
limits shall be £32,292 and £11,310 respectively;
(paragraphs 39 to 42)

that the minimum (special rate) Class 3 contribution and the voluntary
non-employed contribution should be aligned at £12.40 per week from
1 January 2004;

(paragraphs 44 to 46)

that the States Grant to the Guernsey Insurance Fund shall be reduced
from 57% to 50% of contributions income to that Fund;

(paragraph 52)

That the Social Insurance (Guernsey) Law, 1978, as amended, be
further amended to enable the Fund to assist those people in receipt of
social insurance benefits to embark upon work rehabilitation
programmes;

(paragraph 56)
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(xi)

(xi1)

(xii1)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xv1)
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that the medical benefits provided under the Health Service (Benefit)
Guernsey Law, 1991, in respect a medical consultation with an
approved doctor or approved nurse, shall be increased to £12 and £6
respectively, subject to an independent review of consultation fees in
Guernsey and Alderney being undertaken;

(paragraphs 64 to 67)

that the prescription charge per item of pharmaceutical benefit shall be
£2.30;
(paragraph 76)

that the contribution (co-payment) required to be made by the claimant
of care benefit, under the long-term care insurance scheme, shall be
£126 per week;

(paragraph 86)

that ’care benefit’ shall be a maximum of £539 per week for persons
resident in a nursing home or the Guernsey Cheshire Home and a
maximum of £290.50 per week for persons resident in a residential
home;

(paragraphs 88 and 89)

that ’respite care benefit’ shall be a maximum of £665 per week for
persons receiving respite care in a nursing home or the Guernsey
Cheshire Home and a maximum of £416.50 per week for persons
receiving respite care in a residential home;

(paragraph 90)

that the normal requirements of a person for the purposes of paragraph
5 of Part II of the First Schedule to the Supplementary Benefit
(Implementation) Ordinance, 1971, shall be the appropriate amount set
out in paragraph 92 of this report;

that the limit of the weekly income for the purposes of paragraph 3 of
Part 1 of the First Schedule to the Supplementary Benefit
(Implementation) Ordinance 1971 shall be:

(a) £263 for a person whose requirements are in accordance with
paragraph 5 of the Schedule;

(b) £363 for a person who is residing in a residential home and
whose requirements are in accordance with paragraph 7 of the
Schedule;
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(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xx1)
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(c) £522 for a person who is residing as a patient in a hospital,
nursing home or the Guernsey Cheshire Home, whose
requirements are in accordance with paragraph 7 of the
Schedule;

(paragraphs 93 to 95)

that the amount of the personal allowance payable to persons in
residential or nursing homes who are in receipt of supplementary
benefit shall be £20 per week;

(paragraph 96)

that a supplementary fuel allowance, for supplementary beneficiaries
who are householders, of £14 per week be paid, for 31 weeks, from
24 October 2003;

(paragraph 97)

that the Supplementary Benefit (Implementation) Ordinance, 1971, as
amended, be further amended:

(a) to enable the Administrator, when determining a rent allowance, to
have regard, in addition to the circumstances of the claimant, to the
nature and extent of the accommodation;

(paragraph 102)

(b) to make it clear that for the purposes of Section 18 to the First
Schedule to the 1971 Ordinance, a person shall be treated as having
deprived himself of a resource if he neglects to claim, or waives or
abandons any right or benefit to which he is legally entitled;

(paragraph 104)

(c) to enable the value of assets which cannot be realised immediately
to be disregarded temporarily;
(paragraph 107)

(a) that the allowance payable under the Family Allowances
(Guernsey) Law, 1950, as amended, shall be increased from
£11.25 to £11.75 per week; and

(b) that the cost of providing for a child (for the purposes of
determining in whose family a child not living with his parents
is to be included under the Law), shall be increased from
£11.25to £11.75;

(paragraph 108)

that the rates of attendance allowance and invalid care allowance and
the annual income limits shall be as set out in paragraph 109;
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(xxi1) that the recommendations listed below shall have effect from the
following dates:

Recommendations (i) to (iv), (xii) to (xiv)

5 January 2004

and (xxi)

Recommendations (v) to (viii), (x) and (xi) - 1 January 2004
Recommendation (xv) to (xvii) - 9 January 2004
Recommendations (xx) - 6 January 2004

113. I should be grateful if you would lay this matter before the States with
appropriate propositions including one directing the preparation of the
necessary legislation.

Yours faithfully
O. D. LE TISSIER

President, Guernsey Social Security Authority
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The President
States of Gucmsey
Fioval Court Howse
S Peter Pan

Cluermsey

-

Fh Aupos: 2003

Dar 5ur

Cuernsey Socigl Security Aulhority  Beneht and Contelbution Rates lor 2004

[ refer ta the letler daded 20 Augusi 2003 Trom the Presidenn of the Guerhsoy Secial
Security Autlurrity concerming propesals for the wpraling of henetits for 2004,

T he Advisory and Finanee Cemenitee s supporeve of the Autharitg™s proposals 1o
crease The rates of contmbutony benefifs by 550 wilh 4 highor increase of 7.4% being
applicd 1 the smple pensionet old age pension rale.

Thia & the secwrul successive vear thal the Authomly has proposed an additicnal
incyeass to lbe smple peasioner rale and 11 represenls 3@ conlinading Proacilye TESpODSe
12 e findings of he Survey of Coemsey Living Staneands on the cxient of hardship
exprricnsed by o sigmiticant propottion of sicule peosioners.

The Cenmmimilies 15 alsa suppanove of 1he praposals for an inczease i oon-contibuory
beneding by 520 apar troue single howscholders in reeeipt of supplementary bencfit lor
whom an ncrcase of 9% s recoreneoded. The addiionad suppors for single
Fowscholdars. Tike the proposal o anwad o larger nereass a the single rale of oll aee
pension, 18 anether significand commitnent o respoaliong Lo the findings of the
Survey of Guemyey Liveng Standards which reporred that almwst wa thirds of lone
paremly were, by Cuemsey standards, suffering vom s poor standasd of Livio,

The Advisery aml Fmarce Comaaties, al (e ticee of preparing this et 1s an the
later stapes of devising proposuls for o Comporale Ani-Poverdy Propramme. Uhe
Conuwnittee belicves that the Social Sceewrity Autbonity's 2004 uprating proposals w11
catniimus (o fomm an itegni pan of that Prograoee.

With regard o heallh service hecefs, the Commiites nodes that o i3 propased o
mctcase ihe prants for o consaltation wilh o rwese or o docter for the Sesl time singg
thar smreduction ey 19910 Thos proposdl s, howeser, conlngerl @pon agresmenl
boing reached with the local division of 1he British Medioal Aasocialion for oan
nulependent review of comsullation fees Tar all patients, The Commidee scknowledaes
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the significanze of the rex iew whieh would resuln e the srivate consultation tfee being
mdependently sot for what 15 bBelicved 12 be the first tme over. On Mis basts, the
Cuormmities supporls an ierease in ke consullaliion grants g5 pronascd,

Fhl:l]l':.-'_. the Gueeogey hocial Sevunily Authonly proposcs B0 redece rom 01 Janoaeny
2834 he amount of the States Grant s s paid inwe e Guemmsey Insurance Fand
Fromt o value cqual to 57% of condriburion reeapls 1o S0%. The purpese of the grant is
e supplement the conributions of porsanz wha poy ol less thao the masxonurm
{supporl] Tale. {iven the comiming high [evel of ecmploymens inothe Island and that
an inergasmy number of people are caming al s ke cogual @ or approaching she
support ra. the Authoricy, alter conaullation wilbk the UK Govermment Acluary's
Lrepaniment. focls able do recomenend thus seduction. As staped inthe 2003 Policy anld
Frosource Plam. the Cammitize @ grateful o the Authority for mking a lead in Ous
IMTHIAENT [ualreT.

Thue Crrmmiriee supports the prpesals of the Cuoemsey Secial Secaniye autheridy and
recommmends the States to approve all ol the resulisnt propogitioms.

Y ouirs faithinly
L.CMORCAN

Prosidea
Strates Advisory and Fioanee Comronive
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The States are asked to decide:-

XVL.- Whether, after consideration of the Report dated the 20™ August, 2003, of the
Guernsey Social Security Authority, they are of opinion:-

1.

That, with effect from the 5th January, 2004, the standard rates of social
insurance benefits shall be increased to the rates set out in paragraph 23 of that
Report.

That, with effect from the 5™ January, 2004, the standard rate of survivor’s
grant/ bereavement payment shall be £1,220.

That maternity grant shall be increased to £248.00 in respect of confinements
which take place on or after S5th January, 2004;

That the full rate amount of death grant payable in respect of the death of a
person on or after 5™ January 2004 shall be £385.00.

That, with effect from the 1¥ January, 2004, for employed and self-employed
persons the upper weekly earnings limit, the upper monthly earnings limit and
the annual upper earnings limit shall be £621, £2,691 and £32,292
respectively.

6. That, with effect from the 1* January, 2004, for non-employed persons the

upper and lower annual income limits shall be £32,292 and £11,310
respectively.

7. That the minimum (special rate) Class 3 contribution and the voluntary non -

employed contribution shall be aligned at £12.40 per week from 1 January
2004.

8. That, with effect from the 1% January, 2004, the States Grant to the Guernsey

Insurance Fund shall be reduced from 57% to 50% of contributions income to
that Fund.

9. That the Social Insurance (Guernsey) Law, 1978, as amended, be further

amended to enable the Fund to assist those people in receipt of social
insurance benefits to embark upon work rehabilitation programmes.

10. That, with effect from the 1* January, 2004, the medical benefits provided

under the Health Service (Benefit) Guernsey Law, 1991, in respect a medical
consultation with an approved doctor or approved nurse, shall be increased
to £12 and £6 respectively, subject to an independent review of consultation
fees in Guernsey and Alderney being undertaken.

11. That, with effect from the 1** January, 2004, the prescription charge per item

of pharmaceutical benefit shall be £2.30.
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12 That, with effect from the 51 January, 2004, the contribution (co-payment)
required to be made by the claimant of care benefit, under the long-term care
insurance scheme, shall be £126 per week.

13. That, with effect from the 5™ January, 2004, ’care benefit’ shall be a maximum
of £539 per week for persons resident in a nursing home or the Guernsey
Cheshire Home and a maximum of £290.50 per week for persons resident in a
residential home.

14. That, with effect from the 5™ January, 2004, ’respite care benefit’ shall be a
maximum of £665 per week for persons receiving respite care in a nursing
home or the Guernsey Cheshire Home and a maximum of £416.50 per week
for persons receiving respite care in a residential home.

15. That, with effect from the gt January, 2004, the normal requirements of a
person for the purposes of paragraph 5 of Part II of the First Schedule to the
Supplementary Benefit (Implementation) Ordinance, 1971, shall be the
appropriate amount set out in paragraph 92 of that Report.

16. That, with effect from the oth anuary, 2004, the limit of the weekly income
for the purposes of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of the First Schedule to the
Supplementary Benefit (Implementation) Ordinance 1971 shall be:

(a) £263 for a person whose requirements are in accordance with
paragraph 5 of the Schedule;

(b) £363 for a person who is residing in a residential home and whose
requirements are in accordance with paragraph 7 of the Schedule;

(c) £522 for a person who is residing as a patient in a hospital, nursing
home or the Guernsey Cheshire Home, whose requirements are in
accordance with paragraph 7 of the Schedule.

17. That, with effect from the 9™ January, 2004, the amount of the personal
allowance payable to persons in residential or nursing homes who are in
receipt of supplementary benefit shall be £20 per week.

18. That a supplementary fuel allowance, for supplementary beneficiaries
who are householders, of £14 per week be paid, for 31 weeks, from
24™ October 2003.

19. That the Supplementary Benefit (Implementation) Ordinance, 1971, as
amended, be further amended:

(a) to enable the Administrator, when determining a rent allowance, to
have regard, in addition to the circumstances of the claimant, to the
nature and extent of the accommodation;
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(b) to make it clear that for the purposes of Section 18 to the First
Schedule to the 1971 Ordinance, a person shall be treated as having
deprived himself of a resource if he neglects to claim, or waives or
abandons any right or benefit to which he is legally entitled;

(c) to enable the value of assets which cannot be realised immediately to
be disregarded temporarily.

20. (a) That, with effect from the 6™ January, 2004, the allowance payable
under the Family Allowances (Guernsey) Law, 1950, as amended,
shall be increased from £11.25 to £11.75 per week; and

(b) that, with effect from the 6™ January, 2004, the cost of providing for a
child (for the purposes of determining in whose family a child not
living with his parents is to be included under the Law), shall be
increased from £11.25 to £11.75.

21. That, with effect from the 5ty anuary, 2004, the rates of attendance
allowance and invalid care allowance and the annual income limits shall
be as set out in paragraph 109 of that Report.

22. To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give
effect to their above decisions.
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STATES PUBLIC ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

PUBLIC ASSISTANCE BENEFIT RATES FOR 2004

The President
States of Guernsey
Royal Court House
St Peter Port
Guernsey

19 August 2003

Dear Sir

Public assistance benefit rates for 2004

1.

Under the provisions of the Public Assistance Law, 1937, the States may set, by
Ordinance, the ordinary maximum rates of public assistance (benefit); the limit of
weekly income an applicant may have; and vary other regulations making
provision for the administration of public assistance.

From 8 January 1999 the rates of public assistance and short-term supplementary
benefit have been identical. In proposing benefit rates for 2004 the Authority has
again liaised with the Guernsey Social Security Authority. Both committees see
great value in maintaining parity between public assistance rates and short-term
supplementary benefit rates. The Authority will therefore recommend a general
increase in public assistance rates of 5%, and an increase of around 9% for single
householders.

. The Authority recommends increases in public assistance rates, from 9 January

2004, as shown below (2003 figures in brackets).

Married couple £138.80 (£132.20)
Single householder £93.70 (£85.95)
Non-householder £73.60 (£70.10)
Member of a

household:-

16 or over £62.35 (£59.40)
12to 15 £38.55 (£36.70)
S5to 1l £27.95 (£26.60)
Under 5 £20.65 (£19.65)

In addition to the above rates, in appropriate cases, the applicant receives an
additional allowance for rent.
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Limitation on amount of public assistance payable

4.

The benefit limitation, currently £250.00, is the maximum amount of income an
applicant may receive in any week, including any benefit to which they may be
entitled, but exclusive of family allowance. The Authority recommends an
increase to £263.00 per week from 9 January 2004. This increase is in line with
that proposed by the Guernsey Social Security Authority.

Winter fuel allowance

5.

During the winter months of November to March, dependent on the prevailing
weather conditions and with the approval of the Authority, Relieving Officials
may award a fuel allowance of £12.00. The Authority recommends an increase to
£14.00 in the period November 2003 to March 2004. This increase is in line with
that proposed by the Guernsey Social Security Authority.

It is estimated that the fuel supplement will cost £4800 in the period November
2003 to March 2004.

Estimated costs to General Revenue

7. Public Assistance expenditure was £263,865 in 2002. The budget for 2003 is
£359,500. Taking account of the proposed increases in public assistance rates, it is
estimated that the Authority’s proposals will increase expenditure in 2004 by
£17,975 to £377,475.

Recommendations

8. The Authority recommends:-

(1) that the ordinary maximum rates of public assistance for the purposes of
paragraph 10 of the Schedule to the Central Outdoor Assistance Board
Regulations, as amended, shall be those set out in paragraph 3 of this
report;

(i1) that the limitation of weekly income in paragraph 2(2) of the Schedule to
the Regulations shall be £263.00 (paragraph 4);

(ii1))  that recommendations (i) and (ii) shall have effect from 9 January 2004;

(iv)  that a winter fuel allowance at a maximum of £14.00 per week shall be
payable at the discretion of the Relieving Official to a person in receipt of
public assistance in the period 7 November 2003 to 26 March 2004,
inclusive (paragraph 5);
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9. I shall be grateful, Sir, if you would lay this report before the States together with
the appropriate propositions, including one directing the preparation of the
necessary legislation.

Yours faithfully

D. P. LE CHEMINANT

Vice President
Public Assistance Authority

(NB The States Advisory and Finance Committee supports the proposals)
The States are asked to decide:-

XVIL- Whether, after consideration of the Report dated the 19™ August, 2003, of the
States Public Assistance Authority, they are of opinion:-

1. That the ordinary maximum rates of public assistance for the purposes of
paragraph 10 of the Schedule to the Central Outdoor Assistance Board
Regulations, as amended, shall be those set out in paragraph 3 of that Report.

2. That the limitation of weekly income in paragraph 2(2) of the Schedule to the
Regulations shall be £263.00.

3. That propositions 1. and 2. above shall have effect from 9 January 2004.
4. That a winter fuel allowance at a maximum of £14.00 per week shall be payable
at the discretion of the Relieving Official to a person in receipt of public

assistance in the period 7 November 2003 to 26 March 2004, inclusive.

5. To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give effect to
their above decisions.
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STATES COMMITTEE FOR HOME AFFALRS

THELTAE OF MOBILE TELEPIIONES BY DRIYERS

23 July 2003

The Presidant
Ztates of Guarngey
Raovyal Caurt Housc
51 Patar Port
GUERNSZY

GY1 2PB

Chzar Sir

THE USE OF MOBILE TELEPHCNES BY DRIVERS
Introguction

in December 1999 a Reguéte was presented to the States concerning the use of hand
hald motnle phones by drivers.  The Requéte did not haye tha sopport of tha
Committec far Home Affairs as ot was thought at the time that drivers using hand held
mob:le phones could be prosecuted for driving without due care and attentiion,  After a
dobatle the Raguéte was lost.

In Septamber of sl year @ furlher Reguéle on the same subjec! was presantzd 1& tha
Swates It asked that the States direct that my Committee repoted moasuras that
cauld be 1akan to conirgl the wuse by drivers of mobile phones while heir vehigles wara
in motan My Committes fully supponted e Boquéte which was passod an the 28
Saplernter 20032,

Res¢arch

in 18897 HRedelmeer and Tibshimc published a Canadian research paper that
suggested that makile phone use by drivers quadruples the fak of callision during the
pencn of Fe call and that 1n addition there was 2 graater nsk of the driver baing the
cause o an accident b gevaral minotes attar he terminatian of the call,

1he Soyal Sociaty lar the Prevantion of Accidents published a report on Ihis subject in
2002 ('The Risk of Lising 8 Malmle Phone Whist Dowing').  According 1o the report
betwzen 1988 and 2001 there were 19 fatal accidents in the United Kingdom thal after
mveEskoanoh could be alributed 13 a diver using a mobile phaneg whilst driving.

.. .oortd.



1977

The President
Sates gf Guemsay 23 July 2003

Department ol Transpon Survays in tha LK heve establizhed that the use ol mobile
phones by drivers whilst wn motion has risan from 1.5% m 2000 to 2,2% in 2002,

The Guerneay situatiaon

Mo formal surverys have been conducted in Guarnsey with regard to the use of mobile
phones by drivers. However, there have becn numerous camplainls in recent years to
tha Guamsey Police abowt the usa of mokle telephones by drivers. In addition, Palice
Officers ¢n many occasions over recenl yaars have observed drivers using meobile
telephoncs and taken aclion ranging from an informal warning to reparing the driver
[ur prosecution for driving withgut dus ¢arg and atention,

The offance of driving without due care ard attention

The courts in Guernsey and England have daglarsd fhat belore m person can be
conviclad 4gr driving without due care and attention whilst using mabile relephones tha
progecution mugt prgwa thal there was an actual loas of contrd of the vehicle as
opocsed to & potential loss of control.  Given the research that | have raferred o
indicates that there is a substantial increase in the risk of an accident whilst using a
rmokile telephone whilsl driving il is in the Committee’s apimen essential that a specific
offence ba intreduced B deal with such condwsct.

Legislation in other [urisdlctions

Both Jarsey and the lsle of Man have intreduced legisiation &n this topic. The Jorsey
egiglation which iz attached 1o ths laler as Appendin 1 was introduced in 1998 and
pravides bar a mammum fine on conviction of £508. The Isle of Man lagislalicn which
is eiached as Appendix @ came intp borce in 2000 with 8 maximum fine of £1,007. T b
Chial Officar of Police haz been advised by his colleaguas in the |sle of Man and
Jersey 1nat the introduction of a specific oflence and the publicity surraunding Thele
intradocton has had significant deterrent walue and thal in gach [sland tha use of
mobile phones whilsl in motion by drivers has decraagsed.

Froposed offence

Fha Committas recommends that the States direct that legislation be drafted to create
an offence of driving & motar vehicls on a road whilst holding a telephoena in any way
whilst {he vehisle s in mation. The phrase “holding @ telephone in any way™ will cover
behaviour such s the trapping of a handset between the drivers faca and his
shwaaldar.

The Cammittce recommends thal those corscied of tha offence should be liable on
canviclion to a fine not axceeding lavel 2 on the Uniform Scale which s currently E5008.

.. oentd
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"Hands free' aguipment

During t5 gonsideration tha Committec did axamine the safaty aspects of the use of
"hands free” equipment. Research dicates that drivers zre distracted whilst helding
a corversation Using ‘hands free” equipiment, However, the distragtion was found to
be much lags than when drivers spoke on their mobile telephone whilst hglding them in
their kandz.  In view of this, the Cammittes has concluded that there is currebily no
ustification to seek a prebibdion on the use by dovers of "hands free" agquipment”.

Conclusion

The Committes thercfore racemmends that the States direct that legislation be drafted
as outhned atpwe.

Yours faithfullg->" e g

..-.". “

TORODE
Presidant
Coammittee for Home Alairs
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APPENDIX |
ROAD TRAFFIC (JERSEY) LAW 1956
ROAD TRAFFIC (No0.48) (JERSEY) REGULATIONS 1998
(Promulgated on the 18th day of February 1998)
STATES OF JERSEY
The 17th day of February 1998

The States, in pursuance of the powers conferred on them by the Order in Council of the
twenty-sixth day of December 1851 and Article 49 of the Road Traffic (Jersey) Law, 1956, as
amended? (hereinafter referred to as “the Law”), have made the following Regulations —

1. After Article 25 of the Law there shall be inserted the following Article —

“Article 25A
Restrictions on holding telephones

(1) If any person who is driving a vehicle on a road holds a telephone in any way while
the vehicle is in motion, he shall be guilty of an offence under this Article.

(2) A person guilty of an offence under this Article shall be liable to a fine not
exceeding level 2 on the standard scale.”

! Recueil des Lois, tomes I-111, page 196
2 Recueil des Lois, Tome VIII, page 636

250/2/98 R & O - 9205

Price code: A
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APPENDIX 11
THE ROAD TRAFFIC ACT 1985

The Road Vehicles (Mainteance and Use) (Amendment)
Regulations 2000

Approved by Tynwald: 16 May 2000
Coming into operation: 1 July 2000

In exercise of the powers conferred on the Department of Transport by paragraphs 1 of Part | of
Schedule 2 to the Road Trafffic Act 1985*, and of all other enabling powers, the following
Regulations are hereby made:-

Citation and commencement

1. These Regulations may be cited as the Road Vehicles (Maintenance and Use) (Amendment)
Regulations 2000 and, subject to section 74(3) of the Road Traffic Act 1985, shall come into
operation on 1 July 2000.

Amendment of the Road Vehicles (Maintenance and Use) Regulations 1998

2. (1) The Road Vehicles (Maintenance and Use) Regulations 1998 shall be further amended as
follows.

(2) After regulation 63, insert:
“Mobile telephones

63A. (1) No person shall drive a motor vehicle on a road while he is using a mobile
telephone which is held in a hand.

(2) In this regualtion-
“mobile telephone” means wireless telegraphy apparatus which is designed or
adapted to be capable -

11985¢c. 23
2SD 345/98
Price: £0.30
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(@) of connection only to a cellular telecommunication system; and

(b) of use while in motion

“wireles telegraphy apparatus” has the same meaning as in the Wireless Telegraphy Act 1949° (an
Act of Parliament).”.

Made 30th March 2000

Minister for Transport

EXPLANATORY NOTE
(This note is not part of the Regulations)

These Regulations amend further the Road Vehicles (Maintenance and Use) Regulations 1998
(SD 345/98) by inserting a new regulation prohibiting persons from using hand-held mobile
cellular phones while driving motor vehicles.

#1949 c. 54

(The States Advisory and Finance Committee supports the proposals)

The Slares are asked 1o decide:-

XVIII.- Whether, after consideration of the Report dated the 23 July, 2003, of the
States Committee for Home Affairs, they are of opinion:-

1. That levislation stiall be sreacted, as setl out an Whatl Report, o create anoollonce of
dreeing a moter vohicle en o road whilst bolding o tclsphone o any way whilat the
vehiele is in motion.

2. Tolirest 1he preparstion of such lewrsluoion s may he necessary 1o give effect Lo

lheit abuove decision,
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STATES BOARD OF HEALTH

SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN UPDATE

The President
States of Guernsey
Royal Court House
St Peter Port
Guernsey

21st August 2003

Dear Sir

1.1

1.2

SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN UPDATE

Introduction

It is four years since the States approved the Board of Health’s revised site
development plan. The Board, therefore, wishes to advise the States of
progress on implementation of the plan and to give an indication of the
capital requirements and approximate timescale for the remainder of the
plan. In addition, whilst the principles of the plan have not changed,
developments in healthcare during the past four years have led to a need to
change some of the detail of the plan. These have been discussed fully with
the Advisory and Finance Committee’s Estates Sub Committee and further
modifications have been made as a result of suggestions for improvement
made by that Sub Committee. The changes are highlighted in this report.

The Board has also reached the point at which capital funds are required for
the costs of professional services which need to be retained for the site
development plan as a whole. In addition, capital funding is now required
for redevelopment of the Mignot Memorial Hospital.

Background

In July 1999 (Billet d’Etat XV), the States approved in principle the Board’s
revised site development plan. Since then, a considerable number of the
individual projects have either been completed or are in progress, namely:

Completed

o  Home for people with a learning disability (Les Alouettes)
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o  Purchase, conversion and extension of property for staff
accommodation (Arlington Court)

o  Boiler decentralisation, King Edward VII Hospital

o  Adolescent Unit, Princess Elizabeth Hospital

o  Day Room, Mignot Memorial Hospital

o  Alterations to homes for people with a learning disability
(Sunnybrook, 3 Les Vieux Chénes, Chateau Reve and The Croft)

o  Day Hospital, King Edward VII Hospital

o Occupational Therapy and Physiotherapy Department alterations, King
Edward VII Hospital

o  Pharmacy upgrade, Princess Elizabeth Hospital

o  Sterile Services Department upgrade, Princess Elizabeth Hospital

o Incinerator replacement, Princess Elizabeth Hospital

o Institute of Health Services temporary re-location, Duchess of Kent
House

In progress

o  Long-stay wards for confused older people at La Corbinerie (under
construction); due for completion at the end of 2003, with the first
residents occupying the new wards in February 2004 (see Billet d’Etat
VI 2002).

o  Child Development Centre, to be accommodated in Forest Special
Needs Centre (see Billet d’Etat 111 2003).

o  States Analyst’s Laboratory and Environmental Health Department (to
be accommodated in new premises on Raymond Falla House site), due
for completion by the end of 2004 (see Billet d’Etat XIII 2003).

o  Services for people with a learning disability - replacement
headquarters and day centre; to be accommodated in St Martin’s
Community Centre (see Billet d’Etat XIX 2003).

o 40 operating theatre and critical care unit. Not part of the site

development plan but required as part of the revised specialist health
insurance scheme (see Billet d’Etat II 2002); policy letter for this
capital project to be submitted for the October 2003 States meeting.

Progressing the Next Phase of the Site Development Plan

Although a considerable amount of progress has been made, there are still a
number of major elements of the site development plan that remain to be
completed. Schemes like relocation of the Environmental Health
Department and the relocation of services to the St Martin’s Community
Centre are, in part, enabling schemes. They allow for the remaining mental
health services to be transferred to the Princess Elizabeth Hospital site from
the Castel Hospital and for the re-provision of medical services and services
for older people, which are presently provided in sub standard and outdated
accommodation.
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Attached, as appendices, are A4 drawings showing the position on site of the
proposed developments and detailed layouts of the individual departments,
as follows:

o  Princess Elizabeth Hospital site plan

o  Phase 6B; acute psychiatric ward, day hospital, respite and assessment
ward, day centre, consulting rooms and associated facilities.

o  John Henry Court; staff accommodation.

o  Phase 5; clinical block, levels 1 to 3, including medical wards,
assessment and rehabilitation services, medical investigation unit,
renal dialysis unit, oncology centre and Institute of Health Studies

o St Martin’s Community Centre

o  Les Cotils; development to replace the Russels and provide a day
centre for people with dementia

o  Mignot Memorial Hospital

Larger scale versions of the plans have been lodged at the Greffe and will be
on display in the vestibule.

Adult Mental Health Services (Phase 6B)

It is still the Board’s intention to vacate the Castel Hospital site. The
continuing care wards, currently under construction at La Corbinerie (known
as phase 6A), will allow the transfer of the majority of confused older
patients early next year. Plans for the next phase of development at La
Corbinerie (known as Phase 6B) will ultimately allow the transfer of the
other mental health services from the Castel Hospital. Phase 6B will
comprise a 24-bed adult acute mental health ward, a 12-bed assessment and
respite ward for confused older people, a psychiatric day hospital, a social
and therapeutic day centre, plus clinic and office space.

The main benefits of the new wards and day facilities, compared to the
existing premises at the Castel Hospital, can be summarised as follows:

o  segregation of sleeping and day areas to allow for separation, as
necessary, of male and female patients and of people with different
types of mental health problem;

o all single bedrooms with en-suite facilities;

o improved ‘extra care’ facilities, including well located control and
observation bases;

o  provision of domestic skills and complementary therapies areas;

o  improved staff and patient security.

To comply with Island Development Committee advice, development has
been restricted to the north-west of La Corbinerie site. It will be a mixture
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of new buildings and re-use of the existing Mignot Centre and stable block.
This complex of buildings is of historical and architectural significance and
the Board would not wish to see them demolished. They can be re-used for
the supporting facilities, patient areas being in the new buildings.

The Board will need to undertake various enabling works to clear the site
before Phase 6B can proceed. Replacement facilities for the following will
be needed:

o  Mignot Centre and the headquarters for services for people with a
learning disability - as mentioned above, it is planned to transfer these
services to the Community Centre in St Martin’s.

o  Oberlands House — the Board is actively pursuing through the Board
of Administration, the purchase of suitable properties to re-house the
residents in separate groups.

o a flat used as accommodation for a client with a learning disability— a
replacement flat is being sought.

o  Civil Defence Building — the Board’s officers have had discussions
with the Civil Defence Officer over the provision of an extension to
the main Civil Defence building at the Oberlands to replace 2 small
buildings that need to be demolished.

o  Gateway Club premises — the Board’s officers are in discussion with
the Gateway Club regarding the future provision of the club’s
facilities.

The Phase 6B brief and layouts are being developed and will be finalised by
the end of September 2003. The provisional programme is indicated in

section 5 below.

Les Cotils Site — Day Service Developments

The proposed development on Les Cotils site was first mooted during
discussions between the Board of Health and Les Cotils Trust about the
future of the Russels building, which is in urgent need of replacement. The
idea developed of replacing the Russels with a building which would not
only accommodate the social day care facility for older people, currently
provided there by the Women’s Royal Voluntary Service, but also
incorporate a day centre for people with dementia. This accords with the
Board’s long-standing policy of promoting community, as opposed to
institutional care. The dementia day centre will replace facilities at the
Castel Hospital, in accordance with the Board’s plans to vacate that site.
There will also be a small number of rooms provided as a base for the
healthcare professionals involved with this client group. In addition, the
premises will be available for out of hours use by voluntary organisations,
such as the Alzheimer’s Society.
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Les Cotils Trust will construct the facility, which will then be leased by the
Board of Health, along similar lines to the lease being negotiated in respect
of the St Martin’s Community Centre development. In accordance with the
principle adopted for that project, the lease is likely to be on full repairing
and insuring terms, incorporating an initial lump sum payment of say
£1million in lieu of part of the rental. The Board anticipates that a policy
letter will be put before the States on this matter by the end of 2003.

Princess Elizabeth Hospital

The main thrust of the Board’s site development plan is to centralise acute
healthcare resources on the Princess Elizabeth Hospital site and relocate
those services which do not benefit from being there. In 2001, the Board
embarked on a comprehensive review of site-wide planning issues,
culminating in the production of a Princess Elizabeth Hospital Site Strategy,
which follows all the principles of the site development plan and
complements it by improving on the detailed use of the site.

The Board felt there was a need to carry out such a review, for the following
reasons:

o  the relationship of a planned major new addition to the hospital
complex (i.e. 2 medical wards and an assessment and rehabilitation
facility) to existing buildings and infrastructure;

o  the congestion of the site, due to its piecemeal growth and
development over the years;

o  the expense of refurbishing the original 1930’s building stock, which
does not lend itself to being adapted to good, modern health care
facilities;

o  the need to have new buildings, which are sufficiently flexible and
capable of adaptation to meet rapidly changing health service
standards and requirements.

In response to these concerns, the review set out to deal with a number of
strategic issues, namely:

o  minimising travel distances between wards and departments;

making the main internal routes through the hospital buildings as short
and straight forward as possible;

convenient access and parking;

adaptability for long term planning requirements;

flexibility to accommodate future change;

minimising disruption to services, which have to continue on site
during the alterations;

taking due account of site density and quality of environment.

O O O O @)

o
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3.11 Features of the plans, which have resulted from this review, include:

3.12

o

a clinical block based on a template which allows flexibility in the
location of departments and internal planning:
* giving a high site density while retaining a high quality of external
environment, thus making best use of available space;
» allowing phased construction and being capable of extension;
a location for clinical accommodation, which minimises travel
distances to the rest of the hospital;
primary circulation (main internal corridors) which is clear, direct and
meets current fire escape requirements for progressive evacuation;
improved car parking provision in locations which relate to the
hospital’s main entrances and therefore underpin site security;
a new location for staff residences, which allows demolition and
replacement of the existing Nurses’ Home to enable construction of the
new clinical block;
new residences for staff having a measure of separate identity, helping
to distance staff from their work whilst still remaining convenient by
being on the same site.

Clinical Block (known as Phase 5)

The Board’s original proposals were for a 2-storey clinical block. Following
a suggestion from the Advisory and Finance Committee’s Estates Sub
Committee, it was agreed to pursue a 3-storey development to maximise use
of the site. Facilities will include:

Ground Floor

@)
@)

@)
@)

An Assessment and Rehabilitation Ward, primarily for older people.
Occupational and Physiotherapy Departments, including an expanded
Hydrotherapy facility.

A Day Hospital for Older People.

A replacement Renal Dialysis Unit.

First Floor

o
o
o
o
o
S

o

Two medical wards as replacements for Arnold and Brock Wards.
An integral Coronary Care/Medical High Dependency Unit.

An expanded Medical Investigation Unit.

Relatives’ overnight accommodation.

A cancer centre to replace Bulstrode House.

econd Floor

A replacement facility for the Institute of Health Studies, with
integrated multi-disciplinary library.
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o Medical staff facilities.

The new building will be linked via internal corridors to the existing hospital
complex and will have its own entrance, which will include waiting areas,
shop and catering facility, public toilets, lift and stairs.

The ‘in principle’ proposed footprint of the departmental layouts has been
confirmed. At the time of writing, the brief for this scheme is due to be
completed at the end of August 2003 and issued to the external consultant
design team. The provisional programme is indicated in section 5 below.

Before work can start on Phase 5, the Board will need to undertake a
package of enabling works to re-house services currently accommodated in
the 1930’s buildings, which need to be demolished. Most of these moves
will be temporary, until the clinical block has been built.

The main services affected are:

Service Temporary Location Final Location
Arnold Ward N/A New Clinical Block
Brock Ward De Sausmarez Ward New Clinical Block
Renal Dialysis Unit Nurses’ Home New Clinical Block
Library Nurses’ Home New Clinical Block
Medical Investigation Nurses’ Home New Clinical Block
Unit
Dietetics Nurses” Home Future development
Staff changing rooms Nurses’ Home Future development
Domestic Services Nurses” Home Future development
Department
Radio Jubilee Nurses’ Home Future development

The majority of the initial planning for the enabling works has been
completed. At the time of writing, the brief is due to be completed at the end
of August 2003 and issued to the external consultant design team. The
provisional programme is indicated in section 5 below.

Princess Elizabeth Hospital Site Infrastructure

The Princess Elizabeth Hospital is a complex site and the infrastructure
issues will be dealt with under the following main headings:

Car Parking
Site wide services
Information Technology
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Car parking

Maintaining a safe means of access and egress for vehicle movements
around the site will be essential throughout the course of the development.
Access routes and allocated car parking zones throughout the site will
change as the development progresses, resulting in unfamiliar layouts and
circulation routes. Consequently, it is vital to develop, agree and implement
a coherent, workable car parking strategy at the outset, so that congestion
and health and safety risks are minimised or, where possible, eliminated.
Due account will also be taken of the need to provide adequate parking for
disabled drivers.

Discussions with the Island Development Committee are in progress to
agree an acceptable temporary parking strategy for the duration of the
development and a final car parking layout which will provide sufficient
spaces for the whole site.

Site Wide Services

A hospital site, such as the Princess Elizabeth Hospital, comprises a series of
interlinked and interdependent buildings, all of which need to be provided
with a variety of increasingly sophisticated engineering and mechanical
services, including medical gases, communications systems and 24 hour a
day guaranteed electricity supply. These buildings also need to be easily
accessible to patients, visitors and staff, so it is necessary to ensure the
adequacy of public access to the site as well as internal distribution and
service roads.

The complexity of the development will require major site wide service
work to be undertaken. Until detailed design work is complete, exact costs
will not be known but, based on the preliminary design work already
completed, it is estimated that a total of £2,284,700 will be required, of
which £1,152,700 is part of the initial planning costs, with £200,000 being
needed in 2004 and a further £932,000 in 2006.

Information Technology

In May 2003, the States approved the Board’s proposal to introduce a fully
filmless, computerised system to provide enhanced imaging and clinical
access for radiology (see Billet d’Etat X 2003).

The new system 1is part of the first stage of the Board’s information and
management technology strategy, which will significantly enhance its
information management services. The next stage of the strategy will be to
introduce an electronic patient record and replacement of the patient
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administration system and to consider electronic prescribing. These projects
will be subject to individual approval by the States or the Advisory and
Finance Committee, as appropriate.

To ensure that the appropriate information technology infrastructure is in
place to underpin such developments, all new and refurbished buildings
within the site development plan will be designed to support development in
information management for the foreseeable future. These infrastructure
costs are contained within the overall scheme costs for each project.

Staff Accommodation

The main factors that have influenced the Board in the development of its
proposals for staff accommodation are essentially threefold:

o  bed-sits with communal living space are acceptable to certain groups
of staff;

o  others want to be able to live independently, having their own cooking,
sitting, laundry and bathroom facilities;

o 1itis hard to predict how many of the Board’s staff will, in the future,
be single or couples and units should, therefore, be provided which
will accommodate both to give the greatest flexibility.

The Board is planning to provide a total of 81 high quality units in two
buildings on the Princess Elizabeth Hospital site as a replacement for the
existing Nurses’ Home, which is too institutionalised and does not meet
current standards. The provision of high quality, affordable residential
accommodation on the Princess Elizabeth Site will, it is hoped, encourage
staff to come to the Island and remain for a substantial period. It will also
cater for staff without personal transport.

One building will be 36 flats, each comprising a living room, a bedroom, a
bathroom and a kitchen. These will be suitable for either individuals or
couples. The other building will be 45 bed-sits, suitable for individuals,
comprising a combined bed and sitting room, a kitchenette and a shower
room. There will also be communal living rooms provided for each group
of 4 bedsits. The Board believes that this proposal achieves high density
residential development whilst retaining a good aspect and pleasant
surroundings for each building.

Refurbishment of the Nurses’ Home was discarded as an option due to the
small size of the rooms, the difficulties of refurbishing a building of this
type and the unacceptable number of units which would have been lost.
Retention of the Nurses’ Home would also have adversely affected the siting
of the new clinical block, creating longer distances to other wards and
departments.
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It is the Board’s intention to look at ways in which the overall costs of this
project can be reduced by innovative use of off-site construction techniques.
At the time of writing, the brief for this development is due to be completed
at the end of August 2003 and issued to the external consultant design team
whose first task will be to undertake a value engineering exercise. The
provisional programme is indicated in section 5 below.

Two existing buildings (John Henry House and a staff bungalow) will need
to be demolished to make way for the new staff residences. John Henry
House is the Board’s corporate headquarters and enabling works are
underway to temporarily re-house these staff, together with the Personnel
Department from within the Princess Elizabeth Hospital, at the Duchess of
Kent House in areas no longer required or suitable for the care of older
people. It is intended that the new staff residences to be built on the site of
John Henry House will be named John Henry Court, in order to continue
recognition of the work of the late John Henry, who was a much respected
former President of the Board of Health.

The replacement of the Nurses’ Home is only the first stage of the Board’s
plans to upgrade all of its staff accommodation to the same standard as that
identified above. The Board recognises, however, that the provision and
management of accommodation for its staff is not part of its core business
and would welcome working with either a housing association or key
worker housing developer to undertake the upgrading and ongoing
management at no capital cost to the States. The same would apply to any
new accommodation purchased by the Board. This option is being pursued
as a joint project with the States Housing Authority.

Alderney

Older people are currently accommodated in the Aurigny Wing of the
Mignot Memorial Hospital. This was originally intended as a temporary
structure but has now been in use for over 25 years. It is cramped,
unsuitable in layout, expensive to run because of high energy costs and
needs to be demolished. Refurbishment is not an acceptable option. In
addition, the Board is keen to ensure that facilities for older people in
Alderney do not fall short of what is being provided in the new continuing
care wards in Guernsey.

There is also an issue regarding the scope of acute in-patient and general
out-patient facilities that it is reasonable to expect for the size of the
population in Alderney. The very least that has to be provided is some form
of “first aid’ facility. However, such a limited facility would result in high
transport costs for transfer of patients to Guernsey and gross inconvenience
for Alderney residents, many of whom are older people. It must also be
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borne in mind that this would result in little or no reduction in staff, as they
cover both continuing care and acute services. A delivery room and
associated facilities for Alderney births would also be needed.

Bearing in mind all of the above, it is essential to proceed with the scheme
as proposed in 1999. This is a development based on current acceptable
standards, which will meet the basic requirements for healthcare provision in
Alderney. The development consists of two main elements;- the
replacement of the Aurigny Wing and the refurbishment of the acute
hospital areas.

The Board recognises the need to keep construction costs to a minimum. A
feasibility study on procurement options was commissioned and, as a result,
the Board is confident that costs can be contained by the use of some off-
site construction elements and direct importation of materials into Alderney
from the UK.

The brief for this project has been completed and detailed design
commenced in August 2003. The provisional programme is indicated in
section 5 below, which shows an anticipated start on site in April 2004. In
order to achieve this, the Board needs the following capital funding, which
would need to be transferred from the capital reserve:

Construction costs £3,000,000
Furniture and Equipment £350,000
Information technology £100,000

Total £3,450,000

Project Management, Design and Procurement

Project Management

In view of the size, scope and complexity of the site development plan and
in line with the recommendation of the Estates Sub Committee, the Board
has appointed a project manager to take a lead role in the implementation of
its plans. Gleeds Management Services were appointed in May 2003 to
undertake this role.

The project manager will act as the Board’s representative with
responsibility for the overall co-ordination of the relationship between the
Board as client, the design team, the contractors and others engaged in the
project development process, such that clear instructions from a single
source can be provided.

Design Team
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Guernsey Technical Services, acting through its Health Design and
Development Group, will continue to develop the concept design strategy
for both the Princess Elizabeth Hospital and the Mignot Memorial Hospital
developments. This will entail developing the initial brief to provide an
indicative briefing document for the design teams who will confirm this
initial brief and fully develop the detailed design and tender documentation.

In respect of any Design & Build projects, the Health Design and
Development Group will perform a ‘Shadow Team’ role to monitor and
review the contractor’s design and development proposals.

Following a tendering exercise, the Board, in conjunction with the Estates
Sub Committee, has appointed Architects, Quantity Surveyors, Structural
and Civil Engineers and Electrical and Mechanical Consultants to undertake
the detailed design and tender documentation referred to above. However,
the off site construction option for the Mignot Memorial Hospital project
will also require the services of a specialist procurement facilitator to
manage the interface between the design team, the contractor, the specialist
unit supplier and shipping and transport operatives.

Procurement Strategy

The project manager has produced a procurement strategy that sets out the
main alternative options available to the Board in procuring the following
projects:

Staff Residences

The project will involve a large degree of repetition in construction detailing
and the current programme is based on the use of off site construction
techniques.

A two stage procurement strategy is recommended, with early input from
the contractor in respect of buildability and assessment on the use of off site
construction techniques. By utilising the develop and construct variation of
the design & build procurement option, improvements to the overall
programme can be achieved with minimum risks to quality.

Phase 5, Clinical Block & Phase 6B, Acute Mental Health

A two stage procurement strategy is recommended, as the contractor’s input
into key design decisions will be required, especially in respect of materials
availability and buildability
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The Board will maintain strong ownership of the design/quality issues and
retain the ability to instruct that changes be made, if necessary, throughout
the construction period. For these more specialist projects, the traditional
procurement option is recommended, subject to agreement with the design
team.

Mignot Memorial Hospital, Alderney

Fundamental issues associated with the location will create an uncompetitive
market for the traditional procurement route. Shortages of materials, labour
and plant on the island could inflate the cost, extend the construction
programme and compromise quality standards. Off site construction
techniques should be able to resolve these issues but will require specialist
technical design and management services and a front ended payment
structure.

The preferred contract procurement route is a traditional contract, with a
main contractor undertaking the substructure works and refurbishment
elements, whilst the off site construction element is undertaken by a named
or nominated supplier. This would be subject to interest being shown by
major contractors, otherwise a construction management option may be
required, with individual packages of works being let separately.

Temporary accommodation in the Nurses’ Home for displaced departments

Procurement of the works to provide temporary accommodation for the
Medical Investigation Unit, Staff Changing, Dietetics, Domestic Services,
Renal Dialysis, Radio Jubilee and the Library will be through the Phase 5
Clinical Block contract, as an enabling works package to be undertaken
ahead of the new build element.

Provisional Programme

The following table shows the provisional programme dates for each of the
main remaining elements of the site development plan.

Project Earliest start date Earliest completion date
Staff accommodation August 2004 August 2005

Mignot Memorial April 2004 June 2005

Hospital

Phase 6B, acute mental March 2005 October 2006
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Phase 5, clinical block  December 2005

(including enabling works)

Estimated Capital Costs

July 2008

It must be emphasised that full costings for the individual projects can only
be finalised when all the design work has been undertaken and there is a
contract to let. However, the Board wishes to ensure that the likely capital
requirements of the site development plan are known to the States, although,
at this stage, capital allocations are only being sought for the Stage 1 -
Planning Costs and Stage 2 - Mignot Memorial Hospital.

estimates of the likely costs are listed below.

Stage 1 - Planning costs

Design Fees

Surveys and Ancillary costs

Site wide engineering costs

Design and development contingency

Stage 2 - Construction

Mignot Memorial Hospital works

Stage 3 - Construction

Design Fees

Surveys and Ancillary costs

Site wide engineering costs

Design and development contingency

Staff Accommodation

Adult Mental Health (Phase 6B)
(including all enabling works)

Stage 4 — Construction

Design Fees

Surveys and Ancillary costs

Site wide engineering costs

Design and development contingency

£s

2,670,000
890,000
1,152,700
530,000

1,450,000
820,000
200,000
592,500

6,600,000
14,364,500

732,300
560,000
932,000
592,500

The current

£s

5,242,700

3,450,000

24,027,000
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Clinical Block (Phase 5) 21,817,500 24,634,300
(including all enabling works)
Total 57,354,000

Stage I - Planning Costs

These costs relate to the development of the outline and detailed scheme
designs, site investigations/measured surveys and works necessary to
progress and maintain the site development plan in accordance with the
current programme. They are essential to the effective management and co-
ordination of the development project and are required in advance of
funding for the actual construction works and equipment costs associated
with each separate project.

Stage 2 — Construction
Mignot Memorial Hospital

The above construction budget costs relate to the elements of the plan as
detailed in paragraph 3.30 above. The current estimates are based on the
concept and design layout drawings, which have been approved by the
Board.

Stage 3 — Construction
Staff Accommodation and Acute Mental Health

The budget costs include the additional surveys/ancillary costs and
associated site infrastructure works required to facilitate the development.
They also include the cost of relocating the residential facilities for people
with a learning disability, which are currently at La Corbinerie. The
estimated construction costs are based on the concept and scheme design
layout drawings, which have been accepted and approved by the relevant
departmental project teams.

Stage 4 — Construction
Clinical Block

The above budget costs include all remaining surveys/ancillary costs and
associated site infrastructure/services works, together with the intricate
decant and demolition strategy at the heart of the Princess Elizabeth
Hospital to provide a clear site for the reprovision of the clinical services.
The estimated construction costs are again based on the concept and scheme
design layout drawings, which have been accepted and approved by the
relevant departmental project teams.

In addition to the capital requirements of the site development plan, the
Board wishes the States to know that there will be other schemes needing to



7.1

7.2

9.1

1997

be funded from the Capital Reserve ie PEH fourth theatre/critical care
facility, Les Cotils day centre developments, staff accommodation
properties and residential units for clients with learning disabilities.

Economic model

The Board is aware of the work being undertaken by the Board of Industry
on modelling the impact of States’ capital expenditure on the local
construction industry. The Board will work in consultation with the
Advisory and Finance Committee and the Board of Industry to minimise the
impact of its site development plan on this sector of the economy over the
next 2 to 3 years.

Nevertheless, the Board is conscious of the risks associated with not
pursuing the site development plan as expeditiously as possible. These
include the effects of continuing to provide sub-standard medical and mental
health facilities, which militate against the best efforts of the staff to provide
a high standard of care and treatment. There is also the risk of not being
able to recruit and retain staff if the Board cannot offer a good standard of
residential accommodation and a good working environment. In addition,
there is the economic issue; it is costly in revenue and staffing to provide
mental health services on two sites but the Castel Hospital cannot be
completely closed until Phases 5 and 6b are built and in use. Any delay in
the site development plan would, of course, also delay the release of the
valuable capital asset of the Castel Hospital site.

Revenue and Establishment

As would be anticipated with major schemes of this type, there will be some
associated revenue and staffing establishment implications. The Board will
endeavour to keep these to an absolute minimum. As detailed planning on
the projects progresses, these implications will be identified and included
within the Board’s future policy and resource planning submissions, as well
as being included in future policy letters on individual projects.

Longer term development proposals

The main thrust of this report is in respect of the next phase of the site
development plan. There are, however, longer term planning issues which
the Board wishes to take the opportunity to raise. Ideally, these projects will
follow on after Phases 5 and 6B have been completed. The Board is,
however, aware that prevailing economic circumstances, other financial
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demands on States funding and the ability of the construction industry to
undertake the works may affect the timing of these projects.

The Board intends to provide a further report to the States in 2006, giving an
update on progress with the site development plan. The other major projects
that the Board intends to undertake, following completion of these elements
of the site development plan, are:

o redevelopment of the King Edward VII Hospital site;

o  upgrading and refurbishment of surgical wards at the Princess
Elizabeth Hospital site;

o  replacement of the remaining 1930’s building stock at the Princess
Elizabeth Hospital,

o  relocation of the services provided at both Lukis House and Bell
House to the Princess Elizabeth Hospital site.

More detailed proposals for these projects will be included in the report to
be submitted to the States in 2006.

Recommendations

The Board of Health, therefore, recommends the States:

1. to note the progress made by the Board in implementing its site
development plan since its last report on this matter in 1999;

2. to note the intention of the Board to provide a further report to the
States in 2006, updating on progress with the site development plan;

3. 1. toapprove the Board of Health’s proposals for progressing the next
stage of its site development plan as set out in section 3 above;

1. to vote the Board of Health a credit of £5,242,700 to cover the
planning costs of the above (including consultants’ fees), such sum
to be charged to the capital allocation of the Board of Health;

iii. to authorise the Advisory and Finance Committee to approve the
acceptance of all appointments and tenders in connection with the
planning costs;

iv. to authorise the Advisory and Finance Committee to transfer an
appropriate sum from the Capital Reserve to the capital allocation
of the Board of Health in respect of the planning costs;



ii.

1il.

ii.

1999

to authorise the Advisory and Finance Committee to transfer
appropriate sums from the Capital Reserve in respect of the
property purchases referred to in paragraphs 3.6 and 3.25 of this
report.

to approve the extension and redevelopment of the Mignot
Memorial Hospital, as set out in paragraphs 3.26 to 3.30 of this
report at a total cost not exceeding £3,450,000;

to authorise the Advisory and Finance Committee to approve the
acceptance of all tenders in connection with this project and to
approve a capital vote, not exceeding £3,450,000, such sum to be
charged to the capital allocation of the Board of Health;

to authorise the Advisory and Finance Committee to transfer an
appropriate sum from the Capital Reserve to the capital
allocation of the Board of Health in respect of this project;

to note that the Board of Health, in conjunction with the Advisory
and Finance Committee and for planning purposes only, will work
on the basis of £24,027,000 being made available in 2004, for the
next stage of the site development plan, comprising the schemes
for staff accommodation and acute mental health services;

to note that the Board of Health, in conjunction with the Advisory
and Finance Committee and for planning purposes only, will work
on the basis of £24,634,300 being made available in 2006, for the
following stage of the site development plan, comprising the
schemes relating to a new clinical block;

6. to note the Board of Health’s intention, on completion of these
elements of the site development plan, to replace the remaining 1930’s
buildings and refurbish surgical facilities on the Princess Elizabeth
Hospital site and to redevelop the King Edward VII Hospital.

Yours faithfully

P.J. ROFFEY

President

Board of Health
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The States are asked to decide:-

XIX.- Whether, after consideration of the Report dated the 21* August, 2003, of
the States Board of Health, they are of opinion:-

1.

To note the progress made by the States Board of Health in
implementing its site development plan since its last report on that
matter in 1999.

To note the intention of the States Board of Health to provide a further
report to the States in 2006, updating on progress with the site
development plan.

(1) To approve the States Board of Health’s proposals for progressing

2)

€)

“4)

()

(1)

the next stage of its site development plan as set out in section 3
of that Report;

to vote the States Board of Health a credit of £5,242,700 to cover
the planning costs of the above (including consultants’ fees), such
sum to be charged to the capital allocation of that Board;

to authorise the States Advisory and Finance Committee to
approve the acceptance of all appointments and tenders in
connection with the planning costs;

to authorise the States Advisory and Finance Committee to
transfer an appropriate sum from the Capital Reserve to the
capital allocation of the States Board of Health in respect of the
planning costs;

to authorise the States Advisory and Finance Committee to
transfer appropriate sums from the Capital Reserve in respect of
the property purchases referred to in paragraphs 3.6 and 3.25 of
that Report.

to approve the extension and redevelopment of the Mignot
Memorial Hospital, as set out in paragraphs 3.26 to 3.30 of that
Report at a total cost not exceeding £3,450,000;
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(2) to authorise the States Advisory and Finance Committee to
approve the acceptance of all tenders in connection with that
project and to approve a capital vote, not exceeding £3,450,000,
such sum to be charged to the capital allocation of the States
Board of Health,;

(3) to authorise the States Advisory and Finance Committee to
transfer an appropriate sum from the Capital Reserve to the
capital allocation of the States Board of Health in respect of that
project.

5. (1) To note that the States Board of Health, in conjunction with the
States Advisory and Finance Committee and for planning purposes
only, will work on the basis of £24,027,000 being made available
in 2004, for the next stage of the site development plan, comprising
the schemes for staff accommodation and acute mental health
services;

(2) to note that the States Board of Health, in conjunction with the
States Advisory and Finance Committee and for planning purposes
only, will work on the basis of £24,634,300 being made available
in 2006, for the following stage of the site development plan,
comprising the schemes relating to a new clinical block.

6. To note the States Board of Health’s intention, on completion of these
elements of the site development plan, to replace the remaining 1930’s
buildings and refurbish surgical facilities on the Princess Elizabeth
Hospital site and to redevelop the King Edward VII Hospital.
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The President,
Srates of Croernsey,
Eoyal Cowt Flouse,
5t Peter Four.

Gyl 2B

T Aogast 2003

Dear Sir,
Executive Summary

1.1

1.3

t.d

—_
(] ]

Follewing aceeplance by the States of Treliberaion on 5™ April 2000 (Tt d'Erad
20007, the theee-vear Bailiwick Prug Stratepy has achieved muast of the key
objectives proposed. (See Progress Hepm L Appendix 13

The Dirug Stratcgy consisrs of three ters, comprisimg the Presidents’ Drog Policy
Group -providing policy direction and public accountabilugy; the Chief (Mficers’
Dag Strategy Group, providing sioategic direction. mmplementatton and oxecutive
responsibilny, and the Drug Strategy Action Group, o deliver the stratcgy and
provide operational direcnion. These are cu-uonlinaed by the Diug Srategy Co-
ordinator. For membership see Appendix 2, The approach of workiog tosether
with shared ownership of the Drop Seeategy has proved 1o be very sucesssful. The
Hules of Procedure of the Stares stipulate that all reporis for inclusion in a Billet
[rEcat need to be subnutced by a States Comoutees ar by Hequete, This reporl i
thercfore submitted by the Prosidenc of the Board of Health who is the cucent
i_hairman of the Presidents’ Dhuog FPolicy Groupe.

Consultation Bor this policoy letter has taken place with all the aboye proups; the
Secial Policy Woarking Creoupe and alber relevanl stakeholders. Consultation and
hiaison has also taken place with the Law Oflicers of the Crown with particular
reference to proposals relating to supply ceduction

The 2004 strategy was largely an nuhal reseanch and assessment siratepy. This next
proposed phase will address the resulrs of that research and rake forward proposals
to provide oooessary services to respond to che marked changes m pateerns of drog
wie 10 the Datdiwick since the stmategy was [anoched. Progress has already been
demaconsteated i the minal Prug Sirategy, bot loog ferm planning with measurable
and meanibghil peopeess 5 oow equieed. 1t s proposed that the fotere Drog
Strategy be For three years - from 2003 o 2006.

There has been a tarked change i the patierng of drug use in the Bailiwick since
2000, Reponts from the Drug Misusc Dratabase (see Appendin 3) and seizures by
Customs (see Appendix 4) show an increase in the availabaicy and use of heroin
lncally. Tz chaope demands a swill response by all agencies imvolved.

In responding to this change, it s vital o maintain the cobhesive appenach of
reducing supply, reducing demand and treating those who become dependent. [ris
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cqually importanc to retain the principles of hamm reduction' in developiog
responses to drug misuse that are evidence based, The Presidens’ Treag Palicy
Sroup beliewes that 0 15 also important that a clear and consisient message alxot
drugs 15 given 10 the puhlic— especially the viloerable youog.

In veducing the demand for deugs, Formal education mibaboves Temaim a
corncrsconse of the Dog stratcgy. I also vital to target those most valoerabie o
drug usc - somc of these young people are diseoftfanchised from school -
freguently by emoving  themselves  rather than abmough exclusion. The
development of out uf school infoomal slucation is o proven® way of reaching this
groop of people Carers and the wider commiunity also play a role in ceducing the
demand, and awareness raising events and oitatives shouwld oontiowe oo inform
ardd updare Abowt the develnpiog drop siegatuon loeally.

Lanking with supply redoction, the conbinuing success of Customs 1o targeting top-
cnd supplicrs and taffickers has resulted in increasing aumbers of commercial
se1zurcs of drugs being made, panicularly of Class A dropgs, {Sec Appendix 4
“Sedzures”). There has consegquently been an increase inthe nomber of convictions
throwgh the Boval Coupe (see Appendix 5§ “"Royal Couwrd Convictions™), The
recraibment of couriers o the UK 5 an issue fra concern, and initiatives are in
place w deter couriers from bemp receuiad. (See 3.2 & 3.3)

ln recoguutinn of the statstical infermabtuon from the Drog Misuse [rarabase that
the wast majority of people whe present to agencies teporting to the database begin
threir drug usc undcer the age of 15 years — some as young as 10 — 12 voars - ic (s
proposcd to increasc atention and nesources on young poople and familics. It s
imporkant o recognise that this does not imply that drug wse 15 typical amongst
IsTanders under 13 years, sitnply (Bac most drog asens atending seovices commence
their drug use at this age

The inctease in the use of heroin also requives oopooved trearment facilities for
those who become dependent, o enable them o become drug-Free and to
teintegrace inkn soclety by improving faoulial celationships and employment
and for cducation opportunibies.

Thewre are strong [nks emerging between ihis proposed fuore g stoategy and
other wonk sieands cwirenty takiog plage. The report By the Townsend Ceotre for
Intermarional Powerty Research nn Goemnsey Lawving Sandards, the preoposed
Alcohol Sorategy and the Children Board's review of child care legislation give
cleat examples of the need to improve, develop and link in with these new
strategies.

Inter-agency, multidisciphinary medels offer a versatiity and cohesivoness that
cannat bo matched by insular, single committce working. Many of the iminatives
this palicy Jetter drivw oo ibe experiise from 4 ranpe of professional disciplines
working together to eespond to increasing drog use. Thug use cannot ke viewed in
1solation, and 1t 15 vital ko address all aspects that conteibute to that drug use. Nor

' Harm reducion aims oo reduce the harm from deags on individual and sociecal levels
UK Drrags Preveotion Imtiatve has evaluated o range of oug of school acivioes
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can a "one size fts all” approach be adopted, as cach imdividoal has separate needs
and carcumstances. which should be addressed 10 a holste mannear.

The pioposed updared and improved Dhrog Soategy will place emphasis on
argering specific groups with specific needs and developing multl-agency ICspaonscs

The ongong work of all agencics — both statutory and NOR-StAMITOTY — 15 TeCORTLsed
and applauded by the Chief Ofhcers' Drug Strategy Oroup and Presidents' Dinug
Policy Group. The members of the Drug Strategy Action Groep (see Appendix 1)
havre proved to be enthusiastic and commited o Frrmulating and advismg on ways
of approaching the developing drus sitoakion.,

In order oo peogress the Bailiwick Drap Strategy for the next three years, it is
proposed that there will be five major pillars that support and underpin the
Bailiwick's response ta the changing and deoveloping drug situation.

» Thmand Redoction — reduce che demand For and the acceptabilier of drogs,
whilst increasing knowledpe and offering alternatives to drog use

«  Supply Feduction - emplov strategies that deter the impomaton of droags aml
malntain  cigorows  enforcement procedares o target and  apprehend  thoss
ienpoelens, suppliees and rrafckens responsible

« Young Feople and Families - wiork 0 prevent experimentation with drogs
and to prevent expenmental use from developing into problem diug use whalst
supporting vulnetable famdies. This will be a new pllar to the existing Dug
Strategy tn order to deal specificallv with this identificd problem arca

s  Treatment - ensure that people wich drug dependency problems have acoess
to 4 range of treatment repimes that are appropriate to their oceds, o line with best
priciice and designed w enable remtegration back mnfo socieky

o Daca Collection, Monitorning and Trainimg - collecr and disseminate statisiicail
wkrmaticen abour paterns, trends and peevalence of drop wse locally; ensure that
all drmg relared services are delivered using a quality asstrance approach and are
relevanc to che npeads of che client growp: and provide a rolling peopeamme of
training o cnsure that local staff are traited to the lughest standard and kept up o
date with cunrrent practice and issucs.
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The Bailiwick Drug Strategy

The Five Pillars
Demand Supply Young Treatment Data
Reduction Reduction People and Callection,
Families Monitoring

and Training
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A full list of the key objectives is shown in Appendix 6

Demand Reduction

ity of drugs, whilst increasing knowledge

and offering alternatives to drug use
Demand reduction must remain a vital component of the Bailiwick Drug Strategy.

Any effort to reduce the demand for and the acceptability of drugs must cover the
whole population, but with vulnerable groups® being specifically targeted.

Statistics from the Drug Misuse Database (Appendix 3) show that most people
who present to agencies reporting to the database begin using drugs between the
ages of 13 and 15 years, with a small but significant number starting use berween
the ages of 10 and 12 years. Theretore, drugs education needs to aim at these age

groups.

Drugs Education
Chur of School and targeted
Drugs education should not be limited to sessions in schools — often those most
vulnerable to drug use are not attending school, and these people need to have
their drug education needs met in other ways. Work currently being carried out
by agencies such as the Youth Service and Dee Caf targets this group of young
people and aims to work with them in informal settings. The Presidents' Drug
Policy Group supports this work, and it 15 proposed that thas work will continue
in the next phase.

In 2003, the Drug Strategy has funded a part time Detached Youth Worker
through the Youth Service specifically to assist in deterring young people from

* Vulnerable groups defined as: the homeless, those in care or leaving care, non or poor attenders at school, people
excluded from school, abused children, those in contact with the criminal justice or mental health servces, olfspring of
parents with drug and/ or aleohol problems, young people with conduwct amention deficit or depressive disorders

(source

- LK Hoames Office Dirug Prevenbon Imbabve)
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cxpenimenting with drugs or to help prevent experimental drug use from
developing into mon: regulac wse T is proposed i 2004 0 extend the funding to
provide for a full time post o enable the service o be developed to include other
activitees and informal wargeted education sessions with small groups of young
peaple. This is an oursourced post. Referrals will be made o other melevant
agencies where needed, and liaison with other key workers will contioue and
develop.

This initiative fully acconds with the recommendations fiom the Townsend
Centre for Internationad Foverly Research

£ schoal

The Drps Education Parnership began i 2002 and covers up we dace drugs
cducation scssions prepared and delivered in a joint approach by Customs and
Dirug, Concern. This 15 cwmently avadable for year groups 8-12°, All secondary
schools in the Island are wsing this service as part of thetr PSHE programmes.

The Education Councal approves 1be parmershup apreernent {delreered through a
secvice level apreement), and the lesson content and partnership will be reviewsd
annwally by the Educarion Council o ensure that the information and the sennce
iz relevant, professional and up to dace.

Dwuc to demand. and o view of the youUngeT age Eroups using ands or COmung meoe
contact with dropgs, it 1s proposed o extend this service to Oover year groups & & 7
m 2004, with a view (o extendimg this to earlier vear groups o the situation
demands. [t s also proposed o increass the lundnge provision e cthis work Lo
cover the additicnal work carmed out By the Throgs Tducation Partoershap

The Education Council and the Presidents’ Dvug Policy Group strongly endose
this approach, mcoluding the intoduction of appropriate sessions with younger
pupils.

Foonr Teaethery

Tt us ienportand that wachers remaun informed abool developing drogs ssues, T s
theréfore propoesed to make (unding available for sopply cover and educatinnal
resoUtres o enahle leachers o atlend trnhang coacses on drips awarenass. Under
the proposed soategy, tius traung would e extended to School Norses, who
play a valuable rile in their work with children and young penple, both i schoel
and the wider community

[nforming the Public

Following on Gom @ successtul Treugs Awareness Week in 2002, o s pruposed 1o
have this a5 ag aunual event from 2004, The Drogs Awareness Week will focus
o apecific ssues of relevance 1o the Bailiwick, and will continge oo e funded by
the Drug Strategy. [he cutcoimes from the week will be evajuated and the
informaton used for continual developrncnt,

The Dnrg Stratesy Action Group with the support of the Chief Offcers' Doy
StrateRy roup will provide the direction, and sach agenoy will be encovraged o

e Grraps 8-18 e covets ages 13-18
"PEHE - Pesmnnal and Sneial Health Fdecati:n
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pariicipate in the gvent. The Presidents' Doug Polcy Group notes that the Health
Promotion Tnic plavs a2 key role in the Action Group and 15 a uscful source of
eesniurce mdalerial For reachers, health workers, other ey profiessionals aod ehe
general public.

Farcpts and Caners
Tt is important that parents and carees ace kept infoemed and up to date with drugs

informatinn and the developong diags sicuation. It s proposed thar sessions be
arganised for parents and carers using nerworks alrcady in cxistenee throwgh the
Children Board, Education Council and other organisations and agencics

Literatiire

Most draps liccrature 15 based on UE stafstics. informanon and paterns of drag
use. It 15 proposcd to produce up o date leaflors that are more relevand (0 the
Bailiwick situation. These leaflets will be widely available from vanows [ocal
agencies including the Heabth Promoton Unin, Probation Service, Dee Caf, Liug
Concern, Youth Service, NCH Youth Housing I'voject and GF Surgeries.

HWehsie

The Drug Stratemy website at wanw drogstrategyonline. com i regalarky accessed
bv 2 widc range of individuals and provides updatey, statistics and information
relevant to the Balliwick. It is proposcd to connnue with the woebsie.

Pruisom

Targeime Vulneralle fndividuals and Croups

For peaple serving custodial sentences, release from custedy can be fraught with
difficulty, and ic 15 often oo easy to slip back into old patterns and ways of life.
Drug Concem has been deoveloping its work in the prison to include group worck
sessiony and drugs cducanen sessiens. The broad aim of such scssions 15 1o cnsUIC
that individuals have enough personal reseorces to cope inothe dme folowing
release, and (o endeavour not to continue wsiog drogs [noressing motivation e
chanpes 15 an wmponant pact of this work. The Presiulents' Trrug Policy Groap fully
suppars tng wark.

[t iz proposed to fully fund this woek via the Drug Steategy in accocdance with a
Service Level Agreement with Urrug Concern.

The wurk of the MCH Youwh Howsing Projeor with woung prisoners in assisting
them find accommodation on melease fom prsen 1 acknowledped  and
recognised as valuable in belping to mamtain a Jrug and crme free life,

Tarpeled, Proaciive Inntiatives (5ee Appernlin 6 “Kew poants ko work with yolmg
people™)

Local agencies that come in contact wich drug users or potencial drug users wiall be
encowraged to devise nitiatives to reduce the demand for drogs. Lt is proposed to
make financial support availzblc through the Drog Statcey for such mibtiaaves. It
15 recogEniscd hat thoss working 1o the community need o be able o respomnd
quickly o changim trends.

Working with Business
Employers should be encouraged and assisted in developimg policies on drugs in
the workplace to ensure that appropriate responses can be made o drug-using
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emnployees, and that the number of working houors lest throwgh drug use and
impaircd performancs are minimissd

The predicied expenditure for demand reduction innatives for 2004 —2006 is:
2004 | 2005 2008
gugooo | £ 100004 £100000

NEB For full costing breakdown see Appendix 14 " Resource Eequircments”

supply Reducticn
Employing siraregies thar deter the mmportation of drugs and maintain rigorous
enforcement procedures to target and apprehend those importers, suppliers and

Tt 15 proposed to make modest amoonts of funding available o Iocal law
cnforcement agencies for one-off projects that deter drug wathcking 1o support
ongomng whagves, This could molode local adverisements e the deups feee
phone and other Public Relatons inttiatives.

The gieatepy Munded parmerslup agreement between Customs and a local Foblic
Relations company ensures that media releases are sent to local UK media m the
area wluch convicted drug couriers hal from. The aim 15 to target specific bocalities
where porental drug couriers ane recroited. Informing such people of the nsks and
penzliics of importing drugys o the Bailliwick should help (o deter some people
from taking the sk, Ie 15 propoesed o contmue with this muhatee doring the nesx
phase of the strateay

The Strategy funded poster campagn enswres thar posters giving a warnhing 6o
potermial drug couriers oF the soonp stance taken in the Bailiwick are displaved at
UK and French points of departure. 1t 15 proposcd to continue with this mionative
during the next phase of the sirategy.

The Customs and Excse Depadment continues o act as the Badiwick's Arst hoe of
defency 1o reducing the supply of controlled dres iote the Bsland. Swisics m
lation to seizures made by Customs for he penod 1999 10 2002 are M Appendix
4.

Cusinms work very closely with other law enforcement agenaes including, of
course, the Ciuermsey Police with whom thete 15 an exocllent working relationship
backed up 1o rooent yoars by a hcmorandum of Understanding.

Fecent seizores recorded by Customs mdicate g defimate iwend Wowards herom
dealing and mathokmg Becoming a major ssee 0 Guemsey. Cusioms and Police
are very concemied al thas development and have aken SRS 0 ensure that heroimn
dealing and rraflwchmg 8 piven wop priotity.

Customs and Exciec continue to adopt a policoy of targeting “top end’ crimmals
mvolved in dup mafhcking and hawe achieved considerable success with a good
nomber of syndicates. kb losally and do the TIK, beinp dismantled or
substantally diropeed. Custors meend 1o cootinue with intelligence-led shategies
inn the effors to combat the smuggling threat mcluding chrough means of covert
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and intrwsive surveillance. When careyimg out such duties Customs adhere ngdly
o stricl codes of practice which will soon be mcorporated oo the Eogulanon of
[nvestipaiory Powers Law. Thoough this law, actions by Customs Officers will be
monitmed internally by a Compliance and Professional Standards team and also be
1eviewed by an indepondent commissioncr, appointed under the law,

The Presidents' Group contimees to support the effors of Costoms and Police and
recommends that appropriate and adequare levels of resources conbnhue o be

mailained

The Bailiwick's cowts have maintamed 2 fArm sentencing policy in respect of
serios deup trafficking offences. Sratisoics mdicating the number of drug offenders
whir have appeared before the Foyal Coort in 1999 — 2002 arc attached at
Appendix 5.

The Yresidens' Drug Policy Group supports the efforts of the couns o strive 1o

reduce che supply of drugs on to the streets of Goemnsey, The Presidents” Tirup
Policy Group baliewes that & firm sentencing policy combined with robust law
enforcement creates an énvirenmeant where there is a steong likelibood that those
involved will get canght and that this acts as a real deterrent. The Presidenis” Drog
Palicy {iroup acknowledges that it 13 imporant to the local community to
confiscate assets at the earliest opportunity, to stop both fledeling coiminals or the
principals behind such rafficking, from remnvestng their diegal profits. The
Fresidents” Prrug Policy Group supports cxisting and proposcd arrangomeonts to
cnable the confiscation of the proceeds of drog trafficking and 15 aware that the
Law Officers ane actively reviewing Procecds of Crime legislation i orler that vhe
provess can become more effecuve and watl ioclade il Bartenure,

In April 2001, 2 new joint Police and Customs organisation, the Funancial
Inelligence Service [FIS) was tormed. Tlos followed the review of the actvitees of
the Jowne Polwee and Cuscoms Financial Tevestipation Uit and took on board the
findings of the Edwards REepont” and the Financial Action Task Foroe Review of
2000, The FIS is responsible for the pathering, collannge, cvalvation and
disscmination of fAnancial come iotellipence including that elating w0 money
laundenng derived from the proceeds of the drops eade.

The Police and Custorms also operae a joiol inelligence woit wheee information
concerning deug syndicates operating m the lsland is gathered, evaluated and

d1sreminated.

Customs have a close working relationship wieh their counterpans o the UK,
Jersey and Franoe and also with their BEuropean colleagues and  worldwide,
including the United States. These close links are considered essential 1F the plobal
drug sategies ane o be succesifilly eoacted and Guoernsty's Teputation as a
fAnancial centre 15 to be properly profegted.

Guernsey Thugs Seized Assers Fund
Currcotly the local sctzed asscts fund recciyes monics only from those jurisdictions
with whom Guemnsey has an dgreement to receive 3 share of seized assees, T s

* Comamissnncd vy tne UK Home Sccectacy in D998 tnoeview in eanjoncoicn with Jarsey, Guernsey and
the Isle of Man the cogulation ot intemaiicnisl inanee senires, the combeling of linangel coeoe aned co-
apuratien with eiher jurisdiciong. Cutcoes presentes] i DX Pacliame i Hovember 2988
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recominended that money confiscated which has denived from the procesds of drug
crime, whether or not those funds have been confiscated as part of a Tocal case or
by an owerscas jurisdicnon. ar: placed in the existing drugs sened agsels fund. iLis
Further recommended thar the Chief Ofhcers' Drug Srrategy Creoup may, from time
tu time, apply for limited funding from the fund foc specific “one off” projects
which will support the hive pillars of the stracegy.

Cruernsey Police
Arrast Heferral
Oftenders when captured, detaincd and about to Face charge and prosecubion ane
oftcn at a particularly [oww poine in cheir bfe Fegardless of the oatare of the
offending, e 15 [ikely to be an opportune 1ime o intetvene and make the ofler of
SUPPCHT.

1 Referral post areest s a well established procedure nadonally but attempts at
refrting up a teliable focal inttiatrve have not met with success. There are a number
of reasons for this, not least the low volume of offenders passing through the Police
Custedy Suuc. The permancnt presence of an Amcst Refcrral Woerker cannot be
Justificd, the challenge being in creating a reliable and cost cfecave solution which
will see any requested nterviewes ake place m o tmely fashion The gap centres on
those that would bencfie from assistance oe will be released from police owstody
and will noc he caught by the cunent provisinns.

3.13.2 The Ciuernsey Police are computted to establishing a voluntary arrest referral

Initiative and will continue to work with the relevant agencies m an effort 1o
impilement a bespoke lacal scherme.

3. 14 The Guernsey Police will work towards cstablishing a protocol on policr atcendance

at swspected drug overdoses with the appropriate scrvices that places the emphasis
o early treatment whilst balancing ithe nged (o segure amd preserve evidence,

The predicted expenditure for supply reduction smibateves for the period 2004 2006 js:

2104 20615 200

ELT000 £200HM £20005

4.

4.1

MNB For full costing bteakdown see Appendix 14 Y Hesource Requirements™

Young People and Families
Work to prevent experimentation with drugs and to peevent experimental use from
developing into problem drug use whilst suppaorting valnerable families

Young l'eople

Frscarch matenial shows that voung people who may b vulnerable to problem
drog use alse have o range of problems These problems shooald be addeessed inoa
setting that s casdy accessible, credible and flexible, Droog wse can often be seen as
a response oo tooubles in other areas of a young persan's hife. Some young pecple
find adjustiment to change dfficult, or they may not have the coping mechanisims
to help with the problems that can come with adolesconce. Ic e importane chat
young peopls are helped with these problems i order to deter them from doog wse,
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or tn prevent exparimental drog use from developing oo recreational or problem
drug use. bo s also important to acknowledge that many young people cxpericnos
probtlems and difficulties sporadically, and may roquire short interyentions to help
them through a difficult time. Providing a suppontyve. oerturng help seovice ©an
many instances prevent the onsce of more serious problems developing For a young
persan who would othepaise expenence feelinps of ditconnecnom

4.1.2 Icis proposed to set up 2 Young 'eaple’s Advice Service that is aimed specifically
at voung people who would not readily engape with stamtory services, or for
whom there 15 no statutory service. The service would be based with a local non-
statucory scrvice or group working with young people, and would offer adwice,
counscliing and suppon for young people. It 15 vital that the service addresses ald
aspects of young people's concems. bot with a particular focus on drugs, alcobol
and sexuwal health. Referrals would be made to statutory and non-statutory servioes
where appropriate. Tiber ageocies and services would be encouraged 10 provide:
sessional work in dheir patricula: area of experiise. {see Appendix 7 “Eey
principles for work with young people™)

4.1.3 The proposed service would go to sites where young people meet {c.g. youth clubs,
WCH Howsing Project, Dee CaR, rather than wainng for young people to come ta
the service, and would offer initial advice, informaonon and support. IF further
action was reguired, the young person would be given information about when a
relevant prodessiomal will be visiting 1he site who can give further sepport, [tois
important that othee professionals go o the young people tather than making
appointinents for young people o attend foemal services - as younp people
froquently “vote waih their feer” and do not attend.

4.1.4 This service will act as a fust response for young people and will not replace o
duplicate work already being camriesd ont by the Children Board and Child and
Adolescend Mental Tlealib Service, These starutory senices cammy out specialist -
depth work with those young penple who have mental health and social problems.
The proposed service wiould work with a different group of voung people — a zroup
whose problems do not require such specialist inpu A suseesred local model can
be adopted which uses the "Tler system™ (see Appendix & "Recoramended Jocal
mfrasgucture for young people’”) This system clearly defines agency involvement
at different levels according to the necds of the young person concerned.

A 1.5 Thes immeative accords wiath the recommendations made by the Townsend Ceonioe
foar Triternational Poverly Research.’

4.1.6 The Dg Scrategy Action Ciroup, with he suppon of 1he Chief Oficers™ Drug
Scrategy Oroup, recormmends that a ext messapmg advice line for young people be
sct up along the lines of a similar service nun bom GASP (Goernsey Adolescent
Smokefree Project). This 15 vicwed as being a successful model, and one that is
atlractive to young people, It is proposcd to coter into parmorship wia a service
level agieement with 4 fon-siatulcey apeney (o deliver this service, which will

CFriome YAND poesrly pcliciey o orenee o posstle apcors for Oesemsey” Tivwnsenc Cerdre e Inremgiiongl
Foveaw Bescarcn

..o urder o sappnr thess wowng peaples, 2t prevenr them Tem alhng throegh 19 paps™ * 0o glabcdoTy provisian,
Lhe possiflily oF estall =g & surasegic pacneeshiz cogditization wich 2 Foons upsn podt ssaues ad desadvantage W
caplored
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cnable youne poople o ask questions and got information abowt Jdrgs wiing the
viry popular text moessaging service Tom mobile phooes,

4.2 Fatmuliez
Those families who are most vulnerable to diag use are readily idenrified and are
nften already working with starutory services. It is important that cfforts be targeted
to cngaging with these farmilics at the carlicst opporunity to addroess the familial
problems chat can lead to drug use 1o later years.

4.2 | The Children Doarl Family Ceneres provide the wleal [ocaliens for rnuli-apency
approaches that aim to prevent the development of drog use®. I is vital that while
families should he arpeted, this @rgeting should not marginalise them any more
that it 15 thoughr they already are. Engaging with familes will complement the
work already carried out at the Family Centres, and will involve inpot from other
agencies with expertise in drug-related ssues as chey affect the famaly.

4 2.2 It 15 proposcd that work with drug-wsing parcots should be developed in these
settimgs, which would aim to offer assstance 1o ensere that parents have the skills
and suppor they need, and that the needs of their children ame met, Giee Appendix
9 "Higk and Prorective IFacwas™}

4.2.3 Both the Children Board and che Youth Service are developing maiives aimed at
8 13 year olds and therr familics. This age group 15 a key targer for expernnental
drug use, and the Presidents' Dirag Policy Group fully supports any such inibabwe.

4.2 4 All agencies coming intke contact with dmg wsers and cheir families are and wall
Corlanele 10 be eruoouraged o develop indiatives that suppor the famaly tareugh the
difficoluas and dilecmmas Aassocialed with problem dreg ove. Whete the Chief
Officers' Diug Strategy Geoup feels that such initiatives should e developed aod
suppontcd, funding would be made available. Anv new initiatives would be
developed in collaboration wich the Drop Statepy Co-ordinator to ensare co-
ordination and avold duplication.

The predicted expendine for young people and famidics ininateyves for che period

2004 =200 15:
2004 2005 N 2008
Ea(1eh0 _ a3 A 5(HA

" NEB For full Cos b bhreakdown see -"a]:l_];&_t:n_dm |4 “Resource Kequirements"

a, Treatment

Lnsuce thai people with drug dependency problems have access to treatment

regimes that are appropeiate o Ltheir peads, o Jine with best pracuge aod designed
to enable reintegration back inw sociery

S0 Tier System fur Drug Treatment

o Seraces prosided at e Fazndy Cootees e ikely oo acp s case the oo et g aod skills Levels of pazes,
prom2qe fheir se Foomfidencs and sell exieem
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A wide range of local agencies will come nio contact with deug wsecs, and ic is
important that 2 serles of oplions is availahle for responding o dmg misuse,
Adopliing a 1ier system for drog reatment services (see Appendix 10 "Drug Misuse
Treatment Tiers o Adults™ ) gives 2 clear wiew of service provision required for
dilferent levels of intervention with drug users. [t is proposed to adopt the et
system for drog treatment scrvioes

a2 Support fur Families and Becovermg Thuag Llsers
[t 3x rmporant that suppoct services are aviilable e help the families of drug users
who may be deeply atecied by facolial drop use. Dheop Concern plays a vital role in
delivering open access secvices (Tier 2] fon drog users and their families, and the
Presadents' 12rug Policy Group supports the continuance ob this service.

3.7.1 The Presidens’ Diug Policy Group acknowledeges and supports the necd for the
development of drug user suppont groups.

2.3 Community-baged treatment service 1o substance misuse
An area that has been identified as requinmng a mote co-prdinated approach s in
delivering teeatment for substance misuse.

5.3.1 Currently, the medical aspect is dealt with generally by the Board of Health's Adule
Iental Health Lrepartment - although some G175 continue to prescoibe for thew
paticnes. Diug Concem and GADNAC see some problem substance uscrs for
connsclling and suppont, but to date there 15 no real cobesion in eeatmoent delivery,
ercher for the dimg user or the professionals involved, Fey ooteomes for & cohesive
megrated cate approach are shoown i Appendix 11

3.3.2 1t is proposed o sef up a commuenity based treatment secvice, managed by the
Board of Health, which comprises a core staff of 1 Climcal Nurge Speciaiist in
Addictions {cxisting post), a Substance Misuse Worker {provided by Drug Concern
- an additional outsourced post to be funded by the strategy) and an
Administraton  Assistant (@an incrcasce o the Staces Board of Health's
cstablishment). A Consultant Paychiatnst, Clinical Psychologist, Frobation Officer.
Puychiaing Sovial Worker and other profesiionals woold carme owt sessional woek
under the mulu-agency co-orlnated appreach Ths would constitate & fwer 3
service as shown i Appendix 1L I should be noted thal this reatment service
proepasal 18 the nmmediate requirernent, and that an addimicnal Subsance Misuse
Warker may be required dunng the term of this five-year strategy. In order to
ensure the service 15 of an appropnate standard, it 15 proposed that an annoal aud
by the South West Drug Servaces Audit U'rofect” would take place

5.3.3 It 13 vital that professionals within this treatment scrvice work together with a care
plaoned appreach ensunng thar problem substance wicrs have approprate medical
weatroenl supported by sunable psychological and secial mierventions o help
reintegrate them back inie sociely. lo-depith assessment would match treatment o
the noeds of the client. Other necds such as housing, employment znd educational
would also be addresscd By this ream. There 15 a range of factors which promote
cechive reatment - those can be seen in Appendix [2 “Factors Promoting
Effectiwe Treatment”

* A LR -hasad, independent seam which monizors ard svabaaes d=zp sorvices 2gainst quatics siandards
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3.34 It s recogpused that drug users may often bave other, wider health issues that need

535

534

to be addressed. These will be outside the scope of the commonity reatment
service, and should be dealt with by piimany care {Geperal Practitegnars]. Theee is
often reluctance on the part of GP's 10 work wilh drog users, as there are often
msues aboul GPs o other patients feeling intinudared by the presence of diug
iers. Howewan, some P75 have worked very successfully with their drug wsing
patients, developing a good worlang relationship. The KBoyal College of General
Practitioners in the UK muns courses for GI¥s on working with drug users, and one
P from each practice would be cncowrapged to atiend this tainng. One of che
roles of the clinical nurse specialist o the treamaent sercice would be to ace as
support for both GP's and cher doug wsing patients in gainiog medical came for
senerdl health problems

[n-patient vare would remam at the Caseel Hlospiral, and i titme will have
impecved Ealiies at the new siee at La Corhinere as ic is developed.

It vz proposed oo base the core team at the Orchard Centre, which currently houscs
the Sexual Health Clune, Drug Concern and Quatline — chus providing an casily
accessible fully mregrated service,

5.3.7 The difficulties of people wirth drog addiction proklems shanng space with people

5.4

o

who bave mental health problems have been a cause of ooncem o some Lme.
This approach would alleviale many ol those ddliculties, and using a bailding that
already houses other 1elevant agencies would be an effective overall snlution.

Prison Detox Programme.

All prisoners are assessed for sobstance abuse on entry. Each prisoner is
interviewed and a unne sample taken 00 enable the healthoare seaff o dentibe and
give the comect iteatment W individoal posoners, Prompt action s reguired, aloog
with the appropraate clincal intlervention. The level of ireamment 15 dependent on
the results of both procedures. Should o pasoner réguire o be faciltated on the
detox regime, appropriate medecadon wall e admouseered and the prisoner
phserved on the observation wing fae a perod of tome. When the prisoner s
deemed Ot by the prisen medical officer the prisoner will e placed 1 normal
locaoon. Concinucd support and menionng by prson staff, Drug Concem and the
COMTUMULLLY psychiaric ourse 15 paramount to the well being of the prisoncr.

The Criminal Justice Drogs Service
This Degan n Octnber 20002 and i5 a strategy {Dnded parimerstop between 1he
Fiobation Service and [rug Concern.

1This service is 1y the early stages of development and requires improved treatment
scrvices i order to function fully.

A Under this partnerstup, the Probation Serece wennfes drg-wsing ofeoders who

are suitable for the programme and refers them 1o the Cominal Josiee Trrog
Sernce ar Drug Concern for assessment. A care plan is drawn op helween all
concemed which aims to teat drug usc, address cifendig behaviour and cther
sy, and o assist ehe ndivideal @ leading a drog- free Life without re-offending.
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5.5.3 The partnersiup 5 slowly develeping, and the serice [evel agreement specibes the

3.6

5.4

nomber of individuals to b refemred per year, Al present. it s i garly oo evaluare
the success of the service, but In future vears i will be possible o see how 1ates of
re-offrnding and cominoing drog wse are alfecled. There s e reason 1o suppose
that this service will nol be successful, judging from expenience elscwhere. It 14
proposed tr continoe with this initiative in the next phase of the stracegy

Post —-Custodial Care

[elease from prison 1s a vulnerable time, when individoals ind ther cesoelve ol 1o
usc drugs scriously tested . Historically, it bas been diffecult to mamfaim tins ¢hent
group's contact with scrvices. Howoewer, effores shoold e made (o provide a
seamiess servioh that supponts doug ngecs theough release from prison. I s
proposed o suppon uli-agency indtatives thar develop services to maincein
contach with doug users on release from prisan

CService User Consultation

Im delivering seovices to drog wsers. 1t 15 important that ther views are souphi and
considered. The Presidents' Dhrog Policy Group supperts setting wp mechanismes
within all drug related servces For young people and adulbs tha seak 1w elecit the
¥iews of service users and respend o nesds where appropriace,

Drrop Concert

[n July 1993, the Statcs supported the Board of Health's policy loter Sudstance
Misvae I Cricmsey: Reducring Dependency tpon Dnigs, Tobaoooe. Afcofiol and
athoer Srbsrances (Billet X1V, 1993 and resolved o Y acshorgse she Boand of Health
fo make armuel prants fo He Doy Coreerr Oroup of s amound end o seek
fermny amgd conditiony ay that Board may deern approprare fo faad the cmplayment
o ar fwll fme drugs coonselion for vouny peopde”. This Tonding has continueed o
date.

However, with the development ol the Bailnkck [Jeug Straregy, the Fresidents'
Foug Policy Cimup oonsiders that i1 5 more appropriate that this grant is used o
fund core services, administered by service lewel agreement through the Dirug
Strategy.

a2 B.1 Syninge Exchanges

The prowesion of slerle mjectiog equipeent coupled wath advice and imfnrmation s
vital in preventing 1he spread of blond-korne wirnses such as 1Y and 1lepatiis B
anif O, Service o dare has been provided by Erug Concern via a pavinent fiom the
Board of Healih and the penerous support in providiog injecting equipment fom
the Medical Specialist Grouwp. o is dime o put this service on 2 more formal footing
dnd to include syTinge cxchange as part of the Drugp Stawcgy as one of the core
services of Drug Conceom

[t is proposed o teansler the responsilnlity for the administration of the annnal
arant to Drug Concern and payment For the syninge exchange from the Board of
Health to the Bailiwick Drrug Strategy, and to cnter into a scrvice level aprecment
vwith Drup Concern for the provision of core scrvices.
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The predicted expenditure tor oeatrent inmatives for the perwed 2004 -2006 15

2004 20003 2004
£195538 ELAR423 ~ f1v13eT
MB For full costing treakdown soe Appendix 14 ' Eesource Regquirements™

Prata Codlection, Monitoring and Training

prevalence of drug use locally;

Enzure _that all drug related servigces are delivered psing 4 guality assurance
approach and are relevant o the needs of the client group:

Provide a rolliog programme of training to ensure that local staffarc trammed to the
highest standard and kept up to date with current practice and 1s55ucs

[rata Cellection

Avccurate statistics are vital in planning local services aond in providiog the abality Lo
teact guickly 1o chanping teends and patterms of drug uwse. The Bailiwick Drug
Misuse Database comunenced in Apil 2002 and, eouepled with seizure statistics
trean Customs, is showing very cleaily that the use and avadabdiny of herom 15
nsmg locally.

f1.1.2 It 15 therefore important chat all agencics coming in to contact with drog wsers

provide mmformation o the database. It s impossible to identify an mdividual from
the forms submitted, thus ensurng the confdentialuy of thar person. The dagbase
15 I full compliance with daf protsctien legslaton.

f.1.3 Statistics for the rwelve-month perind from April 2002 - 31° March 2003 are shown

mn Appendix 3.

f.1.4 It1s proposed to continue to collect and disseminate information from the databasc

during the nexe phasc of the stratcgy.

&. 1.5 Recreational drog wee by mdividuals who do not come o contact with apengies

§.2

reporiing b the database 15 anoagsme that regpures funher reseacch o ocder o
ascertain the extent nf the silbabon. e s proposed that the Co-ordinaoor wall
develop this research.

Maonitoring

It 15 vical that our drup services ane of an appropriate standard for a commuanicy this
size. In 2003, the Sowdh West Deoug Sepnce Audit Project began this process with
an audit of Dug Concern. - [t 15 proposed to continue with this mibative in the
next phase of the Strategy.

6.2.1 It is proposed that all new and existing drug services adhere to an appropnate

standards framework — such as QuADS (CQuality iIn Alcohol and Drog Services) —
which 13 viewed a5 the benchmark o quality service deliveny,
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6.3 Training for Professionals
In 2002, a relling programme of maining bepan. TIK peaviders supplied the traming
which inglededd tsues such as raming low self esteem, motivational imtervicwing,
and wuorking with oubled adolescents. The courses wete well attended by a wide
range of local professionals meluding youth and community groups, who found the
training to be stimulating, choupht provoking and caxtremely beneboial.

6 3.1 General drugs awareness training sessions have also 1aken place §or teaching staft
and ather professuonals,

£.3.2 Itis proposed th the next phase of the stratepy (o continue to bring this high calibre
training o the lsland and through strategy funding, enable as many local
professinnals as possible to attend.

.4 Counsclling Services
TL s prropoged Lo make looding available by aon-statuonry drog-related apencies in
order that they may become professiondlly qualitied (o 2o approved standard in
counselling s psychotherapy. This will ensure thar drog users would receive the
most professional and appropriate interventions for theie needs, and that staft feel
confident in workmg with such groups and recelve the appropriate supervision and
support. Trainng to dus level 15 a requirement of QuaDS.

6.5 Drug Strategy
It is proposed o orelaio the post of Thrug Strategy Co-ordinator o ensore
nnpleroentation of the aims and gtyectives of the Thap Siratepy,

6.5 1 [ris proposed to retain the P'residents’ Drug Policy Group and ‘The Chiel OfTicers”
Dirug Strategy Group, the chairmanships of these groups to continue on a rotating
basis {as dcfined in the Drug Strategy 2000) o remforce the sense of equal
partocrsbups and ensure ownership by all conccrned. Membership of these groups
may develop in line with changing necds and requiremcents to implement che
strategy socoessbelly Iv s Fureher proposed that to properly roflect the work of the
Chief Difwcers’ Drug Strategy Crouop, it's title should chansge o 'Chief Offcery’
Drug Stratepy Implementation Crroup™

f.5.2 It is proposed to retaimn the Drog Strategy Action CGroup to provide information
sharing, stratcgic and operational direction and ownership of the Dug Soategy. [t
15 further proposed that o properly rofleet the work of the Drug Strategy Action
Group, iE°s title should change o " Drog Sorategy Action and Advisory Group”

6.6 Commissiomng Officer
As parnership working with a4 wvarety of statotory and non-statutory agencics
develops, o i5 icigasioply aonpactant W enjune that the services purchased by 1he
drug suategy are momitored and evaluaced, and that these services are assisted m
their dewelopment. A Commissioning Officor would undertake this role.
Role of the Commissioning Officer;
To work with 1he Drog Strategy Co-ordinater to ensure thar all agenoies o receipe
of gomitracied funding lrem the deug stratepy are workiog t hest practice guidelines
and prodessional and nperaticnal quality stamdands
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Key tasks.

s Collect performance iInformation

» Beview provider pecformance agamst ohjectives ot standards

s Review ranepoiale contracts

» Feed infemation back to [hug Seategy Co-ordinator

# Facilitare each agency o develop operational plans that are aligoned 10 the drwg
stratemy

# Dovelop relationships with apencies that provide suppurt and advice oo delivening
a qualsty sereice

« [dentify tTaming reyuireenents Jor statt

a Tnvaolve secvice Usels in the evaluanon process

The Commissioning Process

Strategic Tramewnrk
Fresradents' L2we FPolioy
Circuye andd Chel Ckce s
Ll Senviess CAnie

Monitaning and Strategic Flanning
TEWVIEW e e Dirag
CEEms s naaiig Mraiegy Grour and
CNer I Flrue Strarepy O
quinasar

N

Fucghasing aceivinics Cyperatinnal plaraing
Cled CLSSeers' P : Ll birademy
Sradepny Crroup e £iug i lrraror
Sreareay

4.6.1 It 13 therefore proposed to create a part bime post of Commaissioning Officer to

4.6,

ensure that the additional work requircd to deliver che stratcgy as identified can
be undertaken.

2 Iithe Commiussiening Cificer pest 13 nor established, the Droug Srategy will nom

develop to tis full potential and thie abiliy 10 monator, evalyate and support
servige providers will be severely hampared or nor possible o achigve.

The predicted cxpenditure for dar collection, monitenng and @aining imifialives
For the peniod 2004 2006 15
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2004 ' 05 | T

150535 ' [15421 ] 146774
B For full costing breakdown see Appendix 14 “Resource Reguirements”

Alderney and Sark
The appropriate authorities i Alderney and Sark have becn consulicd and have

exprassed therr support for the development of the Bailiwick Drup Strategy,
recognising the potential impact on, and costs b, ther communities of a groewth o
the prevalence of drug misuse and its associated problems.

Policy Implications

The 2000 satcgy was largely an mnitial research apd assessment siretepy. Thas next
proposed phase will auddress the resules of thar research and take forsard proposals
to provide necessacy services to respond to the matked changes i pattemns of drug
use in the Balmwick since the strategy was launched.

The recomamendations inthis policy letter seck to address the issue of drog misuse
in & varicty of ways. It 15 important (o ackoowledge that human bemgs have used
piychoactive substanoes since the beginning of time, and attempts to coeare a drug-
frese society are uneealiseic, Howewer, drog wse can be approached with a range of
wmitiatiwes designed to have the long-lerm effect of mimmising the nempber of
pecple who experiment wih Jdnes and thioge who develop drug probiems.

o Drug education with young peaple will deter some from experimentarion.

» Robuzr enforcement stracemes that target top-end suppliers and waffckers
do send a clear message and reduce the amount of drups available on the local
Ulicit market.

o«  Targeting and working with young people (o address problem aneas of their
lves, van redoce 1he lkelibood of experienentation with drges, and promotes
positive life choices, which prevent the onset of problem dow ose,

»  Provadimg holsie rearment secvices tbhat enable an mdividual o becoroe
drug free and reinepraee o sociely redoces the damage 1 the individual and
also Lo snciery in the redaction of drug related crime.

*  These offons muost be underpioned by access to relevanc data, guality seatf
maining, rescarch and menitoring,.

If 1the enhanced Drog Strategy 15 oot mplemented. the way in which the Badiwick
15 able i respond o increasing lavels of deap use will be impaired. No single Srawes
commiiee 15 able Uy make the e of drups a sulfcieantly bigh poonte. TToweser,
commitiees working together can achieve this aim theongh the groups which have
been established. They are ideally placed o provade fundimg for pubanves and
services that cannot e offered by other comunitees -- particularly in the use of pon-
States agencies to deliver the semvices

Folicy Options

o respondeng o lecal dewg wuse, there are twn possble apticns for consideration
Herain the stacus guo

Although much propress has been madc with the Drug Siacegy, there 15 soll a
great deal more work o be done. When the Scates agreced the 2000 Drug Soaogy,
hreroin and crack coraine wuse and avalabdicy were very low and sporadic — and the
polwcy Teflecied 1h, IE the statws gquo 15 mawntained, specibe areas which will nof be
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able w be developed or commenced nclode the communicy based teatment
service, developmem of the drugs education partnership, mmplementation of the
young peoples’ service, provision of approved counselling oamnng, which are key
requirernents Wl delivering a sound response io local drug wse. With the recent
increase in the trend, treatment services to address the necdy of those who develop
serious dependency problems with these drugs, and eohanced dnggs education for
younger chudren to deter chem from experimentation anes nose vlal

Adapt the erhanced Dirug Steategy

[f the Seates apres that 4 cross commitee apmoach o minimising dmg use and
drup eelated harm locally is appropriate, the enhanced Drug Straccgy provides a
wide range of initiatives and services designed to tackle the 1ssue from a vanety of
approaches. The costs of drug usc arc mrasurcd in more ways than pacely
financial, and investments in scrvices and imtacives now will pay dividends in

futurc yoars.

staffing Tmiplicatinreg

Fach cocmemilies bas caredully reviewed s cuerent stall allocation and has baen
unable wa identtfy any approphiate vacant pests thar could be acilised for either of
the two new established posts, namely the post of Comossioning Officer (ref.
8.6} and of Administraten Assistant {ref 5.3 2) for the Treamment Service,

Resource Implications
The propesed additional resouwrces will coser a wide range of now mitadyes and
Lnprivde CurTent Gogeims mialies, as shown in Appencis 146, Proposed new
imbatives melude:

+ Resources for ceachers

« Apnoal Drogs Avwarcness Week

s Group and individual work in che prison

s rants for tarpeted supply reduction mikiacives

s Aglvice and informanoen seovice for young people

o Text messaging service for youny people

o Clommuanity bdsed realmeam service

v Training tor General Fractitioners

v  Counselling training for non-statutory staff

Estimatc of Bcvenue Expendoture 2004 - 2006
The cwrrent provision for the Bailiwick Droeg Strategy from 2004 o 2006 in the

Goard of Administration’s cevenne budgsr is;

......... 200 Lo s A
2000) 1300 LRI 200) 00
The predicted overall annual expendiiore for the perigg 2004 — 2006 1y,
2004 2005 - 2006
520,040 . a0 | S05,000

The additionai revenue requirement for the Bailiwack Limg Strategy s thus:
2 2101 2EHM

noge 280,000 305,000
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All costs arg wiven gl 2003 evels and do not inclode BPL fer 2005 and otwards, A
more delailed analysis of 1he costs of the Swateey 15 contained m Appendix 14,

1Z. Recommendations
The Presidents’ [Dhug Pelicy Group and their mdividual comenittees have

considercd the report from the Chief Offcers' Drog Strategy Group. Takinpg intn
account the finance and staffing restrictiens. the Stales are recommended.

12 1 To reaffirm the commitment of the States of Cruerpsey to tackhing the issue of drug
misuse in a cobesive, melii-agency appeoach, throogh the adopdon of che five
pillars andd the objectives conilined in the Bailwick Lrug Serategy;

12.2 T endarse the aims of the Bailiwick Drog Somategy which arc to:
»  reduce the demand for drogs

* rodoce the supply of drogs

v provide imitiALTves lor young people and families

vooprovide aoramee of rreatment serviices apprapinie or diug users

»  provide a system of data cndlection, monitoring and staff raining,

12.3 'I'n approve the chjectives oudined m Appendix 13, recognising that full
consultacion must take place with the Cind Service Board to sccurc the staff
resources npecessary oo implement the Stoategy,  and to dircct the States Civil
Service Board wo have duc regarnd to the stafing implications of the States' decision
on the propositions in paragraphs 5.3 2 and 646, when adminiseening the S1atf
Murntrer Lirmatation Policy;

12.4 To delegate responsibility for the implemettacion of the Baliwick Drug Soategy to
the Presidents’ Drug Policy Group and the Chief Oficers' Drug Swatepy Group;

12.5 To authonse the Board of Administration to submit a rovenoe budget for 2004 at a
sum of £320000 i cxcess of the approved cash limit and to dircot the Stabes
Advisory and Fioanoe Committee e fake acconnt of these costs  when
recommending to the States revenoe allocancns for 2005 and 20068

I shouwld be grateful of you would lav this macter before the State: with the approprnate
propositlons

Y ours faichfully

P.J. ROFFEY

President, Buard of Health
Chairman af Fresident's Drug Policy Crroup



Appendix ]

The Bailiwick Irug Strategy 2000

2042

Progress Keport

Tn toe 2000 Thuog Strate@y there ane & series ol objectives - both ongoing and develepmental.
Whar follows i1z a list of the developmental objectives and the progress made 1n cach

catagary

To reduce the supply of drugs, the incidence of deug-related crime and

OQbjective

] re-offending by drug users
Fropress

Develap a erdlalnracive
approach to target doep
users wirhin the vrrnie il
Justice syetem and cnalble
*hem 1o hwe |;|.r1I.E anid
crisne-frec lives

The Crminal Justive Drygy Service in parineryhip. wih, e Fopbaipon
Senvroe and land Folice,

This has been an impontant and lenpchy proceduee. In the Stratepy it 15
srated that "It is now proposcd b make an annoal prant o an
appropoiate valuntary agency af such amgune and on such terms and
conditions as the Piestdeats” Group may desm appropoiate 1o fund the
employment oF & crirmmal juslice drug workere (2 work with cricemsal

Tewclep a philasaphy af
shared recpensibiiby to
tnreeweste and affo
treatment oppoCiwnities
fiur clrg wsing wffenders
through the criminal
JEslige system and oo be
conineed an celease
ITm custody

Justice agencies wr adenily, assess the needs of, and offer treaiment ke,
drug using ollenders, and to develop the local pilotl arest ceferal
scheme "

Local expressions af rerest were sought and resulted inoane agency
being interested in Lthe contract Enquiries were also made of TR
agencics Ao the behest of mombers of Thesidents” Deug Policy Group
i dgeney responded with o bid that ler exceeded the stratepy budger.
LUK censultants were brought over 10 advise and assist with the service
level agreement and planning of the service. The Chaef Probatuan Citicer

Oceclop a single
assssTeL for cruminal
iustioe inrcrechions wirh
emphisis en bath
submianee ahuse aed

- ciending behavioar

and the Prrug strdtepy Co-ordinatar worked togecher o make i relevant
to Cruernsey; the contracted agency was alse invalved in the disgussions
The service is fully supported by the Judigiary

The grant was awaided 1w Thug Concarry who aee werking in cose
pascnecshup with rhe Probatian Secvice, The servive commenced on 17
Qb 2002,

. Publicise the Bailiwick
wan s firm senieroang
policy fonr drug eaffickers
amd 1he mroacte-e
appreach nf Guessy
Custome - paniculacly
around LK prams nl
departur:

Lrayvelup speoislise
rreatiicnt amd
rehabalitation sereices
1hist adulness ol of o drug
wsers' nealth necds and
Frovide pssrgsmenly,
treazraent and srescziking
services [z bolh adul
and young drug 1secs

Fostwers are placed at UK and Freoch depactoee poiets.

Also, in October 2002, 2 new itiative was Jaunched in which  a media
i Telease 15 sent to the local UK media of sentenced drug raffickers. “Tis
aims to specitically target arcas in the UE where drug conrers are
recruited. This is funded by the Dmg Sreatopy and is delivered Dy
Customs and a lescal PR coampany.

To Improve the health of the community

Mew Consultane Psychiamst sn pose. Flans o develop commaingy based
*ECALITICOE PROZIANINE AT I pIOEESs
Thterre have been deluvs in eblamimg the establishment (ur ihe
vammunity psychiatric nuese, but this has been resolved. Advens kave
been placed locally and it 15 hoped to appoint shordy

Prowvide incegearcd and
iargeied tnfervenlions be
reduce an cndvidual s

WVanows agenvies working oo boch b prison und commuenoty are
curcently delivertng programmes thil are delivered 1o procps and on an
individual basis. These mnclude the Frobation Service, Drup Concemn
and the Frasoning and Behakbilitation Course run in che scates Priscn
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SFLg Thisuss, mnimise
the essociated risks and
cnable drug ascrs o stop
ard live healthy drap Froe
Lves

The Crimnal Justioe Lirgms servicr will alsa develop programrmes (o
addeese these issues

Llevelop a phdosapky of
shared reaponsikility oo
imervens and offer

brestl M| Cpperk ity
fer all drug asers who
make cumling with health
related screccs

Seevpce Wil act as a referral ta treatment services. Plans are also n
Jevelepiment v emplov & Community FPeychiatric Nurse (CPM) via the
Dheug Stratepy 0 work with the curmend O o deliver ecatonent
services far drug users

O welag: 4 cnefdennalivy
pratucnl tor the shicizpe
af ifrermatnn eowoen
amencics and a cohosive
apprach o irgatemen
Sorvices

In developriceot

ponrgr am) ewalwans
existing drg related
serv s il ensre thid
data is onifomely
Tcerded s0 1hat
cormparisons can be
mitde

The Pailawick Thugs Wisuse MDarabase 8 a now development for the
Island Fow the Frsp Bme, all apearias coming intt contact with drug
vgers wil repoen e a ceniral dasbase desipued and momoeed by the
Co-ordinater, who wdl peoducy stanstics on a gualtgly bagis. ATl
information beld 15 snooymous, but saleguanls ace in place 10 emove
double counting. These statstios will enable us o plst prevalencor and
pacterns of drup mosuse locally and will also be wsed for planming fulure
SOTVICCR

Ectablizh protocods
Frzpacen The Sncial
Socuriyr Auchority and
the Brgied ol [Tealthamd
docors to monimise the
missees oif prosiTilesl

. drugs

T'rovnde: sRppmrt and
redining For those
wiarking wilh drug wsens
and vheir farmilics

Presceibing proracel drawn wp by the Prescriting Suppaort Unit at (TRNA
with swpport from the Co-andinator and ageed - awdaing approprian
seevice from Adult BMental Flealtbs Service tobe put in place

Full prograrnme af druge related tracng, which is free o all agencies,
These covises have Deen vory well attended and received. o has proved
(o be g costefTetive method of cnswring 1thar Tocal scaff hiave high calibse
and up to date training, 200 mammg places have been wken vp oo 2002
al a cost of FZ0000 - which 15 considecably cheaper than sending cach
person away ta the UK. Lt also ensures o cobesiveness of local services.

To reduce the demand for, and acceeptabality of drug misuse and inceease

understanding about drug misuse



Frovere ale il e
furding for Sreg
sducation pragrammes
wichin e Railowick's
=choals and colleges 1a
reman relevant, cood:hle
and injormative

Oievelop drag edocation
proprrnmes hat
promcee Lfe skills and
ensre nks it azeay of
PSUF avllabus,
[martiowlarly 1o eespest of
alenhirl, nbaoen and
eolvents) are made when
AQEITORrALY

[rewclop drug education
progrismmes that barget
the proklerns faced »y
Lt hwick studenits

Zuppur bk Taland Youth
Sandice to devclop it
conirtbudien ta drog
pICwCeticm, pamicularly
tariebed A those ot
greacest rigk firam dreg
misuse but among the
_hardest oy reach

[awomile the commrmmnicy
inJdrg cduzacion
programmes, be
Sevalapig, ca.nmdoating
and craluating initiatives
1 ensere 1he ehjeciives
af Le scraccgy aic
prezerted cooas wide an
audicree ot poskitle aad
thitl opanicn is soupght ay
o i e developmaeac

crnerig ligher educanan |

I 208035, a grant has been awarded fae & pacr time detached vouwch drugs

To bulld on curcent drug related partnerships, develop a drug database and
moniter and evaluate the implementation of the stratepy
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In conjunction with the Co-ordinater, Customs and Drog Concern Tiaes
developed peogrammes for vears 8 — 12, which will be delivered by both
agencies working in partnership i local schools. This ensures that there
i 4 congistengy o the education reccived by young people locally.
Cucrenmly all schoals i the Island are requesting toouge chis seovce.

The service Jevel agreviceent was approved By the Education Coungil in
January 2003

[2rup Concem is funded for thas through the Deug Stoatepy

In 201 and 2U02, the prant was uscd o fund ocaining for staff,
tefurbishung the aucrcach bus, producing leallerss and drugs inkrrmatian,

wirker, with o view (o @xtending this 1o s Tull ome past im 200,

& | 2rug Btraregy hrochure is wadely available. This geves infarmation
abour the seeacgy, Incal agencies, dmgs formation and advice kn
panenrs dnd cmecs, _
A website has also been develeped which will melade infocmatien from |
the Hailiwick Drrug Misuse Database, on-line polls and discussions as
vwell as Lhrugs Informatien, strategy aims and objectives and anti-
amugpling intnmaation

Thugs Awarcness Week — whach is intended oo b an annual event o
2004 = weill focws an a specific wawe identificd by the Action Graup

Ectablish a web site o
prhlicus the Siralegy's
a1ms and am anti-
5rn|:||._-;|::_lin|:1 pH L

See the previous eotry aboud the website
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- Develop and excend
T is[:rla warkiltg
pacnerships betwern
Thuaw agences wearkinlg
in dowp related area

D Tlewelryy And extend a
coullabormtive approich b
tacklang diug thisuse and
Ltz assucialed pruklems

thirugh the shared

- cwnership of ajresd

ubgegravey

Listabhsty o Bl iwiss
datatasc v orllect and
collate drug-related dala

Drug Strategy ACon Cronp mec on A monthly baos and carries oul
speciic joint work [(Dleuwg Awarencss Week), cnnsultatiaon {darabase,
planning <ay) wal shacing of non-confdenral mformation. The graep
highlights arzas of work amd develops joint woaking protoeals
This 15 chateed by the Coe-erdimistor awl inclades semion representarives
fram the following seevices:
v Child & Adolescent Bentad 1Tealth
Children Doard
Lhildren's' Mucsing Service
CustaTns
Clrug Concem
Educztion Council
CrADAT
Prescnibing Support Unit
Health Promutien
Flealib Wisitors
Frizum
Pulice
Frobalion Service
Feychuatric Socil Work
Y outh Concern §Thes Cal)
{CH Youth Housing Projecl
¥ outh hervice

fCommenced Apnl 202 follewing eatensive consullotion
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Appendix 2
THE BAILIWICE DELUG STRATEGY

The Presidents' Dirug Policy Group, comprising the Presidents of:
Brard of Admanisitacion
[Cusconms & BExcise)
Beoard of Health
{hadren Eoard
Committce for Home Afairs
{Pulice and Prisom)
States Ealncation Cuuneal
Probation Cormmilles

Clef Officers' Drug Stiategy CGroup, comprising the Chief Oficers of:
Board of Health
Chddren Board
Customs and Excise
Dhirector of Public Health
Filucatiom TrEpAriment
ruemsey Police
Frobaunn Service
Stares Prisom
[heug Stategy Co-crdinator

Lirug 3trategy Action Group. comprising staff epresentatives frome
Doard of Health
Chilgdren Board
Custorms & Fuxrsge
1lea Caf
Drup Concern
Education Couneil
GAalDAC
Suemsey Police
wCH Youth Housing Project
Frescribing Suppart Unit
Urobation Service
Staccs Prison
¥ outh Sconerc
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Appendix 3

Bailiwick Drug Misuse Database

These statistics reflect the numbers of people being seen by various agencies, There is no
way of knowing how many other drug users there are who have not yet come to the
attention of services. In responding to drug use it 15 important to note that there will be a
number of “hidden” users.

There is information about 179 individuals contained in the database. Some of whom are

being seen by more than one agency.
Figl
This graph shows the number of individuals attending each agency

Murnber of clients sean by sach agency

vwmmrmmrFl 8

Prabation - Prisca [ IH

Probation - Community ¥

Prisgn Heslthcars | 7
 ——— —

Dinay Concssn [ 2
CAMHS E] 2
M""““mmi= i

i) 10 2 30 40 50 &0 1o F|g 1

The information on subsequent pages refers to the number of individuals—no
double counting

Gender [n=178)

ren ()

:-'"" ; ; -’ .- E - % : FLEE
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Residential Stalus (r=1TH

148
Baiiwick bom & resien| L_ ]

40 1] a0 L] 122 13 5ED

Current Age (n=179) Fig. 4

nat complobed

31-35

21-26

17-20

=16 j ©

i TN oy R TN TR TR

It can be seen from fig. 4 that just under one-third of the people represented are under 20
years of age — with a peak age group of 17-20 years.
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Aga of first drug and intravenous use

o drugs
o

Identifying the age at which a person starts to use drugs assists in targeting prevention
work. Fig. 5 shows that 48% began using drugs (shown in dark blocks) between the ages
of 13 and 15, and 17% beginning use between the ages of 10 and 12 years. Not all people
who take drugs start to mject drugs. The hight blocks show the ages at which those who
inject drugs start injecting — usually several years after first using drugs

Employment Status (n=178)
Fig. 6

Nat completed |

Unemployed ﬁ_ 1
Employed *—' L

a il 4 el & 100

Fig. &
54% of people represented are unemployed — although 64 of these people were in prison

at the time of counting
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Weekly Spanding on Drugs (n=173) Fig. v

14

tame W =

Fig. 7 shows approx 54% spending over £100 per week on drugs, with 23%
spending over £200 a week. Reponts from agencies say this figure can in many
cases be £400+

im ={T .
Drusg use in the Last three months (n=175) FIE.E
|
Benzodiaraping | j =1
Piowm, Cpaies j (o
o 4
it | B |
Al 44
Einiagy d : II
Cannabin .12"
Coonaiorack 32
Amphatisicm 18
] % = L] an 1o {Fid] 143

Whilst some people report using only one drug, most people use a vanety of drugs as well as their
prrna.r].r drug of choice, OF the 85 people who reported cannabis as their primary drug:

26 also used ecstasy

18 also used Benzodiazepines {tranquillisers and sleeping tablets)

10 also used amphetamines

9 also used heroin

7 also used cocaine/crack

6 also used pharmaceutical opiates {strong prescription paimkillers)

4 also used LSD

1 also used glue, gas and other inhalants

- & & ® & & =



2051

Pecple reparting daily uss of drugs Fig. 9
o | L L)
Aenpodiprepnes | ]
q 1 -
Pegrm, Cipigies [ : 1 ]
L0 N * |
whalaris i |
Harzan - R

Fig. 10

11

Fig. 9 shows that 79 people use cannabis on a daily basis and 48 use heroin on a
daily basis, 61 people also use prescrniption drugs (tranquillisers and pain killers)
daaly.

Fig. 11 shows 22 people who use cocaine on an occasional basis

HERQIN
Given the emerging heroin trend, figs. 12—18 explore the patterns of heroin use more
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closely
Heroin users current age (n=72) i
Fig. 12
nol completad
' 3
3
o
l ]
319 |
1 ' 15 )
21
]
Fig 13.

It is a note of concemn to see the highest age group for heroin use being 16—20 years

Heroin users employment status (n=72)
Fig. 13

nok completsd |

Fig. 14 Over half the heroin users are unemployed

Hargin usars reskdential siatus (N=T32) Flg 14

Mol complated
Visitor |
Tamp Worar |

Licenossopan markss

“'mm‘“ngm ) =

o 1] - k3 [ [ ) W m

Fig. 14
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It is important to note here that the vast majority of heroin users are Bailiwick bormn and
resident, denoting a local problem, rather than one that has occurred via visitors to the
Island

Heroin users weakly spanding on drugs (n=T2) Fig, 15

MWFS |
>£200 |

E151-£200 I' : _I

16

EAOO-E150

E51-E55

=<ES]

Fig. 16 shows that there is an even split between those who inject heroin and
those who smoke it. More health problems arise from injecting drugs -
particularly the risk of HIV and hepatitis when equipment is shared

Heroin users method of uss (=72} Fl'g. 16
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Fig. 17 shows that there are 46 individuals on this database who use heroin on a
daily basis. This i1s an important figure as it denotes the numbers of people who
are most likely dependent on heroin.

Herain users - frequency of use (n=TZ) Fig 17

% |
5 tmes 2 wesk Hu
o

Cfences commiltbed w hardin usars Fig 13

|
Cner (g moiong) !-; [ ] 23

Semyal Crima |
26

Wigher Crirti [ ]

=
Criminal Damage || [ | :

T'.Iu.ﬂ H . - . H . - . IH

Burglary

Drugs Importation ]

Dinage Supply

DG IR AE R

“h. : T
| -
x4
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OFf the 54 people who reported heroin as their primary drug:

24 also used cannabis

21 alse used Benzodiazepines (ranguillisers and sleeping tablets)

15 also used pharmaceutical opiates (strong prescription pain killers)
12 also wsed cocaine/crack

3 alsp used amphetamines

2 also used ecstasy and LSD

also used glue, gas and other inhalants

INJECTING BEHAVIOUR

Fig. 19 shows that a small but significant number of people report sharing needles and
other injecting equipment. The potential here for the spread of blood borne viruses is
apparent, as it would only require one person with HIV or hepatitis to be included in these
figures to create a larger pool of those who are infected. All agencies should strive to
improve education to injectors

Shared other equip.?

Shared rsedles?

Ever Injected?
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Appendix 4
Customs Seizures of Controlled Drugs 1999-2002
(Source Guemnsey Customs)
Class | Drug Seizures Weight/ Value (£)
Quantity
A Diamorphine 3 49.4g 12230
(heroin)
A Cocaine 5 165.56g J1E71
A Ecstasy 9 1753 1abs 47933
B Amphetamine 5 2800 rabs o118
and
51.568
B Cannabis resin 44 S102.38g 40810
B Herbal cannakbis 5 B.25g [ig5)
C Ephedrine 1 (515 tabs 179163
c Other 3 B3 No value offered
TOTALS | 75 £321|191
A Diamarphine 2 399z Hi5
(heroin)
A Cocaine 6 76.80g 14789
A Ecstasy B 1267 tabs and A0443
205,435
B Amphetamine l 1.7g 50146
B Cannabis resin 45 24692 61g 434591
B Herbal cannabis 1& 16 reefers and 200
8.99g
C Other 3 36 Mo value offered
A S R SO T AN |
A Diamorphine 7 8l.64g 20003
{heroin
A Cocaine 4 453.43g 40E0%
A Ecstasy s G995 tabs 200598
A Methadone 1 120mls 120
B Amphetamine 4 1231.76g 21556
B Cannabis resin 338 155457 42g 1243616
B Herhal cannakbis 3 B92.18g ™37
C Cithier 9 794 1677
TOTALS | 73 £1 I.S 3l5l.3-1|5
A Driamarphine 17 625.39g 140713
{heroin}
A Cocaine 9 125.77g 17739
A Ecstasy 3 3576 tabs 111520
B Amphetamine 3 292 tabs and 3.25 3550
B Cannabis resin 47 ‘JIETF-EIE TI2634
B Herbal cannabas 14 4] 045 328
TOTALS o8 £1,006,815
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Appendix 5
Royal Court Convictions for Drug Trafficking Offences 1999-2002
(source Guernsey Customs)
14 13 19 26
2 have pleaded guilty-
due o be sentenced
1 found not guilty
2 pending trial (ot
guilty plea)
Appendix 6

Key points for work with Young People
(UK Home Office Drugs Frevenrion [nitiative)
« Young people want consistent and unambiguous drugs information delivered
through credible sources including peers, youth services and media
o Drugs education should be built into general youth service provision and service
training needs
» The personality, skills and credibility of staff are vital to success in youth work,
particularly in the challenging area of outreach/detached work
o« Peer approaches can help consolidate anti drugs views
= Young people in particular groups, including the homeless and those in care, are
most likely to experiment earlier and go on to problem drug use
* Young people in vulnerable groups often have a range of interlinked problems, of
which drug use may be one. Responses need to be comprehensive
» Since such young people will be dealt with by different agencies at different times,
there is a strong need for effective partnership working and multi-agency responses
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Appendix 7
Ten Key Principles for Working With Young People
Developed by the UK Seanding Comference on Drug Abuse and he Chiddren'’s Legal Cenire

1.
4.

3.

oh

= O 06 =3

A child or adolescent 15 not an adult

The overall welfare of the individual child or young person is of paramount
importance

The views of the young person are of central importance, and should always be
sought and considered

Services need to respect parental responsibility when working with a young
pErson

Services should recognise and co-operate with the local authority in carrying out
its responsibilities toward children and voung people

A holistic approach is vital at all levels, as young peoples problems do not respect
professional boundaries

Services must be child centred

A comprehensive range of services needs to be provided

Services must be competent

. Services should aim to operate, in all cases, according to the principles of good

practice



Appendix 8

2059

Recommended local infrastructure for young people
Adazpred for Guemsey fTom the Standing Coaference on Orug Abese, Children'’s Legal Cenire and the Health
Advisary Service

Drug Education
Information
Identification and
referral of young drug
useTs

Education

Youth & Family services
School Murses

Teachers

Health Visitors

GP's

Drug Concern

A&E Staff

All of tier one plus
Drug-related
prevention
Targeted education
Advice and
counselling services

Youth oriented services are ideally placed to

¥i

a multidi ' a h
Youth Service
MNCH Youth Housing Project
Dee-Caf
Children & Family Social Workers
Educational Psychologists
All Tier 1 providers

Young People’s
Specialist Drug
Services and other
services that work
with complex cases
requinng
multidisciplinary
team-based work

Specialist foster carers

Open and secure residential unit workers
Substance misuse team (including Drug
Concern)

CAMHS

YWouth Justice Team

Probartion Service

Prison staff

Very specialised and
intensive forms of
intervention for
voung drug misusers
with complex care
nceds

Off-Island placements
Mental health teams

Child & Adolescent forensic psychiatrists
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Appendix 9
Risk and Protective Factors
{from Risk & Response Project, Lifeline UK 2002)

0 -4 years | Parental drug use Good attachment
Poor family interaction Good network of carers
Poor neighbourhood High level of family interaction
Chaotic parental lifestyle Play between infant and carer
Poor cognitive development | High socio-economic background
3 =11 years | Parental drug use Positive relationship with adult
Poor academic development | Perceptive, vigilant teachers
Problematic behaviour in Regular antendance at school
school Social network outside of family
Poor self-esteem Out of school activities
Low school attendance Coping sirategies
Family problems
12 - 16 | Problematic parental drug use | Accurate substance use
years Substance use at an early age | information
Substance using peers Out of school activities
Mental health problems Positive adult relationship
Behavioural problems Positive temperament
Family problems Mutual frend
Poor academic performance | Coping strategies
School exclusion/non- Regular school attendance
attendance Perceptive, vigilant teachers
Lack of educational support Substance use education
Bullying Education, training &
employment




Appendix 10
Drug Misuse Treatment Tiers for Adults
Adapted for Guemsey from "Models of Care ™ (UK Dept of Health)
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»  Primary Care {GP's) Apgencies as listed
E #  Children Board & Family Centres A wide range of professionals who
g E . -E *  Probation Service may come into contact with adult
ZE g E *  Sexual Health substance misusers
b «  Accident & Emergency Should be appropriately trained in
»  General Psychiatric Services substance misuse
= Drrug- related advice & information Drug Concern
#  Upen access drop in services Accessible services for a wide
# Maotivational interviewing/brief range of substance misusers

Interventions

Meedle Exchange

Outreach Services
(detached S domiciliary s
peripatetic)

Liaison with Cormmunity
Substance  Misuse Team

Dirug Misuse specific assessment &
care management

Enables clients to engage with
services without the commitment
required by structured

programmes
A pateway to level 3 services

based specialist drug Open access drug misuse services
MISUSE SETVICES

Structured community

Drrug specialist care planning & co-
ordination
Structured care planned counselling

L]
and therapy options

Structured day programmes
Community hased detoxification
Community based treatment for

CIDs

Structured afier care programmes

» Community Substance
Misuse Team — Multi-
disciplinary approach
Structured programme of care

#  Place requirements on
artendance & behaviour
Allocated care co-ordinator
Prescribing services
Integrated Care Pathways

specific services

Residential
substance misuse

In patient drug detosxification and
stabilisation

Drug & aloohol residential
rehabilitation

Residential drug & alcohol crisis
oeEnires

Residential co-morbidity services

Castel Hospital
OiF-Island Providers
#» Forclients with a high level of
need
¢ BRequires careful assesment
and preparation of client
» Lower demand than tier 3
service

misuse specific
sCrVices

Highly specialist
non-substance

Young peoples’ hospital and
residential services for drug &
alcohol treatment

Specialist liver disease units
Forensic services

Specialist psychiatric units
Terminal care services

HIY specialist units

= Bopard of Health
s OMT -Island providers
* [es Bourgs Hospice
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Appendix 11

Key Dutcomes for Inkemared Care
Pannrees Sevarrel Seacvinee eRenen fmfeserniony e ALE)

The main aim of inwegraced care 15 o help drug users o overcome their drug problem
and ther associated health and soial difficoloes by providhng effeciive, co-onlmated and
fomely freatment, cane anld support

The gevals ol caie are:

Reduce ulicit drug use by stabilising on a substiute medication o detoxifying {where
appropriate), by reducing the range of diffcrent substances being used by the individual,
by reducing the frequency of drug use and by minimising the risk of fstare elapse. The
ultimnate goal may be to belp the individoal to séabilise o become dreg frec.

Fedure the tisk of the spread of blood-borne wicwses, a0 pacticular the risk of BTV
hepatitis B and €, and other Mood-borae mfections Jrom mjecting and sharing injecling
egquiptent. This may be achieved theough a reduction ar cessation of sharing injecting
equipnenr and mjecting paraphernalia; a redoction o1 cessacon of uyecting and by the
reduction or cossation or risky sexual practices.

Improve all aspects of bealth by assisting the individoal to reach and maintain a staec of
skl physical and pswechological health, This will e partly achicved by the goals aboyve,
bul drog wiers may alzo have a number of omhber phvsical health problems oo address
dental health peoblems arg g serigus problerm amongst this population, particulacly
depression and anxiety.

Eedoce imvolvement in coimunal aceivity, in particudar o veduce the need for orinunal
aciivity to suppon or Anance dowg wse, mcluding prosotution, theft and offences
rexarding the supply of drugs.

Irnprrdove personal, social and famaly functioning by assisung the individuals to meximise
their atalicy to make cleac and ratiomal decisions and enable them te develop a lewe] of
soclal and family interaction with which they feel comforiable, This may include an
maproveitient in family relatronships and the development of new soctal nerworks

Improve educanun and cmployment prospocts by assistng the individual oo access
EXIONG pponunities W iocrease thei employability and providing support to them
while (hey are underaking cducation or traming. or beeloniog voluntary or paid
eraployne et

Improve stability of housingSaceammadaiinm by assisting, the individual w accesy
opportunities for housing, or improvements in housing and w peovide support while they
arc undertaking any change 1 housing
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Appendix 12

Factors promonmyg effecuve treabmeant

Chogereg s The dwd Qwmariesian “theaging Mabre e comrmescemig aad dddagesacdd OF ORia i) 2
et ST Sl e 3ty A LK)

Resparch evidence supgests that a nomber of factors contribule to successia] teeatment
OUtCOmCs;

Rapid Access - many drug misusers present o feealmenl services i crisis when ey are
extremely vulnerable. However, as they can quickly 1nse motivatnn (o address their
problems, services need to gel chigps g realment withour delay

Systenalic asgessment and reatment matching — weatment micryenions must be
carefully matched 1o the necds of individual chents. It 15 impossible to concluds thar a
diug mususer who improved in a residential setting would necessanly have made the
TAIE 24Ins i a community-based programme. Good dssessment procedures and access
to a balanced range of treatment mierveniions are essential o ensure an oplimuin march
betwern a client’s needs, (reatment s€1tiogs and inlerventions

A comprehensive approach o care managerent o most cases, pharmacelogical
interveniions alone will not help oo break o pattern of drug dependency. Dinug problems
ave oltep closely associated with many other problems such as unemployment. family
breakdown and oritne. Although there 15 lmuked evidence in this area, the UK
Department of Health effectivencss review concluded rhat faluce 10 address wader Tide
CONICXE ISSUCS Taap SIOW GowsT o feverse proagress iz addressing drr misuse fselff "Lhis
underlines the need for a comprehensive care management apprnach thar atrends to the
individual's multiple needs.

Retention — keeping drig misusers in treatiment has shown to nerease their chances of
sucoess, WTOR:"™ lound that cliencs i short stay residential programmes who remained
N treatrment foe 28 days, and thoze whe remaincd in long-stay residential rehabditation
peogrammes for Y0 days, achieved better outcomes than those who stayed Boe shoroee
perinds. A number of factors conmibure e poor retention, melwdmg prolonged
assessment  procedures,  inflexible appruaches o dosage  policy m methadone
programmes, the lack of ancllary services {siuch as counselling, legal suppott and general
medical services) aml poor rapport heiween clienss and programne  counsellors.
Conversely,  deliverion ireatment wilhin a positive and  supportive  environment
ENCOUrAges people W Stay in reatment.

Co-prdinatinn the complex narure of drog dependency means a client may regue
varying combinacions of services and eatmeno mtereeotions ducing the ceorse of
teatment and recovery. In practice. this may imvolve 3 wide range of specrahst teealmeol
services and generic services working together o support indreidual chenis. Clase
Interagency co-operation and an effective syseem of care management are crucial, n
order o prevent clients Falling berween services, 1 avoid the duplication or eoussion of
mlerventioms and o ensure crmiinuity of care.

DA = Aaerieeal Troarens earooene Resodict sl 05 & fomrimrdinal study of 1075 dnag msusers
enterng 53 LUK treatmens sensces 17 {FRE e sty way priabishe oy part af the eTecinverss revige
cormrrrssiomed By oke DR Dape of Hadess se 190
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Appendix 13: Drug Strategy Objectives

I. Continue with out | Ensure that those most | All Youth Ongoing
of school and targeted | vulnerable to drug use focussed
informal drugs receive knowledge and | agencies
education sessions skills to make informed
with young people decisions about drugs
whao are vulnerable to | and drug use
drug use .
2. Extend funding for | Maximise contacts with | Chief Officers’ | Jan 2004
a full-time Detached | young people to deter Drug Strategy
Youth Worker from drug use, prevent | Group

experimental drug use (strategic)

from developing into

problem drug use. Offer | Guernsey

alternatives to drug use. | Youth Service

Promaote positive life (delivery)

gkills
3. Continue with and | Ensure that all schools | Education Ongoing
extend the work of the | have acoess to Council, Drug | Extend service from
Dirugs Education strisctured drugs Concern, September 2004
Partnership in schools | education sessions for Customs,

years & =11, with the Training

option of sessions for Dirug Strategy

younger pupils where Co~ordinator

Appropriate
4. Provide resources Chief Officers’ | Jan 2004
to enable teachers to Dirug Strategy
keep their drugs Croup
knowledge up to date
5. Hold infosmation Use established links Children March 2004
sessions for parents through the Education | Board,
and carers Council, Children Education

Board and other Council, Drugs

APENCHS Education

Parnemship,

&, Annval Drugs Inform and update the | Drug Scrategy | 2004
Awarcness Week community about Co-ordinator

current drugs issues Action Group

members

7. Produce up to date | Produce a range of Drug Strategy | Jan 2004
and locally relevant drugs related literature | Co-ordinator
literature with a local focus that

will be widely available

and accessible
8. Continue (o To inform, update and | Dirug Strategy Ongoing
develap the Drug provide information Co-ordinator ,
Strategy Website relevant to the

Bailiwick
2, Provide funding for | Ensure that prisoners Chief Officers' Jan 2004
group and individual | have the opportunity to | Drug Strategy
work in the Prison addregs their drug use | Group

whilst serving sentence | Drug Concern

(delivery)
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1. Provide grants for

targeted, proactive
initiatives

Encourage local
agencies fo develop
initiatives designed to
reduce the demand for
drugs

Chief CHTicers’
[Crug Strategy
Group

Action
Croup{delivery

Jan 20044

2.1. Provide grants

Encourage local

for cne-off specific | agencies to develop Drug Strategy
projects that deter | initiatives designed to Group
drug supplying deter the supply of Customs,
drugs Police
(Delivery)
2.2. Continue with | To deter potential drug | Customs Ongoing
the Customs couriers from being Drrug Strategy
Media Release recruited in t he UK Co-ordinator
Service Local PR
Company
2.3, Continue with | To inform travellers to | Customs Ongoing
the placement of the Bailiwick of the Dirug Strategy
posters at UK and | strong stance taken Co-ordinator
French departure Iocally agamst drug
points i OIS

3.1. Setupa

The service to address

NCH Youth

peripatetic advice | all aspects of young Housing
and mformation people’s concermns, but
service for young | with a particular focus
people on drugs, alcohol and

sexual health,

The service to be sasily

accessible and credible

to young people
3.2. Set up a text To provide a first point | NCH Youth Jan 3004
messaging helpling | of contact for young Housing
for young people people secking advice — | Project
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3.3, Develop work | To provide support and | Drug Related March 2004
with drug using practical help oo drug Agencies
parents using parents and to Children Board
ensure their children Family Centres
also have support Social Work
and Health
Staff
A ix 13
4.1, Adopt a tered | To provide clarity for Chief Officers’ | September 2003
system for drog the different levels of Dhrug Strakegy
treatment services service provision for Group
problem drug users
4.2 Setupa To provide a Board of Jan 2004
community based comprehensive Health,
treatment service approach which Probation
addresses all the necds Service, Drug
to enable recovery and Concern,
reintegration into Orther relevant
. .
4.3. Continue with To provide a treatment- | Probation Ongoing
the Criminal Justice | based aliernative (o Service,
Dirugs Services custody for offenders Drrug Concern,
Partnership between | with drug problems,
Drug Conocern and which addresses drug
the Probabion use and offending with
Service an overall aim w reduce
orf cease both
4.4. Provide core Ta enable the delivery Chief Officers' | Jam 2004
funding to Dmug of the core services of Dirug Strategy
Concern — advice, information and | Group
previously support o drug users
administered by the | and their families and
Board of Health syringe exchange
4.5, Develop To provide a supportive | Drug Concern | June 2004
community based environment which
drug user support ensures that recovering
Eroups drug users remain drug
free
4.6, Ensure that To prevent relapse and | Drug Concern, | March 2004
drug users on release | offer support in Frobation
from prison are mainiaining a drug- free | Service,
engaged, retained lifestyle Youth Services
and suppored
4.7 Ensure that GPs | To address the general | Drug Strategy | September 2004
Teceive training to healthcare needs for Co-ordinator
work effectively drug using patients UK providers

with drug using,
aLeTiLs




2067

4.9 Ensure chat all To enable service All drug January 2004
SETVICE USErs are delivery 1o be relevant | related
invalved in a process | o the needs of the agencies for
of consultation service user aduls and
young people
3.1. Continue To provide statistical Drug Ongoing
developing the information about Strategy Co-
Drug Misuse trends ordinator
Database To provide information
to enable service
development
5.2, Confinue to To ensure drug related | Drug Ongoing
audit local drug services are working to | Strategy Co-
SETVICES approved standards ordinator,
To cnsure that drug South West
services are adhering (o | Drug
best practice guidelines | Services
for service delivery and | Audit Project
5.3. Ensure all professionalism Drug Jan 2004
new and existing Strategy Co-
drug services ordinator
adopt a Quality
Assurance
approach
54, Continue to Ta ensure staff working | Dirug Ongoing
provide access to with drug users have Strategy Co-
quislity drug- the appropriate ordinator,
related training for | knowledge and skils off-Island
local staff providers
5.5. Provide To ensure that agencies | Choel Bdarch 2004
funding for local offering counselling are | Officers’
non-statutory working within Drug
drug-relared professional guidelines, | Strategy
agencies 1o train and providing safe Group
staff in counselling | interventions.
to &n approved To ensure that
professional counsellors recerve
standard quality supervision
5.7, Create a part- | To provide monitoring Chief Jan 2004
time post for a of Service Level Dfficers'
Commissioning Agreements and Drug
Dificer support for all agencies | Sirategy
providing drmag related Group,
sErvices Drrug
| Strategy Co-
crdinator,
Civil Service

Baard
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5.8 Provide Utilise the Dirug Drug Ongoing
strategic direction | Strategy Action Group | Strategy Co-
and information 0 monitor crdinator,
gharing between developments, identify | Drug
all agemicies good practice and Strategy

highlight changing Action

_needs Group

5.9 Continue with | To ensure CODSG, Omngoing
the post of Drug implementation of the Presidents’
Strategy Co- aims and obpectives of | Drug Policy
ordinator the Strategy Group

To monitor and

evaluate initiatives

To manage the Drug

Strategy budget

To develop research

programmes
5.10 Continue To develop policy Ongoing
with the Chief To provide strategc
Officers” Drug direction and
Strategy Group implementation of the
and Presidents’ Strategy

Drug Policy

Group, developing

these groups in

ling with changing

needs




2069

Appendix 14: Resource Requirements

Extend funding for a full
fime Detached Youth
Worker

Youth Work Project

1 x worker through Partnership
Agreement with the Detached

1.3

Continue with and
extenid the waork of the
Drugs Education
Partnership in schools

Partnership Agreement with Drug

Concemn and Customs

1500

20000

1.4

Provide resources to
enable teachers o keep
their drogs knowledge
up o date

BT

A0

1.6

Annual Dirugs
Awareness Week

Q500

9500

Q500

1.7

Produce up to date and
locally relevant
literature

EOO0

Continue to develop the
Drug Strategy Website

1500

1500

1500

1.9

Provide funding for
group and individual

Partnership Agreement with Dirug

Concern

L8000

1804

13000
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Provide grants for one-off specific

at UK and French departure points

projects that deter drug supplying

2.2 Continue with the Customs Media Q000 | 10000 | 10000
Release Service

2.3 Continue with the placement of posters 3000 | s000 | S000

Sl up A peripatetic
advice and information

Service Level Agreement with
Guernsey NCH Youth Housing

help line for young
people

Stautory Agency

service for young people | Project/NCH
Set up costs SR
Sessional Scaff costs SO0 | 3000 | SO0
3.2 | Setupa text messaging Service Level Agreement with non- 15000 | 5000 | S000




Set up & community based
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‘G grade Community

multidisciplinary treatment Psychiatric Murse (BOH -
SeTvice existing post)
1 x FTE Admin Warker - 20162 | 21070 | 23023
AAZ (BOH - new post)
1 x Drugs Worker. ZB000 | ZBO00 | 28000
Partnership Agreement with
Drug Concern
Sessional stalf cost 000 8OO0 B000
Premises costs; 5000 5000 SO0
Eental at the Orchard
Centre
Set wp costs 10000 | 0 0
Running Costs 3000 000 J000
Drrug testing 16000 | 17000 | 1B000
Continwe with the Criminal Service Level Agreement 33500 | 33500 | 33300
Justice Drugs Services with Drug Concern
Partnership between Drug (existing}
Concern and the Probation
Service
Move the core funding for Service Level Agreement 53000 | 53000 | 33000
Drug Concern from the Board | with Drug Concemn
of Health to the Dhug Strategy,
and provided sufficient funding
to deliver core services -
including syringe exchange
Ensure that GP's receive Training costs 2300 2500 2500
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Continue developing the Drug
Misuse Database
5.2 | Continoe 1o audit local drug Seuth West Drug Services | 10000 | 10000 | 10000
SETVICES Audit Project
her Consultants 5000 5000 | 5000
3.4 Continue to provide access to (HF-Island providers 25000 | 23DD0D | 25000
quality drug-related training for
Ipcal staff
Provide funding For local non- 10000 | 10000 | LODOD
statutory drug-related agencies
o train staff in counselling to
anm approved professional
standard
5.7 Create a part-time post for & I x 0.83 FTE worker - 25185 | 26105 | 26955
Commissioning Officer EGI] (new post)
5.8 Provide strategic direction and | D'rug Strategy Action 2000 2000 2000
information sharng between Group
_all agencies
Continue with the post of Drug | Salary 43250 | 44516 | 45819
Strategy Co-ordinator Training & Conferences | 8000 | B000 | 8000
Admin/IT supplies etc

TOTAL BUDGETARY REQUIREMENTS FOR 3-YEAR STRATEGY

Demand Reduction 9R000 100000 100000 298000
Supply Reduction 1 7000 20000 20000 57000
Young People & Families BO000 45000 45000 150000
Treatment 195538 188423 191347 575328
Data collection, monitoring | 150535 105421 146774 402730
& training

TOTALS 521073 458844 503141 1483058
Less Current Funding * 200000 200000 200000 00000
MNotes:

* These figures assume the continuation of the £200000 per annum funding
** Board of Health Annual budgetary allocation to reduce by 37000 per annum (11 1000
over 3-year period): see para.5.6. Prison budgetary allocation to be reduced by 6000
per annum (18000 over 3-year period): see para. 2.5.1
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Appendix 14b; Comparative Costs for 2003 & 2004

(New initiatives are highlighted)

Strategy 2003 2004
paragraph |  Budget Proposed
reference budget

Detached Youth Worker (increased to full time from | 2.1.2 5500 25000
2004)
Drugs Education Pannership (increased year groups | 2.2.2 BS00 18000

Frnni.‘!‘l]ﬂ-!li

2.4.3

10006

000

| Leaflets, literature
Dirug Stra

v Website

Cirants for targeted, proactive demand reduction

2.4.4

1500

1500

Customs media release service
Plac sters at UK and French o

Drug Misuse Database

6.1.4

G Grade Community Psychiatric Nurse

South West Dirug Services Audit

Other Consultants

Training for Professionals

Drug Strategy Action Group

Drug Strategy Co-ordinator — salary, administration, | 6.5 Fh624 73214
IT, conferences & printing

TOTALS 200000 221073

* Currently funded by the prison (@ £6000 per annum

" Currently funded from Board of Health £37000 per annum
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The Mresidet
Sigtes of Guommacy
Raval Court House
50 Peter Port
Cruemsey

oYL 2PE

21st August 2003

Thear Sir

Tresidents’ Drug Policy Group  Bailiwick Drug Strategy Z004- 2046

| cefer 1o the letier dated OF Awgust 2003 addressed 10 you by the Presiden! of the Boanl of
Health as Charman of the Presudenis” Dug Poliey Graup concermmg proposals oo the
gontinuation af 8 slrenglhensd Builiwick Dog Stratecy for a fucther thres years o Lbe end of
2{HH.

The Advizery and Finance Comnuites has noted, and s suppoettive of, the progress (hat has
been made in tackhng drup related issucs since the incoption of the enginal thros-wear
stralcsry.

The Coonmittes believes that the cutrens proposals for @ revised steacexy wall represenr 4
sigtaficant cloment in e efivts being made 1o coniibwe to retard problems developmg e the
cotumutly in relation to the use of dlegal dmgs. The mod=l proposed by the Drog Policy
Sroup provides an uwgr agency multidisciplinary approach, which 15 scen as wital n
containing the growil of preblems associated with the use of ilcgal drugs i the communiiy,

The Advisory and Finance Commiltee supporls the proposals of the Presidents” Doog Poleeys
{firoup and m so doimg potes that additional limancial and stall cesources will be required 1o
support the revised stratcgy. The Comnmuttes belicves, howeser, that such additional resources
must be seen in the context of the much preater cosis involved in addressing the problems
asgogialed with the wie of illgal drogs, inclwling customs and police resnorces, courl costs,
mrsdrn costs, health casls, indusery costs ste.

The Commiiles suppocts e proposals aod eocomrnends the Stares o oapprove all of the
resultant proposilions.

¥ ours Taithiully
L.C MORCGAN

President
States Adlvispry and Finsnce Commities
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The Stales ae asked o decide-

XX .- Whether, after consideration of the Report dated theé 7" August, 2003, of the States
Board of Health, they are of opinion:-

1. Toreaffirm the commitment of Lhe Stares of Guernscy to tackling 1he 15stoe af drug
misuse in 5 cohesive, muli-apency approach, duough the adopiion of 1he Ave pillars
an] the shjectives contained in the Bailivick Dmig Stralegy.

2. Toendorsc the aims of 1he Bailiwick True Slratewsy which are to.
reduce the demand for s
reduce the supply uf droys
provvice innlialives for poune people and lamilics
provvide a range of treatment services appropriate for doug users
prievide 2 svstern of data eollcetion, manitoring snd stall training.

3. Toapprove lhe abjectives oullined in Appendiz |3 1o that Repart, recognising
that (il consultation muwst ke place with the States Civil Service Board 10
seeure 1he sluff resoorces necessary to mplemcnt that Steatcey, aod v dircct the
States Civi] Service Board 1o have duz regard 1o the stafting umphications of the
Sdares” deciztan on the proposals in paragraphs 5.3.2 and .6 ol that Repoct whien
adimunistering the Staft Linmtation Policy.

4 Tadelegate respangibility Tor the implermentation ol (e Bailiwick Dme Stratcey
15 The Presitdents’ Druy Policy Group and the Chuaf Cfficers” Drag Strategy
Crruup.

To authorise the Seates Board of Adminisiration to submit a revenoe bodpet (o
2004 a1 a swim of £320,00H) in excess af the approved cash Dmat and 1o dirser he
States Advisory and Finance Commiltey 1o lake account of those costs when
recommiending fer Lhe States revenue allocations for 2003 and 2006,

(1]
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STATES HOUSING AUTHORITY

SCHEMES FOR THE PROVISION OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING — LEGISLATIVE

REQUIREMENTS

11™ August 2003

The President
States of Guernsey

Royal Court House
ST PETER PORT

Dear Sir,

SCHEMES FOR THE PROVISION OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING - LEGISLATIVE

REQUIREMENTS

Introduction

1. In a Policy Letter dated 29 December 2000, the Authority presented a preliminary
report on its investigations into partial ownership schemes operating in the U K.

2. The States resolved as follows:

(1) that the Authority should undertake further analysis of the means of introducing
partial ownership schemes in Guernsey; and

(i) that the Authority should report back to the States with its findings including full
details of the following:
(a) any legislation that may be required to enact such schemes;
(b) comparisons of the advantages and disadvantages of the various forms of

partial ownership;

(c) the funding and other implications.

3. Subsequently, in November 2002, the States debated a requéte signed by Deputy Berry
and seven other members that sought to link a shared equity scheme to the provision of
builder free plots.

4.  The States accepted an amendment and resolved as follows:

To instruct the States Housing Authority to consider a self build scheme as one
element of its broader initiatives on equity sharing and affordable housing, and
report back to the States as soon as possible, having regard to the following
principles.

o That the rules for such self build, equity sharing and affordable housing
schemes should be far less restrictive than those set out in the requéte.
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o That there should be no land zoned specifically for self build homes, but
instead the Island Development Committee should pursue policies which
will release sufficient development land to facilitate all equity sharing and
affordable housing schemes approved by the States.

The Authority has made substantial progress in its investigations into equity sharing
and affordable housing to the extent that two policy letters have been prepared setting
out their details. These are:

a)  Schemes for the provision of affordable housing - Legislative Requirements (this
current policy letter)

b)  Schemes for the provision of affordable housing - Operational Arrangements (to
follow)

Before submitting the second policy letter the Authority considers that the detailed
operational arrangements should be thoroughly examined as part of Action Area A of
the Corporate Housing Programme and against the principles set out in Mr Parr’s
Report on Guernsey’s housing market, which questioned the use of various subsidies in
relation to the operation of the market'. This examination is proceeding in liaison with
the Advisory and Finance Committee, who are the lead Committee for this action area.

In the meantime, the general principles of the proposals have been discussed with H.M.
Procureur, who has outlined some legislative measures which will be necessary, or
desirable, if the Authority’s proposals for affordable housing are accepted.

Some of these legislative measures may be regarded as property law reforms in
their own right, and become part of our general law whether or not the proposed
schemes are introduced, but they will be the minimum necessary for certain
affordable housing schemes, as currently envisaged, to be legally and practically
deliverable.

It is for this reason that the Authority has decided to submit this first policy letter to
deal with the legislative issues. These issues will require an enabling Order in Council,
and amendments to existing Orders in Council, which will necessarily take some
months to progress.

The Authority anticipates being able to submit the second policy letter setting out the
operational arrangements of the proposed schemes during the first quarter of 2004.

Although the Authority recognises that this is an unusual approach, this action should
assist in the early introduction of any schemes which have the States’ support when the
investigations under the Corporate Housing Programme have been completed.

A brief outline of alternative options is given below to assist in the understanding of the
legislative details that follow.

Outline of proposals

! Appended to the joint policy letter from the Advisory and Finance Committee and the Housing Authority
entitled “The Development of a Housing Strategy and Corporate Housing Programme” (Billet d’Etat II,
February 2003).
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The Authority’s forthcoming policy letter currently proposes the early introduction of
two schemes.

The first — “partial ownership” — is based on joint ownership of the dwelling, i.e. where
ownership of the freehold of the dwelling is owned in undivided shares jointly, by the
householder and another party, typically a housing association. (For an explanation of
undivided ownership, see below at paragraph 18.) Those shares would not necessarily
be equal. In such a situation, the householder may receive financial assistance to
purchase his share of the dwelling. This will be from a housing association, or from a
bank, in either case secured by a bond, i.e. registered charge, on the householder’s share
of the dwelling in the ordinary way. That share is not necessarily fixed, and the
householder may be given an opportunity to increase his or her share by purchase from
the housing association.

Under the second — “assisted purchase” — the householder will own the whole freehold
of the dwelling, but will receive grant funded financial assistance, provided through a
housing association loan to ‘top-up’ private sector borrowing and savings. The housing
association loan will be secured by a bond on the percentage of the value of the
property represented by the amount loaned.

The report also makes reference to a third option based on leasehold tenure, but H M
Procureur has drawn attention to certain problems with this option in Guernsey,
principally because of the difficulties in obtaining effective security, and enforcing that
security, over a leasehold interest, and in a lender in balancing the respective rights of
the landlord (typically but not necessarily a housing association) and the lender (which
may be the housing association, but which may be a commercial lender). It is proposed
that a separate report on leasehold schemes will be submitted after fuller investigations
and consultations.

Legislation required to implement Partial Ownership and Assisted Purchase Schemes

17.

It is essential in order to maintain the stock of social housing for those in need that the
provider, i.e. usually a housing association under the scheme — be it partial ownership or
assisted purchase — has the ability reasonably to control the householder’s share in a
joint ownership scheme, and the householder’s property in an assisted purchase scheme.
Such control will primarily be exercised through the contractual arrangements and rules
that will govern each scheme and which will bind the householders individually, but in
order to be effective these must be underpinned by legislation giving to the housing
association the requisite legal rights. A householder may cease to qualify for the
provision of affordable housing e.g. because his or her financial circumstances have
dramatically changed (winning the lottery) or the householder may die and the property,
or the householder’s share, become inherited by one or more persons who do not
qualify; or, in a more extreme case, because he or she simply cannot, and has no
reasonable prospect of ever being able to, fund his or her participation in the scheme;
or, most extremely, because he or she is in persistent breach of the rules applicable to
the scheme. In any such circumstance, the provider, usually a housing association, must
have the right to require that the property (in an assisted purchase scheme), or the
householder’s share of the property (in a partial ownership scheme) be returned to the
housing association to enable it to be made available to another needy recipient of
social housing. What follows represents H.M. Procureur’s considered views as to the
minimum enabling legislative requirements on the basis of the outlines of the schemes
as presently formulated.
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When freehold property is held jointly in undivided shares (that is, where each joint
owner owns a proportion, which may be equal or unequal, of the whole), under
Guernsey law either party to the joint ownership can require the joint ownership to
come to an end at any time. If there is disagreement between the joint owners about
how the property is then to be dealt with, in effect, one party will buy out the other
party, or the property is sold and the net proceeds divided between the joint owners,
taking account of the parties’ respective shares. (Less usually, the property itself may
be split into separate parts, but this is unlikely ever to arise in the context of an
affordable housing scheme.)

Joint undivided ownership will be used for a partial ownership scheme, the provider
owning a share of the property and the householder owning the remaining share. There
will be circumstances in which the right of a householder effectively to buy out the
provider’s (i.e. housing association’s) share, or to force a sale, would be undesirable,
and negate the purposes of the scheme. For example, where dwellings are specifically
created for an affordable housing market, controls to retain those dwellings in that
market must be appropriate. These could take the form of an agreement between the
householder and the housing association, in which the former would waive his right to
bring the joint ownership to an end. This may be necessary to protect a scheme from
unscrupulous householders. In order to reinforce this position, it will be necessary to
provide by legislation that an agreement between co-owners, that one or both of them
should not be able to buy the other out, or to force a sale, should be available in respect
of the property and be valid and binding on the parties and their respective successors in
title, and that such agreement should otherwise be enforceable in accordance with its
terms. Execution of such an agreement would be a condition of participation in a
partial ownership scheme. If this is agreed, it will be necessary in the legislation to
provide for the protection of commercial (as opposed to housing association) lenders,
and to creditors of the householder. In the context of an affordable joint ownership
housing scheme, it will be the householder, by agreement, who forgoes his right to
require the joint ownership to come to an end, and the housing association would — as it
must — retain rights with respect to the share of the householder: see below.

The Authority has been advised that a housing association scheme should be supported
by legislation to make certain that rights in real property in the nature of rights of ‘first
refusal’, or pre-emption, and rights in the nature of options, are enforceable against
successors in title indefinitely, unless the original parties stipulate to the contrary. Such
enforceability as against subsequent owners would be a stipulation in the agreement
between the housing association and the first householder.

The housing association would need to be given a right of first refusal (or pre-emption),
if the householder wished to sell the property, or his share in the property, to be able to
sell the property, or that share, to another qualifying affordable householder, but which
right the housing association could waive if the householder found a purchaser who
fulfilled the criteria for owning property from the affordable housing stock, and the
housing association agreed to the householder’s prospective purchaser, and the
prospective purchaser agreed to become bound by the rules of the scheme. As between
the housing association and the first householder, such a right would be enforceable, but
doubt exists in Guernsey law whether the right is enforceable by the housing association
against subsequent owners of the property, or of the householder’s share in the property.
Accordingly, legislation is again necessary to remedy that doubt, to provide that those
who subsequently buy the property, or the selling householder’s share, are bound by the
housing association’s right of first refusal.
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There may also be circumstances in which a housing association may wish or need to
reacquire the property (in an assisted purchase scheme), or the share of a property (in a
partial ownership scheme) held by a qualifying affordable householder; for example,
where the householder’s financial circumstances have so changed as to disqualify him
from remaining in affordable housing, and which enable him to move to the ‘ordinary’
market without financial difficulty; or where the householder is in breach of the rules
applicable to a housing scheme: see above at 17. This could be achieved by giving the
housing association, in such circumstances, the right to require the householder to
transfer the property, or his interest in the property, to the housing association, or to the
housing association’s assignee, i.e. another qualifying affordable householder approved
by the housing association as the successor householder. Such a right, as in the case of
a right of ‘first refusal’, needs to be enforceable against successors in title indefinitely
unless the original parties stipulate to the contrary.

H.M. Procureur has also advised that, in working out the details of any of the two
schemes referred to above, further legislative requirements may emerge, particularly in
relation to:

(a) saisie, 1.e. the process by which a lender, which may be a housing association,
enforces its bond, 1.e. security, over property;

(b) the eviction of a householder whose property, or share of a property, has been
reacquired by the provider, e.g. housing association, perhaps because the
householder no longer qualifies for affordable housing, or because the
householder is in breach of his agreement with the provider;

(c) the legislation relating to tax on rateable values;
(d) the legislation relating to Dwellings Profits Tax;

(e) the enforcement of the rights of a provider in the event of a householder refusing,
neglecting or avoiding to comply with any requirements of a scheme imposed by
the provider.

If and insofar as further legislative requirements may emerge (and it must be
acknowledged that H.M. Procureur has tendered his advice without the specific details
of either of the affordable housing schemes being finalised), these can be the subject of
further policy letters, and the legislation would be drafted so as to be flexible to meet
changing circumstances. Indeed, H.M. Procureur recommends that the legislation
recommended in paragraphs 19, 21 and 22 of this Policy Letter should be drafted as
enabling legislation, giving the States power, by Ordinance, to make the necessary legal
provisions generally in relation to the provision of social housing by housing
associations and others, and in relation to partial ownership and assisted purchase
schemes. This will provide flexibility and allow the States to legislate more quickly and
responsively, if necessary.

Document Duty

24. Bonds in favour of the States (such as those which secure lending under the States

Home Loans Scheme) are exempt from document duty.
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The States has agreed that housing associations should be established to undertake the
provision and management of social housing which would otherwise fall exclusively on
the Housing Authority.

With the introduction of affordable housing schemes in Guernsey, it is inevitable that
housing associations will be prime participants in such schemes and it is also likely that
bonds will be registered in favour of a housing association.

Although housing associations are independent of the States, they are dependent (to a
large extent) on public funding through a system of grants, and in view of this the
Authority recommends that the Document Duty legislation be further amended to
provide that a bond given by a borrower in favour of a housing association in respect of
a loan for a private dwelling, or a share in a private dwelling, and secured on that
dwelling or share, should be exempt from document duty.

On a more general note the Authority considers that there is also merit in further
amending the Document Duty legislation so that all conveyances and bonds connected
with the provision of social and assisted housing should be exempt from Document
Duty, and that the Advisory and Finance Committee should be empowered to grant
exemption to any such scheme as it may prescribe by regulation.

Recommendations

The Authority recommends the States:

1.

To approve that legislation be enacted along the lines set out in paragraphs 19, 21, 22
and 23 of this report.

To approve that the Order in Council entitled The Document Duty (Guernsey) Law
1973, as amended and the Ordinances under it, be amended along the lines set out in
paragraphs 24 to 28 of this report.

I should be grateful if you would lay this matter before the States with the appropriate
propositions including one directing the preparation of the necessary legislation.

Yours faithfully

B. M. FLOUQUET

President
States Housing Authority
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[he President
Slatcs of Guemsey
Bl Conrt Thywe
51 Peter Port

LIC TETY

1 2er

hth Aagust 20000

| R 11
PARTIAL OWNEHRSHIF SCHEVIES - LEGISLATIVE REQLIREMEMNTS

[ refer o the policy Teter doted 1 Avgrusl 20003 from the Fresident of che Tousing
Authaniny o The aboes sultjeel.

The Adssory and Fingnee Contmitter considers 1har o wolld be overy belpliol no nwke
progress with the legislibon negessary lo provide sffoedable housing on a partial
warnerslip hasis wlinlst the Howsing Scrharnty considers Cae operiiana] ammngemones for
inplementimne, the scheoee.

Tl iniciative Tors part of the Comporoe Towsieg Progromne which s recoemised
mater of pricedy by the States. Accondingly, the Comicilter has agreed That e drafing
G Tegislakian sheauld be gieen Calewary A7 Cop privognyd stalus,

Yours Tcihinly

L. MORGAN

Presuden
Aalvisnry and Fimance Con-mitce

The States are asked to decide;-

XXI.- Whether, after consideration of the Report dated the 1 1" August, 2003, of the States
Housing Authority, they are of opinion:-

1. That legislation shall be enacted along the lines set out in paragraphs 19, 21, 22 and 23
of that Report concerning partial ownership and assisted purchase schemes.

2. That the Order in Council entitled The Document Duty (Guernsey) Law 1973, as
amended and the Ordinances under it, shall be amended along the lines set out in
paragraphs 24 to 28 of that Report.

3. To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give effect to their
above decisions.
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STATES HOUSING AUTHORITY

SALE OF INCOMPATIBLE STATES HOUSE - LA PLANQUE FARM
The President
States of Guernsey
Royal Court House
St. Peter Port
Guernsey
11 August 2003

Dear Sir

Sale of Incompatible States House - L.a Planque Farm

Introduction

By resolution of the States on 31 January 1996 (Billet d’Etat XXIV, 1995), it was agreed, in
principle, that any dwellings administered by the States Housing Authority which were not
originally purpose built by the States for letting to States’ tenants could be sold if they were
considered by the Authority to be incompatible with the needs of States’ tenants.

In the body of the report leading to this resolution, it was stated that individual sales would be
subject to the approval of the Advisory and Finance Committee under the States Land and
Property Transaction Rules, provided inter alia that the properties did not exceed £250,000 in
value.

With few exceptions, sales of incompatible States’ houses have subsequently been approved
by the Advisory and Finance Committee under these Rules, the sales being notified to the
States as part of the annual Policy and Resource Planning and Budget Reports.

However, because the threshold by which the Advisory and Finance Committee may approve
sales is £250,000 it is necessary for the Authority to seek States’ approval to the sale of the
incompatible property known as “La Planque Farm”.

La Planque Farm

La Planque Farm is a three-bedroomed house situated in Les Ozouets in the parish of St Peter
Port. The property is unoccupied as it requires extensive internal works in order to bring the
property up to any form of habitable state.

Additionally, the entire building, including the boundary walls, have been entered on to the
Register of Ancient Monuments and Protected Buildings by the Heritage Committee. The
implications of this have been to limit significantly the Authority’s ability to modify the
property’s internal layout in order to adapt it to provide modern, social rented housing.

This has been confirmed by the fact that the property has been offered to the Guernsey
Housing Association, who likewise have been unable to come up with an economically viable
scheme to effect its refurbishment as part of their social housing portfolio.
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Consequently, the Authority took the decision to dispose of the property, with the intention
that the net proceeds of the sale be credited to the States Houses Fund for the purpose of
assisting in the funding of new States’ houses, in accordance with the recent States’
resolution transferring the balance of previous sales to that Fund (Billet d’Etat XIV, 2003) .
The Authority sought the advice of three local estate agents, who confirmed that the property
was suitable for conversion into a substantial family home. Based on their advice, the
property was marketed at a price of £280,000, and an offer for that price has been accepted
by the Authority (subject to States’ approval) from a private purchaser who wishes to acquire
the property for their own occupation as a family home.

Recommendations

The States Housing Authority accordingly recommends the States as follows:

(1) to agree the sale of the property known as La Planque Farm, Les Ozouets, St Peter Port;

(i) to authorise the Advisory and Finance Committee to approve the terms under which the
property is sold;

(iii) to agree that the net proceeds of the sale be credited to the States Houses Fund to assist
with the funding of replacement States’ housing stock.

I would be grateful if you would lay this matter before the States with appropriate

propositions.

Yours faithfully,

B. M. FLOUQUET

President
States Housing Authority

(The States Advisory and Finance Committee supports the proposals)
The States are asked to decide:-

XXIL- Whether, after consideration of the Report dated the 11™ August, 2003, of the States
Housing Authority, they are of opinion:-

1. To agree the sale of the property known as La Planque Farm, Les Ozouets, St Peter
Port.

2. To authorise the States Advisory and Finance Committee to approve the terms under
which the property is sold.

3. That the net proceeds of the sale be credited to the States Houses Fund to assist with
the funding of replacement States’ housing stock.
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STATES TOURIST BOARD

HOTEL CASINO CONCESSION

The President
States of Guernsey
Royal Court House
St Peter Port
Guernsey

GY1 2PB

21 August 2003

Dear Sir,

HOTEL CASINO CONCESSION

Introduction

1.

On the 15™ October, 1998, the States, after consideration of a report dated the 18™
August 1998 from the States Tourist Board entitled “Future Hotel Investment —

The development of a hotel with casino facilities in Guernsey” (Billet d’Etat XX,
1998) resolved:

(a) That appropriate legislation shall be enacted which will permit casino
gaming in the Island of Guernsey, as set out in paragraph 8.14 of that
Report.

(b) To authorise the States Tourist Board, in conjunction with the States
Advisory and Finance Committee, to initiate, or continue, discussions with
persons or corporate bodies interested in establishing a casino in
Guernsey, on the understanding that a condition on the granting of the
casino licence will be substantial hotel investment on the same site as the
casino.

(c) To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give
effect to the above decisions including such consequential and incidental
matters as may arise in the course of drafting.

In taking the decision to lay the proposals before the States the Board took into
consideration the following factors with regard to the tourist industry in the Island
at that particular time:
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(a) That there were two former hotel sites along Glategny Esplanade, which
were zoned for hotel redevelopment, but which had not succeeded in
attracting the necessary financial investment. In this regard it was noted
that investment in new hotel stock was very difficult to obtain and the
Island did not have a system of financial assistance in place, as exists in
other destinations, that would help significantly to attract such investment.

(b) The Board had identified, against a background of a gradual reduction in
the total number of tourism beds, a strategic need to upgrade the overall
quality of the Island’s core bed stock in order to meet market trends. A
new high quality hotel would provide an exciting new facility, but also a
stimulus to the market to improve standards overall.

(c) In particular the Board had identified an opportunity for the Island,
through the establishment of a new high quality hotel, more effectively to
meet accommodation needs related to the finance industry and to develop
a new market based on the provision of this accommodation.

(d) Preliminary discussions with hotel and casino operators in the UK had
indicated that, based on experience elsewhere including the Isle of Man,
there was a real opportunity to establish a hotel with a casino in Guernsey.
Their opinion was that the income from such a casino would be considered
by potential investors as sufficient encouragement to redevelop hotel
accommodation and facilities in the Island. However, due to the size of
the Island’s market and population, this benefit would only be realised if
restricted to one single casino licence being granted.

(e) The Board’s investigations had shown that, provided that a casino was
well established and regulated, fears that had been expressed about the
consequences of a casino in Guernsey were unfounded. Indeed,
worldwide, casinos were becoming an increasingly acceptable and sought
after form of entertainment, particularly in established visitor destinations.

These reasons were explained fully in the above Report that laid before the States
a proposal that the granting of a casino concession should be conditional on the
development of a new hotel. However, as a result of an amendment during the
States’ debate the parameters were broadened to include the possible
incorporation of a casino as part of the development of an existing hotel. It is
understood that this amendment was put forward primarily on the basis that there
should be a “level playing field” in order to permit existing hotels the possibility
of establishing a casino.

The 1998 Report sets out in some detail the arguments for permitting a casino in
Guernsey. The arguments put forward remain substantially the same today.
Indeed, since that date there continue to be new casinos opening in various
destinations, including in the United Kingdom, which, traditionally has had very
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stringent requirements with regard to casino provision. The Budd Report has
reviewed the existing UK legislation in the light of current circumstances and
advocated a substantial liberalisation of the current requirements. If put into
practice, and it is understood that this is the firm intention as soon as it can be
practically achieved, this will make it significantly easier for casinos to open and
operate.

However, in terms of the opportunities to set up a casino locally, a major change
has occurred in that in planning terms the two zoned hotel sites along the
Glategny Esplanade have been lost to tourism. The lack of availability of a
specifically zoned site for a new hotel has significantly affected the application
process for the hotel casino concession and further reference to this is made later
in this Report.

Following the 1998 States’ Resolution, the Board quickly made contact with
international hotel and casino organisations and a number indicated initial interest
in the project. Some visited the Island in order to investigate the local situation
and possibilities further. However a point was reached in these discussions when
it became apparent that, whatever information the Board could give on its
intentions with regard to the nature and size of the casino, little real further
progress could be made until the necessary legislation for the regulation of the
casino had been put in place.

This legislation would define the regulations under which the casino would
operate, based on the nature, style and size of casino thought to be appropriate for
the Island.

Legislation

8.

The legislation governing the establishment and operation of a casino in Guernsey
is of course the responsibility of the Gambling Control Committee, and the
Board’s view has always been that any casino in Guernsey had to be operated to
the highest international gaming regulation standards. However, the complexity
of the legislation required to govern a casino operation is such that it can take a
significant time for the required legislation and administrative procedures to be
put into effect, particularly as any new jurisdiction entering the market often sets
new and higher standards in regulation that are subsequently emulated elsewhere.

Following the necessary investigations and consultations the Guernsey Gambling
Commission Law, 2001, and the Gambling (Casino Gaming) Ordinance, 2001
finally came into effect on the 30™ January, 2002, and The Hotel Casino
Concession (Guernsey) Law, 2001, on the 31" July, 2002. It was at this latter
point that the Board was able to begin the formal application process for the Hotel
Casino Concession. The Board is grateful for the co-operation of the Gambling
Control Committee, the Gambling Control Commission, and the Law Officers, in
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the work it has carried out to date in ensuring that the necessary legislation is in
place.

The Hotel Casino Concession Application Process.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Towards the end of 2001, and with the formal application process on the horizon,
the Tourist Board decided that, in view of the potential scope and complexity of
the Concession application process, it would be advisable to obtain independent
professional advice and assistance. This would be particularly important in
ensuring that the application process was seen to be carried out in a fully
professional and impartial manner with no possibility of any local bias, however
unintentional.

In particular there would be a need to evaluate and assess in an objective and
transparent manner what would be complex and comprehensive application
documents and information. Special competencies in the technical expertise
relative to the complexities of a casino operation were also important. Further,
and in accordance with the application procedures specified in the legislation
approved by the States, the integrity, background and financial resources of all
applicants would need to be investigated to be sure that they would have the
resources to bring the project to fruition, and were persons of probity and
experience to whom a casino licence would be likely to be granted. This was
especially important given the status and recognition Guernsey holds as a well-
regulated finance centre.

Having obtained the agreement of the Advisory and Finance Committee, Ernst &
Young were appointed in December 2001 to carry out this work, but this
appointment was on the basis that a concession fee would cover all of the costs
associated with the hotel casino concession application process. The States would
cover the cost of the involvement of Ernst & Young and would recover it from the
successful applicant (by way of a one-off concessionary fee). The Board can
confirm that the advice and assistance received from Ernst and Young have been
instrumental in making sure that the application process has been carried out in a
fully professional manner, and in investigating, assessing, and advising on
applications. This has played a major part helping to formulate the proposals that
the Board is recommending to the States in this Report.

Application documents were circulated very quickly following the coming into
force of the Hotel Casino Concession Law in July 2002, and the date of return of
the applications was initially set as the 29™ November 2002. Some 19 interested
parties had requested and received the application documents, and 5 organisations
took up the offer of a site visit to the Island. The visit included a meeting in order
to answer any questions that the interested parties might have on the application
process and on the Board’s intentions with regard to the casino. These meetings
took place in September, 2002.
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At these meetings further questions were raised as to the detailed regulations
(under the provisions of the Casino Gaming Ordinance (Guernsey), 2001), and
operations policy that would be put in place and would clearly fall to the
responsibility of the Guernsey Gambling Control Commission. These
Regulations would have clear implications for the financial projections for, and
results of, the casino and therefore for the whole project. However at that point
the States had not yet had the opportunity of appointing the Commissioners, who
were subsequently appointed at the States meeting in December 2002.

Having considered the matter in depth the Board agreed, albeit reluctantly, to
extend the date for the receipt of the applications until the 22" April 2003. This
was to ensure that, with the final Regulations in place, all applications could be
submitted on as complete a basis of fact as possible. In this regard the Board
continued to be conscious that the whole process had to be as transparent, fair,
and open as possible, with a particular need to minimise any possibility of
misunderstandings that might result from a lack of information. Any such
misunderstandings could subsequently lead to significant problems in the future.

The Preferred Applicant

16.

17.

18.

19.

The full application process has now been completed and the Board has to report
to the States that only one application for the Hotel Casino Concession has been
received, and that is from St Pierre Park. While to some extent the Board is
disappointed by this outcome, it has to say that, following a full and detailed
assessment, the quality of the submission made for a casino to be integrated into
the future development of the St Pierre Park Hotel as a resort destination is
excellent.

The application is submitted in the name of St Pierre Park Casino Ltd., but the
submission makes clear that St Pierre Park Casino Ltd is a subsidiary of St Pierre
Park Hotel Ltd, to whom, under the provisions of the Hotel Casino Concession
(Guernsey) Law 2001, the Hotel Casino Concession would be required to be
granted. This is in turn a subsidiary of Ann Street Group Ltd., the share capital of
which has recently been acquired by C.I.Traders, a company listed on the
Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange, and currently the
largest trading company in the Channel Islands.

As noted above, the Board’s original proposals were to encourage the
development of a new hotel on one of the sites that was then available along the
Glategny Esplanade, with a view to establishing a new hotel with a casino,
potentially by a substantial hotel operator from outside the Island. For example a
facility of this nature already exists on the waterfront in Douglas, Isle of Man.

In discussions with casino hotel developers however it became clear that the lack
of clear availability of a site severely constrained their interest in pursuing the
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project as originally conceived. These discussions also emphasised that there
were different market opportunities that, if pursued, could also be of significant
advantage to the tourist industry in the Island. This was the development of a
new form of “resort destination”, whereby the casino would be integrated
with and form part of a range of other leisure and recreational facilities.

In effect, while there has been a general move towards the more independent
traveller, there continues to be a healthy demand for good quality resort facilities
of this nature, particularly for short breaks. There are therefore excellent reasons
to support such a development. The benefits would not be restricted to the hotel
itself as visitors will spend money throughout the economy and may well return,
potentially occupying alternative accommodation. Other accommodation
providers will also benefit from the improved facilities at St Pierre Park, as the
casino and other facilities will also be available to their residents who may well
not be seeking the style of accommodation offered by St Pierre Park itself.

In reality such a “resort” is a further development of what the St Pierre Park
provided when it was first built, but since that time the expectations of the market
in terms of quality and facilities have significantly increased. There now exists,
however, an opportunity to reinvigorate that market and provide a high quality
hotel which will meet the expectations of those seeking a leisure break of this
nature in Guernsey, as well as of business visitors who appreciate a
comprehensive range of facilities in an up-to-date and modern resort complex.

The St Pierre Park Application

22.

How St Pierre Park Hotel might meet that opportunity is set out in a
comprehensive vision, which is fully described and illustrated in the St Pierre
Park application documents. As part of a re-positioning of the hotel, this vision
incorporated the following components as parts of a substantial redevelopment
and possible extension of the hotel (the master plan illustrating the development
has been attached to this Report as the first page of Appendix C):

A total renovation of all 130 existing bedrooms, including 12 new suites
Increased conference facilities

Increased banqueting facilities

A new casino offering a salle privée, eight gaming tables and up to 100
machines

New fine dining and brasserie restaurants with an al fresco terrace

New bars and nightclub

New 36-seat screening room for presentations

24 new bedrooms, bringing the total to 154 rooms

New leisure venue incorporating an exclusive leisure club, golf,
swimming pool, floodlit tennis, gym, spa/treatment rooms/squash

Related additional staff accommodation and car parking

O O O O

O O O O O

(@)
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The total capital cost was estimated as being of the order of £25m.

The Board noted this vision for the future development of St Pierre Park, and took
the view that, when completed, the redeveloped hotel/resort complex would
provide an exciting addition to the Island’s accommodation portfolio, and set a
new standard for high quality accommodation in the Island. It would therefore
have no hesitation in recommending to the States that the Hotel Casino
Concession be granted to St Pierre Park Hotel Ltd., subject to the substantial
investment proposed for the redevelopment of the St Pierre Park Hotel.

However attractive the vision, it was essential to ensure that the project could
come to fruition in reality and with this in mind the Board entered into detailed
discussions with St Pierre Park in order to establish a firm programme for the
completion of the project.

As a result of these discussions, a specific requirement emerged which was to
ensure that the entire project could be completed without placing the hotel in a
situation of significant financial risk. With this objective in mind, the following
factors were considered to be of particular importance:

(a) While preliminary estimations of cost had been included in the application
documents, the detailed design has not yet been completed, costed, and put
out to tender;

(b) In particular, the level of local building costs is now estimated to be some
47% above the UK, as compared with 25% in the original submission;

(c) Given current room occupation rates, the construction of the additional
bedrooms at the beginning of the project is unnecessary and would be a
drain on the finances of the hotel. The construction of these rooms can
only be justified once the hotel’s room occupation rates have reached a
satisfactory level;

(d) Provision of additional rooms at this stage could lead to lower occupancy
rates and therefore downward pressure on room rates, not just at St. Pierre
Park, but also in other similar establishments;

(e) If the project were completed as one single phase, it would be necessary
for the hotel to be closed for a long period of time, which in itself would
be expensive, but would also subsequently lead to the need for an
expensive re-launch.

The result of these discussions is that it was agreed to recommend a phased
approach to the achievement of the project, which is summarised in the following
paragraphs. It is also described in greater detail in the draft legal agreement that
is attached as Appendices A and B to this policy letter, and which has been drawn
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up with the assistance of the Law Officers of the Crown to be legally binding on
both parties to guarantee that the development timetable as set out is achieved. It
should be noted that it is recommended that the casino licence be granted in
respect of Phase 1, but subject to further developments being completed
within a specified timescale, or subject to particular conditions.

Phase 1
(a) The construction and development of all areas on the ground floor of the
central block of the St Pierre Park premises (including reception,

conference and banqueting areas, restaurant and nightspot).

(b) The construction and development of the casino on the first floor of the
hotel, above the restaurant and nightspot).

(c) The construction and development of 12 new suites on the first floor of the
central block.

(d) The remodelling and renovation of 32 en suite rooms situated on both the
first and second floors of the central block.

(e) The development of a brasserie restaurant on the lower ground floor to
replace the restaurant currently known as the Café Renoir.

It is estimated that the value of the investment related solely to Phase 1 of the
project amounts to some £13 million, with the requirement being that it is completed
within three years of the date of the States’ Resolution.

28.

29.

Phase 2

Within two years of the completion of Phase 1, the completion of the remodelling
and renovation of the remaining bedrooms currently available in the hotel, and
situated in the accommodation block attached to the central area.

Phase 3
The construction of the 24 additional bedrooms, which would become a

requirement within two years of the average annual room occupancy of the rooms
already situated in the hotel reaching 75%.

Other Elements

30.

Under the recommended phased approach as outlined above there are two
elements of the overall project which, in order to simplify its implementation,
have been removed as specific requirements of the grant of the casino concession:
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(a) The development of the new leisure complex to the west of the hotel itself.
This will be pursued as a separate project and within a timescale which is
suitable to the needs of that particular project. The intention is that it will
be completed in the early stages of the implementation of the overall
scheme.

(b) The new staff accommodation block. Staff accommodation is considered
to be an operational issue for the St Pierre Park and other hotels within the
group. Adequate staff accommodation available to the group already
exists on other sites and this is available to be allocated to the St Pierre
Park hotel, at least to cover the staff accommodation needs which have
been identified at the beginning of the project. However, it should be
noted that additional staff accommodation will be likely to be required in
the future and will be pursued at the appropriate time.

The Board would have preferred that the proposals for the redevelopment of St
Pierre Park could have been in one single phase, but given the cost and
complexity of the project it does recognise both the practical and financial
difficulties of achieving the project in this way. To do so would have meant the
whole hotel closing for a period of at least nine months. It is of the view that the
proposals as agreed between the Board and St Pierre Park Hotel represent a
realistic and practical way forward, in particular in that:

(a) A capital investment of £13million in the development of the hotel,
required to be completed prior to the release of the casino concession,
already represents in itself a significant investment in the future of
tourism, and will also be supplemented by further investment in the future.

(b) A result of the investment will be a substantial remodelling and re-
positioning of the hotel to meet emerging market expectations for both
leisure and business tourism

(c) As referred to above, the redevelopment of St Pierre Park as a high quality
hotel will not only provide an exciting new facility in itself, but will also
act as a stimulus to other accommodation providers to improve standards
overall

In terms of future possible costs to the States, the business plan submitted makes
it clear that there is an allowance both to recover the costs of the Hotel Casino
Concession application process (£400,000), and of the annual administration costs
of the Guernsey Gambling Control Commission (estimated at £350,000 per
annum). Therefore, there will be no additional costs incurred by the States.

The Board is firmly of the view that the proposals put forward by St Pierre
Park Casino Ltd fully meet the States’ requirement that the granting of the
casino concession should be subject to substantial hotel investment on the
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same site. It therefore has no hesitation in recommending that, in
accordance with the provisions of the Hotel Casino Concession Law 2001, the
States agree to grant the Hotel Casino Concession to the applicant, subject to
the phased redevelopment of the St Pierre Park Hotel as specified in the
Conditions attached as Appendices A and B.

Given that the casino will not be operational at least until the first phase has
been completed, it is recommended that on this occasion the Concession is
granted for a period of ten years from the date of effective completion of
Phase 1 of the project.

Other Issues

35.

The Board would like to make particular reference to the following issues that are
relevant to the development as submitted:

a. Policing and Supervision of Casino

A casino clearly has a high cash turnover and can therefore be open to abuse
through cheating, theft, and other illegal activities. It is for this reason that a well-
regulated and supervised casino has in place the appropriate equipment and
administrative systems and procedures to, as far as possible, prevent such abuses
from happening. This issue is primarily the responsibility of the Guernsey
Gambling Control Commission, but the proposals as submitted make provision
for a Compliance Committee under the chairmanship of a former Chief Inspector
of the United Kingdom Gaming Board. This Committee will report directly to the
Chairman of C.I. Traders, but will also have the right to be in direct contact with
the Commission. In addition, in its management structure the applicant has
secured the services of persons with a wide range of experience of casino
operations and compliance requirements.

b. Staff Accommodation

A casino requires a significant number of staff in its operation (in this instance up
to 52), and the requirement to employ experienced and properly licensed staff will
mean that in its early years at least, there will be a need to find significant
numbers of staff from outside the Island who have suitable casino gaming
experience. With this in mind St Pierre Park have undertaken to provide suitable
staff accommodation, initially from its existing pool of accommodation, but if
required through the construction of an additional block of staff accommodation.

c. Staff Training
The submission lays great emphasis on the need for effective staff training, both

to ensure the correct operation of the casino for the already qualified staff, but
also to train local persons for employment in the casino industry in due course.
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d. Marketing Strategy and Business Plan

Included in the submission are a detailed Business Plan and Marketing Strategy.
These have been reviewed by Ernst & Young who have stated that in their view
the projections are based on reasonable, prudent assumptions.

e. Maintenance and Operations Policy

A matter to which the Board has given priority is the need to ensure that once the
facility is established it is maintained and operated to the appropriate standards
over the whole term of the Concession. This is true both of the casino itself and
of the associated hotel and other facilities which are included in, or are a
condition of, the Concession. The legislations requires, as a condition on the
grant of the concession, the production of a detailed operations policy, including
maintenance schedules, as well as provisions for the concession to be suspended
or revoked if this policy is not adhered to.

f. Social Impact

As with other forms of gambling, ‘problem gambling’ can become an issue for a
small minority of the population. The applicants have stated that they will draw
up and apply a Code of Conduct for staff to assist them in detecting and dealing
with ‘problem’ and ‘compulsive’ gambling. In this regard it should be noted that
the Chairman of the Compliance Committee is a Trustee of Gamcare, the UK
Charity that has a broad experience of this issue. They have also stated that they
are happy to co-operate in any research that may be undertaken into problem and
compulsive gambling and its consequences.

g. Planning

The Board has noted that the applicants are already in discussions with the Island
Development Committee and understand that there is scope within the scheme for
the Island Development Committee’s concerns to be satisfactorily addressed, in
order to facilitate the development going ahead as scheduled.

Conclusion

36.

Therefore the Board is recommending that the States grant the Hotel Casino
Concession to St Pierre Park Hotel Ltd., subject to the substantial investment
proposed for the redevelopment on a phased basis of the St Pierre Park
Hotel. Such a grant would be subject to the Conditions attached to this report as
Appendices A and B. The Board is of the view that, when completed as specified
the redeveloped hotel/resort complex will provide an exciting addition to the
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Island’s accommodation portfolio, and set a new standard for high quality
accommodation in the Island.

The Tourist Board believes that the process of investigating and bringing forward
proposals for a casino with associated hotel investment in Guernsey has been fully
worthwhile. Given the financial and planning constraints under which the tourism
industry operates within the Island, the outcome represents a unique opportunity
to develop a tourism and leisure facility that will be of benefit not just to tourism,
but also to the social life of the community.

C.I Traders is a local company that has a broad experience of the local tourism
economy, the markets that it can attract, and how it can be developed for the
future. In the Board’s view, it is particularly significant that a local company with
a detailed knowledge of the local economy is prepared to make such a substantial
investment in the future and which is an important indicator of confidence to
other potential investors. In addition, the comprehensiveness of the application
documents gives confidence that the project has been thoroughly investigated and
assessed.

The Board therefore has no hesitation in laying the following Recommendation
before the States for approval.

Recommendation:

40.

41.

The Board recommends the States to resolve that a concession under the
provisions of the Hotel Casino Concession (Guernsey) Law, 2001, shall be
granted to St Pierre Park Hotel Limited in respect of the premises to be known as
the St Pierre Park Hotel and Casino Resort, Rohais, Saint Peter Port:-

(a) provided that the conditions precedent set out in Appendix A to
this Letter are satisfied within 3 years of the date of the making of
the resolution; and

(b) subject to the conditions appearing in Appendix B to this Letter.

I should be grateful if you would lay this matter before the States with appropriate
propositions.

Yours faithfully

G. J. NORMAN

President
Guernsey Tourist Board
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Appendix A
Conditions precedent

That the proposed concessionaire completes, in accordance with the written
permission of the Island Development Committee given under the provisions of
the Island Development (Guernsey) Law, 1966 (as amended), the following
elements (the “Phase 1 elements”) of the development described in its application
for the concession dated 22 April 2003 (the “Application”) -

(a) construction and development of all areas on the ground floor of the hotel
premises, as indicated at pages 6 and 7 of that part of the Application
contained in an A3 folder entitled “Book Two - Plans and Illustrations”
(“Book Two”) ;

(b) construction and development of the casino premises, as indicated at page
23 of Book Two;

(c) construction and development of the 12 new suites (comprising 2 Grand
Suites, 5 Master Suites, 3 Junior Suites and 2 Family Suites), as indicated
at page 34 of Book Two;

(d) remodelling and renovation of the 10 existing ensuite rooms, as indicated
at page 22 of Book Two;

(e) remodelling and renovation of 22 bedrooms on the second floor of the
central block of the hotel premises; and

() development of the restaurant currently known as Café Renoir on the
lower ground floor of the hotel premises, as indicated at page 42 of Book
Two and described there as the “Brasserie Restaurant”,

completion to be demonstrated to the reasonable satisfaction of the Tourist Board
(the “Board”) by production to the Board of a statement of or certificate verifying
practical completion of the Phase 1 elements signed by the project architect or
engineer.

That the proposed concessionaire obtains the conditional agreement of the
Guernsey Gambling Control Commission to the grant of a licence under the
provisions of the Gambling (Casino Gaming) Ordinance, 2001 (a “casino
operator’s licence”) in respect of that part of the development described in the
Application constituting the casino premises.
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3. That the proposed concessionaire obtains or obtains the agreement in principle of
the Board to the grant of a permit granted under the Tourist Law, 1948 (as
amended) (a “hotel boarding permit”) in respect of that part of the development
described in the Application constituting the hotel premises as developed
incorporating the Phase 1 elements.

(Note - For the purposes of these conditions precedent, it is acknowledged that the
Application consists of a conceptual development and that changes to or departures from
the development described in the Application may be necessary in order, for example, to
satisfy statutory and regulatory requirements or to achieve a workable detailed design.)
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Appendix B

Conditions of grant

That the concessionaire shall, within 2 years of the date of completion of the
Phase 1 elements, complete in accordance with the written permission of the
Island Development Committee given under the provisions of the Island
Development (Guernsey) Law, 1966 (as amended), that element of the
development (the “Phase 2 element”) described in the Application and involving
the remodelling and renovation of the remaining bedrooms of the hotel premises.

That the concessionaire shall complete within 2 years of the Effective Date (as
defined below) in accordance with the written permission of the Island
Development Committee given under the provisions of the Island Development
(Guernsey) Law, 1966 (as amended), that element of the development (the “Phase
3 element”) described in the Application and involving the construction of 24
additional bedrooms, as indicated at page 27 of Book Two. For the purposes of
this condition the “Effective Date” is that anniversary of the date of completion of
the Phase 2 element which -

(a) occurs within the period of 8 years from the grant of the concession; and

(b) forms the last day of a period of 12 months during the course of which the
average occupancy level of the bedrooms and suites comprised in the hotel
premises (as developed incorporating the Phase 1 elements and the Phase
2 element) amounts to 75 per cent.

That the concessionaire shall for the duration of the concession operate the hotel
and casino premises and all other facilities located upon the 45 acre St Pierre Park
Hotel and Casino Resort site described in the Application (the “concession
premises”) in accordance with a written statement as to their operation (the
“operations policy”) submitted by the concessionaire and approved by the Board
or as from time to time varied by agreement in writing with the Board (the
agreement of the Board not to be unreasonably withheld).

That the concessionaire within 6 months of the grant of the concession becomes
the holder and thereafter for the duration of the concession remains the holder of -

(a) a valid and current casino operator’s licence in respect of that part of the
concession premises constituting the casino premises; and

(b) a valid and current hotel boarding permit in respect of that part of the
concession premises constituting the hotel premises.

That for the duration of the concession remaining after completion of the Phase 2
element, the standard of quality of the concession premises is maintained as that
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of at least 4 Star when applying to the premises the quality criteria normally used
in respect of the grading of hotel accommodation in Guernsey unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Board (the agreement of the Board not to be
unreasonably withheld).

6. That for the duration of the concession the concessionaire shall, upon 24 hours
notice -

(a) allow members and representatives of the Board to enter the concession
premises; and

(b) provide all reasonable facilities for those members and representatives,

for the purposes of inspecting the premises and satisfying themselves that the
premises are being operated in accordance with the terms, conditions and
provisions of the grant of the concession and the Hotel Casino Concession
(Guernsey) Law, 2001 and, in particular, without limiting the generality of this
condition, the operations policy.

7. That the concession is personal to the concessionaire and any right, obligation,
duty or benefit exercisable or arising under the concession shall not be assigned to
any other person by the concessionaire without the consent of the States.

8. That the concessionaire shall pay to the States upon the grant of the concession a
fee of £400,000.
9. That the concessionaire shall not at any time during the period of the concession

become insolvent and, for the purposes of this condition, “insolvent” means, in
relation to the concessionaire -

(a) that its affairs have been declared in a state of "désastre" by its arresting
creditors at a meeting held before a Commissioner;

(b) that an interim vesting order has been made against it in respect of any of
its real property in Guernsey;

() that a liquidator (provisional or otherwise) has been appointed to act; or

(d) that it has passed a special resolution requiring the company to be wound
up voluntarily.

(Note - For the purposes of these conditions, it is acknowledged that the Application
consists of a conceptual development and that changes to or departures from the
development described in the Application may be necessary in order, for example, to
satisfy statutory and regulatory requirements or to achieve a workable detailed design.)
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The States are asked to decide:-

XXIII.- Whether, after consideration of the Report dated the 21* August, 2003, of the
States Tourist Board, they are of opinion:-

That a concession under the provisions of the Hotel Casino Concession (Guernsey) Law,
2001, shall be granted to St Pierre Park Hotel Limited in respect of the premises to be
known as the St Pierre Park Hotel and Casino Resort, Rohais, Saint Peter Port:-

(a) provided that the conditions precedent set out in Appendix A to that Report are
satisfied within 3 years of the date of the making of the resolution; and

(b) subject to the conditions appearing in Appendix B to that Report.
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STATES PROCEDURES AND CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE

MATTERS RELATING TO ELECTIONS

The President
States of Guernsey
Royal Court House
St Peter Port
GUERNSEY

GY1 2PB

15™ August, 2003

Dear Sir,

MATTERS RELATING TO ELECTIONS

l.

This letter sets out the States Procedures and Constitution Committee’s
sundry proposals relating to election procedures. Reference to Articles relate
to articles in The Reform (Guernsey) Law, 1948, as amended and reference to
Sections refer to sections in The Reform (Amendment) (Guernsey) Law,
1972, as amended.

Article 25 (3) — Validity of current Electoral Roll

2.

Article 25 (3) provides that the Electoral Roll shall remain valid “until such
date as the States may determine by Ordinance”. The compilation of a new
Electoral Roll will commence in September, 2003 and it is intended that the
new Roll will enter into force on the 1% March, 2004. The Committee
therefore recommends that an Ordinance be enacted terminating the validity
of the current Electoral Roll at 2359 hours on the 29" February, 2004.

Article 26 (3) — Polling Stations

3.

This Article provides that in each of the Electoral Districts, polling stations
shall be established by the Constables of the Parishes concerned in accordance
with any Resolution of the States for the time being in force. With effect
from the 2004 General Election the Island will be divided into seven electoral
districts. The Douzaines of the several parishes were asked to indicate where
they proposed to establish polling stations in their parishes at next year’s
election. They were asked, in reaching their decisions, to have regard to the
needs of voters who are physically disabled, and, in particular, whether the
proposed venues have suitable access for wheelchair users.
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The Douzaines have advised the Committee that they propose to establish
polling stations as set out below.

St. Peter Port South: 1. The Constables’ Office, Lefebvre Street
2. St. Stephen’s Community Centre, St. Stephen’s
Lane

St. Peter Port North: 1. Beau S¢jour Leisure Centre, Amherst
2. St. John’s Church Hall, Les Amballes

St. Sampson: 1. Chambre de la Douzaine, Le Murier
2. Church Schools, Grandes Maisons Road
Vale: 1. The Douzaine Room, Rue Maraitaine
2. Island Scout Headquarters, Rue Mainguy
Castel: 1. La Chambre de la Douzaine, Les Beaucamps
2. Cobo United Air Rifle Club, Le Feugré
West: 1. The Douzaine Room, Grande Rue, St. Saviour
2. The Church Hall, Le Neuf Chemin, St. Saviour
3. La Salle Paroissiale, Les Buttes, St. Pierre du Bois
4. La Chambre de la Douzaine, Rue du Belle, Torteval
5. La Chambre de la Douzaine, Rue des Landes,
Forest
South-East: 1. La Salle Paroissiale, Grande Rue, St. Martin

2. The Douzaine Room, Route de St. André,
St. Andrew.

The Committee recommends that polling stations be established as set out in
paragraph 4 and that Resolution XII (2) of the 24" November, 1999 be
rescinded.

Article 29 (3) — Date of Election

6.

Article 29 (3) states that the date for the holding of any election shall be
appointed by Ordinance and Article 29 (1) provides that General Elections
shall be held in the month of April. The Committee, having regard to the
dates on which Good Friday and Easter Monday occur in 2004 (9" and 12"
April respectively) recommends that the General Election be held on
Wednesday, 21% April, 2004.

Article 34 (11) (a) — Closure of Electoral Roll prior to Election
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In the past the Electoral Roll could only be amended during a given period (1%
September to 17" January). That has now changed and the Electoral Roll can
now be amended at any time but the Law provides that it shall be closed for a
period prior to an election. Article 34 (11) (a) provides that the Electoral Roll
shall be closed, in respect of an election for the office of People’s Deputy, on
the date appointed by Ordinance of the States and, during the period
beginning on the date of closure and ending on the date of the election, no
entry in the Electoral Roll shall be made or amended. Mindful of the
considerable work involved in compiling and printing copies of the Electoral
Roll for candidates and for use at the polling stations, the Committee proposes
that, in respect of next year’s General Election, the Electoral Roll be closed on
1 February, 2004.

The Registrar-General of Electors will, however, accept during the period
commencing 1* September 2003 and ending on 31° January, 2004
applications for registration from persons who will attain the age of 18 years
before the 1°' March, 2004. The Committee has been advised that the Law
would not presently allow for persons who attain the age of 18 years between
the 1*" March and the date of the election to be included on the Roll. The
Committee will be asking the Law Officers to consider this point with the
intention of proposing an amendment to the Law which would enable anyone
who has attained the age of 18 years on election day to vote. Unfortunately it
will not be possible to implement this change before the 2004 General
Election.

Article 39 — Hours of Polling

9.

10.

11.

Article 39 (1) provides that every polling station shall be open from 10.00
a.m. to 8.00 p.m. and Article 39 (2) states that the States may, by Ordinance,
vary the times at which polling stations shall open and close and that polling
stations may open and close at different times in different Districts.

The Election (Variation of Hours of Polling) Ordinance, 1978 provides that,
in the Electoral District of St. Peter Port, every polling station shall open at
9.00 a.m. and close at 8.00 p.m. The Electoral District of St. Peter Port will
cease to exist for the purpose of the election of People’s Deputies and will be
replaced by two new districts — St. Peter Port South and St. Peter Port North.
A new ordinance is therefore required to establish the hours of polling in
those districts if polling is to commence earlier than 10.00 a.m.

The Constables and Douzaine of St. Peter Port have considered the matter and
recommend that the hours of polling in the two districts of St. Peter Port be
extended, that is from 8.00 a.m. to 8.00 p.m., in order to give the electors
greater flexibility in attending the polling stations. The Committee concurs
with that recommendation.
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Article 44 — Electoral Expenditure

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Article 44 (1) provides that no candidate in any election shall in respect of
such election expend any sum of money or give any value in money’s worth
otherwise than in accordance with such provisions as shall, from time to time,
be prescribed by Ordinance.

The maxima prescribed by The Electoral Expenditure Ordinance, 2001 are as
follows:
People’s Deputies: £183 plus 13 pence per elector
Constables, Douzeniers,
Procureurs of the Poor
and Overseers of the Poor £46 plus 3.25 pence per elector.

The system of relating the maxima to the number of electors in each electoral
district was introduced prior to the 1994 General Election and removed
certain inequalities between the several parishes. The present rules mean that
the maximum that may be spent ranges from approximately £900 in St. Peter
Port to about £250 in Torteval.

A fine balance has to be maintained in determining the appropriate level at
which electoral expenditure must not be exceeded. On the one hand it has to
be high enough to allow a candidate a reasonable chance of carrying out a
campaign in which he can, by various means, get his views over to all of the
electorate in the District. On the other hand it must not be so high as to give a
wealthy candidate an unfair advantage over a candidate of more modest
means.

There are about 26,000 persons (some 60% of the eligible population) on the
current electoral roll. Vigorous attempts will be made during September and
October of this year to increase that figure significantly. It is estimated that
approximately 45,000 people are eligible to enrol. If an enrolment rate of
90% were achieved then there would be in the region of 40,000 electors at
next year’s General Election. As the seven electoral districts are broadly
similar in size it is likely that, if a 90% enrolment were achieved, each district
would have something between 5,000 and 6,000 electors.

The system in other jurisdictions, whilst of interest, is not of particular
assistance in determining this matter in the Guernsey context. In Jersey
candidates are not restricted as to the sum of money which they may spend or
which may be expended on their behalf. In the Isle of Man, whilst there are
strict provisions in the Isle of Man Representation of the People Act, 1995
relating to treating and bribery of the electorate, there are, as in Jersey, no
limits on the amount which may legitimately be spent by or on behalf of a
candidate to promote his election. Election candidates in the Isle of Man are
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19.

20.

21.

22.
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able to claim reimbursement from the Treasury for the cost of posting a 50g
manifesto to each elector.

In the United Kingdom the constituencies are considerably larger. For
example, there are over 104,000 electors in the Isle of Wight constituency:
even the smallest in population, the Western Isles, has nearly 22,000 electors
— four or five times the likely size of a Guernsey district. In terms of land
area the range is even more marked: the constituency of Ross, Skye and
Inverness West covers over 3,500 square miles. The smallest constituency is
Islington North with an area of 2.8 square miles. In Guernsey the districts
range from 1.3 square miles (St. Peter Port North District) to 7.6 square miles
(West District). In the United Kingdom a candidate is currently restricted to
spending no more than £5,483 plus 6.2 pence per elector — this equates to
£6,841 in the constituency with the least electors (Western Isles). The
political parties also have an election expenditure limit which is £30,000
multiplied by the number of constituencies contested by it, thus if a party
contested 630 seats its expenditure limit would be £18.9m.

It has often been represented to the Committee that the electoral expenditure
limit should be set at a sufficiently high level to enable a candidate to post his
manifesto or, alternatively, that free postage should be provided, as in the Isle
of Man. The cost of doing this in Guernsey (if the electorate increases
considerably) would be in the region of £90,000.

The Committee does not favour totally free postage as it believes there is a
danger that spurious candidates might emerge whose prime objective was to
avail themselves of a free mail-shot to a section of the electorate to promote a
particular cause which may be divorced from any political aspirations. It
does, however, support the provision of assistance with the cost of postage on
a 50:50 basis. Assuming 5,500 electors per district postage, at current rates,
would be approximately £1,200 of which the States would pay £600. Thus if
there are 60 candidates in the next General Election the maximum cost would
£36,000. The cost may well be less as some candidates may not choose to
avail themselves of the facility, others may post only to a section of the
electorate and some candidates may combine their mailings.

An alternative would be for the States to arrange for candidates’ manifestos to
be collated and mailed in one envelope. This would clearly reduce
significantly the cost of postage to about £8,500 but it takes away from
candidates the choice of delivering some manifestos by hand and others by
post. In addition to the postage costs there would be the cost of collating the
sets of manifestos and enveloping them.

Beyond the cost of postage candidates have to print the manifestos and
purchase envelopes. Further, they may wish to pay for posters and press
advertisements. The Committee therefore proposes that the maximum sum
that may be expended by a candidate in an election for the office of People’s
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Deputy be restricted to £1,200. In addition, the Committee recommends that
the States defray 50% of the cost of postage incurred in posting an envelope,
not exceeding 100g. in weight, to each elector in the district concerned. The
States Advisory and Finance Committee has agreed for this provision to be
funded from its existing budget.

As will be noted in paragraph 13, the prescribed maxima in parochial
elections is presently set at one-quarter of the relative figure in People’s
Deputies’ elections. This means that the maximum that may be spent ranges
from approximately £225 in St. Peter Port to about £60 in Torteval. It has
been represented to the Committee that these figures do not allow a candidate
to carry out a proper campaign. Again it is argued that a candidate should be
able to mail a manifesto to each elector.

In this case the Committee does not concur with that view. The Committee
firmly believes that if the maxima in parochial elections is set too high it will
act as a strong disincentive to many potential candidates. The Committee
acknowledges, however, that the present figures are probably too low. Rather
than continuing with the present per capita rates it proposes that the parishes
be grouped in bands of broadly similar-sized districts, with allowable
expenses being set as follows:

St. Peter Port: £600

St. Sampson, The Vale,
The Castel, St. Martin: £400

St. Saviour, St. Pierre du
Bois, St. Andrew: £250

Torteval, The Forest: £150

Section 4 — Register of Absent Voters

25.

This Section provides that a register be kept, “divided into ten sections, one
for each Electoral District”. The Committee recommends that this section be
amended by Ordinance (see paragraph 27) to reflect the change from the
present ten electoral districts to the seven new districts.

Section 7 — Documents to be sent to Absent Voters

26.

This Section requires the Registrar-General of Electors to send the ballot
paper and other documents to the absent voter “by posf”. From time to time
electors have to leave the Island at short notice and often request that the
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ballot paper be handed to them. At present the Registrar-General cannot do
that as the Law requires the documents to be sent by post. It is proposed that
this section be amended by Ordinance (see paragraph 27) to allow the
Registrar-General to hand a ballot paper to the elector in person, upon
production of photographic identification, such as a passport or driving
licence.

Section 15A — Postal Voting

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Section 15A of the 1972 Law allows the States, by Ordinance, to make
provisions as they think fit in relation to postal voting and an Ordinance may,
inter alia, amend any provision of that Law.

On the 17" May, 2002 the States directed the States Procedures and
Constitution Committee to submit proposals to provide “that postal ballots
shall be available to all electors and not just those who are disabled or absent
from the island”.

In the 2000 General Election of the 15,569 persons who voted, 662 (4'/,%)
did so by means of postal votes. At present to qualify for a postal vote the
elector must be a person who

= will probably be out of the Island on election day, or

= is blind, or

= s suffering from a physical defect or disability, or

= is detained in prison.

When the law was changed in the United Kingdom to allow postal voting on
demand requests for postal votes doubled. If the hoped-for increase in the
number of persons enrolled comes to fruition and if there is a consequent
increase in the turnout at next year’s election there could be as many as 2,000
postal votes issued if postal voting on demand is allowed. The Registrar-
General normally employs a temporary member of staff in the period leading
up to a General Election but it is anticipated that possibly an additional one, or
even two, members of staff may be needed during March/April 2004.

Notwithstanding the increased workload which postal voting on demand will
inevitably cause, the Committee acknowledges that it is a significant means of
encouraging electors to vote and therefore recommends that postal voting on
demand be introduced for the 2004 General Election.

Recommendations

32.

The States Procedures and Constitution Committee recommends the States to
agree:
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(1) (a) that polling stations be established as follows:

St. Peter Port South:

1.
2.

The Constables’ Office, Lefebvre Street
St. Stephen’s Community Centre,
St. Stephen’s Lane

St. Peter Port North:

1.

2.
St. Sampson:
1.
2.
Vale: 1.
Castel: 1.
2
West
1.
2.
3.
4,
5.
South-East:
1.
2.

Beau Séjour Leisure Centre, Amherst
St. John’s Church Hall, Les Amballes

Chambre de la Douzaine, Le Murier
Church Schools, Grandes Maisons Road

The Douzaine Room, Rue Maraitaine
Island Scout Headquarters, Rue Mainguy

La Chambre de la Douzaine, Les Beaucamps
Cobo United Air Rifle Club, Le Feugré

The Douzaine Room, Grande Rue, St. Saviour

The Church Hall, Le Neuf Chemin, St. Saviour

La Salle Paroissiale, Les Buttes, St. Pierre du Bois

La Chambre de la Douzaine, Rue du Belle, Torteval

La Chambre de la Douzaine, Rue des Landes,
Forest

La Salle Paroissiale, Grande Rue, St. Martin
The Douzaine Room, Route de St. André,
St. Andrew.

(b) that Resolution XII (2) of the 24™ November, 1999 relating to the
establishment of polling stations be rescinded;

(2) that legislation be enacted to provide that:

(a) the validity of the current Electoral Roll shall cease at 2359 hours
on 29" February, 2004;

(b) a General Election of People’s Deputies be held on Wednesday,
21% April, 2004;

(c) 1in respect of the aforesaid General Election, the Electoral Roll
shall be closed on 1% February, 2004;
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(d) the hours of polling in the electoral districts of St. Peter Port South
and St. Peter Port North shall be from 8.00 a.m. to 8.00 p.m.;

(e) the maxima for electoral expenditure shall be prescribed as
follows:
(1) In elections for the office of People’s Deputy - £1,200;
(i1) In elections for the offices of Constable, Douzenier,
Procureur of the Poor and Overseer of the Poor:-
St. Peter Port: £600
St. Sampson, The Vale,
The Castel, St. Martin: £400
St. Saviour, St. Pierre
Du Bois, St. Andrew: £250
Torteval, The Forest: £150;

(3) that The Reform (Amendment) (Guernsey) Law, 1972, as amended, be
further amended to provide that:

(a) reference to the Register of Absent Voters being divided into “ten”
sections, one for each electoral district be amended to “seven”
sections;

(b) the Registrar-General of Electors be enabled to hand ballot papers
to absent voters in person upon production of satisfactory
photographic identification;

(c) postal voting be available on demand;
(4) that the States defray 50% of the cost of postage of an envelope not
exceeding 100g in weight incurred by candidates in elections for the

office of People’s Deputy to each elector in the electoral district
concerned.

33. I should be grateful if you would lay this matter before the States with
appropriate propositions including one directing the preparation of the
necessary legislation.

Yours faithfully,

R.C. BERRY

President
States Procedures and Constitution Committee
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(NB The States Advisory and Finance Committee supports the proposals)
The States are asked to decide:-

XXIV.- Whether, after consideration of the Report dated the 15™ August, 2003, of
the States Procedures and Constitution Committee, they are of opinion:-

1. (1) That polling stations be established as follows:

St. Peter Port South:
1. The Constables’ Office, Lefebvre Street
2. St. Stephen’s Community Centre,
St. Stephen’s Lane

St. Peter Port North:

1. Beau Sejour Leisure Centre, Amherst
2. St. John’s Church Hall, Les Amballes
St. Sampson:
1. Chambre de la Douzaine, Le Murier
2. Church Schools, Grandes Maisons Road
Vale: 1. The Douzaine Room, Rue Maraitaine
2. Island Scout Headquarters, Rue Mainguy
Castel: 1. La Chambre de la Douzaine, Les Beaucamps
2. Cobo United Air Rifle Club, Le Feugré
West 1. The Douzaine Room, Grande Rue, St. Saviour
2. The Church Hall, Le Neuf Chemin, St. Saviour
3. La Salle Paroissiale, Les Buttes, St. Pierre du Bois
4, La Chambre de la Douzaine, Rue du Belle, Torteval
5. La Chambre de la Douzaine, Rue des Landes,
Forest
South-East:
1. La Salle Paroissiale, Grande Rue, St. Martin
2. The Douzaine Room, Route de St. André,
St. Andrew.

(2) That Resolution XII(2) of the 24" November, 1999 relating to the
establishment of polling stations shal be rescinded.

2. That legislation shall be enacted to provide that:

(1) the validity of the current Electoral Roll shall cease at 2359 hours on 29"
February, 2004;
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(2) a General Election of People’s Deputies shall be held on Wednesday, 21%
April, 2004;

(3) inrespect of the aforesaid General Election, the Electoral Roll shall be
closed on 1* February, 2004;

(4) the hours of polling in the electoral districts of St. Peter Port South and St.
Peter Port North shall be from 8.00am to 8.00pm;

(5) the maxima for electoral expenditure shall be prescribed sa follows:
(1) In elections for the office of People’s Deputy - £1,200;

(i1) In elections for the offices of Constable, Douzenier, Procureur of
the Poor and Overseer of the Poor:-

St. Peter Port: £600
St. Sampson, The Vale,

The Castel, St. Martin: £400
St. Saviour, St. Pierre du

Bois, St. Andrew: £250
Torteval, The Forest £150.

3. That the Reform (Amendment) (Guernsey) Law, 1972, as amended, shall be
further amended to provide that:

(1) reference to the Register of Absent Voters being divided into “ten”
sections, one for each electoral district shall be amended to “seven”
sections;

(2) the Registrar-General of Electors shall be enabled to hand ballot papers to
absent voters in person upon production of satisfactory photographic
identification;

(3) postal voting shall be available on demand.
4. That the States defray 50% of the cost of postage of an envelope not exceeding
100g in weight incurred by candidates in elections for the office of People’s

Deputy to each elector in the electoral district concerned.

5. To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give effect
to their above decisions.
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STATES PROCEDURES AND CONSTITION COMMITTEE

PARLIAMENTARY PRIVILEGE

The President
States of Guernsey
Royal Court House
St Peter Port
GUERNSEY

GY1 2PB

15™ August, 2003

Dear Sir,
PARLIAMENTARY PRIVILEGE

1. On the 17™ May, 2002 the States resolved, inter alia “To direct the States
Procedures and Constitution Committee to report to the States and submit
appropriate proposals ... for ... the introduction of legislation establishing the
principle of Absolute Privilege for proceedings in the States”.

2. The Panel appointed to review the Machinery of Government in Guernsey
(The Harwood Panel) reported on this matter in November, 2000 as follows:

“During the course of its review the Panel became aware that the
extent of legal privilege for States Proceedings was open to
debate and interpretation. The Panel noted with some surprise
that there was an absence of local legislation dealing with this
issue. The Panel was aware that legislation had been enacted in
Jersey, conferring unqualified privilege.

The Panel has consulted with Her Majesty’s Procureur, Mr G R
Rowland, QC, and a summary of his advice on this issue is
included amongst the summary of advice he has given on other
matters set out in Appendix IV to this Report.

For the obvious reason, inter alia, that the States of Guernsey has
the discharge of primary legislative functions, the Panel believes
that the States should be accorded the same status as a national
assembly in other parliamentary jurisdictions and should not be
regarded as being equivalent to a local authority in the United
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Kingdom. The Panel would support a claim for Absolute
Privilege.

For clarification and for the avoidance of doubt the Panel would
concur with the view that the States should enact legislation
recognising the principle of Absolute Privilege for Proceedings of
the States in debate and in documents or reports published by the
States. It would be a matter for the Presiding Officer and
standing rules of procedure to ensure that this immunity was not
abused by States Members during the course of debate. The
Panel also recognises that in such circumstances the Members of
the States would wish to create a Standing Committee of
Privileges to review any alleged breach or abuse of Privilege by
its Members.”.

The questions put to Mr. G. R. Rowland, Q.C., (at that time Her Majesty’s
Procureur) referred to above, were:

“To what extent do States members have the protection of
privilege in relation to statements made during the course of
States debates? I understand that in Jersey legislation is in place
that specifically recognises and confers such privilege. I am not
aware of equivalent legislation in Guernsey. Is it the view of the
Crown Officers that there is an implied right of privilege? Does
that privilege extend also to statements made in Committee
meetings?”.

Mr. Rowland’s response was in the following terms:

“In English Law and Guernsey Law, every man is entitled to his
good name and to the esteem in which he is held by others. He
has a right to claim that his reputation shall not be disparaged by
defamatory statements made about him by a third person without
lawful justification or exercise.

However on grounds of public policy, no defamatory action lies
in respect of statements, however defamatory and damaging,
made in certain particular circumstances. Statements so made
are said to be privileged. They fall into two classes according to
whether the privilege is “absolute” or “qualified”.

Absolute Privilege

defamation. It confers protection even when the words
complained of are published maliciously. Protection is therefore
given to the persons who publish words with the full knowledge of
their falsity and with the express intention of defaming another.
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One well known example in England are words spoken by a
Member of Parliament in the course of proceedings in
Parliament. This privilege is enshrined in the Bill of Rights.
Another example are words spoken by a judge in his judicial

capacity.

Qualified Privilege

protection is only available where a person who publishes words
did so without malice and without any indirect or improper
motive - in this context this would mean honestly published.

Examples of cases of Qualified Privilege are words spoken in the
discharge of a public or private duty, or where there is a
legitimate common interest in their subject matter shared between
the defendant and the person or persons to whom the words were
published.

Are statements made in the States of Deliberation privileged?

It is arguable whether there is Absolute Privilege in respect of
words spoken by members of the States in the course of debate in
the assembly but there is little doubt that there is Qualified
Privilege. In the Royal Court in 1971 in the case of Wells v
Hammond the Royal Court held that an untrue defamatory
statement made in the States of Alderney was protected by
Qualified Privilege. As the words were not spoken maliciously
the arguable defence of Absolute Privilege was not in issue.

Alderney has specifically legislated for the matter. Section 41(3)
of the Government of Alderney Law, 1987, as amended, states as
follows :

“(3) For the avoidance of doubt, any statement
made by a member of the States or by the
President in the course of the proceedings of a
meeting of the States shall, for the purposes of
the laws of defamation, enjoy qualified
privilege.”

This amendment to the 1987 Law was introduced by section 1(c)
of the Government of Alderney (Amendment) Law, 1999.

In Guernsey the matter of privilege and its extent remains a
matter of common law. A legal argument might be advocated
that a statement made in the States of Deliberation is protected by
Absolute Privilege on the basis of the case of Chenard v Joachim
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Arissol 1949 AC. 134 (a Privy Council case concerning the
Legislative Assembly in the Seychelles). That case followed a
case in New South Wales, Australia where it was held that there
was Absolute Privilege. The Court held that it arose from an
inherent necessity. Because there is no statutory provision
clarifying the position as to immunity from legal proceedings for
defamatory statements there is uncertainty as to the extent of
privilege with respect to statements made in the States of
Deliberation, in Committee, in a Rule 23 answer or published in
a Billet d’Etat.

In Jersey the position has been clarified by statute.
Article 37 of the States of Jersey Law, 1966 states as follows :-

“Immunity from Legal Proceedings.

No civil or criminal proceedings may be
instituted against any member of the States for
words spoken before or written in a report to,
the States or a Committee, or by reason of any
matter or thing brought by him therein by
petition, bill, proposition or otherwise.”

The issue of Privilege is a matter of substantive law and not of
procedure.”.

The Report of the States Advisory and Finance Committee and the States
Procedures and Constitution Committee debated by the States from the 14"-
17" May, 2002 stated:

“While the Harwood Panel made no recommendations in respect
of privilege, it did address this matter in its Report, having
consulted H M Procureur, and suggested that consideration be
given to the introduction of legislation establishing the principle
of Absolute Privilege for proceedings of the States. The Joint
Committees concur with the comments of the Panel.”.

The States make the law and raise taxes and the Members are accountable for
their decisions and their expenditure of public money. In the States it should
be possible to air any grievance, regardless of the power, wealth or status of
those criticised. In order to carry out those duties without fear or favour,
Members should be accorded proper immunity and the Committee therefore
recommends that legislation be enacted on the lines of Article 37 of the States
of Jersey Law, 1966 set out in full in the previous paragraph.

In making this recommendation, however, the Committee is conscious of the
maxim that the counter-balance to privilege is responsibility. The Harwood
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Panel stated that “the States would wish to create a Standing Committee of
Privileges to review any alleged breach or abuse of privilege by its
Members”. The Committee agrees that a mechanism is required whereby
abuse of privilege can be investigated but does not consider that a standing
committee of the States is the best way of dealing with the issue.

In the House of Commons the procedure is that the House may refer an
allegation of abuse to the Committee of Standards and Privileges which then
investigates the matter and reports back to the House. If the complaint is
substantiated then the House has power to reprimand, suspend or expel the
offending member. There is no right of appeal or review against such a
decision of the House. An expelled member may, however, stand as a
candidate in the by-election caused by his expulsion.

Even in the House of Commons cases of alleged breaches or abuse of
privilege are few and far between. Such cases will be even less frequent in
Guernsey and the Committee firmly believes that a permanent committee to
consider such matters is both un-necessary and undesirable. For the sake of
future flexibility the Committee recommends that the legislation introducing
the principle of absolute privilege should simply empower the States, by
resolution, to make provision for the investigation of allegations of breach or
abuse of privilege including the power to reprimand, suspend or expel a
Member found to have breached or abused the privilege.

It would then be for the States on a future occasion to pass an appropriate
resolution. However, it might assist the States to know, at this stage, how the
Committee envisages the matter might be progressed. In the first instance a
Member who believed another Member had breached or abused privilege
would request the States to direct that the matter be referred to a Privileges
Panel for consideration. The matter would only be so referred if the States
resolved that a prima facie case had been made by the Member alleging the
breach or abuse of privilege. That Panel would comprise five of the ten most
senior Members of the States, by length of service. The five Members would
be appointed by the Presiding Officer. The Panel would then investigate the
matter and report back to the States. If the allegation was proved then the
States would have the power to reprimand, suspend or expel the offending
member. An expelled member would be able to seek re-election, as is the
case in the United Kingdom.

The States Procedures and Constitution Committee recommends the States to
agree that legislation be enacted to provide that:

(@) No civil or criminal proceedings may be instituted against any
Member of the States for words spoken before or written in a report
to, the States or a Department or Committee of the States, or by
reason of any matter or thing brought by him therein by requéte,
proposition or otherwise;
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(b) The States may, by resolution, make provision regarding the
investigation and disposal of allegations of breaches or abuse of
privilege, including the reprimand, suspension and expulsion of
offending Members.

11. I should be grateful if you would lay this matter before the States with

appropriate propositions including one directing the preparation of the
necessary legislation.

Yours faithfully,

R. C. BERRY

President
States Procedures and Constitution Committee

(NB The States Advisory and Finance Committee supports the proposals)
The States are asked to decide:-

XXV.- Whether, after consideration of the Report dated the 15% August, 2003, of the
States Procedures and Constitution Committee, they are of opinion:-

1. That legislation be enacted to provide that:

(@) No civil or criminal proceedings may be instituted against any
Member of the States for words spoken before or written in a report
to, the States or a Department or Committee of the States, or by
reason of any matter or thing brought by him therein by requéte,
proposition or otherwise;

(b) The States may, by resolution, make provision regarding the
investigation and disposal of allegations of breaches or abuse of
privilege, including the reprimand, suspension and expulsion of
offending Members.

2. To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give effect to
their above decision.



2120

FIRDINANCE LAID BEFORE THE STATES

THE REFORM [GUERNSEY} (AMENDMENT) 1AM, 2003
(COMMENCEMENT) QRDINANCE, 2003

(n pursiance of the peoviso o paragraph &6 af lhe Refunn (Guemacy] Law, 1948, a3
amended, 1 lay before herewith the Belorm (Goernsev) (Amendment} ].aw, 2000
{Commeneement) Ordmanse, 2003 made by the Srales Legislngn Commiilee w Lbe
28" July, 2003

STATUTORY INSTRIPMENTS LAJD REFORL THE STATES

THE DRIVING LICENCES (GUERMEY) THEORY TEST REGULATIONY
2003

L pursuanze of the provisions of the prosasions of seetion 44003 of the Driviog
Liccnces (Cuernacy) Dnlinance, 1995, a5 amendad. | lay belorg vou herewith the
Driving Licences {Guemsev) Theory Test Regulations, 2005, male hy the Srates
Teallic Commitiee an the 307 Tuly, 2003,

EXPLAMATORY WOTH

‘These pepulations preseole the procedures and frmalivies for comipletog 4 theary
sl under ke Deaving Licenecs fOuemsey ) Ordinance, L9943, as amended.

THE HEALTH SERVICE (PHARMACEUTHCAL BENEFITI{REATRICTLED
SUBSTANCTS) (AMENDMENT NOLIY REGLLATIONS, 2003

THE HEALTH SERVICE (BENEFIT) [GENERAL} (AMENDRMENT)
REGULATTONS, 2003

In pursuance ol e provasions of seetion 33 of the Heallh Service (Benefit)

(Ciuernzey) Law. 190, 1 lay before yau herewith the [nllewing Regulations made by
lhe Cinemnsey Social Security Autlwrity onthe 300 Taly, 2005--

THE HEALTH SERVICE {PHARMACELTIC AL BINTETIT) {(RESTRICTELD
SLUBSTANCES} [AMERDMENT NO 1) REGLT.ATIONS. 2003

EXPLAWATCORY WOTLE

These Hegulations amerl the prenaous Regalations so 1hat medical practitionem
cannot arder certain preparations oo the aucharity s preseriplism form PRA.

TUHE HEALTH SERVICE {BENEFIT) (GENERAL {AMENDRMEN T
ETNGTILATICHNS, 2003

ENTTAMATCHYY WOT

These Repulations wneml the presaaus Regulations due o chunpes in the coritleme::
te henedit under the Eleailh Service {Borctit) (Guemsey) Taw, R They also
make roinwr changes 10 1he infentation regquired o the Heallh Benellit Card isswed
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by the Authomly.
THE ELECTORAL ROLL [(AVAILABILITY} RULES, 2003
THE ELECTORAL ROLL (PUBLIC INSPECLUHON) RULES, 2003

In purawinge af the provisians af sectvan 78{a) of the Reform (Guornseyy Law, [935,
as amendod 1 lay heluee you herewith the [ollowing Rulus made by he States
Frocedures und Consiliution Conmmittee on the 127 Aupost, 2003:-

THE ELECTORAL ROLL [AVAILABILITY) RULES, 2003
ERBLANATORY NOTE

Thexe rules specily the conditions on which the Registrar: General of Eleviors may
Supply capies of the Blectoral Roll wo election candudates and athers.

THE ELECTORAT. ROLL (PUBLIC INSPECTION) RUTES, 2003
FXPLANATORY NOTE

These rules specily he places ar which and the pecad during whuch the draft
Electoral Rall s available for public inspealion,

TIE DRIVING TEATS AND DRIVING LICENCES (INCREASF OT FEES)
REGULATICNS, 2003

I parsitancss of the provisions ol scction 2Bic) of the Minor Taxation and Liccnsing
tGucrmsey) Taw, FO8T, as amended, 1oy beferg yon herewido the Driving Tosts and
Driving Diceoces {Inetease of Foes) Regulations, 2003, made by the Stales Trafiic
Cammiltes ort the 7" August, 20073

FAPLANATORY WTE

These Regolations sat (o foes that ang chargeabie lor tesrs ol competencs: gnd
drivios licenecs with effect from 1% Qotwber, 2003, by increasing approximalely

by BB the cumrent foes that arne set oul i Schedule 2 and Schedale 3 respectively of
The Driving Licences (Cruemsey ) Ordeance, 1995

G, R ROWIELAND
Deputy Bailiffand Depuly President of the States

The Boyal Court Houwse,
{uemmsey,

The 5% Septembet, 2003
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APPENDIX |
STATES ADVISORY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

GUERNSEY POST LIMITED AND GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED
REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The President,
States of Guernsey,
Royal Court House,
St. Peter Port,
Guernsey.

25 July, 2003.
[icar =ir

Grernsey FPost Limited and Guernsey Electricity Limitol — Reports and
Financial Statements,

Section & ol Part il of the Staes Truling Companies (Bailiwick of Cuermsey)
Ordinancs. 2001 requres that:

“The {Advizcry and Finance) Committee shail cause o be published annually
as an appendix to a Biller d'Elal -

(a) tha accounts of the Statos trading companies and the auditors’
reports thereen: and

[b) & report on the activities of those companiss.”

1 am pleased wr enclose:
a Heport and Financial Swalement oo Guertsey Post Limited for the sear
endedl 3k Septomber 2007, which was presentcd at the Annoal General
Meeting held on 199h February 2003, anid
a Repott and Financial Stateencnl on Guernsey Eleciocity Limited for the
year ended 317 Marck 2003, which was presented al the Annyal General

Megting held on 17t Tuly 20073,

1 would be grateful if you would atracoge Tor these cepomis 1o be publishad as ao
appendix 1o a foture Biller d'Tat,

Yours sincerely
L=
- -""-E:F
T. C Margan

Presudent
Advigory and Finasoce Commiitce Fnrs
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Guernsey Post Limited

Heporl and financial statements

30 Bepiember 2002
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Guemsey Post Linnted

[Nirestors; (P Spoeecr I hinrmaT.)

¥ Svmons (Maragmne Loreear]
KA Peorod

Y1 Kozerts

ekl War

L30T Perke:

T Hiidler

b Dradshaw

Avditors; [ LY I
kurered Accountants

Repiziered office; Envey Floase
[ Yranyozy
it Feter Mol
T, (R
071 18
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COuemsey Post Linited

TErcotors’ Teport

Tme drvcsome subzn 5o sepod acd Lhe aud:Led financal satements for the vear ended 20 Jestember 2002
Cuerrsey Pogl Lirmeed was ncorporaied on 24 August Z00] and commemiesd aperatiang o 2 Ckrlabes 2007,
‘The Siares of Guemsey Posl Qe Board was dizsnlvad 20 03 59 o on 59 Seolembes 20611, In aceoosdance
wilh tae Soatzs Tradiog Compastics (Balwich of Goeesaee) Ordinaace, 2000 the uncetakaog ol the Board

was trarziroed end vested n Gibemsey Post Limited wilk effes: from o Ocoober 2001, Cruermsey Fast
srmiced 2= whelly vwencd by the Sates of Quernsey

Priocipal activitics

The company's paincipe. acaviy 15 Lhe orovision ol 2 posta? sorvize "o Tn2 Baihwaok o Deerssey The
company alzo markels 11: postape samm: and oier ohoaeie sodacta oo slanmgy ol ezl e dwede,

Resuilts

The results tor the year are shawn in he penfi and (088 coasnt oo paze 7.
Divirdensg?

The diructors. revommend the payment of a divideng o £327.270
Cperational performance

Dwming the vear the wolume: of letler mad szet ou? frotn e Badiowick o 172 sl luertations? destingtin-wsy
imereassd Murther by 20925 to awer 41 melion items for the rwelve mont® peeaind

Incoming znd locally posied rail Zor local delivery Feotained slatic w over 29 rlhon e ne Tor 2y teeg ey
monls DeTing.

The imzroased mal volarnes i the v belsed to memtr pronlbel ey leved sven zfler mersasesd nperabng
CTIELS LIVET [IrIUT YEUTS

Thae 1e the snemgiosed mezz! voloms: Pos: Ofice s conbimoed ko weonk v sehsmantial amountss of overome
i swdz o rmadnnain the daly colecaon and deiiven, semnze.

The mmoece 10 The new ealding ang adopuan of meczamized st will coniBure w an improeemens i the
laves ol overlime worked n fetuse.

Fixed assets

Az pan of 1w ransfer of 1he assets of the Slases of Guernssy Bost 9ize 3aard to Guernesy Post Limiles,
the frechole of the exwhng Poslal Headquarers lang and badidings was resaned by e States of Guemsey,
wio siotelianeos'y grinled o o vear casehold inberzat. renewshlc gusnesly neicefes. o Guernscy Pos
Limited, (her irgelold sund and propertiess, provioosly neld by the Board, were transfered 1o Cilernsey
Fasl Limired va: the Zaes of open market value recosnizing cunen: use, which rzaulted in a revaluation uplift
el £2.202, 2258 wi ditiiiel monote B,

=1
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Guernsey Post Limited

Bireciors’ report - vontinued
Directon

Tae directury of the companry wlin wers appeinted ad held oftice dusing the vear were as fullows:

T Spencer Jappainued 1 Oiiokber 20017
iR 3ymons (eppainecd 1 Ctober 20000
F.A Peorat (appeinied | Oceober 100 |
DT Rodens {appranted | Qctober 2001 )

1y Warr (appointed 1 Crotaber 2047
03 Barker foppounted © Chetabwr 20601}
E Sntith [deceased 17 Cueneber 20017
T Huolder {appointed | Augus 30023

3T Bradshaw  {appointed 1 Dheccmber 2002)

[n aceordance with the Aricles of Association, RA Perot and DT Wubsrle are due 1o retire by cotation, and
being eligible nffer themselves for ez-cloetion ot the farmhesming AGM.

HEpcretary

The secretary, ¥ G Perkins was appednted an  Cetoler 2001 gnd restpned no & Decemiser 2002

Statevieol of responzibifities

The directary sre respansible foar pecparing firancial staements for eaeh franc | vear whezk give o e and
tair view of the fate of affsics of the company and of e pratic ar Inss o ke company o thi pericd and ae
in aceomiunze with appiizalils frws. In prepasing, oy fnancizl siatonens the directars an: neguimed to:

B meleor zefable accounting mlhicies and then apphy ken consismentky;
B mek: jodgements and sstimates thal are regsenable 2nd prodeml;

m aate whether applizable accounting stanckands have bean follawed subject o 2y nizterial departires
disclosed and expinined in the financiol statements; and

= prepare the financial statcibenls on the pokog concern basis, unless d is Dappropriate in presome that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are respruonsible for keeping prper acesunteng seesid: whach desciose witl: reasonable zoouracy
il any me the financial posidon of the company and to enable them to ensure that the fipinciel staicmen 5
comply with The Companics (Guerniey ] Law 1994, Thew are also responsible (e safegoarding the assets of
ths company and hence for iaking ressonabie steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irmepu |antics.
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(ruernsey Post Limated
Thresiors” report - continued

Audilors

XM were appoined audilers dunog e year, cncd wre glagizle for re-appomtmen:

_—
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2 Stanpy Place

Tha Grange

Rperps=y, Chanral lalands
IER R H

Independent auditors” report (o the members of Guernsey Post Limnied
We have audiced the frnancial staiemcn: on pages 7w |8,

Eespective respansibilitics of ilirectors and sudijars

The directors an: responsible for prepaning the direstors” repott and, s descrited on paer 4, the Gnancial
satzmeats b pcoordences wil: applicable Gucrien law ard LUK agconnting swndards  ©ur eespansibaitics,
ay indeporden audiors, are eswblished in Guermsyy oy law, the UK Aediting Prucnzes Boasd and by ous
profession’ s ethicel guidancee.

W rspard ta vod out ogindion as to whelher (he finencial Aaements give o truy and far view and are proper| s
prapared in sccordance with The Cosopanizs (Ceermey) Law 1995 and Secteon 19[17 of The Posc Offies
{OEemeey ) Law, 1869 We alsn repor 1o vou if, iv aur opiman, the direclors” repor s nel consisen! with
e linancial slacements. if the contpany has not kepl propes aceounting records, of iF we beve oot secepesd
all the irformanian and sxplanatioos we Tegquice Tor our audit.

Ranis oof audit opising

We condted owr audi in grcordanee with GE Auditing Standards issued B the Auditing Pracrices Board.
A aader includss exarnination. on & st bases. of svidenee refevant 1o the wneents and diselnseres i the
Cnanciel slazements. N oalse includes ai agwsemen: of the sipmeficant estimares: wnd judgermends rmads by the
ehiresigms i the peepaniion of the fnancial stslemends, and of whether e accounting policies are
appropraicte Lo the sompany’s circum stancss, consisiently apphed and adeqaately diszloses.

We planned and performed our audil so as wooshiwin all the infonration and cxplanalions whicly we
considercd mecessary 0 order e provide os widd safficient evidense (o pive reasonable assurence thd the
tinancial swaements are Jee Frum material missatenent, whethe coused by feawd ne other rregeiaicy or
erres. In fratning oot opénion we alse evaluated the overall adequacy ol the presentacian of informatian in

the financial stulements.
Upigizo
En cusr eprnion the Tinancial starements give = troe and fyr view of the state nf e company s afTairs as at 30

September 2002 and of e prodit lor the vear then ended and have been properly prepared i aceordence with
‘The Comparics (Gaemsey) Law 1992 and Seation 191 of The Posz CHFice {Couemsey) Law, 1968,

| i

Charrered Acconmioes

H oo Fo2



{zuermisey Post Limited

Profit and joss sceount
Jor che year anded 30 Sepiombor 2002

Income
TPustal s=rvices

Femitlunce and apency semvices

Mhilawslic e=reices

Fapynses
Proslal susrvipes
Miilale]ie wreices

2129

MNorey

Frolil oo ordinary aclivitkes before othor income

Crther income
Erileres meceranks
B o mecs vkl

Freht on ordioary activities hefarg (3 xation

‘[axabion

Yrofit lor 1he financial year

[Fividend

Retained) profit for the findociyf year

All activitics denve from eonlinuing operations.

APPENDIX

1 Oretobeer 2007
30 Septeniher 2002
£

15,587,565

183,649
L
|7.452 | %

[14,455.809)
LIRSy

(15417580

o 054 474

2,547
21,719
724,250

1738526
(1.110,192)
LGB T2R

[337.270)

[l11A458

There ar: no recoprised gains and isses or other movements tn reserves & the cupren finamei year other

thun us stat=d 10 node 12,
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Guernsey Post Limited

Belance sheet
i 30 Soptember UG

Assets emploved
Tanpibkle xod assets
CULrPreRt 399E14

Stock

Cheimiiors
Cash ar bank aod in lwnd

{redilors: amounts falling doe wilhin eac year
MNed current assar

Credilors: amndoly felling dee alicr ooc ¥car
Toial net agseld
Finaoeed by

Rbware capital
Revenoe scierve

2130

Mares

I

M

i
g

30 Scptemnber 2002
£

14.92 |, 3K

REIDSE
_{236,13H

|

22386199
[ 111,548

£ 23,9107

These: tinanc:al statements weic approved by the Board on 17 Decomber 20602 and signed vo Lhe Foard s

behalf By
d_d_ﬂ-r*' ) L=
- e -
Feretor Threstiir
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Guernsey Post [amited

Cash flow statement
Jur the year eaded 30 Seprember 20802

1 October 26] ko
30 Seplember 2002

Morer £

Net caxh jnflow from operuting activitles i3 12T
Returas ag jovestments and serviciop nf fioaoce
[oterest recerverd R agT
Renr reccivesd IREL,
Ned cash inflow ca returos oo investments

und servicing of finknee 734 2R6
Capiinl expenditure
Faysicnt to pequire taogibbe (e asscts CRLAR1,501)
Procoads from sales of aopible lixed asses o rTus
Nel eash owlflow fmem capital cxpendilure LRI TR
Mrecrease in cash x| L6,E58 724
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Cuemsey Post Limited

Motes to the financial slatements

1.

Principal ecconotinp policles

The Tallenire aceauntior ol e huie . T - R "
The lallowing aceountiz; pelices have 7een wpphzd consisientdy whodesingg with jyms which o=
eamsidersd materna in realion o the company's Jinancial salesnents.

Basiv of preparation

‘The financial satements are prepered wnder (2 hloneal cosl conventen, and i aceordazzce with
siophizable Unsted Finpdem. 2ecountiong stan:lands,

frcoine

Lalzs al starips aed the cozditing ol frskme mazhimos zre secousned fur an an acenaals Tegs

Frpenses

Fosla opelion s sepenses ot charped a6 tneunied. o priveision 32 made o Tojury dei-vene charges
wheeh may boneurmed norespezn of swmps snd Facking machone credily sold but unuzed st e
balanze gheect i

Alderaey regional stemp iTines

Frverne znd sxpomse wteras inoreapez! of Allermev rexjonal samp rssice are melided b the
eGrnpny s profit and Joss acsocnr e e e

Persien Oosrs

The costs of the dehosd bemefil ssaeme are charged 1o the prafit ool loss accourt e 120 penod
dunng which the company benefits from the emplovees” servwees. Sumpluses or ¢efRciencies are spoead
Quer e cxpeeie] ivemage Tematunr working Dfetime of wraplevcrs m sTeporion 1o ther capeored
Ay | coeslz.

Keack
Tae vot el definilive stamps is wones ofi ower the vopersied sales e of cech ope of sanim, which o
diikely 1o exeeed five vears, Coengiumromelive 2lmp cosls are tully wntt=n of 0 e vear of issae,

stuck ol slationery and spares asg vasued al the [ower af 2o 2nd net real:sable value,

Feunpible fived axie:

Tungshle fixad aszer are soted al cogt less deorecialion.
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Guernsey Post Limited

Motes fo the financial statements - contnued

1.

h-d

Principal acenuntlng policies - conrineed

Deprociafon

APPENDIX

Depreciatzan 15 calzclaied o e followicg ennmal rates so 2s toowrite of) the cost o argibiz fied
zuszts over iz antivipated werful Dives wamg the sTaipht-ing metkod, The calevsanons are base? om

capiw’ expendiime imoared at the ced of the accomcting punmd
Estinpai ] file

in YeArs
Araly under consTucon NeA
Frechoid lang U
Fieeanid suddings - Posial headquene:s a0
- {Wher .50

Futnrture and dRings, office equipment anc] posta,
rmaschinery =10
5

Transport

Expemses — pustal sertvices

Mlail operatlion: wyges. szperasnuzlion and ater a7 expenees
omvCvarse o maL .

Fos: Ofee coanmer exmemnses

Cienurinl admimistelng

Liher operations’ vy penses

Expenses — philatelic services

Phila1ehie opecslions wipges and supesssnugion
Apsmiy T e ner

Li-lpy and® mark 2Ting

Cumpaler servicos

Frinlany, satiomery, stamp producting und postape
VILoeT DDETALOTAL CXPETSRS

Depreciation
U5 per aooum

I Cxeenher 24107 b
30 Sopfomlsr 2002
£

B2 465
TATIE
1.0 14642
908,722
3809 0ad

E 14452500

1 Oereher 2001 1o
M Seprember 2042
£

10k, Thih
104 .06 %
31,27
£ ARE
TLE ESR
137 380

=

LOGLGIE
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Guernsey Post Limited

MNotes to the financial statements - continued

A

Operatng sarplos

Crpermtiog surplus is after
chargenis(erediling):

Salarick, wage: and superinnuation

Auditars' renurneridion

Al fee

HIer s rygimy
{Profitlass oa disposal of fixed asscts
nEFu'uciilli11n

1 Cwctnber 2001 to
3 Scplember 2002
£

(TR

.1

{2,775
207 OB

Cerain satury and wazes costs bave B2en allogiued 10 relevant expense headings e sones 2 and 3.

Averars cmpleyes numbers fie e vear wery as fellows:

["zstul operations staff
Administration staff

Talal

Interesi recesvalle

Ztates Tredsury
Other

Tazative

Current akatiug

Taxation i 2804 hases on profit for the wvear:
2001
kA
105

Treferred tax Lubilige

Dividcods

Urividends pavable (sec note 11}

1 fhcinher 2001 to

30 September 2042
L

B&0.57T
21,970

£ 54T

SELLIE
220 571
422,741
1,045,232
24,500

LA LR,

Lraled
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Motes o the financial statcments - continued

Tangible flxed assers

2135

Haes of fraemasy Posr (Tec s Rgard

balasze &5 ) MG Reprorber UG

Adrastmenss o respecl of ransizs undertaxen to

Liyerzsey t'ost Limled
eualuznicn
Eriines by States of Crucmiscs

Tramsforred o Guernsey Mot
Limeoad un | Osloze- J00

LT

Sosl s i sourse of consrclion
Frcchiesld [amd

Frechule hyildizpes

Furutiture sngl Minmas

r.:'f-ﬁLl: E:I,II:IIFI:!'“![”

Prislal r|1::||,'.|'|1r|i:!r‘_3.'

T-enez=or

Cregarecaliomn
Agsen Incoarse uf comsTueLan
Frocimld ard
Erechold baildingrs
Furietury ang Grtznes
T.. - -
N Tige equnoment
Festal machinery
Transpoa,

Mer ool peflee

Acepaited
- Dhctober
2001

L

2503000
2,305,760
fr1E, 74
513,241
315,041
RS AR

L oF 0T, A

1 Crctober
2

R
tdi 370
FERIEN

3(1%, ki
£ 1.B62. 060

£ 5,315,003

Macilions
£

URIRG L

Q6 8 141
5444
ko Ehe

L o917 20

i BTN
Mo Wwar
I

G A
R
gL
13743

£ 207480

APPENDIX

L £
7,197,607
it
(4,084,757
_ILERDEAD
3,314,065

Writer. ot M Seprember
disnnzals FAr] 1y

f )

- SA2E BRG

- 2,545,000

- 2,303,700

- E bt b

- LTsl

- 1253412

(.55 £62.11E

b {0,230 E 16584282

Wi'snzn ol T 30 September
sy ooz

L £

- 24 904

oo L EET

- y25017

- 344,450

(62500 FRER
£, 15M) £ DA T5

L 13,921 446

Assers in the sourse of comsruzion aonettilr ne new Bostal Headguaniers and meshanissd Sormine
Equipisent ihsteoml (Gemen, 15 padding weaz complesal in Woverzber 2002 and ocoamed and o wse
thnes e b omng of Ceeember 2002, 47 306 Ropueeias 2002 thye o] prgect was 90% comoplewed
ans 45% ol the Buildinp had been banded over 1w Guermsey Bost Limoted.
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Guernsey Post Limited

2136

wotes Uo the fnancial statemernts - conlinued

¥, Sock

Sy apd stalionery
CHber ok s

10,  Deblors

Fosial debtors
Philatelic deboors
Prepavmenis
Other debtars

1. Creliinrs

Amunots [Fgxr due within one yrar
Meostal gredinars

Apency services hasienpex

Philatchie cogtomers' palances

CHiir ercdaroes

Mivjdods pravable

Tanittion pavahle

Amupots lalbing due after ane yeir
Tazxation pavahie
Dedorred tax liakility

30 Sepilember
AR
£

105,403
- ERON

-

£.5]1.414

30 Seprember
20
L

1.502 616
148,11%
TRANT

_ Aasaah

£3,37438%

30 Seplember
Mz
£

3 500 ke
004 85
|87 She

49,371
517,270

BTLRRL

£ 6,452,530

£ 236,320
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Ciucrnsey Post Limited

Moles o the fnancial statements - continusd

11,

135,

Shure cupilal sed reserves

Crenoral Fevenue
reEre TEsETVE Toral
£ A L

Sanes ol Guernwy Prsr Offize Board
balunsy as ol 30 Sepremher 2001 i & (000 000 o268 B SR 24E B0

Adjustements (=ee nole §) (2.MHZ.542)

LR L

Comverted Lo share capital
225386259 ordinary shimes 1ssued 5o L
(uuthorised 40200008 ordinary chares) £ 22 3wWe 250

FLeYCenus ECEeryeE:
Retained profit for the vear L I

‘e shares were issued o considetatzon lor the m assets and ‘rabilities 1t werg e ferms] fom he
Guemsey Post Office Beard al fowic nel book wolws at | Seprember 2007, swhpsct 1o the adjutmeons as
noted in oot 8.

Recobcilintion of oprratng profil to net
eadly inflow from operating actvibes
H sepiember
Az
£

pcrating protit =.0%4,454

Ticpreciation charges 20T RS
(Proficyvloss on disposal ol fixed essels LY
Incrcase in stock 71,3451
Encrease in debtors [(A71.292]
IDecrcase)inoTcase in credinors L
Mek cash inflow firom cperating achvibcs t I

Movements in stock detiors and creditors are the movemgqls from the halanees acquirsg ai 1 October
2001,

Heeoocilintien of nel cxsh flos' 10 mcvement

in oct funds
f

{6 RSE,T20)

Decrense in cash hilasces
19 =97 67

o funds meguired at | Owacder 2001

Net funds at 30 Seplember 2002 £ 12,739,353

15
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(Guernsey Post Limiled

Wotes to the Tinarclal stalements - continued

Id.

Capltal commitments
&1 30 Beptermber 20U2 the company had sdbonsed (utire capual exmenditers as fnillow s

30 Beprensher
Tz
£

Mew Postal [Neadguaners and dMechamized seslig eguipment
Cantragted for ool nat proviced Z3Aas s
Further deszils are provadsd inonede &

Pemsion Fuod

The exmpivyvecs of the compery ate maabers ol The Stales of Oueressy SeporaimEtion Scheme This
o defined benedits nension schiome fmded by cantrbctions frnen beh sepiover and employvess at
rates, which are determaned va e basie o acownal adwiee, and which arg eeioizled 10 sprrad e
expazied coats of honefis pevabie 1o emoloyees over the puaned ol these emplovess’ sxpectsd senney
Ives. AR actuu il gevudnl wag es@abashed i sccontinoe wil paryaph T of tie Thued Schoediese o
the Siales of Guermsey (PubBc Servenssy (Teosaues aod other Hemelits} Buoics with effocl foem i
Oxztober 2007, ir respect of aclve meainers drnplovead by the company wih assers of £12,07F Q03

The cormpany bus esed acvanal caleulaione presadoed by the sotenes o adenzify s share of
underlying assew angd ebiibzs of the Scheme anl 1 cimdy dze impheations of any sozplesf e o)
an the coaruny, a5 required 8y Financs] Reperimg S1angard 27 “Fetrement Bopelis”™, (FRS 17" as
ut 20 Replempber 2002, The ealcelatiens: hive een curmied our vy 2 gualifisd indepemlens aciuary,
mased ne the resulle of the 311 Decemlen 2007 actuanal valuation, and allaweing o the chimze in wolai
calaries Tor aclive menhers.

Summary of Fipgmsia, Assemnolons as ol 30 Sopierder MGE

Lhezousnd raie 3.4 pa
mElation 1.2 pa
Inereases o delisrod benefits during defereue 25% pa
Increases L peTEsons (M 2avoient 2.5% o
[miTeRses 1o salanes 1.7 pa

‘The azsumpbinnx ysed by the aotusry ave rthe best ealmmales chosen from a rengs of possihle sciuemal
aszumpions which, due to the Srcsee s covered. may nod neceszar’™y be heane nwn s pristice.

The whle below sets o a sernmay of the ssomated marker valus of the gseels gz a7 30 September
002 thgeher witk: the exsecied reum on 255875,

Category Markect Y alue at Assuned expecied

v 3 scptember 2002 . refurn on Jsscts

i "o pR
. BRI 5001 W . ——

| Eyuilize B T24T 1 HYE ! -
Bonds 2080 . AT . 544
Cash and Xel Currenl Asser i 3 ' 0.7 13
TFutal 10,720 g 6T
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Guernscy Post Limmiled

Moles 1o the Dnane:al siatements - coniinues’

15,

Pepsion Fund - eonHboed

" The fr valup ol the schemes essets. which 2re not intenced 10 ke sealsed onothe shast senm and iy

be subyeet 1o sigmbGean change beioge thew ame realissd u7d the present value of the achemw's
ligbilities, wach ase demwed from cesh flow poseclions over long perods and fhes mherenily

LRSS, WETE

: Yaulues as 3t
' it Seplember 2041
_ L T

Walae af fhe 5;,:|'|u|_'|1|:.': Ageele _ il_l_'.‘;:!!;'i. - .
Valye of the Scheme Liagilizs PR .= E
CResulenp SorpousTefizig L O [ RTEY
Related defeored i wswel . - ;'i_'?i_ L
™1 persor haouke 1.5

The amount of <kiz w21 zeazien Babilily would alse he weioded b esmpeany’s jrol and loss
rescrye.

In respect af the wer emded 300 Scplember 2002 the connihution rster weee 625% and 4% for
employer atd smplever contnbunons respectivciy. Prine ke voaSlishmesL o o sepamte azuarial
gzcouni, the company paricipaied 102 combined pool within The Staes of Guemsey Superannpoatian
Schane.  Accordingly, following the sstablisheient of the separate acluanal account ths coczgaooy
comtinded re copmute 33 te hase leeel rale of 6 5% o) compary members' salanes.

The full suiuznal eegucs as al 31 Tweoympes 2001 recommended am inciczse e cmploger
sonzthulien mie from 6.25% 10 9%, cTeetee rum | lanuany 2003

Agr wi 30 Scptember 2001, 1ie Poosion Fund was part of 2 cominned ponl within $he Siate: ot
Cruemnsey Buperannuarion Scheme which wis meated a5 2 ool coployer armminpement uader FRS1T
Ar ay it dete 0 was wd pozsiale o denndy Sl derals of the fund's share of uzderlyingr asszt= and
habitizs of e implicabons of the sarplus oa the campany, s regured by FE317, Such information
ozzame availaily 17 ine [ul) actuarial valuzeon as 1 31 Thegember 2001

Luztherncre, ax the company has sdopued e razeianal rulvs of VRS1T far the first time norespent af
ne pension Forl, disclosures reguered by TR T for (he aoeune nalaoee sheer have not Soeh panvided,
bz i iz menaded taas ol isclosune wall T oale i falure peneds

Comseqienly dise negres required 1k r2lztun to ke profit and (oss arsounl keve also wol boen b s
the nfusalion i only avalakle finr the zine month penod Gom 21 Deeesnibe: 2000 10 3 Seprember
2NG2E aml Jemer wocid not previde rmeanine (Ul infarmation dn lerms nf Ceese Braesial stalements

The wolal amoun? o superannstion conmnbutions far =2 pecwd Troem | Cheiooer 23007 to 30 Septemiber
ZR2 was £331.571 As & 1D Sepiember 2002 the aevoual of soninlbwton: due bul not said 1o the
[und werz £42 598,
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Guernsey Post Limited

*otes 1o the financial stialements - contined

118

17

Crwmership

The company s whul™y owned by th: S1ages o Guermsey

Relatgd party trapsactions

Caz althe direlors, Ra Purei 15 ulso 3 pasnes i Cranaes. & local jew e, Amounts Faid by 4w
BT te LAZannes in sespes of legal scvives Jurg the pear crded 31 Januasy 2002 weere £16,42

CF Spencer, a directo:, i alsa g shareholder aml director of Safcdeen com Lemilse,  Amounts praist 14
thes gampany in sespect of compuier coosciamey seozes pravided 1 Guerrsey Post Zimited denng

e vear ended 30 Sepremher 2002 weore 213, )€

& abh - e e : . R ; :
2 the company s unnual meams sl expendilure. Jcas than 2% of Lhetr resneative vilpy 12 Gus 1o
lramzeciacsns with other Sates cntfes

1E
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Guernsey
Electricity

GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED
FRedor and Financia: Siatements

31 Marsh 2003
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED

REPDRT AMD FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMTEMTS

Directars. cfficers ane professional adwscrs
Reparl ol tha dresiors

Caracrale Qqouvernance

Stgiernen: of diredars rospansibilities
Independant gudilors” repot

Frofit a1 Inss sccolnr

Sa-ance shaet

Cash flow stalemcni

hates o he a2ccounls

Additearal mformatar,

2142
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10

12
13
14
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED

BIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND PROFESSIONAL ADVISERS

Directors

Mr K A Gregsga (nen-execusive Chairman|
kr | Watsnn (managing)

Mr | J Limaond (hinaace)

ki 5 J Momis fengineenng)

MM F Cuanng [exective]

Mr K J Guille {ran-gxacitiva)

Mi J E Shaw {nan-sxecatiee]

kr R J Tas [ran-asecinive)

Acteagate § H Beallie (o0 exenutive)

Secrelary
Mr & B FPallimars

Bankars

Barzlays Bank PLOC
PO Bax 419

L & Mamharit HoJge
51 Peter Port
Guamsey

71 ABE

Legal advisers
Qzrannes

* L& Marcharl Stree;
St Piter Port
Suernsey

G571 4HFP

Alditora
EPRG

F O Rgx 238

2 Grange Plaze
The Cranga

51 Peter Parl
GUamiy

Y1 4D

Raegistered cffice
P Box 4
ElectHpity Hedse
Marr Side

Wam

GLEFNEEY

GY1 3a0

Company number 38642,
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DRECTORS

Incarparalion
Guernsay Elacircty Limisd was incerpereted on 24 Auagnst 2001,

Tranzfer of undertaking

In acuordance with The Siates Trading Comoanies [Baliwck of Suernsey! Ondinance 2001 the
ungdertaking of 1he Stetes ol Guemsey Elacir.oly Board was transterred anc vested in Guamsey
Electricity Lrmited with effect from 1 Fodneary 2002, This s 10 goeord webn the Stales resalotions
pazsed al thi mestng of the States af Celioeraban held on 12 Decamber 200°

Aocounts

Tae dwestars prescnt ther repz:l and the audited firancial statements far Lhe year ended 3
tlarch 2003 (2002 the dradng period of lwe marins from Lhe transtes gate of 1 Febroary 2002
1 31 March 2002 For feemabon only the proht and Ioss ascownt for the yeer ended 3°
kiarch 2005 wish sarresaeaning figures [ar the year endad 21 March 2002 is appenocd [C these
Trnancial =labemens.

Principal actlvities
Tre prircipal activities of tha Company are the geroration, imporation and Dsritaion of
sbaciricity and the sale o' agsaciated good w and sendines.

Financial Parfoimance

Duanng the year ended 31 March €003, wenaver from eleetncity sales amounied 1o £23 803 000
wich repiegerts an increase of 4% ower 1ne perndd of Swelve months ended 31 March 2002
I nere were na lasf increases Lo oyl chstomes,

Interes! waree amounbed £ S9%8,009C for the werr, Anc calarrod tax o £251 00 has booq
arawdded fior

The predil for the peiod amounted b £1.001,000 and has been transtenred o e profit and loss
BN

Divldend
The direcions proocse e paymen; o A divicand af C230 000 {2002 Enlly, heang £3 G021 par
share (2002: il

Future prospects
Whilst 1ariff lewels sontinoe unchangsd, this years growth in urils sald reflects increaszed
dermand from new building proacts I the island.  The diesiors are tharelfore aplaistic Ahoas

the prospects for wnil growdr,

Cuslomers
The numbet 47 custorners as al 31 March 2003 = 27 844 (202 27 BEE)
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORSE {continued)

U nits

It artasion through the cable link oetwaen Guernsey, Jersey and the Europsan grid orovideo
3% o' 1ne island needs 91 the year ended 35 WMarch 20G5 and 2% was crnemied ar the
island, as showr by the urars analysis boow

Limits imipo-ted MWh 204 326
Limits generaton badn _. .DBe0Es
Telal vnits imporedigenerated bWn Ji5 291

— T

Average price
The average prce per KWH sold in the year enoec 31 March 2007 was § 0% pance (heg months
endad 31 kMarch 2002, & Fe pence)

Reliability

Tre reliab lity of Guerisey Eleclticily s supply i3 Feasured by monabus 0G0 per coglame: Sraer
[anures can be caused oy @ “Tilue of generalar plant. 3 fa:dure af tbe distribation natwark ar
fai urz of the cable ink. In fh woar gnded 21 March 2003 eoeslamerns last no m:aotes due o
qereration ackwity, Homever, G823 minules wore I0g1 in rasoes] of distebulom and e sakle
limk, (hwec menths ended 39 March #1020 1 44 monulez),

Directors and their interasls
Tre Diractons ol ke Companyg whe served cuirg tha penoc and to date are:

M KA Greg &2 inon-execative Charman)

hir | Wateon [managing )

Mr 5 2 Moer s denginserirg)

Mr M F Qedng dexecuirae

hAr | J Limong {lirarso )

Mr K Guille {non-exacule;

MrJ R Shees (nen -geenuive’

hr R Tee jnor-exaculis)

Advopale | M Beathe (nan-execulive]. Aspontes 1 August 2002

Crapaty L & Margan [appoimied &4 sagust 2001 anc resigned 3% Januany 2007
Ceputy 1 E _angoes iapnointed 24 Augus? F307 angd resigned 31 Jaoary 2002]

kir 11 _imand was appoirted Ymance oreckar an o Augus: 2002, jollowing s 2pacinmen: as
tinanee direcior dosignake cn X Febroary 2002

The direciurs have ra berefical irlerasls o (e shares of the Company.
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED
REFGRT OF THE DIRECTORS [continued]

Regulation

The Creclar Seneral of the Offee of ARty Rugulation kFas granten licences o lha Conpary,
tnder tha provmans of “The Kogoiation 27 Utilities (Baliww: o Gaensey) Law 200" The
[iericas wane signed on 1 Febmuary 2002,

E, Q00

Regulatory sesls incumed curing year ended 37 March FI03- cxhzoeal 157
inlemg 111

308

The lernal moss reoresent emaolnyess ire speshed v igentified :n mesting Lhe reow eeaents
af regu lahar.

Auditars.

Creeantte & Tanche were apacinigd she dirsl audno s 2f the Cempany and held g¥fice ool e (g
Annga Geparal Maeting of thoe Gonpany when KPMG woie agpaated subiest 1o 1he Siales of
Guernsey aopaintirg KPMG as exlornal aaditars al she Siales moeetirag 00 10 Jaby 2002 The
Sfales culy aparaved Lhe propasal 1o agpo 1t KPMG wha have now exoressed thor will gness
to conlinae o o%ce as aud lors wnc & resabdtior 1o reappue:t thore Wl B2 proposed al tha
[arihcnming Annual Soene . Meshng.

Frr and an babwll of ;he Boans af Dirccie: s

FEn Grangfoa
Nirecior

fort Watson
Oirecior
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D=
GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED Stectciy

CORPORATE GOWVERNANCE

Diractars

In ascordancea wilh The Stases Trading Samparies (Bailvwick aof Guer-sey) Qrcdyancs, 2001 the
nop-gxeotive directors e appoimnied Do the States of Guernsay o0 the poeomination of Lhe
Slates of Guormsey Advisony & Finanse Comembles,  The Tl esecutwes dirgstars were
appointed by Ime Advsany & Finance Committes afler consollaleae wcll e fca-exesabee
dirucices  Fudher apooin'mends of exesulve dieeclor are rrace by e Comoany's Baard of
Diractors.

The Compary s santrnlled through 158 Board ol Deesions, which Sureatly comansas fae aon-
exenutive, and four exesdhve dresdars A the Shairman w mamiy respons-ble Tar e rormeg
af e Board, be nas to ensure that all dreclors reseive suSicien? -=levan: niomation or:
financial. buomess and corporate ssues price oo omeclngs, The Managoang Chreoors
respcasipilifies Froas on rurmag I0e hesiness and implerrarling slrategy  All dircclors aie ablc
la take idependen; professiona adveot in lurthe e OF tner dutes if nenessary

The Board monilons e exoosure Lo key busness nsks and raviews 1he strategic gireclan. il
also somsiders ararenmamal and emoloyoe wysacs, T Bearg hi2s esianlshec s number of
slandirg s b-cammitlocs and @ach cnerales winin definad lerms of relercnoe THe aiacopg
Sube-cNiees ane

o Audit & Risi

+  Loand & Propsny

s Rerneuredl arn ardd Momirations
In addifion senior rmaragemart eam meetngs arz Feld each Forlmig L

Directors’ remuneration

Im acoorsaace wiih The States T-adirg Companmes [Balmck of Gaemnsey] Ordinance, 201 the
rernuneration of tha nar okesulive direciors is ceterm ned by the Blales of Goomsay ddwigony &
Fingnce Cammides.  The remunocrabarn of P2 execiive dirgziors is determined oy ne
Comoany's Aomaneratinn ane Memirations Comm-Uee, whch Compnses thoes nen-eves.tive
dirankars.

Ralations with the sharehalder

The Comod1y's ssied share capital is whal'y awnced oy the States of Guemsey.  The Sraes
Tracing Co—paras (Balwick 2f Guae-nsey) Ordinance, 2001 provded for e Slafes ol
Sunrisey Acvsey & Finance Comeutlee be undertake on oehalf of the States the roie of
sharetalder. In aszordance sherewith the share cerificales for e wbde msucd sharg Sapaal
are held equally in the names af lhe Prossdent and Vige-Presidenl of the States of Guamsey
Edvisory & Frunce Comnetes a5 namnees con bohall ol the SEtes of Guemsey  Prowsion is
alsn in place for the Skales to gwe gudanse o she Adwsory & Finance Cormenidles o e
palices L weshes o 9e purswed in fulfill ng thes role, Caen wear the Dampany submins 12
srratagic plan te b Adwsary & F nance Commites.

Fimancial regorting

The Sampany mas a comprebansive sysber (20 reparhing the finansial pedorrance of he
Compary and each of 15 buziness anite. Managomenl and 1ne Board of Directons revies Rese
manitly. Tha financial slatemests Tor the ascaunting neriod end.ng on e accou'ting relerenca
cate of 31 Marzh are revewad and sigrwed an oehall of the Board of Diregiors ard will b=
presenied ' tha sharchaldar at e fatneaming anaual general meekag.

=~
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED

CORPORATE GDVERNANCE [continued}

lntemnal cornmtral

An argning prosass jar identifying, evaluatng and mareging the synilicant nsks fager Dy 1he
Company 1% 0 pace. Tha reonitering af this prooess i ong regponsibility of 1ha Aadit & Rk
Sub-Commitlee ard & systeT: ol fdewvelonng the way in whick the Company captures and
Au5es5es its ricks nas beon inktiated.

Complianoe
duil Busingss umls have well eslablisned compliance procad ures,

IT aystams
The Company has established cantrols and procedures aver the security of data betd ar 1T
eystes and hAs in place comprehensive  disasler rocowery  ar-angements Thesa

arrargements are lested regqulary and reviewed by an independant consellanl,

Inlernal audit
inlera 2udi has a significanl rale n mon’lorng 2nd reoacitirg ar business risks. The inte-nal
Audizar repors direefly B the Aadit & sk Sub-Cnmmites on gl such regines

Rlak managament

The Board of Direclors has oweral! resparsibilivy for doentifying . ewaliating and managing rajor
busimass nsks facing the Companmy e Acdis & Risk Sub-Comrmiliee prowdes assistancs to
e Heard in tnese rratlers
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF BIRECTORS' RESPOMNSIBILITIES

Tre direclars arg respongible for prepanag finansgl statements fof each financa’ year which
give 2 trua and far view of the state of affairs of tne Campany and ot Lhe profit 92 085 of the
Cormaany for thal perad and arg in aceordance wilh appheable faws.  in provasing hose
financial stalements. the GiIrECirs are reqdires o

v Relect sudable accounting oacles are her apply tEen censiste atly:
s ke (udgements and estimates thal are reasanabie and proden:

»  slgle wowiher applicable aceounting standards ave besr ollowed sobguct 12 any materal
departures discesed and exolained o the financia stalements, and

»  prepare the financial slaterrants on Lhe gong concern oasis unléss 1 s APDIOpriale oo
presurcg Lhal ihe Company wili 2anhnge n busmess,

The direzims are resgons:ble for keeping aroper Acccunting ~ecords whicls dciose with
reasanable accurasy at any time the Amancial position of the Company and 1o enable e 1o
ensure 173l the financial slatements comaly with The Compan os (Gueinsey) Law, 1994, as
amended. They are also raspeisible for safeguarding e 255Rts of the Co-pary and henge
for laking reascnabla steps Tor -ha preventor and deteclion ol fraud a0 ather imeguiaribies.
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TR P YL SRR L PRS-
AL Het R toa PN R
: n LT AT
FREE P P

[odepeodent anditors' weport o the Sates of Guerneey Advisiry andd Fusaboe Cemmitteg
on brhalf of the Stales of G Ecvnsey

W have anted the Do starsngnls g pazes 11 L2 27

shes repen s macde seily e che compene 8 R a3 ooedy, i aceirdance with seenige & ol The
S | F LY TGuemsey) Law. 1954, as amanded. Crar acbr ek e eer andadaker soothar s il
ildle o the conmoans s mermber Chess mslbess vee ars requined 2040z o e gn qedilor’ s ress ane 13
oot ompins T ik Tiikee vebenl pormtied by faw, we on nod a9 oee At s ioipoeshicins e
ameane ather =har G Larapars o e calpany s oember as o sy, Far et anc s wik, e o wepar,
or Tor 1the omiriens we haws farmec

Hespeciave respnnsiheldies of darecings and audslars

e dresime ars eepopsalale foe pepanme, e dirscwars” nepors and, as oe2tinsl an s 3 e inanc
sty i acced danss wih gppleeble Gocrizsse awe and Lk etz dmelgds, nr
mespansiklivizs, as incenzncerd aodizars, ars smmlhshe o Goacrsey by law, Be DR Acdimioe ok
Suurd ard I ows prefcsson s esheal guicenz2

e rapea. Lo 4 ou our oqiniom as s wasker the Tnancaal saciemils sive @ a2l e c e and aec
rrupe=ly propared in wceosdanse witn The Companies (0oem sz Law, 19210 gy mucaded. e also roas
I o d, s o apioen Tee Gncciony” repad w nal cessisseal wnn e uzen ol lalemcnds, 08 b group
ik rud KGizp 2o gg e sovends, oo i e haer net reczoved al. e wlmmansn acd exoalanations we
ez Ay eear andir

Woo pcad e wdlice infunr alaon accampanyaw che Snancial ssacnigrss aad vunsides wheikes i cons siem
wilk Thuge rgepenl: W canssder e imalicaions fr anr reran 0 we beooine awdre u? 2oy apparenn
PAEALIEERE AL AIGEAT sdie dlercs willn Qic finarea, sbaemnenis

Iress of opanane

W comuctad Al ol il ageedance witk TR Audiicg bacdards sssocd by e aodilne Praciics.
Ouwasd., Am zacdt incledes axamifaion, o e 1630 b, of cridencs relawenoohs 2ageomts and | selesurea
m e Toawial sbesmers N alio iee sdes 29 foseiamenil of ke siznofeane esont ot ol daeenls
andde g 12 dircebon s in L preparalon e7 sne Senzial stzzenaerti, and of whethes she azzanc o ol
are appenarize & cha ot crgarslarces sonzistealy appisd and degans selesed.

We praaned and nedormed anr a8 <8 8y o AlLzm 2l he infommaran Lac esplanaierns whch we
vonzidzred avvestan in oader lo pravads oz e sl se g ceicence e Eive rezaimalil: asit-aee il (ke
firarctal Hlalcments are (ree Jrom manerial misszemzn, wherts mosed By Zraud ar amer meatilanty o
ear D o s gpzan e dsss evacaaled she overal acegau y ol She preseration of izhemanal m
the Caancial Salemens

{ipinen
T fow AaF ol 1 Fican sal slalerienls eree 2oree aod Girvizw e o $ate ol 21Taes af <he compea as oa

T March 2605 and o its ool fu e wcar M= eoded and bxes beer: aenpunl . mepased o accoorduncs
e lb e Compaan 25 Fanermszyn Lo, "0 5 apeady],

KihaG
Ihartencd & pmbanir
A3 w@i iy o e
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_ LET Ty oy
GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITER Shc oy
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Yaar ended 31 March 2003
MNta Perod from
Yaar andod 24 August
31 March 2001 1o 31
2003 March 2002
E.000 £, 000
TURNOWVER 2 20 616 4770
COST OF SALES 6,020 2 EAG
GROSS FROFIT TR 2,122
MET QPERATING EXPENSES o Rdf 1,57T
OPERATING PROFIT 4 Toysc T aEs
Lraz an disposal of assols 45 1
PROFIT ON QRDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE T 704 0 Tasa
INTEREST
Ineres] recaivabla L] ahi e}

Interest payatile 2 101 (]
PROF|T DN DREINARY ACTIVITIES REFORE 1282 a6
TAXATION

Taxalor T ZF A5
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL FERIOD T 10 261
AFTER TAXATION

Chwidend proposcd 3

RETAINED PROFT FOR THE YEAR / PERICD 771 2E1
Relained profit bratght forwand 261

RETAINED PROFIT CARRIED FORWARD 1,087 51

Al acndties derive fram confinuing coergl-ons,

THema waere ro MecHIN-S&C gains or [o3ses o tne curment fitandisl penac atber than as staled .0
1w prifil and loss acceunt

1
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITEL

BALANCE SHEET
31 Warch 2003

TAMGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

CLIRRENT ASSETS

Zhacks Bad wiork (0 progross
D arcs and prepaymerdy
Ealances with Siates Treasury
Cash al bank aqc . hard

CREDITORS: amaunts falling due
w [thin ane yaar

HET CUURRENT ASSETS

2152

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

GREDITORS: amounts falling due
after reare than ane year

FROVISION FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

NET ASZETS

SHARE CAPITAL

FROFIT AND LOSS ALCOUNT

SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS

Mola

4=

10
Bl
12

13

14

16

= irarmcoep
e Dol ey

] 2002
£.000 E 00
_grne_1oecad
e HE 2458
a5 1. TER
RER f.155
T LB
20,241 15 472
153800 _ 4822}
_Massh o 10,530
112,003 190,781
(5 24B) 11.24E)
tdiE] L)
10, 24 14 470
09, 20e 103 2059
1032 25
1009 470

10241

—rr—r—r

Thase {-nanoal latemans ware appraved by the Baard of Tireclors on £ May 2003

5.¢1ed on bahall of tha Board of (irectars

Fen Gregsan

Direcicr

fan Wartson

Diresior
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMEMT
Year endad 31 March 2003
Maola
Mgt cash inflow from operating actlvities a7

Retums on invesbments and servicing of
finance

Interress] pescesved
[nterrers] pand

Met cagh inflow from reterms on
Ipvestrents and servicing of finaneg

Laphtal expenditure

Paymen’s te- axquire tangible fized azzels
Praceeds on dispesal of tangible fised assats
Customers' contnbulare iowands capital
expendilure

Nat sash outlicw from capitel expenditura

Mat cazh inflow befora use of liquid
Tespurces and finencing

Managemeant of liquid resources
bt cash movemaents wiih Siztes Treasury

Net cash outflow from menagement of liquid
resources

Dacraase [ cazh 18 & 14

APPENDIX

Pearicd from

Year anded 24 Algust
31 March 2001 ta 31
2003 March 2002

£.000 Q00

.. _.5Eid — 15
e ]
Nk I
oo e 12
12 VET (2000

E3 -
&GS 33
LT L 1
4.5%3 sed
LTI Tt
(44721 1757

fao (13

Movernanls @ balances with S1ates Treasury are deermet Igwd resources o decardanss with

Financia Reoorting Slandurd 1 (3% rewsed).

13
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Yerr ended 31 March 2003

1.

ACCOQUNTIMG POLICIES

The *masod statemer’s are prepared in accordance with applizsabla Urnled Kirgooms
accoumirg slandands. The oarlicuisr accounting palices adepled are described belaw.

Eeooumnting cenvention
The izl slabamenls are prepared urader the b flancal cosl convenlicn

Transter of undartak|ng

Tre Company was esiablsned n accortance with e prowsons o° the Siales T-ading
Campanies [Balimck of Guernsey) Law 201 (Commencement]) Gronance ard 1he
Stales Trading Compo-y [(Bailiwick of Guernsey) Ordinanze 2001 o 1@ke aver fhe
generation, imparatan ard distnbulan of esciricity previously carred oul oy the Sialas of
Gueirsey Flacticily Board with effsct Trom * Febraare 2002 The tans'er value of 1ne
assetc ang nabites inroduced. together with 1he busmiees gndetaken in accondanos with
tne enabling legialaton, represanls eesl b Guemsey Eieclngly Limised  The direckars
haae reviewed the amaounts atrikated ano aie satshed that “air values have bee apalisd
therefare na adustment arsses on ary aspect of ihe transferrad unceAaking

Sales of electrichy
Sales of eleciricity inchede the eslimated valug of wnbilled urits a7 the penac en The
nnbilled units are valved at curreot lanf! rates.

Deferred |Forme
Frempm income ece vable in respecl of lefss amangements enleeed ntd s recognised
ower the irmibal penod of 168 lease

Custemers’ conttibutions fowards capitai exoenditure are cred lzd n ccual anausl
amounrs e profit and lass acoopat ouer the estiraied ofe af (e aseeis 1o whizh thoy
relate.

Tang|bie fixed assets anc depreciation
Tangibla fixed Assets are slated ot cast less depreciation

Assars [arsfered from Lhe Siates of Guemsey E cowcity Board as at 1 Fabruary 2002
are be.ng dapreciated aver their resid dal estmated uselul | wos from that date aaplying the
parnads aned balow

Orepresaaban is calcalaled S0 532 o wrle ol the 2as0 of langible liked 255015 over 1he
paried of thear estimated wsatul Irves Lsing the sirgight ing meitad. The estimated Wy of
each class 2° fixed asset is =a8° out below.  Depreciation sarmmnences ir the year o
gogquistion or on camplebca of comstruclicn when a ful yaar's deprecalaon el B2
charged Any shartfall of aeprecialar arising on lne dispesal or wrte-off of fived assats is
charged to ine dispusals pocount end ary proseeds arsing from the disposal are srediled
tc kel agcount. Land is rat deprecated



GUERNESEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED

2155 APPENDIX

NOTES T0 THE ACCOUNTS
Year andad 31 March J003

ACCCUINTING POLICIES (econtinuead)
Tangibk Nixed assats and depreciation (continued]

Eztlmared ke

imyeaArs
Build ings 21 30
Cable Lirk 23
Plan and machirery CRrEration 11 - 28
Dsirhutizn i

Distrini lion netsork comp rising.
Custributors piay
hbiers 15
Cysiocontral raceivers =]
Mudar vehicles L
Furniture ard equiptent 2-10
R plant £—-10

Stocks and work in prograss.

Crocks ard wikon progress o wa:led a1 tha lower o Sast and nel realisaole valoe  Ir
respeci of gonds held for resale a prawsion (@ made basad on e FHe slapsed since the
goods wers parchasad.  Provsion is —ade 1or gther stacks relaling b strategic plant
based upon ke remaning Jsedal eoanassic li%e of 1ne wsgots 0 when they relals

Leases
Dpealng lease rentals arg enargad o orofit 317 less n ecual annaa. amaunts ower the

~23EE Tarm.

Dafarred taxation

Prawvissan for deferrad 1ax is made in lull am bring d ferences whuck resgl «=noan abligation
3" the balance sheet datw 1o pay tax al & futurs dale @ rates expecied ‘o apg'y whon they
erystallize baseed on cument tax rates ard laws Deferred g 255805 are only recognised
b the extent that it is wwgardes as more bkoky o rot chat they woll be resowerac,
Defarrec Lax assets And liagililes are nat giscarnted.

Foreign exchange
Transacutns denominafed i feredgn currancies are sefled at the ratex roling on Lhe
cetlamard day

Financial insliuments

Tue Company anlers into fonedrd exchage carlrags th mitigale a large pecentage 2
ihe risk of flusluations in the currek oy rale betwear L' Core ard che Pourd Sterling in
reEeting its fimancial obligasiona for the 'mporl of elegncity units from T Lorgpean grd
Sairt and 10sges ar these contracts 3-8 defarad and recognised in the profil and  oss
accounl only when dhe delzyed fransacton nas ilself baan relleded inothe Company's
acuolnt

I

The Corpary aoes nol bald o ssue financial ingraments for spaculative purposes

15
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED

3:.

NOTES TD THE ACCOLUNTS
Year ended 31 March 2003

1.

2,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES [contitued)

Pansion coats

The Company corlines 1o apply Swalement ol Stancard Accounlng FProchce 24
[-55AF 24°1 The cosls of the defined benefd scheme are evarged b the profil and loss
accauni owvtr the penod during which the Company oenefite T-om e cimpioyees” senicas,
Surplyses or delwense: are spread owe Lhe expefied Ewerage semaining working
lifatime of amployvess in propston o their expecsted payryl ¢osts The new pens-ar
cisclosures urdet Finanzial Reportiag Standard 17 ("FRS 177) are prowided Loges 2
saparate ane to hsse accoJriz.

Joinl arrangemeants
The Channel 'sl2nns Eecircity God Lim lec is a joirl arrgsgemnent bebyeen the Jersew

Electnaty Campany Limied and Gaemnsey Electnely | imted. The Company was Tenmed
fo manage the project and the engong aperation ol the eabls iNe

In Accorcarce wilh Smans sl Reporting Slandard Mo, $, "Assozimes and Joinl Yer lures',
theca fimancial statemanls ine'ude e Companys arlllersenl 1o the azsets, liabiities,
cash flows and the shared lems of s oot smangemant whare Lhe Gorpany's
anlllements are Tdlly dewermngd Dy centracts with the clkes pary bothe  joind
arrancernenl.

TURNOVER Perod Trpm
Year anded 24 August

11 Marel 2001 10 M

2003 March 2002

£, 000 £ 0oo

mowen of elecl-icity 22,803 4374
Other sales o o=EE 438

26,515 A4.776

All sales ol elasnaly anse Tam coslomors @ the Slznd of Guernsoy. Olher sales ane
rnada be customears hrooghoul e Ba livisk af Guernsey

CABLE LINK

T4e Gompary hzs ar cngoeg ebhganan io its supplier Elestocté de France o mee! tha
cost el a menJm ameurd of eleclncity. This is a revanue comrrirne -t which amounes o
aparoximaley 1,660 00) per snnum based on the lanfl appiiceble at March 2003 The
Carmpaty 18 350 commilled b Santribote towards the  ranttrcément of the French
netwark. Th s liabil-ly 1 2pproximate:y E412,000 at 31 Maren 2003 (2002 £E2C,000; and
will b extinguished by 2207 m aosordance with 1he contract o1 the supply of electricily

“he Company = mow paty 10 arrangements entered o an F8 Nevemoer 1598 wilh e
Jarsay Electticity Company Lim led, entrring in'c a 35 year ease and lease oAk
arrangemerds in e amoont of E70.°3 million in resaest of the nstallation ard oparabon
al the Imergonnector svslem babhween France, Jarsay ard Suemnsey  The counterparties
n the arrangerment arg Natwas: OMshore Linited ard ihe Aoyl Bank o Soatla
It national Limitad.
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GUERMNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED

HOTEE TO THE ACCOLUNTS
‘Yaar ¢ended 31 March 2003

kR CABLE LINK {contlnuad)

APPENDIX

= LG L v ey
m Flardermfy

Cn arlanng inlo he greangemeants a1 mbal prefroumn of £1 45 m:llion was received wiich
1% being amorised wweer 15 wears (ine nilal panod of Ihe et
annual recems angd payments untder e [ease ard lease back amangements balh Lata
£ 2nm. This Nigure 5 $et 10 escalate at B% por anquee gueer the durahar of tha l=ase.
Tre Company has an wnearddional nght of =e1-0ff of al commdicd gase payhents
Aagains! lease eoeats 2uck mal thers s ro rek -al nel lease paymen:s will be raquinsd.

4, OFERATING PROFIT

Oparaling profit is aftar
Charging/[crediling]:

Capraeciabon fnate 9)
Rentals ardes aperating leasas
Avditors” remureration - aodi
no-audic SEmices

Bad cells
Ernalurmeris

- Executive: diriclars
Oiher operating incorme

5  INTERE3T

[nteres] rece wable:
Diepcgits with banks ard
S-atas Tragzsury

Hire gp.rcnass

Interes] payaaols:
Barr=, rwerd-aft
Sapurity depising

- Mor-eeecubde direcions

AL commencement

Panicd froem
Yaar ended 24 Aufpusl
31 March 2001 ko 31
2003 March 2002
E.0H E.000
5,685 BaL
42 T
16 g
3] -
B -
1 a
138 A0

{183 [3E]
Pariod from
Yaar andag 24 August
31 March 2007 to 21
2003 March 2002
E£.000 £,000
473 ar

S S -
238 5
4 -
— .t T,
i -

17
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED Eveclriciy

NOTES TG THE ACCOUNTS
Year ehided 31 March 2003

a,

RECOVERY FROM LIQUIRATOR

Qf the £5,350, 000 Lhal 1w Slates of Guernsey Ewcincity Bhard nad on deposil with the
Bank of Credit and Commerce Inbermalonal when 1 2eazed trading oo & July 1237
e 116,633 has oear recovered Mo distnbuliar was recsivac in ihe cumanl yes: (2002;

]

Subsequanl to ke oalunce sheel date there has been 3 puslic announcemean? af a feurh
distribution 10 credisors of T5% of e claom wa e, We would expect 10 receiee notificanor
as a crediwer ir e fordRcaoming weeks ko corfirm ihe exact amourl and dala of 1qe

pavmand 1o Js.

TAXATION

Current taxalion
Mo slh@rge for Guernsey Income Tax at 20p i e £ anses doc 1o the adiested 1255 far ey
pdrozses [ar e pesriad.

Ewferrad taxation
Provision of £251 070 12302 £65 0001 far Guemsey Income Tax al 20p n1he £ has baan

made ¢ug F siming differences arising IFurm Saplka ol Qwances esseedian dapresiatan far
Llhe paricd ang urreleved srad.ng loss for tax purpceas.

TRANSFER OF UNDERTAKING

7 acoardanee wih The States Trading Companies [Bailwich @ Guernseyl Ordinar oo
2021 the underlakiryy ol e Stales of Guemsey Elecinoty Board was trarsferrec and
vesied 1N Guernsey Zlectricive Lmited with afloel from 1 Fabraang 2002

The net asse's acoured by the Compary 20 e ransfer of unceraking were:

1 February
2002
E, 00
TANGIBLE FINED ASZETS 100,708
Curment 58413
Fusl sieoks L
DOlher slacks aad work 10 progress 1,836
Dehiors and prapayrrants £,113
Balances with tha S1atas Treasary /396
Cash a1 bank 2rd in hand R
13,3168
CREDITORS DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR ___[5Ge8)
MET CURREMNT ASSETS ____B64E
CREDITORS DUE AFTER MORE THAN
UNE YEAR . L4
TOTAL MET ASSETS 108,204

15
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED

HOTES TO THE ALCOLUMTS
Faar ended 31 March 2003

B. TAMGIELE FIXED ASGETS

1 April Writtan off ™ March
2002 Additicnz Idizposals 20493
EA00 £,000 £,y £,000
L.ost
Land and owildings 74335 284 45 #1504
Cahe Lo 28 8A% 17 - 28802
Plant a~¢ macn-nary,
el 29 18% 133 k2 e
Qisiribtinn q 418 S48 14 44918
Dysinbotioe rnelwesark 13 139~% 1.084 g 11 THB
Kiztor war clas, i —sAure s
agupaTe ™, minor ﬂ-lar". 17158 134] 5 1 241
101 0R1 2 TR1 157 s v
1 April Charge for Writtee o i1 March
20 thre waar {diepesals Ak
£ O L 000 EDDO E.D
D reciakaan
Lovwd e bunle s T43 #31 2 1,072
Zahle link 23 1,247 - 1.4545
HAan and rmchingry
Cuanaration IEs 7155 T 2OAGN
strioAncr M Fua . PES
Dl s v nebeeark 134 43 £33
Malee wehicles furnlbure and
equipmenl, minor phanl B 2 P A
L= = L AES i3 B39z
P hionk winlae 105,131 ar.11d

Imzluded abawe are assals
wWhich are Nl cepresialed.

—_— e uiaa .

1Ehe sourse o conguchon of £ A58 000 (2082 E4 485 000),

14
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GUERNSEY ELECTRIGITY LIMITED

HOTES TG THE ACCOLUNTS
Year andad 31 Mareh 2003

10, STOCHS ANDWORK IN PROGRESS

£.000
Fui glacks
Furchased gocds Far
resale v
Frovision b
Cther stacks 2601
Frisyisicn . 24

Wark 171 prag st

11. DEBTORS AND PREPATYMENTS

E=snirsaed value af unbilled unils
Cusiomer gciounts autsianding
Ather dehtors

Prepaywnants

12. BALAMCES WITH STATES TREASURY

2003
£.000

71

Pty

£, D0

26E
¢,

2,248
oy

2002
£, DD

D3

RH12
¥ 000G

2512
1.767
YK

420

T A7TRE

The treasurny deparmanl of 1ne Slates ol Guorisey & cogaged Koraeest e Soeepany's

igqund funds imexcess of its darry requiramants.

13, CREMITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Bark awverd-aft

1rade credilors

Cuzlarmnet paymarns recsived in acwance
Empayes taxes and Socia! Securily
Defer-ec incoms

Accruals and ather crecitars

Dividend payakla

2003
£, GO

205
1,037
2,558

&4

115

Brr

230
9 A4t

&l
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED

HOTES TO THE AGCOLUNTS
Yaar ended 31 March 2003

14,

15,

16,

17.

APPENDIX

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN GNE YEAR

Deferred income

FROVISION FOR LIABILITIES AMD CHARGES

Deferred 1axakan:
Caprial allnweroes i1 excess of doprodation
Unrclieved Tracing loss for tax purposes

SHARE CAP|TAL

Authorised
125 000,000 sharas of £1 gack

[z5uRd and fLlly paic
100 208 544 shares of £1 each

2003 2002

£,000 E.000

1,446 1,245

2003 2002

£.000 E 000

242r ATS
. e 2100

16 55

20403 2002

£,000 £,000

* 2, (K *&9 X¥I0

109,200 *08.20%

Two shares ware issued on ‘crmalion o e Sompany and 1ne rema@m.ng T, 208 542
shanes were (ssped 0 equate 1o tne consideralar. of 2102 208.844 1or Llha nel az=els
acquired by Lhe: Cormpany [rom e Zlates af Guensey with efiect from 1 Febriany 2002

[see rke 8]

RECOMNGILIATICN OF OPERATING PRORT

TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cparaling praf;

Depreciaticn charye

Dixferies ingome

{Imcrease)decrease in slocks and work in progress
[Increase Ydecreasze in deotors and prepayman’s
Incresse (Oecroase] n Seaibors

Parioe froem

Yaar ended 24 Auguslt
31 March 2001 1o 31
2003 Mzrch 2002

E, D00 E 404
Fhl 250

n BES 5]
1 115] 117
339 A6

i A9E) 3B
148 BT
1,339
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GUERMNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED

NOTES T4 THE ACCOUNTS
Yoar anded 31 March 2003

9.

= [T BT
= Ehecirory

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOYW TO MOYEMENT IN NET FUNDS

Poerlod frcarm
Year anded 24 August
21 March 2001 to 34
2003 March 2042
£,000 E. 0
DEcredse 1 cogn i the year S penod 1145) (13
Cash uzed to norgasy [ gund resourses . XY a7
Zhange in net [urds 4,323 744
Flat [urds g 2quired ar fransfer of uncertaking - T.A62
Mat furds ai * Apn E,106 -
Met Turdds al 31 kdarch 12,629 8, 105
ARNALYSIS OF CHANGES IM MET FUNDS
At April At 21 March
2002 Cash flows 20413
£, 000 £ 000 £, M
Cazh
Cash al bask and o Rard EA T 7
Rank awverdraf $133) ) (05
(45 [~ da (195
Balances with States Treasury 8133 4472 12627
5, 106 4325 iZ, 429
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHQOLDER'S FUNDS
Fericd from
Yoar otdad 24 August
31 March 2001 te 21
2003 March 2002
£, 000 £, (I
Shareralder's funds at 1 &onl braughl fonward 108 470 109 205
Reteqned profit for the (inancal year ! penog g . -
Sharsholde's funds at 31 Marzh __ 1= [ A7L

T T BT Hal sl L

22
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— el
GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED @ Fractrisity

MGYTES 70 THE ACCGUNTS
Yaar endad 31 March 23

21.

COMMITMENTS

Cagital carnmitrmenss for wnich ne prowvision has baen made in thess financial slatements
amauried 1o £4,660. 000 a5 31 31 March 2003 (2002 £23 409,000

Oparating Ixase commitmeants
Cammitrents lo make aymeats danag the e vesrn respect of an cperabng lease ans

A5 Firelliws:

2003 2002
£.000 £.000
Land and Buidings
Loase which expires:
Within o Lo [nal peeabs qz -
Eeyand ive waars . A

FIMANGLAL INSTRUMENTS

T Company's caommitmant to foraard confracks zl the bakance sbael date was as
Faluomes:

2003 2002

Euras Euros

£, 00 €, J00

Forward contracts £, 100 Il

£.000 £,000

Coniracted prices 4,155 ]
Closirg wales al 31 Marcn 4,217 hail

nrocogrised 10550 Y T -

All Tenward cant-acis marre withir twalve manths of the halance sheat date

F
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GUERMSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
vaar engded 31 March 2003

25

FPEHSIONM FLUMEB

The amployess 2" e Compary are menbers af the Stales of Guerngey SEPEran WEion
['und. This = a defined benefts pensan scheme fended by confnibalicons  [reee Bath
amployer &ng¢ employes al rates wheh arg dotermine: on e baeis of independant
aAciuarial adwioe. and whign are salcalaled 1o spraad e crocsled eosl of banelils payabie
Lo ermpayvees ower the period af 1hose emalopess’ axoeclad service |vies.

The States of Guensey ACoJnts for the year ended 31 Decomber 2001, e luding 1ne
Superarnuation Fund on pages 1101 112, were aoproved an A0 Jaly 2002, A1 nola f) to
the Fund it was stated Jhat

"8 prewsanE acivanial valuahon of e Suporarmgation Fung ar 31 Dacember
2007 has hoary Sared o,

The regalts af thiz valuation. undarigien Gy the Dung's profersana! achianas in
Nire with e guadance sef sufn FRS 17 indicales thal ai 27 Decormbor 2007 the
acfuarial vaiue of e gsserr fraresemied 1731.5% of e acivana! value of fhy
accraed latdiies ralaving (o iha Soherng mooibors,

A fult aotuaris) valvakion of the £ ond s 0 the process of haing carned cul. The
resuits of tes walbaban incioding any propascd cliargoes (S W00 rafes of
eoioyars cankitutions wall, @ the normal way be repored i the ras! Sudgel
Hoport duwg [ fe praserded o e Siafes in Docomber 20"

Az the Fuad g 3 mulli entity arrangemant the Slates of Guernsey mantractad the Fund's
qualified independent adlwanes 1o identfy 1he actuanal account for cach catily 07d
mesreelare the walue of the persizn lund assels ard oabilities aticbulab 2 10 this Company.
As ar 1 Frooruary #0002 she actuaral account was walued ol £20 711 525, baing 115, 7% ol
e aciparal value of the acaued lagiihes The repor furher recommandec e nerodss
af mmplaver's contibutan dram B.25% 1o 8 35% from 1 April 2002 and nis has basn
acapted.

The: 1olal amaung of superannuaticn conlribubicns far the year srded 37 karch 2003 was
455, 00C (2002, twe momths 74 0000 which were all paid dunag the poar.

The Company row fecoghises the requinemeards ol Fimancial Reparting Standare 17
CFRS 177 on Reliramanl Boneflts, 300 3ets out betaw 1he disclosuras requirca wndicr Lho
fransitional rules

31 March 31 March
2003 2002
Flnanciel Assumplions % pa. T P

Diccounl -ata

Inflatan

Imcreaxes 1o daferred benefits durng ce'ermenl
Increasas lo pansians in paernerd

Incréasies 1o saanes

b k3 k2 batn
= = 7T n
B Farabad
Pl = B v I

24
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GLUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED
MGTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Yaar anded 31 March 2003
71, PENSION FUND (continued)
Market valua of achema assats
Markat velue at

31 March 2003

£,0040 Yo

Eouities 12 571 T2.0
Bonds 4263 piT:
Ca=h an net curanl

ascals b2h ac
Market valua of 1he T

scheme assets 17,486 oo
Present valus of the

scheme liabilibies 24,265
ResuMting T

(Deficitl Suspiug (6. 7ES
Ralated detarred tax

{2ESUMIngG

Guarnsey incoma

Tax at 20%:} 1.26E

Mgt pensian
{liabilltyp'aazet

Expacted
return on
LELTS
% pa

[n -l

=
2.5

E7

Market value al
31 March 2002

£.000

1r.095
2.5

{585)

2,340

APPENDIX

Expeclad
eturm on
agqets
% p.a.

LA
5.2

The asset and liabilily wawes on tha FRES 57 bBasis reflest market condibons a1l the
Campany's yeal-end date and can De expectec ta wary gooatly e year e year wlnou!
prequdining 1he sctsme’s 1ng-term abil:ly Lo prowite the requiree bangfits

Balance sheat presentation

Mgl assets excluding peng on
Peenzic fability yasse:
MWel aREE"s including persion

ResBrves Aole

Frofit and [oss resarve exnluding oensior
Pension reserve
Frofit and lnse resanve imcluding pensizn

21 March 31 Match
Toha 2002
£.000 £ 000

110,24 100 470

(5431 2,340

104, B0 141810

31 March 1 March
2003 20002
I ann F, Qoo
1,032 AE1

Credany 2,347
4,390 A0

1—

23
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Year aoded 31 March 2003

23, FENSION FUND [cortinued)

Analysis aof the amount chargaable 1o operating profit

280z

£ 00
Cearznt enace cost UG
P35t sarics cosl I
Tota- operating charge T
Analysis of the armoeunl chargeable to olher finance costs

20403

£, 000
Expuoted redlurn an pensan sciems assels (5,623
Imarest on ponsion SEeeme hatilines 113
Mesl redurr [A55)

Analysis of amGunt that would be recognised in a statement of total recognised
qains and loeses (STRGL)

2003
£,000
Actual eelurr ess erpechad nellm an pension
spheme accats e, T
Exporignce: gars &nd Ioss a1sing on the soheme
liabilizies 710078,
changes n a2ssumplions ande-lying b2 presanl
yahues af Lhe sehems iah-ihes [3,0400%
{9,859
Movememnt during the yaar
2003
£.000
Surplus ir teheme at beginaing of the year 2025
Mowerent In wear
Cumanl service cosly Ak
Comiributic s 458
Fazl sennce SOsLs i)
Ctner finance incame LLL
dlgarial Inss 19, B55
Datoit .0 scheme ol end of the year B 7RG

25
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY EIMITED ety

MOTES TO THE ACCOUMNT &
Yaar ¢nded 31 March 2003

22, PENSION FUND [conlinued)

Histary of experience galne and losaes

2003
E, 000
Diffarancd petwaen the actual and axpected
return on schams assets)
amaunt [£] 18, 725)
aercen:age of scheme aseels o R
Exparience gains and |os56% on SCHems
liakilitins;
arnauat 10 (1077
nercentace of iha prosent wilos 22 the Ssheme
Nesillies [4%z]
Tolal ampodnt recognised in statemant of total
TecopniFtd gans and losses:
Armaunt {F [3.555)
percentace of the present valoe: of Lhie scheonn
Lakoilific:s (&%

24. STATEMENT OF COMTROL

The Company = whely cwied ard nltimately ceatrolled by 1he Stazes of Soemszey.

28, RELATED PARTY TRAHNSACTIONS
There are no dsolosable related party Lrangaskars o Hes inanca | gsar

Cf the Company's annual rcome ard esoenditurs less than 20% a7 their res peshive valne
15 due 1o frarsactions with ocher States erlibes

[
-
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GUERNSEY ELECTRICITY LIMITED

ADDITIONAL IWFORMATION
Year ernded 31 March 2003

PROFIT & LEHER ACCOLNT - 12 MONTH COMPARISON

TURMOVER

COoaT OF SALES

GRQSS PROFIT

MET GJPERATING EXPEMSES

QPERATING PROFIT

Laes on dsposal of assa's

PROFIT OHW DROINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE
INTEREST

Interast receiveble
Interast payakh:

PROFIT OM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE
TAXATION

Taxabon

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL FERIOD
AFTER TAXATION

Owidend prapozed
RETAIMED PROFIT FUE THE YEAR

41 March
2003
£, D]

26616

16,0206

7G4

nhE
10

231
1.0

230
M

21 March
2poz2
£.0H

25,833

15,663

0 16E
9,028
TEE

HE

Gh

485

485

The additional rleqmabon Fas been prepared from the arcoarting recorgs of ke Sampany
‘wehile il does nal fom part of the slalulory Yinandaal slatermonls, sl B read in conunction

weithh thern and she independent audilors’ repard therear.

i
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APPENDIX Il
STATES ADVISORY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC AND CORPORATE PLAN

The President,
States of Guernsey,
Royal Court House,
St. Peter Port,
Guernsey.

13 August, 2003.

Dear Sir

Tha draft Strategic and Carporate Plan. (Strategic Land Use Plam), formed
part of the 2003 Palicy and Rescurca Plan, The States, without amandment,
adcpted the dratt Plan.

| should, therefore. be grateful if the atlached Strategic and Corporate FPlan in
ils definithee form could be published as an Appendix 1o ke Billat for lhe
Septombar 2003 States masting but as a separate document

Y ours faithfully

AN

L.C.Morgan
President
Advisory and Finance Committes

ENC
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APPENDIX III
STATES ADVISORY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

EMERGENCY DISASTER RELIEF

The President
States of Guernsey
Royal Court House
St Peter Port
Guernsey

22nd August 2003

Dear Sir,

EMERGENCY DISASTER RELIEF

The States Financial Procedures include the following:
"That as regards emergency aid for disasters overseas:

(i) to authorise the Advisory and Finance Commiittee, in consultation with
the Overseas Aid Committee, to increase the budget of that latter
Committee by a total of up to £200,000 in any one financial year for the
purpose of providing aid in respect of specific emergency disasters,

(i) to direct the Advisory and Finance Committee to inform the States on
each use of the above delegated power by means of a report appended
to a Billet d'Etat for submission at the next available States meeting."

The Advisory and Finance Committee wishes to inform the States that on 20 August 2003 it
considered a letter dated 18 August 2003 from the President, Overseas Aid Committee
proposing that that Committee's 2003 budget be increased by £30,000 for the purpose of
contributing to the Disasters Emergency Committee's Appeal in respect of the crisis in
Liberia. In view of the scale and nature of the crisis, the Advisory and Finance Committee
agreed to the budget increase as requested.

It should be noted that the Overseas Aid Committee has made one grant amounting to £15,000
in the last nine years in respect of long-term development projects in Liberia and
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considers that it would be entirely appropriate for the States of Guernsey to make a
contribution under the terms of the above resolution.

I should be grateful if you would include this Report as an Appendix to the Billet d'Etat for the
States meeting for September 2003.

Yours faithfully,

L. C. MORGAN

President
Advisory and Finance Committee
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APPENDIX IV
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g | FINANCE

Y COMMITTEE GUERNSEY RETAIL PRICES INDEX
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Al the and of June, Suarmsaay's annual rate of inflaton, ee

moazurgd by changes in the Indax of Rgtail Pricesx, wax 4.3% comparcd
with 4.7% althe end ol Ihe prayious quarier. This e 8 drop of 0.4% on the
Erevinus Qquarar

ThelndexFiguresalheesd | Pados | % | Fecod "
Tuesds
¥ gl June 2003 wierg I 1 ~ [ i
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GUERNSEY RETAIL PRICES INDEX - JUNE 2003

PERCEMNTAGE CHANGES IN GROUP INFLATICHM
AMDTHEIR CONTRIBUTION 1O QOWERALL INFLATION

GUERMSEY INFLATION RATE (=4, 3%}

weigh | S’;L:I:rﬂ-r‘; Annisl %Changs | % Contribuion
Food 127 | it a0/ 0.5
Alcohalic Drink 52 28 15 0.2
| Tabacoo 19 a0 7.1 0.1
s S e e —
[Fuss, Light and Powsr | T i e | a1l
Housenhold Goods 78 04| 2.1 0.2
Housenols Services 33 12 Z5 0.1
Clothing & Foobwasr | 58 04 4.0 0.2
Personal Goods 45 1.8} N 0.2
Iummﬂ fr.pm_mu.lra { SRyl a5 -1.3 i1 04
| FaresiOtther Travel | | 23 33 (VR
| Laisurs oode = 0.8 02 0.0
[ Latsure Services a2 .1 8.0/ o8
[y ——— &5 0.2 22| 0.1
e . — e | e =28
Al ltems , 43|

Waalghl o5 Ire] Eromnsan L ik Wil el
raperanfed o 2azh qioap Ganiribwnkoe
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e wfawd il ol ' g
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GUERNSEY RETAIL PRICES INDEX - JUNE 2003
Annualised Percantzgs changes in RP1 Grioups
[June 2002 1o June 2003)
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APPENDIX

GUERNSEY RETAIL PRICES INDEX - JUNE 2003

RP| comparison with Jersay and the UK
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APPENDIXV
STATES CIVIL SERVICE BOARD
GENERAL SALARY SCALES OF THE ESTABLISHED STAFF

The President,
States of Guernsey,
Royal Court House,
St. Peter Port,
Guernsey.

29 July, 2003.
Drear Sir

I megordance wih Sates Resolulion XXX of 28 Golaber 1987, s amended, [ have
the hunour to encloss. for publicalion as an Appendix to a Billel d Btat, detuibs of the
galary romima and maxima of the Established Siaff gencral grades apply:ng ftom |
oday 2003, following 1he completion of negotiatians L determine Civit Service salaties.
The number of stall by prades is also detailed.

Y ours Tanthfully

A SV io
Prisident
Civil Bervice Board
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APPENDIX

ESTABLISHED STAFF DE THE STATES (JF GIIERNSEY
The Salary Minimz & Maxima of the (scneral Grades

Senior Qfficer 12

ATl R0
L

GLQEA LT L

Semior Dticer 11 Bebin ] e 7T

Semar Cdticer 19 ToEZTAHERT 1

Semor Cfticeor TR LETELAS

Semor Odticer 4 417072854

Semor Odlicer 7 Lhas el 29 '>__

Bemaor CHilicer & Lasddreig otz ]

Benaunr Dl 5 dROESA52TY

Bevgr CHIger 4 dd TN T

Sewior DEfwer 5 T R LA

Semiar D ger 2 390482 | /2

Senior COffieer o AL TINS5 -

Eusryve Grade V I2BH AT E

Executive Cirade [V 043831217 L_

Erzcutive Crrade 1 BT TZEESL " Noel

Excoutive Crrnde 11 24241705067 J

Exsoutive CRade [ A543 0GT

Adroostmiive Assistand 2 177E8 2035

Adrmarngtsmive Assisland | 1399°%W 17267 ~pte 3

Cloncal Assistil Il 151 3507

Pereonal Assistam 2 FRIRER203TI

Forsona: Assisiang | I 229ED

Typist € L&ATTA20H 1 ] Mote 4

Typist B 12711 &1 7

Tvpis A AT L A0S 3

Cither Grades ETA7512950 Mo 5
There arc 1859 Fstabliched Séaft in dotal o U penera] prades. (4]
velablishroent figwies a5 a1 311503

Mole ) There ame 283 stallt {15% of tonal) on die Semior Officer wmades.

Marie 2 There ace 781 s1922Y (42% of tacall oo the Exveutive Grades,

Maic 3 There are 522 =1aff (28% of 11aly on the Admiostrative Assistant, Cleroeal
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IN THE STATES OF THE ISLAND OF GUERNSEY

ON THE 24TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2003

The States resolved as follows concerning
Billet d'Etat No. XXI dated 5th September, 2003

PROJET DE LOI

entitled

THE REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS (BAILIWICK OF GUERNSEY)

LAW, 2003

I To approve, subject to the following amendment, the Projet de Loi entitled "The
Regulation of Investigatory Powers (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2003", and to
authorise the Bailiff to present a most humble Petition to Her Majesty in Council
praying for Her Royal Sanction thereto.

1.

AMENDMENT

In section 18 of the Projet (printed on page 47 of the Brochure to the Billet)
after subsection (8), add the following —

“(9) A notice under subsection (4) may require -
@ the person to whom the notice is given, and

(b) every other person who becomes aware of it or of its
contents,

to keep secret the giving of the notice, its contents and the things done in
pursuance of it.

(10) A person who makes a disclosure to any other person of
anything that he is required by a notice under subsection (4) to keep secret
shall be guilty of an offence and liable -

@ on conviction on indictment, to imprisonment for a term
not exceeding five years or to a fine, or to both;

(b) on summary conviction, to imprisonment for a term not
exceeding six months or to a fine not exceeding level 5
on the uniform scale, or to both.
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(11) In proceedings against any person for an offence under this
section in respect of any disclosure, it shall be a defence for that person to
show that he could not reasonably have been expected, after being given the
notice or (as the case may be) becoming aware of it or of its contents, to take
steps to prevent the disclosure.

(12) In proceedings against any person for an offence under this
section in respect of any disclosure, it shall be a defence for that person to
show that -

@ the disclosure was made by or to an Advocate or other
professional legal adviser in connection with the giving,
by the Advocate or adviser to any client of his, of
advice about the effect of provisions of this Chapter;
and

(b) the person to whom or, as the case may be, by whom it
was made was the client or a representative of the client.

(13) In proceedings against any person for an offence under this
section in respect of any disclosure, it shall be a defence for that person to
show that the disclosure was made by an Advocate or other professional legal
adviser -

@ in contemplation of, or in connection with, any legal
proceedings; and

(b) for the purposes of those proceedings.

(14) Neither subsection (12) nor subsection (13) applies in the case
of adisclosure made with aview to furthering any crimina purpose.

(15) In proceedings against any person for an offence under this
section in respect of any disclosure, it shall be a defence for that person to
show that the disclosure was confined to a disclosure made to the
Commissioner or authorised -

@ by the Commissioner;
(b) by the terms of the notice;

(© by or on behalf of the person who gave the notice; or

(d) otherwise authorised under this Law or any other
enactment.

(16) In proceedings for an offence under this section against a

person other than the person to whom the notice was given, it shal be a
defence for the person against whom the proceedings are brought to show that
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he neither knew nor had reasonable grounds for suspecting that the notice
contained a requirement to keep secret what was disclosed.”

2. In section 41 of the Projet (printed on page 87 of the Brochure to the Billet),
for subsection (1) substitute the following -

“(1) Thissection applies—

@ where it is not reasonably practicable for Her Majesty’s
Procureur to consider an application for an authorisation
under section 40;

(b) where the caseis urgent; or

(© in such circumstances as Her Magjesty’s Procureur
directs.”

PROJET DE LOI

entitled

THE PREVENTION OF CORRUPTION (BAILIWICK OF GUERNSEY)
LAW, 2003

. To approve the Projet de Loi entitled "The Prevention of Corruption (Bailiwick of
Guernsey) Law, 2003", and to authorise the Bailiff to present a most humble Petition
to Her Mgjesty in Council praying for Her Royal Sanction thereto.

PROJET DE LOI
entitled
LA SOCIETE GUERNESIAISE (INCORPORATION) LAW, 2003
1. To approve the Projet de Loi entitled "La Société Guernesiaise (Incorporation) Law,

2003", and to authorise the Bailiff to present a most humble Petition to Her Maesty in
Council praying for Her Royal Sanction thereto.

THE HOUSING (CONTROL OF OCCUPATION) (AMENDMENT OF
HOUSING REGISTER) ORDINANCE, 2003
IV. To approve the draft Ordinance entitled "The Housing (Control of Occupation)

(Amendment of Housing Register) Ordinance, 2003" and to direct that the same shall
have effect as an Ordinance of the States.
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THE HARBOURS (AMENDMENT) ORDINANCE, 2003

VI. To approve the draft Ordinance entitled The Harbours (Amendment) Ordinance, 2003",
and to direct that the same shall have effect as an Ordinance of the States.

STATESCOMMITTEE FOR HORTICULTURE
NEW PRESIDENT

VII. To elect Douzaine Representative W. Le R. Robilliard as President of the States
Committee for Horticulture to complete the unexpired portion of the term of office of
the late Deputy P. A. C. Falla, namely, to the 31st May, 2005.

ORDINANCE LAID BEFORE THE STATES

THE REFORM (GUERNSEY) (AMENDMENT) LAW, 2003
(COMMENCEMENT) ORDINANCE, 2003

In pursuance of the proviso to paragraph 66 of the Reform Guernsey) Law, 1948, as
amended, the Reform (Guernsey) (Amendment) Law, 2003 (Commencement)
Ordinance, 2003 made by the States Legislation Committee on the 28th July, 2003

was laid before the States.
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STATESADVISORY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

AMENDMENT TO THE CUSTOMS AND EXCISE (GENERAL PROVISIONS)
(BAILIWICK OF GUERNSEY) LAW, 1972

XII. After consideration of the Report dated the 13th August, 2003, of the States Advisory
and Finance Committee:-

1. That the legidlation in force in Guernsey relating to impots shall be repealed and
replaced by amendments to the Customs and Excise (General Provisions)
(Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1972 in accordance with the proposals set out in
that Report.

2. To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give effect to
their above decision.

STATESADVISORY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
ALDERNEY —ISLAND HALL AND COURT BUILDING RENOVATIONS

XI1Il.  After consideration of the Report dated the 15th August, 2003, of the States Advisory
and Finance Committee:-

Subject to the approval of the States of Alderney -

1. (a) To authorise the renovation and conversion of the Island Hall, Alderney for
use as office accommodation and public use.

(b) To authorise the States of Alderney to accept the tender submitted by ABC
(1982) Ltd. in the sum of £651,459.

(c) To vote the States of Alderney a credit of £760,000 to cover the costs of the
above works, which sum shall be taken from the States of Alderney's capital
allocation.

2. To authorise the States Advisory and Finance Committee to approve the acceptance
of al tenders in respect of the repairs to the Court Building and to approve a capital
vote to be charged to the capital allocation of the States of Alderney

3. To note the States of Alderney's Policy and Finance Committee's intention to sell St.
Anne's House to part fund these projects.
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STATESADVISORY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

PROPOSALS FOR COMPREHENSIVE EQUAL STATUSAND FAIR

TREATMENT LEGISLATION

XI1V. After consideration of the Report dated the 20th August, 2003, of the States Advisory
and Finance Committee:-

1

That legislation shall be enacted along the lines set out in that Report to make
discrimination unlawful and to promote equality of opportunity and diversity.

To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give effect to
their above decision.

To agree that once the new enabling Law isin place:

(@) proposals for an Ordinance dealing with gender discrimination should be
brought forward at an early stage for consideration by the States; and

(b) HM Government should be requested to include Guernsey in the United
Kingdom's ratification of the International Convention on the Elimination of
al forms of Discrimination against Women (see paragraphs 16 — 19 of that
Report) at the earliest practical opportunity.

STATESADVISORY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

LEGISLATION FOR RACIALLY MOTIVATED CRIME

XV. After consideration of the Report dated the 20th August, 2003, of the States Advisory
and Finance Committee:-

1

That legislation shall be enacted as set out in that Report concerning racially
motivated offences.

To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give effect to
their above decision.

P:\Global\Billet Resolutions\2003-Resolutions\2003 September 24th 2003 Resolutions Billet XX, XXI, XXIl.doc



GUERNSEY SOCIAL SECURITY AUTHORITY

BENEFIT AND CONTRIBUTION RATES FOR 2004

XVI. After consideration of the Report dated the 20th August, 2003, of the Guernsey Social
Security Authority:-

1

10.

11.

That, with effect from the 5th January, 2004, the standard rates of socia insurance
benefits shall be increased to the rates set out in paragraph 23 of that Report.

That, with effect from the 5th January, 2004, the standard rate of survivor's
grant/bereavement payment shall be £1,220.

That maternity grant shall be increased to £248.00 in respect of confinements
which take place on or after 5th January, 2004;

That the full rate amount of death grant payable in respect of the death of a
person on or after 5th January, 2004 shall be £385.00

That, with effect from the 1st January, 2004, for employed and self-employed
persons the upper weekly earnings limit, the upper monthly earnings limit and the
annual upper earnings limit shall be £621, £2,691 and £32,292 respectively.

That, with effect from the 1st January, 2004, for non-employed persons the upper
and lower annual income limits shall be £32,292 and £11,310 respectively.

That the minimum (specia rate) Class 3 contribution and the voluntary non —
employed contribution shall be aligned at £12.40 per week from 1 January 2004.

That, with effect from the 1st January, 2004, the States Grant to the Guernsey
Insurance Fund shall be reduced from 57% to 50% of contributions income to
that Fund.

That the Socia Insurance (Guernsey) Law, 1978, as amended, be further
amended to enable the Fund to assist those people in receipt of socia insurance
benefits to embark upon work rehabilitation programmes.

That, with effect from 1st January, 2004, the medical benefits provided under the
Health Service (Benefit) Guernsey Law, 1991, in respect a medical consultation
with an approved doctor or approved nurse, shal be increased to £12 and £6
respectively, subject to an independent review of consultation fees in Guernsey
and Alderney being undertaken.

That, with effect from the 1st January, 2004, the prescription charge per item of
pharmaceutical benefit shall be £2.30.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

That, with effect from the 5th January, 2004, the contribution (co-payment)
required to be made by the claimant of care benefit, under the long-term care
insurance scheme, shall be £126 per week.

That, with effect from the 5th January, 2004, 'care benefit' shall be a maximum of
£539 per week for persons resident in a nursing home or the Guernsey Cheshire
Home and a maximum of £290.50 per week for persons resident in a residential
home.

That, with effect from the 5th January, 2004, 'respite care benefit' shall be a
maximum of £665 per week for persons receiving respite care in a nursing home
or the Guernsey Cheshire Home and a maximum of £416.50 per week for persons
receiving respite care in aresidential home.

That, with effect from the 9th January, 2004, the normal requirements of a person
for the purposes of paragraph 5 of Part Il of the First Schedule to the
Supplementary Benefit (Implementation) Ordinance, 1971, shall be the
appropriate amount set out in paragraph 92 of that Report.

That, with effect from the 9th January, 2004, the limit of the weekly income for
the purposes of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of the First Schedule to the Supplementary
Benefit (Implementation) Ordinance 1971 shall be:

@ £263 for a person whose requirements are in accordance with
paragraph 5 of the Schedule;
(b) £363 for a person who is residing in a residential home and whose

reguirements are in accordance with paragraph 7 of the Schedule;

(© £522 for a person who is residing as a patient in a hospital, nursing
home or the Guernsey Cheshire Home, whose requirements are in
accordance with paragraph 7 of the Schedule.

That, with effect from the 9th January, 2004, the amount of the personal
allowance payable to persons in residential or nursing homes who are in receipt
of supplementary benefit shall be £20 per week.

That a supplementary fuel allowance, for supplementary beneficiaries who are
householders, of £14 per week be paid, for 31 weeks, from 24th October, 2003.

That the Supplementary Benefit (Implementation) Ordinance, 1971, as
amended, be further amended:

@ to enable the Administrator, when determining a rent allowance, to
have regard, in addition to the circumstances of the claimant, to the
nature and extent of the accommaodation;

(b) to make it clear that for the purposes of Section 18 to the First
Schedule to the 1971 Ordinance, a person shall be treated as having
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20.

21.

22.

deprived himself of a resource if he neglects to claim, or waives or
abandons any right or benefit to which heislegally entitled;

(© to enable the value of assets which cannot be realised immediately to
be disregarded temporarily.

@ That, with effect from the 6th January, 2004, the alowance payable
under the Family Allowances (Guernsey) Law, 1950, as amended, shall
be increased from £11.25 to £11.75 per week; and

(b) that, with effect from 6th January, 2004, the cost of providing for a
child (for the purposes of determining in whose family a child not
living with his parents is to be included under the Law), shall be
increased from £11.25 to £11.75.

That, with effect from the 5th January, 2004, the rates of attendance allowance
and invalid care allowance and the annual income limits shall be as set out in
paragraph 109 of that Report.

To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give effect
to their above decisions.

STATESPUBLIC ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

PUBLIC ASSISTANCE BENEFIT RATES FOR 2004

XVII. After consideration of the Report dated the 19th August, 2003, of the States Public
Assistance Authority:-

1

That the ordinary maximum rates of public assistance for the purposes of
paragraph 10 of the Schedule to the Centra Outdoor Assistance Board
Regulations, as amended, shall be those set out in paragraph 3 of that Report.

That the limitation of weekly income in paragraph 2 (2) of the Schedule to the
Regulations shall be £263.00.

That propositions 1. and 2. above shall have effect from 9 January 2004.
That awinter fuel alowance at a maximum of £14.00 per week shall be payable
at the discretion of the Relieving Official to a person in receipt of public

assistance in the period 7 November 2003 to 26 March 2004, inclusive.

To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give effect
to their above decisions.
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VIII.

XI.

IN THE STATES OF THE ISLAND OF GUERNSEY

ON THE 25TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2003

(Meeting adjourned from 24th September, 2003)
The States resolved as follows concerning
Billet d'Etat No. X X| dated 5th September, 2003
STATESBOARD OF INDUSTRY
NEW MEMBER
To elect Douzaine Representative M. H. Dorey as a member of the States Board of
Industry to complete the unexpired portion of the term of office of the late Deputy P.
A. C. Fala, namely, to the 31st May, 2004.
STATESTRANSPORT BOARD
NEW MEMBER

To elect Deputy B. J. Gabriel as amember of the States Transport Board to compl ete the

unexpired portion of the term of office of the late Deputy P. A. C. Falla, namely, to the
31st May, 2004.

STATESGAMBLING CONTROL COMMITTEE
NEW MEMBER

To elect Deputy G. Guille as a member of the States Gambling Control Committee to
complete the unexpired portion of the term of office of the late Deputy P. A. C. Fala,
namely, to the 31st May, 2005.
STATESPROBATION SERVICE COMMITTEE
NEW MEMBER

To elect Deputy P. L. Derham as a member of the States Probation Service Committee

to complete the unexpired portion of the term of office of the late Deputy P. A. C. Falla,
namely, to the 31st May, 2005.
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IN THE STATES OF THE ISLAND OF GUERNSEY

ON THE 26TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2003

(Meeting adjourned from 25th September, 2003)

The States resolved as follows concerning
Billet d'Etat No. XXI dated 5th September, 2003

THE GUERNSEY GAMBLING CONTROL COMMISSION (CASINO
GAMING) (FEES) ORDINANCE, 2003

V. To approve the draft Ordinance entitled "The Guernsey Gambling Control

Commission (Casino Gaming) (Fees) Ordinance, 2003", and to direct that the same
shall effect as an Ordinance of the States.

STATESCOMMITTEE FOR HOME AFFAIRS
THE USE OF MOBILE TELEPHONES BY DRIVERS

XVIII. After consideration of the Report dated the 23rd July, 2003, of the States Committee for
Home Affairs:-

1 That legidlation shall be enacted, as set out in that Report, to create an offence of

driving a motor vehicle on a road whilst holding a telephone in any way whilst
the vehicleisin motion.

To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give effect
to their above decision.
STATESBOARD OF HEALTH
SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN UPDATE

XIX. After consideration of the Report dated the 21st August, 2003, of the States Board of
Headlth:-

1 To note the progress made by the States Board of Health in implementing its site

development plan sinceits last report on that matter in 1999.

2. To note the intention of the States Board of Health to provide a further report to

the States in 2006, updating on progress with the site devel opment plan.
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3.

(1) To approve the States Board of Health's proposals for progressing the next
stage of its site development plan as set out in section 3 of that Report.

(2) to vote the States Board of Health a credit of £5,242,700 to cover the planning
costs of the above (including consultants' fees), such sum to be charged to the
capital alocation of that Board;

(3) to authorise the States Advisory and Finance Committee to approve the
acceptance of al appointments and tenders in connection with the planning costs;

(4) to authorise the States Advisory and Finance Committee to transfer an
appropriate sum from the Capital Reserve to the capital allocation of the States
Board of Health in respect of the planning costs,

(5) to authorise the States Advisory and Finance Committee to transfer
appropriate sums from the Capital Reserve in respect of the property purchases
referred to in paragraphs 3.6 and 3.25 of that Report.

(1) to approve the extension and redevel opment of the Mignot Memoria Hospital,
as set out in paragraphs 3.26 to 3.30 of that Report at a total cost not exceeding
£3,450,000;

(2) to authorise the States Advisory and Finance Committee to approve the
acceptance of all tenders in connection with that project and to approve a capital
vote, not exceeding £3,450,000, such sum to be charged to the capital allocation
of the States Board of Health;

(3) to authorise the States Advisory and Finance Committee to transfer an
appropriate sum from the Capital Reserve to the capital allocation of the States
Board of Health in respect of that project.

. (1) To note that the States Board of Hedth, in conjunction with the States

Advisory and Finance Committee and for planning purposes only, will work on
the basis of £24,027,000 being made available in 2004, for the next stage of the
site development plan, comprising the schemes for staff accommodation and acute
mental health services;

(2) to note that the States Board of Health, in conjunction with the States Advisory
and Finance Committee and for planning purposes only, will work on the basis of
£24,634,300 being made available in 2006, for the following stage of the site
devel opment plan, comprising the schemes relating to anew clinical block.

. To note the States Board of Health's intention, on completion of these elements of

the site development plan, to replace the remaining 1930's buildings and refurbish
surgical facilities on the Princess Elizabeth Hospital site and to redevelop the King
Edward V11 Hospital.
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STATESHOUSING AUTHORITY

SCHEMES FOR THE PROVISION OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING — LEGISLATIVE
REQUIREMENTS

XXI. After consideration of the Report dated the 11th August, 2003, of the States Housing
Authority:-

1. That legislation shall be enacted along the lines set out in paragraphs 19, 21, 22
and 23 of that Report concerning partial ownership and assisted purchase schemes.

2. That the Order in Council entitled The Document Duty (Guernsey) Law 1973, as
amended and the Ordinances under it, shall be amended along the lines set out in
paragraphs 24 to 28 of that Report.

3. To direct the preparation of such legislation as may be necessary to give effect to
their above decisions.

STATESHOUSING AUTHORITY
SALE OF INCOMPATIBLE STATESHOUSE - LA PLANQUE FARM

XXII. After consideration of the Report dated the 11th August, 2003, of the States Housing
Authority:-

1. To agree the sale of the property known as La Planque Farm, Les Ozouets, St. Peter
Port.

2. To authorise the States Advisory and Finance Committee to approve the terms
under which the property is sold.

3. That the net proceeds of the sale be credited to the States Houses Fund to assist with
the funding of replacement States' housing stock.
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STATESTOURIST BOARD
HOTEL CASINO CONCESSION

XXII1. After consideration of the Report dated the 21st August, 2003, of the States Tourist
Board:-

That a concession under the provisions of the Hotel Casino Concession (Guernsey) Law,
2001, shall be granted to St. Pierre Park Hotel Limited in respect of the premises to be
known asthe St. Pierre Park Hotel and Casino Resort, Rohais, Saint Peter Port:-

@ provided that the conditions precedent set out in Appendix A to that Report
are satisfied within 3 years of the date of the making of the resolution; and

(b) subject to the conditions appearing in Appendix B to that Report.

Consideration of the remaining items in this Billet d Etat was POSTPONED until the
meeting of the States to be convened for 29™ October, 2003.

D. R. DOREY
HER MAJESTY'SDEPUTY GREFFIER
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